OCEARNA

STOCK EXCHANGE RELEASE
28 June 2007

Update on North American Listing
Listing on T8X & Filing of Final Prospectus

OceanaGold Corporation (*OceanaGold™ is pleased to announce that it has completed iis listing on the
Toronto Stock Exchange {("TSX") and is now trading on the TSX, the Australian Stock Exchange
{*ASX" and New Zealand Exchange Limited {"NZX") under the symbol "OGC”.

OceanaGold is alsc pieased o announce that on 27 June 2007, it filed with the Canadian securities
regulatory authorities a final prespectus in respect of its initial public offering of 25,715,000 common
shares for aggregate gross proceeds of C$80,002,500 at C$3.50 per common share. The issue of
these common shares was approved by the shareholders of Oceana Gold Limited at the general
meeting on 8 June 2007. The syndicate of underwriters participating in the offering is led by BMO
Capital Markets and also includes Austock Corporate Finance Limited, Haywood Securities Inc. and
Westwind Partners Inc. OceanaGold has also granted the underwriters an over-allotment option to
purchase an additional 3,857,250 common shares at C$3.50 per common share exercisable up to 30
days following closing of the offering, which is expected fc be on or about 5 July 2007. A copy of the
final prospectus is attached to this announcement.

OceanaGold plans o use the net proceeds of the offering primarily for the development of the Didipio
Gold Copper Project in the Philippines.

ENDS-
For further information please contact:

Darren Klinck

Vice President, Corporate and Investor Relations
OceanaGold Corporation

Tel: +61 3 9656 5300

NOT FOR DISSEMINATION OR DISTRIBUTION IN THE UNITED STATES AND NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION TO US
NEWSWIRE SERVICES.

This release does not constifule an offer fo sell securities, nor is i & solicifation of an offer fo buy securities, in any jurisdiction. All
safes will be made through registered securifies dealars in jurisdictions where the offering has been qualified for distribution. The
securities offered are nof, and wilf not be, registered under the securifies laws of the Uniled Stales of America, nor any stafe
thereof and may not be sold in the Unifed Stafes of America absent registration i the United States or the availability of an
exemption from such registration.

The Toronfe Stock Exchange has nof reviewed and does not accept responsibilify for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.



No securifies regulatory anthority as expressed an opinion abont these securities and it is an offence to claim othersiise. This prospectus constituies o public offering
of these sectcities only fn those jurisdictions where they may be lowfully offeved for sale and therein galy by persons permitied 1o sefl these securitics. The securities
offered by this prospecins have not been, and will not be, registered ander the United States Secusities Aef of 1933, as amended (the “US. Securities Act”), or any
applicable state secarvities laws and, may not be offered or sold within the United Stmtes undess vegistesed nnder the 1.8, Secarities Act and applicable state securities
laws or an exemption from such registration requiremends Is wvadlable. See “Plan of Distribution”.

PROSPECTUS
Initiad Public Offering June 25, 2007

OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION

Cdn.$90,002,500
25,715,000 Common Shares

This prospectus gualifies the distribution (the “Offering™) of up to 23,715,800 common shares {the “Common Shares™) of OceanaGold Corporation
(“Cceana’ or the “Company™) at a price of Cdn.$3.580 per Common Share (the “Offering Price™). Oceana was established to be the Canadian holding
company and to carry on the business of Oceana Gold Limited {“Oceana Gold™). Oceana Gold 18 a pold mining and exploration company that hag two
operating mines in Mew Zealand and development and exploration properties in the Philippines and New Zealand. Oceana Gold has been listed on the
Austrabian Stock Exchange Limited and New Zealand Exchange Limited since 2004, See “Business of the Company™ and “Mining Projects™.

The Common Shares are being offered pursuant to an underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreament’™) among the Company and BMO Negbiy
Burns inc., Haywood Securities Inc., Westwind Partners Inc. and Austock Corporate Finance Limited {which will offer the Common Shares only outside
of Canada on a private placement bagis) (coblectively, the “Underwriters™). In connection with the Offering, the Underwrniters may over-aliot or effect
trangactions that stabilize or maintain the market price of the Common Shares at levels other than those which otherwise might prevat] on the open
market. See “Plan of Distribution™

There is currently no market through which the Common Shares may be sold. The Toronte Stock Exchange has conditionally approved the
listing of the Common Shares offered pursuant to this prospectus. Listing is subject fo the Company fulfilling all of the requirements of the
Toronto Stock Exchange on or hefore September 4, 2007, An investment in the Commen Shares is subject to a number of risks that should be
carefully considered by a prospective purchaser. See “Risk Factors”,

Price: Cdn.$3.50 per Common Share

Price to Underweiters’ Net proceeds 16
the Public'’? Fee™ the Contpany"”’
PerCommon Share .. .. .. .. . .. . ... . . Cdn.33.50 Cdn $0.1925 Cdn $3.3075
Total Offering™ ... .. ... Cdr.$00,002,500.00  Cdn$4,950,137.56  Cdn$85,052,362.50
Notes:

{F) The Odfering Price was determined by negotistion between the Company and the Underwriters.

{2} The Underwriters’ Fee is the aggregate cash amnount payable o the Underwrtiers in connection with the Offering. See “Plan of Distribution”.

{3} Before deducting the expenses of the Offering, estimated to be Cdn 83,460,000, which expenses, together with the Underwriters” Fee, will be paid oud of the gross
proceads of the Offering.

{4y The Company has pranied to the Underwriters an over-ailotment option {(the “Over-Allotment Option™), exercisable for a period of 30 days from the date of the
closing of the Offermg (the “Closing Date™), o purchase at the Offering Price additional Common Shares equal 1o up to 13% of the Common Shares sold purswant to
the Offesing solely to cover over-allotments, if any, and for market stabilization purposes. H the Owver-Aliotment Option is exercised in full, the total “Price to the
Pubiic™, “Underwriters” Fee™ and “Net Proceeds to the Company™ will be Cdn $103,502.875.00, Cdn $5.692,638.12 and Cdn.$97.810,216.88, respeetively. This
prospectus also qualifies the distribution of the Over-Allolment Option and the distribution of any Common Shares issuable upor exercise of the Over-Allotment
Option. See “Plan of Pistribution”.

The Underwriters, ag principals, conditionally offer the Common Shares, subject to prior sale, if, ag and when issued and sold by the Comparwy, and

delivered to and accepted by the Underwriters i accordance with the conditions contained in the Uinderwriting Agreement referred to under “Plan of

Distribution™ and subject to the approval of certain legal matters on behalf of Gceana by Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP, Canadian legal counsel to

Oceana, and on behalf of the Underwriters by Stikeman Eliont LLP, Canadian tegal counsel to the Underwriters.

Subseriptions for Common Shares will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and the right is reserved to close the subscription

books at any time without notice. It ig expected that the closing of the Gffering will take place on July 5, 2007 or such other date as the Company and the

Underweiters may agree, but no later than Jaly 12, 2067, and that certificates representing the Common Shares will be issued on the Closing Date.

See “Plan of Drstribution™
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the principal features of the Offering and should be read together with the more
detailed Information and financial statements and dato contained elsewhere in this prospectus. This summary is qualified
in ity entivety by the more detviled information confained herein and readers arve cautioned to review carefully this
prospectus in its entirety. Certain terms which are used but not defined in this “Prospectus Summeary ™ have the meanings
ascribed to them in the “Glossary” and the “Technica! Glossary ™.

Business of Oceana

OceanaGold Corporation (“Oceana” or the “Company™) was established to be the Canadian holding company and to
carry on the business of Oceana Gold Limited (“Oceana Gold™) pursuant fo court-approved Schemes under Australian
faw. Oceana Gold is a gold mining and exploration company that has been listed on the ASX and NZX since 2004, The
Reorganization became effective on June 18, 2007,

Oceana’s asset portfolio consists of the tollowing major projects:

*  the Macraes Project, which includes the operating Macraes open pit gold mine and the Frasers underground gold
mine that currently i in development;

» the Reefton Project, which includes the operating Globe Progress open pit gold mine; and

» the Didipio Gold-Copper Project, which currently is in development.

The Macraes Project and the Reefton Project are located in New Zealand, and the Didipio Gold-Copper Project 1s
tocated m the Philippines. [n 2006, Oceans Gold produced 182,288 cunces of gold at & total cash cost of US3404 per
ounce from the Macraes Project and began commissioning the Globe Progress open pit mine at the Reefton Project, which
produced its first gold in March 2607, The Frasers underground mine {the initial capital costs of which are fully-funded) is
scheduled for commissioning in the first quarter of 2008, Production of gold and copper concentrate from the Didipio
Gold-Copper Proiect is targeted for the first half of 2009, See “Business of the Company” and “Mming Projects”.

Growth Strategy
The Company’s growth strategy is to increase s reserve and resource base and expand its current mining operations
and production by:
»  developing new reserves and resources at its existing mines from n-pit, adjacent and regional exploration;
»  successfully bringing the Frasers underground mine and the Didipic Goeld-Copper Project into production;
* continuing performance improvements at ity Macraes and Globe Progress mining operations; and

»  pursuing selective acquigition and exploration opportunitics to grow the business.

The Company’s goal 1s o increase annual production to approximately 340,006 sunces of gold and approximately
17,004 tonnes of copper by 2069,

1 addition to production from the Macraes open pit nine, the Globe Progress open pit mine is expected to produce
55,008 to 60,000 ounces of gold in 2007, Onee the Frasers underground mine is commissioned, Oceana expects to
produce approximately 300,000 ounces of gold in 2008 from its three New Zealand mines. Oceana expects that the
transition to underground minmg will present additionsl underground mining opportunities elsewhere along the Maeraes
strike of minerslization. The Company also believes that potential exists to discover additional mineral reserves and
resources at the Macraes and Reefton projects. Oceana has commenced work to develop the Didipio Gold-Copper Project
with the aim of first production of gold and copper concentrate in the first half of 2000,
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The teble below highlights selected historical operating results and projected future operating performance that the
Company 18 seeking to achieve:

Company Operating Data

Actusl Projected

2065 2006 2087 08 2009 2010
Tonnes processed (milltons) . ... . o L L oL 5.0 3.5 6.7 6.3 87 RO
Gold produced {thousands of ounees} . .. .. ... ... ... . ... 170 182 205 ki 338 368
Average gold grade (/). ... .. L 127 124 120 170 1.47 1.49
Copper concentrate produced (thousands of toanes). . .. .. .. ... o e e - 1654 2104
Average copper grade {6) .. L. L. s e e e 0.80 0.88
Total cash cost (USS/oz) after copper credits’™ .. .. .. ... ... 413 404 500 32 214 174
Nuofe:

{1} Biproduet accounting applied frony 2009 onwards at a copper price of USSEO90/ M.

The total cash cost per ounce 2607 is adversely impacted by a higher strip ratio and a lower ore grade during the
mitial stages of the final pushback m the Macraes open pit. The ore grade increases in 2008,

The Company has allocated approximately US83.4 million in 2007 to s New Zealand exploration program seeking to
expand the resource base at both the Macraes and Reefton projects. In the Philippines, an approximate US§5.1 million
exploration program in 2007 will focus on testing gold and gold-copper prospeets within the Company’s tenement
package in Luzon and Mindanao, as wel as selected prospects within the Didipio Gold-Copper Project.

Business Strengths

Oceana believes it can successfully implement its growth strategy and achieve Hs production goals because of its key
business strengths. These strengths inelude:

» Proven Experience in New Zealand: As the largest gold producer in New Zealand, the Company has
developed significant experience in carrying on mining operations. The Company also has successfully
commissioned the new Globe Progress mine. The Company’s proven track record of successfully acquiring,
financing, developing and operating major gold mines provides a significant advantage in pursuing opportunities
in New Zealand and elsewhere.

»  Current and Near-Term Production Profile: Occans’s attractive pipeline of projects provides growth and
diversification. The Macraes open pit mine and the Globe Progress open pit mine are currently producing gold,
and the Company intends to commission the Frasers enderground mine in the first quarter of 2008 and bring the
Didipic Gold-Copper Project into production in the first half of 2009,

» Existing Infrastructure: The Company’s New Zealand projeets are supported by wel-developed
mfrastructure and are based i arcas where there has been a long-standing history of, and support for, mining
activities.

» Long Life Mineral Reserves and Mineral Resources:  The Company expects to produce gold andfor copper
for at least 15 years based on current mineral reserves. The Company alse believes that there is potential to
discover additional reserves and resources at ity exasting projects.

»  Established Management Team in the Philippines: The Company has an experienced management teamn in
the Plilippines, some of whoem have worked for many years on the Didipto Gold-Copper Project.

»  Management Experience: The Compeany’s directors and senior management team have significant mining
mdustry experience, including current positions with gold companies Golden Star Resources Ltd., Sine Gold
Mining Limited and Yamana Gold Inc., and former positions with Barrick Gold Corporation, AngloGold Ashanti
Limited and Oxiana Limited. See “Directors, Executive Officers and Technical Officers™.
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Mineral Projects

Macraes Project

The Macraes open pit gold mine, located on New Zealand’s South Island, s the country’s largest gold producing
operation. The Macraes Project consists of the Macraes open pit gold mine and the Frasers underground mine, as well ag
an adjacent processing plant including a pressure oxidation plant for the processing of sulphide ore {which is one of only
three in the southern hemisphere). The Macraes mine has been in operation since 1990 and has produced over two million
sunces of gold to date.

The Company is developing the Frasers underground mine on the deeper extensions of the Macraes ore body (the
mitial capital costs of which are fully-funded}. The current combined open pit and underground mineral reserves supporta
seven year mine lfe for the Macraes Project with a production rafe that is expected to average approximately
185,000 ounces of gold per annum commencing in 2008,

Reefton Project

Oceana 1% developing the Globe Progress open pit mine at the Reefton Project on the west coast of New Zealand’s
South Island. This project comprises four open pits and a 1.0 Mipa crushing, grinding and flotation plant to create a gold
concentrate that 18 rail shipped back to the Macraes pressure oxddation plant for final processing into gold. Commissioning
of the erushing, grinding and {lotation plant was completed in April 2007. The initial pit being mined 1s Globe Progress,
which produced iis first gold in March 2007, Based on current regerves, the Reefton Proiect 15 expected to produce
approximately 455,008 sunces of gold over its mine life.

bidipio Gold-Copper Project

The Didipio Gold-Copper Project is located approximately 270 kilometres north of Manila and 100 kilometres to the
east of the Philippine’s largest copper/gold mining operations centred on the Baguio area. The Didipio Geld-Copper
Projeet is held under & Financial or Technical Assistance Agreement (“FTAA”), granted by the Philippines Government in
1994, The FTAA grants title, exploration and mining rights with a fixed fiscal regime for a petiod of 25 years from the daie
of grant. The FTAA is renewable for & further 25 years.

The Didipio Gold-Copper Praject is expected to support approximately four years of open pit mining (including pre-
production) and nine years of underground mining, lfollowed by two years of stockpile processing. The proposed 2.5 Mipa
processing plant is expected to average approximately 120,000 ounees of gold and 135,600 tonnes of copper concentrate
per annum for the first 10 years of operations. Conventional flotation processing will be used to produce a copper-gold
concentrate with some gold retrieved directly through a gravity recovery circuit.

The Didipio Gold-Copper Project is in the mitial stages of development, with most civil earth works anticipated to be
completed in 2807 and mfrastructurce construction anticipated for completion in 2008, First production of gold and copper
concentrate is targeted for the first half of 2009,

Under the terms of the FTAA, upon the carlier of the Company recovering its pre-operating expenses and property
expenditures or five years after the start of commercial production, the Company is required to pay the Government of the
Republie of the Philippines 60% of the “net revenue” {as referred to under “The Didipioc Gold-Copper Project - Mineral
Permits and Regulatory Matters™) earned from the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. The FTAA requires the Company to
divest 60%% of its nterest in the project (or such lesser percemtage as may be imposed by law} to Filipino persons by the
tater of ten years after the recovery of pre-operating expenses and 20 years after the effective date of the FTAA, in which
case the revenue sharing arrangement described above will cease to apply. However, as an alternative to such divesiment,
the Company may, at its option, enter into a mineral production sharing agreement with the Government of the Republic
of the Philippines. Also, the Company hag an agreement with a Philippine claimm owner syndicate {the “syndicate™) which
covers that portion of the FTAA previously included in a bloek of mineral claims held by the syndicate (the “area of
mterest”). Under such agreement, the syndicate will be entitled, once certain conditions have been met, (o an 8% free
earried interest in the operating vehicle that will be established to undertake the management, development, mining and
processing of ores, and the marketing of products from, the ares of interest following the satisfaction of certain conditions.
See “The Didipto Gold-Copper Project -~ Mineral Permits and Regulatory Matters”.
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Mineral Reserves and Mineral Resources

The following tables surnmarize the mineral reserves and mineral resources of the projects as at December 31, 2006.

Mineral reserves are included as part of the mineral resources.

Mineral Reserves

Toizl Reserve

{1} 05 g An cut-off.

anef Mineral Reserves

{23 Cut-offs range between € g4 Au and 1.9 p/t A See “The Macraes Project - Mineral Resources

Proven Probable {Proven & Probable)

Project Mt Aagh Ce% Mt Apgi Co% Mt Aot Ao Moex Cu% Co My
Magcraes Project:

Open PR oo 0L 1955 {47 1332 1L.OG — 3287 L0 .16

Frasers Underground® . ... .. - = — A 3 — 42 23 08— —
Fotal Macraes .. ... ... ... ..... 1855 147 — 1761 134 — 3716 125 .49 — —
Reefton Prt:ljm::t{3 b 186 287 — 485 251 — 646 235 853 - —
Prdipio Gold-Copper Project:

Open P 892 088 066 458% 049 0584 B9 675 (.36 62 0.09

Undergromnd™ ... 1026 218 054 7%0 195 054 1806 208 121 634 010
‘Total Didipio Gold-Copper Project ... 2018 154 0640 1279 138 054 3298 148 1.57 .38 (.19
TOTAL (AH Prejects). . ... ... ... .. 41.24 1.4} — 3535 1.52 — 7659 146 3.59 — 018
Nuofes:
{1} 0.5 gt Au cwt-off and gold price of USS500 0z
{23 1.9 gt Au cut-oft and gold price of LIS$500oz.
{3} 0.8 2 Au cut-off and gold price of USS500 0z,
{4} 056 g/t A equiv. cut-ofl at a pold price of USE300i02 and copper price of USS1.901b.
(5% L g/t A eguiv. cud-off at a gold price of USS500/ 0z and copper price of LISSE90M.
Mineral Resources

Measared Indicated Measured & Endicated Inferred

Project Mt Aogt Co% Mt Aspt Cu% Mt Angit AeMoxr Ca% CoMi Mt Avgt Ca%
Muacraes Project:

Open Pt L 2386 17 3TH2 0 695 G089 104 2413 214] 1.0

Frasers Un(If:rg_r()muj‘23 ceeeo 1187 02210 4187 221 e84 968 23 _
Total Maerzes . .. .. ... ... 2386 137 - 4889 128 7276 123 287 e e 3L 14 -
Reefion Pr()ject"'%" .......... P 283 1099 236 - i2.86 235 BR7 e e 3660 313 -
Didipio Gold-Copper Project:

Open P L. T 47l A4Sl fh2 641 (40 332 a7 661 446 1S 144 63 {63

Underground™ . ... .. 76 206 046 131 054 040 07 i3 156 044 00467 07 03
Total Didigio Gold-Copper

Profect ..o 3470 140 049 2930 065 D40 46 106 217 045 029 2110 04 B3
Sams Creek® ... s = = SR - & R
TOTAL (AH Projecis)y . . . .. .. 6037 38 - BYAR 1% - 4955 1325 w o 028 7135 43 -
Nofes:

- Mineral Resources™.

{33 0.8 21 Au cut-off, except for the Blackwater deposit, which is based on a O @/t Au cul-off. See “The Reefton Project — Mineral Resources and

Mineral Reserves — Mineral Resources”™.
{4} 04 21 Au equiv. cud-off at a gold price of USS500/ 0z and copper price of LSS
(5% L0 g4 Au eguiv. cul-off at a gold price of US8300Voz and copper price of USST.90M.

{61 0.7 24 Au cub-oft. Sams Creek is an exploration property on New Zealand™s South [siand that is wholly-owned by Oceana.
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Operational Data
Macraes Project
The Macraes Project derives its economic value from the production and sale of gold. The table below sets forth

selected historical operating results and projected operating data for the Macraes Project to 2014

Macraes Project Operasing Data

Actual Projecied
2005 2{Hk6 2UHF7 208 20069 2014

Macraes Open Pit Mine

Tonnes processed (milltons} .. ... ... o oL 3.6 5.5 5.3 44 4.5 44
Gold produced {thousands of oungcesy ... ... ... .. .. ... 176 182 117 159 183 134
Average gold grade (/1) .. .. ... L L 1.27 1.24 0.86 1.28 146 113
Total cash cost (USS/ozd .. .. .. .o o 413 404 354 346 226 320
Frasers Underground Mine

Tonnes processed (milltons) ... .o L o o oo e e - 0043 .89 0.88 0.77
Gold produced {thousands of ounces} . ... ... ... .. ... = e 30 60 53 54
Average gold grade (/) ... . L L e e 2.54 2.36 272 249
Total cash cost (USS/oz) .. .. .. . o e e 483 393 264 265
Total Macraes Project

Tonnes processed (millions) ... ... ... oL 5.6 5.5 5.7 53 54 5.2
Gold produced {thousands of ounces) ... ....... ... ..... 174 182 147 219 236 188
Average gold grade (/1) .. .. ... L 1.27 1.24 0.99 1.46 1.66 133
Total cash cost (USS/ozd .. ... .o o 413 404 339 359 234 304

The total cash cost per ounce in 2607 is adversely impacted by a higher strip ratio and a lower ore grade during the
mitial stages of the final pushback m the Macraes open pit. The ore grade increases in 2008,

Based on current reserves, the Macraes Project is expected to produce a total of 1.3 millioen sunces of gold at an
average cash cost of US$341 per ounce over its remaining mine life.

See “The Macraes Project - Operating Data™,

Reefton Froject

The Reefton Project derives its economic value from the production and sale of gold. The Globe Progress mine
conynenced production in 2067, The table below sets forth certain projected operating data for the Reefion Project to
2010:

Reefton Project Operating Dafa

Agtnal Projecied
2{HK5 2006 2UHF7 208 20069 2014

Tonnes processed (milltons} . ... ... L o e S e 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.2
Gold produced {thousands of oumees}. .. ... .. o o i e e - 58 ]2 59 93
Average gold grade (/1) . ... L L e e 2.43 2.96 217 2.81
Total cash cost (USS/o2) . .. .. . L e e 406 252 420 240

Lower grade stockpiles are being processed at the Reefton Project during 2009 resulting in lower production that
year. The Company is continuing to optimize mine design to achieve a mote consistent output of ore over the life of mine.

Based on current reserves, the Reefton Project s expected to produce a total of approximately 455,000 ounces of
gold at an average cash cost of US$316 per ounce over its mine life.

See “The Reefton Proiect - Operating Data”.




Didipio Gold-Copper Project

The Didipio Geld-Copper Project will derive its economic value from the praduction and sale of gold and copper
concentrate. The Didipio Geld-Copper Proiect is expected to conmmence production i the firgt half of 2009, The
following table sets forth certain projected operating data for the Didipic Gold-Copper Project through to 2010:

Didipio Gold-Copper Project Operating Data'!
Acinal Projected
2005 2006 2007 2008 2019 1]
Tonnes processed (milltons}. ... L o o L Lo oL e e e e 2.3 2.3
Gold produced {thousands of ounces}. .. .. ... ... .o 00 e e e e 43 87
Average gold grade (/) ... ... L L L e e e e 6.70 1.1%8
Capper concentrate produced {thousands of tonnes) ... .. ... - S e S e S e - 16.54 21464
Average copper grade £90) L. ... L L e - e - e - e 4.89 0.88
Total cash cost (USS/Au equiv. Y3 s c e c e c e - 336 263
Total cash cost (USS/oz) after copper eredits™. ... ... .. e e e (126) (171}

Nofes:

{1} Pre-production ounces in 2008 are nod shown in the table.

{2} Au eguiv. ounces caleulated at USS3060/0x Au and USS1.904b Cu.
{3} Copper credits calewlated ar USS1 90 0h.

Based on current reserves, the Didipic Gold-Copper Project is expected to produce a total of 1.5 million cunces of
cold and 181,000 tonnes of copper at an average cash cost of US$2350 per Au eguiv. ounce or USE13 per ounce after
copper credits over its mine life.

See “The Didipio Gold-Copper Project - Operating Data”.

Economic Analysis

The projected net mine cash flows are shown net of operating costs, development capital, sustaining capital,
reclamation costs, taxes, royalties, repayment of the external project debt and associated interest costs, but exeluding
exploration costs and any allowances for the potential to extend the mine Hie beyond current reserves.

Macraes Project

The table below sets forth the net mine cash flows, based on current reserves, projected to be generated from the
Macraes Project. The projected net mine cash flows assume a gold price of US$626 per ounce in 2067 and US$500 per
ounce n 2008 onward.

Muacraes Project Net Mine Cash Flows (US$°000)

2007 2608 29 2010 2011 2§12 2613 Tatal
Macraes Open Pit. . ... ... ... (27,107) (5050% 7,671  (6471) 7367 35914 15358 27,683
Frasers Underground . . ... .. .. ... (5,948) (3,758) 5,271 7379 24676 2,949 5017 12,979
Total Macraes Project . ... ... ..., (33,055) (8,808} 12942 908 9437 38383 20375 40,662
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The forecast net mine cash flows from the Macraes Project {including both Macraes open pit and Frasers
underground mine} are estimaied to total approximately UUS$41 million. The foHowing graph indicates the NPV
sensitivity of the Macraes Project to gold prices and discount rates {of 0%, 3% and 6%):

NPV of Maeraes Project Net Mine Cash Flows'"
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Note:

{1} Changes to gold price only applied in 2008 onward.

Forevery US$50 per ounce change in the gold price, the NPV of the Macraes Project at a 0% discount rate changes by
approxmtately USS39 million. For every 10% change in the NZ$/US$ exchange rate, the NPV of the Macraes Project ata
6% discount rate changes by approximately USE29 million. At a USS650 per ounce gold price and 0.7 US$/NZD
exchange rate, the NPV of the Macraes Project will be approximately US$91 million.

See “The Macraes Project - Economic Analysis”.
Reefton Froject
The table below seis forth the net mine cash ffows, based on current reserves, projected to be generated from the
Reefton Project. The projected net mine cash flows assume a gold price of US$620 per ounce in 2007 and USE300 per
ounce n 2008 onward.
Reefton Project Net Mine Cash Flows (US$000)
07 008 2009 2010 2011 2082 2013 Total

Reefton Project . ... ... ... . ..., (21,654 11,134 (642} 15323 5,663 13161  (408) 26,577




The forecast net mine cash flows fron the Reefton Project are estimated to total approximately US327 miflion. The
following graph indicates the NPV sensttivity of the Reefton Project to gold prices and discount rates {of 0%, 3% and 6%):

NPV of Reefton Project Net Mine Cash Flows'"
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{1} Changes to gold price only applied in 2008 onward.

For every US$50 per ounce change in the gold price, the NPV of the Reefton Project at a 0% discount rate changes by
approximately US$9 million. For every 10% change in the NZ$/USS exchange rate, the NPV of the Reefton Project ata
% discount rate changes by approximately US$3 million.

See “The Reefton Proiect - Economic Analysis”™.
Didipio Gold-Copper Project

The current fnitial capital cost estimaie for the development of the Gold-Copper Project totals US$154 .4 million and
i surnmarized in the following table:

liem 1856
Mining

------ COPER PILIRITERE . .o e e 219
------ ~underground MINIMZ ... L 0.6
-------- drainage tunnel . L. L L e 1R
------- Swater mEnagement L ... L L 4.6
---------- IndIrect MINING COSS. . .. Lo e 0.8
Process Plant and Infrastructure . .. .. ... L oL 62.1
[nfrastructure and Services. ... ... . L L 9.1
Accommodation CHMP .. .. .. 53
Tailings Storage Facility ... ..o . o 1.3
Subtotal Direct Costs. .. .. ... .. ... ... .. .. . 117.7
Owners Costs . ... 8.1
Indirect Costs . .. L. e 16.8
Conlingency . .. ... 11.8
Total Initial Capital . . .. .. ... ... . . . 154.4

At metal prices of USE360 per ounce of gold and US$1.90 per pound of copper, the Didipio Gold-Copper Project is
projected to generate net cash ffows of approximately US$360 mitlion. Upon the earlier of the Company recovering its
pre-operating expenses and property expenditures or five years afler the start of commercial production, the Company is
required to pay the Government of the Republic of the Philippines 60% of the net revenue earned from the Didipic Gold-
Copper Project. For the purposes of the FTAA, “net revenue” is generally the gross mining revenue from commercial
production from mining operations, less deductions for, among other things, expenses relating to mining, processing,
marketing and mineral exploration, consulting fees, depreciation of capital, and certain speeified overheads. In addition,
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all taxes paid o the Government, including excise, custorns, sales, corporate taxes {30%), and value added taxes, as well
ag the 2% net smelter royally payments and any distribution made to the bolder of the 8% free carried interest (referred to
under “The Didipio Gold-Copper Projeet - Mineral Permits and Regulatory Maiters™), are also dedueted from the 60%
of net revenues that are payable to the Government. The table below sets forth the net mine cash flows, based on current
regerves, projected to be generated from the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. The projected net mine cash flows are shown
net of operating costs, development capital, sustaining capital, reclamation costs, taxes, royalties, repayment of the
external project debt and associated interest costs, but excluding exploration costs and any allowangces for the potential to
extend the mine lfe beyond current reserves.

Didipio Gold-Copper Project Net Mine Cash Flows (LUS$°000)

067 i PLI T 11 piith P b M3 k4 P15 kG w7 Pt P Ll e izl plives et

Blidipicr Guold-
Copper Project . . CIHEGO0Y £519061) 8,100 41042 71302 47665 53407 37120 38345 40430 36,071 43508 42903 20926 13016 i68%1 36000

Ata 10% discount rate, the NPV of the Didipio Gold-Copper projeet is estimated at US$104.7 million. The payback
period for the project is expected to be 4.65 years with an internal rate of return of 20.8%. The following graphs indicate the
NPV sensitivity of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project to gold prices, copper prices and discount rates (of 8%, 10% and 12%)

NPV of Didipio Gold-Copper Project Net Mine Cash Flows
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For every US$30 per ounce change i the gold price, the NPV of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project at a 16% discount
rate changes by approximately US526 million.

NPV of Didipio Gold-Copper Project Net Mine Cash Flows
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Copper Price (U88/1h)

For every US30.30/1b change in the copper price, the NPVofthe Didipio Gold-Copper Project at a 10% discount rate
changes by approximately US$40 million.
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The following graph sets forth the NPV sensttivity of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project to varigtions i the estimated
capital costs {“Capex”} and operating cosis (“Opex™ over the Hie of the mine:

NPV of Didipio Gold-Copper Projeet Net Mine Cash Flows
{10% Discount Rate)
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For every 10% change in life-oftmine capital costs, the NPV of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project at a 10% discount
rate changes by approximately US$10 million. For every 108 change in life-of-mine operaiing costs, the NPV of the
Didipic Gold-Copper Project at a 10% discount rate changes by approximately US335 million.

See “The Didipio Gold-Copper Project - Economic Analysis”.

Hedging Activities

Hedging is a risk management technique used by the Company to protect against future gold price variations. The
Company currently has a gold hedge book which consisis of' a combination of forward ssles agreements and put and call
option contracts. The effect of the hedge book on production front the Company’s New Zealand sperations from 2007 to
2010 i that, on average:

»  32% of production will be sold at NZ$773 per ounce;

»  28% of production has a floor price of NZ$1,000 per ounce and benefits from any upside in the gold price; and

» 104,024 ocunces i 2010 are subject to a call option which sets a maximum price of NZ31,0662 per ounce.

The Company has no current inteation of committing additional gold osunces from its New Zealand operations to the
hedge book. Furthermore, at the Didipio Gold-Copper Project, no gold hedging arrangements have been fmplemented and
the Company has no current intention of entering into such arrangements.

See “Hedging Activities™.
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Essuer:

Offering:

Price to the Public:
Over-Allotment Option:

Use of Proceeds:

Risk Factors:

The Offering
OceanaGold Corporation
23,715,000 Common Shares
Cdn.$3.50 per Common Share

The Company has granted to the Underwriters an Over-Allotment Option,
exercisable for a period of 30 days from the Closing Date to purchase at the
Offering Price additional Common Shares equal to up to 15% of the
Common Shares sold pursuant to the Offering solely to cover over-
allotments, if any, and for market stabilization purposes. 1f the Underwriters
exercise the Over-Allotment Option in full, the total net procecds, after
deducting the Underwriters” fee but before deducting expenses of the
Offering, to Ogeana will be Cdn.$97,810,216.88. See“Plan of Distribution”.

The net proceeds of the Offering are expected to be Cdn $85,052,362.50
after payment of the Underwriters’ fee but before deducting expenses of the
Offering estimated to be Cdn.$3,460,600 and before giving effect to the
exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. The following table provides an
egtimated breakdown of the proposed application of the net proceeds of the
Offering {all figures are approximate):
Amount

{lse {Cdn. Smillion)

Development, construction and start-up of the Didipio
Gold-Copper Project. . ... ... o c o 74.2
General corporate and working capital purpose 7.4

e

While the Company intends to use the tunds available to it as stated sbove,
ithere may be circumstances where, for sound business reasons, a re-
allocation of funds may be necessary or advisable.

The Company expects that the net proceeds of the Offering as set forth
above, together with cash on hand (including the available proceeds from the
tssue of the Convertible Noftes {as defined and referred to under “Convertible
Notes”}), will result in the initial capital costs of the Didipio Gold-Copper
Project being fully-funded.

See “Use of Proceeds™.

An investrment in the Common Shares 18 speeunlative and subject to risk and
uncertainties. A prospective investor should carefully consider the risks
summarized below and all other information contained in this prospectus
before investing in the Commeon Shares, including, withoutr Hmitation, the
higtorical and pro forma financial statements and accompanying noies
meluded in this prospectus and the mfermation contained in the section
entitled “Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking loformation™,
before a decision s made to purchase Common Shares. Each risk factor
tdentified below should, unless specifically referring to one or more of the
mineral projects of the Company, be considered in the context of each
mineral project of the Company and the Company as a whole. The
occurrence of any one or more of these risks could have a material adverse
effect on the value of any investment in Ocesna and the business, prospects,
financial position, financial condition or operating results of Oceana. The
risks noted below do not necessarily comprise all those faced by Oceana.
+  Changes in the market price of gold and copper, which in the past have
fluctuated widely, will affect the profitability of the Company’s
operations and its financial condition.
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The effects of hedging arrangements fo mitigate the impact of gold price
volatility are uncertain and may limit the price that the Company may
realize on gold sales.

Mining sector enterprises face many operating risks.

The Company may not achieve its production estimates.

The figures for the Company’s reserves and resources are estimates
based on interpretation and assumptions and may yield less mineral
production under actual conditions then is currently estimated.
Mining operations involve a high degree of risk and numerous inherent
hazards.

Water management and slope instability affect the Didipio Gold-Copper
Project.

Capital and operating cost estimates may not be accurate.

Recent high metal prices have inereased the demand for, and cost of,
exploration, development and construction services and equipment.
There is no assurance that exploration and development activities will be
successful.

There is no assurance as to the Compeny’s ability to sustain or increase
tts mineral reserves and resources.

There is no assurence that the Company will continue fo successfully
produce gold, or that it will be able to successfully bring new gold andfor
gold-copper mines inte production.

The Company’s proiected growth will impaet the Company™s existing
TESOUTCes.

The Company may experience delays in the construction of the Didipio
Gold-Copper Proiect.

Currency fluctuations may affect the Company’s costs and margins.
The Company may not be able to raise additional funds.

Regulatory, congenting and permitting risks may delay or adversely
affect gold and copper production.

Tenement appcations are uncertain and the Company 18 subject to
consenting and perniting risk.

The Company’s principal exploration and mining activities are situated
in only two coumtries.

Foreign investments and operations are subject to numerous risks
associated with operating in foreign junisdictions.

The Company’s insurance coverage does not cover all of its potential
logses, liabilities, and damages related to s business and certain risks
are uninsured of uninsurable.

[nereased competition could adversely affect the Company’s ability to
acquire suitable producing properties or prospects for mineral
exploration m the future.

The Company may not be profitable.
The Company’s propertics are subject to environmental risks.
The Company s subject to litigation risks.

Sharcholders” mterests may be diluted in the future.
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+  The market price for Common Shares cannot be assured.
+  The Company may not pay dividends in the future.
+  The Common Shares have no trading history in Canada.

+  The Cormpany s dependent on key personnel, including employees,
contractors  and  consultants, who have been employed m the
development and operation of mining assets owned by the Company.

+  Conflicts of interest may arise between directors and officers of the
Company.

See “Rigk Factors™.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary presented below sets out selected consolidated finaneial information of Geeana Gold for the periods,
and as at the dates, mdicaied and is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the historical consolidated
financial statements of Oceana Gold and the notes thereto, “Consolidated Capitalization” and “Management’s Discugsion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this prospectus. The financial
information presented below is based on the Oceana Gold finaneial statements, prepared in accordance with Canadian
GAAP.

Financial Year ended December 31,
206 205 20064
{thousands of US dodiars}

Statement of Earnings/{Loss}

Net earnings/(Joss} . . (23427 (18,617) 17,883
Balance Sheet

Cashand cash equivalemts. .. .. .. o o 80,023 34,816

Total 888618, . . . . L 023,729 240984

Working capital . ... 29,526 21,797

Long term debl. . .. .o 140,652 58.674
Shercholder’s equity .. ... . 289,166 110444

DIVIDEND POLICY

There are no restrictions in Oceana’s constating documents that would resirict or prevent Oceana from paying
dividends. Howoever, it 1s not conternplated that any dividends will be paid on the Common Shares i the immediate future,
as 1t is anticipated that all available funds will be reinvested in Oceana to finance the development of its mines and the
overall growth of its business. Any decision to pay dividends on Common Shares in the future will be made by the Board
of Directors of Oceana on the basis of the earnings, financial reguirements and other conditions existing at such time and
will be subject to any restrictions tmposed by the terms of any debt facilities or other contractual obligations of Oceana.
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CURRENCY AND EXCHANGE RATES

Unlass otherwise indicated, references in this prospectus to “Cdn.$” and “Canadian dollars” are to the lawful
eurrency of Canada, references to 57, “US$” and “United States dollars” are to the lawful curreney of the United States of
America, references to “AUD”, “AS$” and “Australian dollars” are to the lawful currency of Australia and references to
“NZD”, “NZ§” and “New Zealand dollars” are to lawful currency of New Zealand.

On June 22, 2007, the noon rate of exchange for one Canadian dollar in United States dollars as reported by the Bank
of Canada was Cdn.51.00 = US$0.9367. On Junc 22, 2007, the noon rate of exchange for one United States dollar in
Australian dollars as reported by New York Federal Reserve Bank was US$E1.00 = A$1.1790. On June 22, 2007, the noon
rate of exchange for one United States dollar in New Zealand dollars as reported by the New York Federal Reserve Bank
was US$1.00 = NZ$1.3038.

The financial information in this prospectus has been converted inte USE using the exchange rates set out in the
following table:

2004 2005 2036 o7 20080
USS/AUD Cloging Rate .. .. ... .. i e 13697 12669 o e
USS/AUD Averagie Rate .. ... 13567 13109 1.3269 1.3 1.3

USE/NZD . . e e e 1.47 1.75
Nose:
{1} The assumed exchange rate for 2008 has been used for the year 2608 and omwards.

HISTORICAL GOLD PRICES

The following table shows the average gold prices during cach of the ealendar years noted below as reported by
Bloomberg:

Year Average Gold Price
{LiS%ioz)
2002 L 3
2003 304
2004 410
2005 445
2000 005
2007 {(January Tto June 22y ... L Lo 059

The spot price for gold as at June 22, 2007, was USS654 per ounce as reported by Bloomberg.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

le the opinion of Fasken Martinesu DuMoulin LLP and Stikeman Elliott LLP, counsel to Oceana and the
Underwriters, respectively, provided the Common Shares are listed on a preseribed stock exchange as defined in the
regulations to the Tax Act, which includes the TSX, the Common Shares would, if issued on the date hereof, be gualified
mvestments under the Fax Act and the regulations thereunder for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans,
registered retirement income funds, deferred profit sharing plans and registered education savings plans.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

I this prospectus, the term “total cash cost” includes mining, processing, general and administrative costs, royalties
and inventory movements. Total cash cost per ounce 1$ caleulated by dividing total cash cost by the total ounces of gold sold
n the relevant period. The Company has included cash cost information to provide readers with information about the eost
structure of the Company’s mining operations. This information differs from measures of performance determined in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles {“GAAP”) and should not be considered in isolation or
as a substitute for measures of performance prepared in accordance with GAAP. There are material limitations assoctated
with the use of such non-GAAP measures. Since these measures do not incorporate revenues, changes in working capital and
non-operating cash costs, they are not necessarily indicative of operating profit or cash flow from operations as determined
under GAAP Changes in numerous factors including, but not limited to, mining rates, milling rates, gold grade, gold
recovery, and the costs of labour, consumables and mine site general and administrative activities can cause these measures
to increase or decrease. While the Company believes that these measures are the same or similar to the measures of other
gold mining companies, they may not be comparable to similarly titled measures in every instance.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This prospectus containg “forward-looking information™ which may include, but is not limited to, statements with
respect to the future financial and operating performance of the Company, its subsidiaries and aflilisted companies, its
mining projects, the futare price of gold, the estimation of mineral reserves and mineral resources, the realization of mineral
reserve and resource estimates, costs of production, estimates of initial capital, sustaining capital, operating and exploration
expenditures, costs and timing of the development of new deposits, costs and timing of the development of new mines, costs
and timing of future exploration, requirements for additional capital, govemmental regulation of mining aperations and
exploration operations, timing and receipt of approvals, eonsenis and permits under applicable mineral Iegistation,
enviromnental risks, Hile dispuies or claims, limitations of insurance coverage and the timing and possible outcome of
pending litigation and regulatory matters. Often, but not always, forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of
words such as “plans”, “expects”, “is expected”, “budget”, “scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”, “mtends”, “targets”,
“aims”, “anticipates” or “believes” or varations (including negative variations) of such words and phrases, or may be
tdentified by statements to the effect that certain actions, events or results “may”, “could”, “would”, “should”, “might” or
“will” be taken, occur or be achieved. Forward-lookig staternents tovolve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of Oceana and/or iis subsidiaries and/or its
affiliated companies to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others, futwre prices of gold; general business, ccononic,
competitive, political and social uncertalnties; the aetual results of current produetion, development and/er exploration
activilies; conclusions of economic evaluations and studies; fluctuations i the value of the United States dollar relative to the
Canadian dollar, the Auostralian doliar or the New Zeatand dollar; changes in project parameters as plans continue to be
refined; possible variations of ore grade or recovery rates; failure of plant, equipment or processes to operale as anticipated;
aceidents, labour disputes and other risks of the mining industry; political tnstability or insurrection or war; labour force
availability and turnover; delays in obtaining financing or governments] approvals or in the completion of development or
construction activities or in the commencement of operations; as well as those factors discussed in the section entitled “Risk
Factors” in this prospectus. Although Oceana has sttempted to identify important factors that could cause actual actions,
events or resulls to differ materially from those described in forward-loocking statements, there may be other factors that
cause actions, events or results to differ from those anticipated, estimated or intended. Forward-looking staternents contained
herein are made as of the date of this prospectus and Oceana disclaims any obligation to update any forward-locking
staternenis, whether ag & result of new information, future evenis or results or otherwige. There can be no assurance that
forward-looking staternenis will prove io be sccurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those
anticipated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements due to
the mherent uncertainty therein.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

For the meanings of certain capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this prospectus, or for the meanings
of certain technical terms used in this prospectus, see the “Glossary” and the “Technical Glossary”, respectively. Where
applicable, terms with & technical meaning related to mineral extraction are defined by the Canadian [nstitute of Mining,
Metallurgy and Petroleant (“CIM™} - Definitions Adopted by CIM Couneil.

All references to mineral reserves and mineral resources are references to the gross mineral reserves and mineral
TESOUFCes POr project or property, unless reference is made to “attributable” mineral reserves and/or mineral resources
which refers only to Oceana’s attributable portion of the mineral reserves and mineral resources on any projeet or
property. All information with respect fo mineral resources and reserves 1s reported i accordance with Ni43-101 and the
CIM Standards and, unless otherwige indicated, is alse consistent with the JORC Code. Certain mineral reserve and
mineral resource total numbers presented in this prospectus may not add due to rounding.

As disclosed elsewhere in this prospectus, priot to or concurrently with the closig of the Offering, Oceana and
Oceana Gold will complete a number of reorganizational transactions which collectively will have the effect of Oeeana
Gold becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oceana. For case of reference, unless otherwise indicated herein, 1t 1s
assumed for purposes of the disclosure in this prospectus that the aforementioned reorganizationsl transactions have been
completed. Accordingly, references to “Oceana” or the “Company” also include its subsidiary entities after giving effect
to the Reorganization, as the context requires.

Unless otherwise indicated, the disclosure contained in this prospectus assumes that the Over-Allotment Option has
not been exercised.
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BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

Oceana Background

OceanaGold Corporation (“Oceana” or the “Company™) was incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Aci
{British Columbia) on March 22, 2007, Pursuant to the Schemes and related transactions discussed below, Oceana will, on
or prior to the closing of the Offering, acquire all of the issued and ouistanding ordinary shares and options of Oceana
Gold Limited (“Oceana Gold™) and Oceana Gold will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oceana.

The registered office address of the Company s 2100-1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6E 3(G2, Canada, and the head office address of the Company is Level 5, 250 Collins Street, Melbourne, Victoria, 3000,
Australia.

Oceana Gold was incorporated in Australia on December 24, 2003 for the purpose of acquiring all of the existing
sold interests and undertakings of GRD Limited through the acquisition of GRD Limited’s interest in GRD Macraes
Limtted {now called Oceana Gold {New Zealand) Limited (“OGNZL"}). Oceana Gold is a gold mining and exploration
company that has been {isted on the ASX and NZX since 2004.

Oeeana’s asset portfolio consists of the following major projecis:

»  the Macraes Project, which ineludes the operating Maeraes open pit gold mine and the Frasers underground gold
mine that currently 1% in development;

» the Reefton Project, which includes the operating Globe Progress open pit gold mine; and
» the Didipio Gold-Copper Project, which currently is in development.

The Macraes Project and the Reefton Project are located in New Zealand and the Didipio Gold-Copper Project is
tocated in the Philippines.

Oceana Gold acquired its interest in the Didipic Gold-Copper Project through its acquisition of Climax Mining Ltd.
£“Climax™} on November 6, 2006, Climax i now a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oceana Gold.

I 2066, Ogeana Gold produced 182,288 ounces of gold at a total cash cost of US$404 per sunce from the Maeraes
Projeet and began commissioning the Globe Progress open pit mine at the Reefton Projeet, which produced its first gold in
March 2007, The Frasers underground mine {the mitial capital costs of which are fully-funded) is scheduled for
commissioning in the first quarter of 2008. Production of gold and copper concentrate from the Didipio Gold-Copper
Project i targeted for the first half of 2009,

Reorganization

Oceana was established for the purpose of becoming the Canadian holding company of Oceana Gold pursuant to the
court-approved Schemes under Australian law. The Reorganization was approved by the supervising court and by the
holders of ordinary shares of Oceana Gold and holders of Oceana Gold Listed Options at the meetings held for the
purposes of approving the Schemes. The Reorgenization became effective on fune 18, 2007,

Pursuant to the Reorganization, holders of ordinary shares of Oceana Gold exchanged their shares for either
Common Shares or CDisg, on the basis of one Common Share or one CDI for every five ordinary shares of Oceana Gold
held on the Record Date. Inaddition, sll sutstanding Oceana Gold Listed Options and Oceana Gold Unlisted Options were
exchanged for Listed Options or Options {as the case may be). The terms of the convertible notes of Oceans Gold were
amended to provide that the Company will issue Conymon Shares or CDls to holders of such convertible notes upon their
conversion (in licu of Oceana Gold issuing ordimary shares).

As well, in connection with the Reorganization: (i) Oceana Gold became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; {i1) the ordinary shares and Oceana Gold Listed Options were delisted from the ASX and ceased to be quoted
on the NZX; (iii} the Common Shares issued pursuant to the Share Scheme were Hsted on the TSX and quoted on NZX and
ihe CDIs were listed on the ASX; and (iv) the Listed Options of the Company issucd pursuant to the Option Scheme were
Hsted on the ASX and guoted on NZX.
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Corporate Structure
The following chart illustrates the corporaie structure of Ocesna and its subsidiaries in relation fo s matesial mineral
projects, immediately following the completion of the Reorganization:

OceanaGiold Corporation
[Bitish Columibba)

I
1450%

140% Ceeana Gold Limited
{ Aasgralia)

|
14303%
|
Oceana Gold {New Zealand)
Holdings Limited
| (New Zealarud}
{3
| 10%
Auwstralasian Netherlands |
lnvestments BY Oceana Gold {New Zealandy Limited
(Megherlands) (New Zealamd)

EOORA

Alsiralasian Philippites
Haoidings Tne. 1303 [Reits
{Philippines)

EOORA

Ausiralasian Philippines
Mining Ine.
{Philippines)

Clhimax Mining Ltd.
(Aresiealia}

Gy

Phdipio Gold-Copper
Project

Nofe:
¥ A thivd parey wiil be entitled, once certain conditions are met, to an 8% free carved interest in the operating vehicle that will be formed to undertake
aperations or & key area of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project.

Growth Strategy

The Company’s growth sirategy is to increase Hs reserve and resource base and expand it current mining operations
and production by:

»  developing new roserves and resources at its existing mines from m-pil, adjacent and regional exploration;

»  successfully bringing the Frasers underground mine and the Didipio Gold-Copper Project into production;
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» continuving performance improvements at ity Macraes and Globe Progress mining operations; and
»  pursuing selective acquisition and exploration opportunitics to grow the business.

The Company’s goal 5 to increase annual production to approximately 340,000 ounces of gold and approximately
17,006 tonmes of copper by 2009,

1 addition to production from the Macraes open pit mineg, the Globe Progress open pit mine is expected to produce
55,008 to 60,000 ounces of gold in 2007, Onece the Frasers underground mine is commissioned, Oceana expects o
produce approximately 300,000 ounces of gold in 2008 from itg three New Zealand mines. Oceana expects that the
transition to underground minmg will present additional underground mining opportunitics elsewhere along the Maeraes
strike of mineralization. The Company also believes that potential exists to discover additional mineral reserves and
regources at the Macraes and Reefion projects. Oceana has commenced work to develop the Didipio Gold-Copper Profect
with the aim of first production of gold and copper concentrate in the first half of 2069,

The teble below highlights selected historical operating results and projected future operating performance that the
Company 18 seeking to achieve:

Company Operating Data

Actusl Projected
2005 2006 2007 008 2009 10
Tonnes processed (milltons) . ... . o L L oL 5.0 3.5 6.7 6.3 87 RO
Gold produced {thousands of ounees} . .. .. ... ... ... . ... 170 182 205 ki 338 368
Average gold grade (/). ... .. L 127 124 120 170 1.47 1.49
Copper concentrate produced (thousands of toanes). . .. .. .. ... o e e - 1654 2104
Average copper grade {%) .. .. L L e e e C e 0.80 0.88

Total cash cost (USS/oz) after copper credits’™ .. .. .. ... ... 413 404 500 32 214 174

Nuoje:

{1} Bi-produet accounting applied from 2004 onwards al a copper price of US$E90/M.

The total cash cost per ounce i 2607 is adversely impacted by a higher strip ratio and a lower ore grade during the
mitial stages of the final pushback m the Macraes open pit. The ore grade increases in 2008,

The Company has allocated approximately US83.4 million in 2007 to s New Zealand exploration program seeking to
expand the resource base at both the Macraes and Reefton projects. In the Philippines, an approximate US§5.1 million
exploration program in 2007 will focus on testing gold and gold-copper prospeets within the Company’s tenement
package in Luzon and Mindanao, as wel as selected prospects within the Didipio Gold-Copper Project.

Business Strengths

Oceana believes it can successfully implement its growth strategy and achieve Hs production goals because of its key
business strengths. These strengths inelude:

» Proven Experience in New Zealand: As the largest gold producer in New Zealand, the Company has
developed significant experience in carrying on mining operations. The Company also has successfully
commissioned the new Globe Progress mine. The Company’s proven track record of successfully acquiring,
financing, developing and operating major gold mines provides a significant advantage in pursuing opportunities
in New Zealand and elsewhere.

»  Current and Near-Term Preduction FProfile:  Oceana’s attractive pipeline of projects provides growth and
diversification. The Macraes open pit mine and the Glebe Progress open pit mine are currently producing gold,
and the Company intends to commission the Frasers enderground mine in the first quarter of 2008 and bring the
Didipic Gold-Copper Project into production in the first half of 2009,

» Existing Infrastracture: The Company’s New Zealand projeets are supported by wel-developed
infrastructure and arc based it arcas where there has been a long-standing history of, and support for, mining
activities.
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» Long Life Mineral Reserves and Mineral Resources:  The Company expects to produce gold andfor copper
for at least 15 years based on current mineral reserves. The Company alse believes that there is potential to
discover additionsl reserves and resources at ifs existing projects.

» Established Management Team in the Philippines: The Company has an experienced management teamn in
the Philippines, some of whoem have worked for many years on the Didipto Gold-Copper Project.

»  Management Experience: The Company’s directors and senior menagement team have significant mining
mdustry experience, including current positions with gold companies Golden Star Resources Ltd., Sino Gold
Mining Limited and Yanuna Gold Ine., and former positions with Barrick Gold Corporation, AngleGold Ashanti
Limited and Oxiana Limited. See “Directors, Executive Officers and Technical Officers™.

MHNING PROJECTS
For an explanation of certain of the technical terms used m this prospectus, please see “Technical Glossary™.

Unless otherwise stated, the information in this section m respeet of the mineral projects of the Company s based
upon the following technical reports {collectively, the “Technical Reports™):

{a} “Independent Technical Report for the Macraes Project located in the Province of Otago, New Zealand” dated
May 9, 2007, prepared by 1 S. Meintyre, 1. R. White and R. S. Frew of Behre Dolbear Australia Pty Limited,
N. A. Schofield of Hellman and Schoficld Pty Lid., B. L. Gossage of RSG Global Consulting Pty Limited and
R. R. Penter of GHD Limited {the “Macracs Technical Report™);

{by “Independent Technical Report for the Reefton Project located in the Province of Westland, New Zealand”
dated May 9, 2007, prepared by J. S. Mclntyre, L R. White and R. 8. Frew of Behre Dolbear Australia Pty
Limited, B. L. Gossage of RSG Global Consulting Pty Limited and R. R. Penter of GHD Limited (the “Reefton
Technical Report™}; and

{cy “Amended independent Technical Report for the Didipio Gold-Copper Project loeated in Luzon, Philippines”
dated May 9, 2007 and amended June 25, 2007, prepared by A van der Heyden of Hellman and Schofield
Proprietary Limited, ). Wyche of Ausirallan Mine Design and Development Proprietary Limited and &
MeIntyre of Behre Dolbear Australia Pty Limited (the “Didipic Technical Report™).

Each of the authors of the Technical Reports is a “qualified person” for purposes of NI 43-101. Each firm involved in
the preparation of the Technical Reports i independent of the Company, as are each of the authors of the Technical
Reports, within the meaning of N1 43-101.

The Technical Reports have been filed with the Canadian securities regulatory authorities pursuant to Ni 43-101 and
are available for review on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval database on the lntemet at
www.sedar.com.

The Macraes Project

The Macraes open pit mine, located on New Zesland’s South Island, is the country’s largest gold producing
operation. The wholly-owned Macraes Project consists of the Macraes open pit gold mine and the Frasers underground
mine, as well as an adjacent processing plant including a pressure oxidation plant for the processing of sulphide ore
{which is one of only three in the southern hemisphere). The Macraes mine has been in operation since 1990 and has
produced over two million ounces of gold to date.

The Company is developing the Frasers underground mine on the deeper extensions of the Macraes ore body (the
mitial capital costs of which are fully-funded). In comection with the scheduled commissioning of this mine in the first
quarter of 2608, production at the Macraes Project is expected to average approximately 185,000 ounces of gold per
anpum commencing m 2008, The current combined open pit and underground proven and probable mineral reserves
support & seven year mine life at the Macraes Project.
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Property Deseription and Location

The Magcraes Project is located approximately 60 kilometres north of Dunedin, and 30 kilometres to the northwest of
Palmerston in the Otago Region of the South [sland, New Zesland. The mining operation occurs approximately 2
kilomelres to the east of the Macraes Flat township and is predominantly surrounded by farmland.
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Mineral Permits and Regulatory Matters

Oceana holds & contiguous group of tenements to the north-west and south-cast of Macraes Flat, covering
approximately 35 kilometres of strike of the mineralized Hyde-Macraes Shear Zone ("HMSZ”). The Company’s
tenements are comprised of a mining licence, & mining permit, a pipehne licence and exploration permits granted or
applicd for under the Mining Act or the Crown Minerals Aet, as set forth n the following table.

Area

Tenenien No' Location Name Term Expiry Date {Hectares approx.)
ME 323847 ... oo Round Hill 21 yrs October 30, 2010 400
PLL 3230475 ... oo oo Pipelme 21 yrs October 30, 2010 23
MPAL 064 . ... ... ... .. .. .. Macraes Extension 21 yry January 31, 2015 9,616
EP40472. ... ... . o Stoneburn H 2% term May 17, 2010 4,296
EP40323 . ... .. Horseflat 2% term September 16, 2011 924
EP40 324 .. .. ... L Dunback 2° rerm May 17, 2009 1,449
EP40576.. .. ... ... .. .... Macraes North 2% form Oclober 27, 2011 3,434
EP40 822 . ... .. ... ... Taieri ¥ term June 12, 2011 3,976
EP40 842 . ... . ... ... .. Hyde 1 term January 29, 2012 3,309

Total Area. . . . . 27475
Nose:
{13 ML — Mining License; PLEL — Pipeline License; MP - Mining Permit; EP - Exploration Permit.

For a discussion of mining licences {ssued under the Mining Act, see “New Zealand - Regulation of Mining in
New Zealand - The Mining Act 19717 and for a discussion of exploration permits and mining permits issued under the
Crown Minerals Act, see “New Zealand -~ Regulation of Mining in New Zealand - Crown Minerals Act 19917,

The Company is the owner of the majority of land in the immediate vicinity of the Maoraes mine, and most of the
tand within tenements ML 32 3047 and MP 41 064. The Company also has an option to purchase a number of properties
sutside the Macraes Proiect tenements.

With respect to Mining License 32 3047, under the Mining Act no royalty on gold is payable to the Crown, although a
rovalty of 2% of the gross proceeds from scheelite concenirate sold s payable o the Crovwn (the Company currently does
not produce scheelite concentrate). A royelty is payable to OW Hopgood on any gold, scheelite or other minecals
recovered from a spectfied project area i an amount equal to 5% of recovered minerals {at spot priee) if recovered by
open pit minimg and 3% of recovered minerals (at spot price} if recovered by underground mining. The Company expects
that the OW Hopgood royalty will cease to be pavable by 2008,

With respect to Mining Permit 41 064, royalties to a maximum of 1% wd valorem or 5% of accounting profits,
whichever is greater, are payable to the Crown annually. See “New Zegland - Regulation of Mining in New Zealand -
Royalties”.

The Macraes Project is fully permitted.

Environmental Matters

The site is monitored and has & history of general compliance. No recuring non-compliance issues have been
tdentified. The Company hag been deemed, in obtaining the consents to license activittes with environmental effects for
the Macraes Project, to have met the purpose and requirements of New Zealand’s Resource Management Act 1991
(“RMA™).

The Company has entered into a Negotiated Greenhouse Agreement with the New Zealand Government which
requires the Company to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions (o an agreed level based on an independent assessment and
consistent with world’s best practice. The Macraes mine ranked i the top 10% of its peers in Australasia in terms of both
processing plant and mining operation efliciency.

Aecessibility, Climate, Loeal Resources, Infrastracture and Physiography

Access to the mine is by sealed road from Dunedin, and by sealed and metal roads from Midélemarch and Ranfurly.
There is good access along metal roads and farm tracks throughout the project area.

The Magraes mine is within short driving distance to a number of populated centres, including Dunedin, a city with a
population of 122,000 Many employees lve in the nearby towns of Palmerston and Watkouaiti or in the ¢ity of Dunedin.
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The Macraes Project arca is approximately 490 metres sbove sea level, and exposed, windy and dry, with high
evaporation in the warmer part of the year. It experiences a rainfall average of 700mm per year. Chimatic influence
translates to the potential for 3 to 5 days of lost mining time per vear sfter occasional heavy rains. Droughis, which
generally last two or three years, have been recorded in the east Otago region every 14 to 20 years.

The Macraes Project 15 connected to the local power grid which supplies electrical power. The power line has
adequate capacity to supply the mine at full operating limits. Water supply has not been & significant problem in the
history of the project.

History

The original tenements comprising the Macraes Project were owned by Golden Point Mining Limited and by BHP
Gold Mines {(New Zealand) Lid. In December 1989, Macracs Mining Company Limited obtained 100% ownership of
these tenements. 1o December 1998, Macraes Mining Company Limited amalgamated with a company called Maeraes
Mining Company Holdings Limited, which immediately thereafter changed its name to Macraes Mining Company
Limited. This company subsequently changed it name fo Gold and Resource Developments {NZ) Limited and then to
GRD Macraes Limited. In 2004, the name was changed to Oceana Gold (New Zealand) Limited.

Geological Setting
Regional and Local Geology

The Macraes Project is located in a major, low-angle structure known as the HMSZ. This regionally continuous, late
metamorphic deformation zone cuts greenschist facies metasedimentary rocks of the Otago Schist, & metamorphic belt
that was formed by collistonal amalgamation of the Caples and Torlesse terranes in the Early-Middle Jurassic.

The HMSZ 15 one of the largest Mesozoic structures mapped in the Otago Schist, traceable for at least 30 kilometres
along strike in east Otago. Mining to date has occurred along a continuous strike length of 6 kifometres in numerous
staged pits, three smaller discrete satellite pits immediately to the north, and at Golden Bar, a further 6 kilometres to the
south. The HMSZ consists of variably altered, deformed and mineralized schist up to 150 metres thick, known as the
[ntrashear Schist. The thickest part of the shear rone consisis of several mineralized zones stacked on metre-thick shears.
These shears have ductile deformation textures overprinted by cataclasis. A shear known as the hangingwall shear, defines
the upper limit of the ntrashear Schist. This shear, which can be up to 25 metres thick, is the most strongly mineralized
strocture at the Macraes Project.

Deposit Geology

The open pit deposit at the Macraes Project is defined by the hangingwall shear. Inoutcrop, the shear dips 13° 16 20°
to the east and is approximately S thick. At depth, the dip of the shear flattens to approximately 5° to 10° and develops
into an approximately 20m to 30m thick high-grade rone of quartz cataclagite and lode schist. Within the open pit, gold
mineratization comprises a combination of hangingwall, shear-parallel quartz veins and stockwork vemns. Hangingwall
shear and stockwork veins account for the majority of mineralization within the open pit, although there are a number of
shear-parallel quartz veins. These veins typically splay off the hangingwall and dip at between 5° and 18° to the east. A
large amount of rregular minerslization oceurs between the base of the hangingwsll and the footwall fault. This is
stockwork mineralization and generally appears in the drlling as clusters of elevated gold grades. Stockwork
mineralization refers to mixtures of quartz veins and concordant {odes, which appear discontinuous at the resource
drilling seale. The footwall fault lies between 80 metres and 120 metres below the hangingwall shear and i identified as a
10 metre wide zone of shearing. To date, no economic mineralization has been located below the footwall fault.

The Frasers underground encompasses the down-dip continuation of the hangingwall shear mined in the epen pit,
which is known to extend approximately 660 metres beyond the {imit of the open pit desizn. The thickest, most
mineratized part trends approximately northeast and tapers in width from approximately 350 metres at its western end fo a
width of approximately 156 metres at the eastern limit of drilling, where it abuts the Macraes Fault Zone. Mineralization is
contained within the lntrashear Schist which 1s gencrally 86 metres to 100 moetres thick, with the higher gold grades
confined to the upper part, which is dominated by cataclasite, lode schist and local stockwork pelite Hthologies, Numerous
driliholes have penetrated through the lntrashear Schist into the Footwall Psammite, particularly at the western end where
the Footwall Fault s at a relatively shallow depth of less than 500 metres. Mineralization is consistent with the ore
delineated in the Frasers open pit. The highest gold grades are contained within the strongly developed and visually
digtinguishable zone within the upper hangingwall characterised by quartz cataclasite and silicified breceias. This
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typteatly forms a wel mineralized, continuous zone approximately 10 metres to 15 metres thick, with & grade of
approximately 3g/t Au. Less intensely mineralized lode schist is typically developed lower in the hangingwall package.

Mineralization

The Macraes deposil is a classic example of an orogenic style gold deposit. This style of deposit is recognized to be
broadly synchronous with deformation, metamorphism, and magamatism during Hthospheric-scale continental-margin
orogeny. Most orogenic gold deposits like Macraes ocecur in greenschist facies rocks. Orogente deposits typically formed
on retrograde portions of pressure-temperature time paths during the last increments of crustal shortening and thus
postdate regional metamorphism of the host rocks. The following four types of mineralization occur within the HIMSZ at
Macraes:

(1)  Mineralized schist.  This style of mineralizaiion invelved hydrothermal replacement of schist minerals with

sulphides and microcrystalline quartz. Mineralization was accompanied by only mimor deformation.

() Black sheared schist.  This type of schist is pervaded by small scale anastamosing fine graphite and sulphide
bearing microshears. This type of mineralization is typically proximal to the hangingwall shear.

() Shear-parafiel guartz veins.  These veins He within andfor adjacent to the black sheared schist, and have
generally been deformed with the associated shears. The veins loeally cross-cut the foliation in the host schist
at low to moderate angles. Veins are mainly massive guartz, with some internal lamination and localized
breceiation. Sulphide minerals are scattered through the guartz, aligned along laminae and stylolitic seams.
These veins range from 1 em to more than 2 metres.

{(v)  Stockworks.  These veins cceur in lecalized swarms that are confined to the Intrashear Schist, Individual
swarms are up to 2,000 m? in area and consist of numerous subparallel veins. Most of these veins formed
subperpendicular to the shallow east dipping shear fabric of the Intrashear Schist. Stockwork veins are
typically traceable for | meire to 3 metres vertically with most filing fractures that are 5 em to 10 em thick, but
can be up to I metre thick.

Exploration

Detatted geological mapping, geophysical surveys {including seismic surveys, magnetic and electromagnetie
surveys), geochemical surveys (including stream sediment sampling, soil sampling and trenching}, remote sensing
and aerial photography have been completed slong the strike of the HMSZ. Targel areas with favourable characteristics
for gold mineralization have been sysiematically tested with drilling {as deseribed below). Current exploration is aimed at
defining additional resources and upgrading resources along sirike.
Drilling

As at December 31, 2006, over 631,000 metres in approximately 5,376 holes have been drilled at the Macraes
Project. More than 90% of the holes completed in order to delineate open pit resources were reverse circulation (“RC™)
petrcussion drilling, with limited dismond drilling confirmation. Diamond drilling tails also have been completed where
groundwater inflows degraded RC percussion semple quality. Drilling on Frasers underground is domingated by diamond
drilling due to the depth of mineralization.

Holes generally have been surveyed at 50 metre intervals to the end of the hole. RC holes and diamond core was
generally logged end classified at one metre intervals.

Drill hole information is stored as hard copy drill logs in a database. For holes prior to 1994, only collar, mterval and
assay information has been entered into the database, while the database containg all logged information for all holes
commencing m 1994,

The mineral resource estimate 15 based on the results of 340,768 metres of drilling in 2,293 holes.

Sampling, Analysis and Sample Security

The sampling approach at Macrees consists of drill cuttings (RC percussion drilling) and half cut core samples
{digmond drill core). The diamond drifling sampling has remaied relatively constant over the Hfe of the project while the
sampling of the percussion drilling has changed dependant on the drilling method.

Sampling of the RC percussion drilling has been completed by trained employees and is supervised by technical
stafl. Definition of sampling intervals for RC percussion drilling has generally been based on 1 metre intervals, over the
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full depth of the dril! hole. The sampling, splitiing, tagging, bagging and siorage of RC percussion drillholes was carried
oul in accordance with protocols considered acceptable and consistent with industry standards.

Samples collected from wet pereussion drilling was found to be biased due to downhole contamination and,
accordingly, the practice of wet RC percussion drilling has been discontinued. The wet sampling bias was addressed by
replacing wet sampled RC percussion drillholes with their corresponding diamond or dry RC twins, or in cases where no
twin driflhole exists, globally determined wet sample bias correction factors have been used to factor gold grades for wet
RC percussion drillhole samples.

After drill core has been logged and photographed, the sections of core constdered to be mineralized, or proximal to
mineralized zones are cut in half using & core saw. The drill core was sampled in 1 metre intervals by trained and
supervised technicians and geologists, Each metre was sampled by taking the same half of each piece of core for that
metre and placing them inte the appropriate sample bag.

Definttion of sampling intervals for dismond drilling was based on geological intervals or 1 metre intervals, within
and beyond the margins of mineralized zones identified during logging. Substaniially similar ticketing and guality control
protocols were used in respect of diamond core samples as were used for RC percussion sampling.

Diamond drilling sample quality s high. Sample quality for RC percussion drilling is lower than for diamond drilling
but generally sufficiont to define the position and grade of mincralization. Where sample quality issues have caused a
grade bigs, this bias has been addressed.

Sample recovery from RC percussion drilling and diamond drilt core is routinely reeorded in geological logs and
recovery data is stored in a database. Recovery is generally high and there 13 no observed correlation between recovery
and grade.

Half cut core samples {in the case of diamond drilt core) and drill cuitings (in the case of RC pereussion drilling)
samples from drilling programs at Macraes were collected from the source drill samples by employees of the Company.
Subsequent sample preparation and assay was not conducted by any employee, officer, director or associate of the
Company.

Since 1990, RC percussion drill chips and dismond drill eore samples from the drilling programs at the Maeraes
Project have typically undergone sample preparation and assay for Au, Asand 8 by Amdel at the Macraes Flat laboratory.
Preparation of geclogical samples by Amdel routinely comprised drying, crushing, splitting (if required) to a maxinum of
kg and pulverising to obtain an analytical sample of 2350s.

Drilling has been sampled and submitted to the Amdel laboratory by trained Company staff. Once the samples have
been submitted to the laboratory, Amdel stafl’ processed the samples and completed all aspects of the assaying
mdependent of the Company’s personnel.

The quality control database is tncomplete for the Macraes Project, in part due to the long explorstion and mining
history of the project, although the risk assoctated with the incomplete data is mitigated by the available mining and
reconeiliation data which supports the quality of the data. Notwithstanding the limitations in the data set, the available
recovery and QA/QC data indicates the assay data is accurate and precise and therefore suitable for the purposes of grade
estimation. The biag associated with the wet RC percussion drilling was addressed i the manner described sbove.
Additional drilling is kkely to be required at depths at the open pit mine on the Macraes Project where significant amounts
of wet RC percussion drlling exists,

The adoption of the analytical methods, meluding fire assay for gold, 18 considered appropriste in the Macraes
Technical Report. Quality control data exists to allow review of the analyiical performance of assay laboratories for the
recent drifling only. The sampling methods, sample preparation procedures and analytical techniques are all considered
appropriate when supported with the production and reconciliation data. The sample colection, preparation and analysis
procedures meet accepisble industry standards. There are no measures in place to ensure sample securily, but the
substantial reconciliation data supports the veracity of the data.

Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves

Mineral Resources

The resource models were derived via geological and mineralization zone modelling of the individual deposits.
Estimation involved the application of & variety of techniques including polygonal methods, ordinary kriging and multiple
mdicator kriging. The table below shows the mineral resources at the Macraes Project as at December 31, 2006.
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Muacraes Project Mineral Resources as at December 31, 2006

Resoures Mrasired Indicated Meassured & Indicated {nferred Resouree
Cut (H¢ Resouwree Ares Ms An gt Mi A ot Mi Ao gA An Moz Mi A glf A Moz
{.5e Coronation ... ... .. — — 1.68 .28 FO8 128 (.04 (.33 KL, (.01
{.5e Beepdell .. ... .. ... 0.23 1.67 — — .23 167 .01 .32 [ .01
{.5e Golden Point . ... ... — — — — — — — 1.23 2.2 (.05
{1.5g/t Frasers Pit. ... .. ... 13.84 1.53 33.67 09 46,90 12 {.65 HLAT .8 0.26
1.9t Frasers Underground. . — — LRV 2.2 1E87 221 (.84 4.85 PS5 .23
PE& P2
No cut off Fragers Underground. . — — — — — — — 1.22 IRY .08
Panel? Deeps
No cut off Frasers Underground. . — — — — — — — 362 34 1.39
Panel? Extenszion
{.5e Golden Ridge ... ... — — 1.4} {18 P41 11 (.05 3.49 0.8 (.09
{.5e Golden Bar ... ... .. 0.09 1.56 1.18 1.44 127 142 {106 4.96 P4 0.22
{.5e Taylors ... o .. — — {128 1,56 28 P50 {11 {141 I .01
{rL3eit Stockpiles ..o oL L. I N — 81 o4 0.20 = — =
3.3/t Macraes Total. . .. .. 23.86 147 4% 89 126 7278 1.23 2.87 3110 14 1.39

Mineral Reserves

The Macraes Project reserve tonnages and grades are based on Whittle 4X pit optimizations, using, among other
things, projected costs, slope angles based on geotechnical studies and plant recovertes. Progressive staged cutbacks are
based on a US$560 per ounce gold price. A royalty of 1% ad valorem or 5% of accounting profits, whichever is greater, is
payable to the New Zealand government and refinimg and handling charges are included.

A breskdown of open pit and underground mineral reserves as at Decemnber 31, 2006 s shown in the following table.
These mineral reserves are included as part of the mineral resources set forth in the above table.

Macraes Project Mineral Reserves as at December 31, 2006

Fatal Heserve

Resobve Proven Prohabie (Proven & Probable)

Cut (HT Reserve Area Mi Ao gt Mt Au gt Mt Ay gt A Max
0.5z Coronation .. .. ... .. ... ... i e e {0.31 1.45 .51 1.45 0.02
0.5 Frasers Open Pit . ... ... ... ... ... .. 984 169 1195 087 2185 129 0.91
1.9t Frasers Underground. .. .. ... ... ... .. e e 429 2137 429 237 (.33

P1 & P2

0.5z Golden Ridge ... ... o o oo e e {.85 1.19 (.85 1.19 0.03
0.5z Stockpiles. .. ... o 9.71 064 e 9.71 .64 (.20
B.5a/t Maeraes Total . .. .. .. ... ... ... .. . .. 16.55 17 17.61 1.3 37.16 1.25 1.49

Mining Operations
Open FPit Mining

Mining to date at the Macraes Project hag come from ten pitg comprising, from north to south, Deepdell North,
Deepdell South, Golden Point, Northwest Pit, Round Hill, Southern Pit, Inmes Mills, Frasers, Golden Ridge and Golden
Bar, Current operations are in Frasers North Stage 4, Frasers South Stage 2 and Golden Ridge. Mineralization has also
been outlined to the north at the Coronation deposit and to the seuth at the Taylors deposits. The Round Hill and Southern
pits have essentially been mined out, with Round Hill being backfilled and Southern Pit being used for tailings disposal.

The bulk of the future open pit tonnage from the Macraes Project will be sourced from the Frasers deposit, including
Frasers South and Frasers North. As the non-Frasers pits are mined out, the operation will benefit from fewer equipment
moves and fewer haul roads to maintain and more homogeneous feed to the mil.
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Open pit mining at Macraes 15 carried out by the Company personmmel using leased mining equipment. Concentrating
of the ore 1s carvied oul by Oceana at the Macraes site by Company personnel.

A standerd refining contract 1 in place for the transportation and refining of the dord bullion mte fine gold. The
mining contraets are structured, and include terms and conditions and pricing arrangements, which generally are
consistent with mdustry norms.

The projected mine life for the Muacracs open pit 1s seven years to completion of the currently defined pits, based on
defined mineral reserves. If additional mineral reserves are defined in the mterim, the life of mine would likely be
extended.

Underground Mining

The Company has commenced trial mining of the Frasers underground inttial stopes by accessing the underground
mineralization with a decline from the current open pit operations. Underground development also will facilitate the
completion of infill drilling {rom suitable locations underground, to further define the identified resources further
down dip.

The Company has planned that the underground operation will produce ore at approximately 800,000 tpa for a peried
of five years from 2008, The Macraes open pit production will run in parallel with the underground operation, with all ore
being processed through the Macraes processing plant. The extent of the ore body is stilt undefined at depih and depending
upon ongomg resource definition drilling, the overall mine life may be extended by several years. The underground
operation is projected to generate gold production of up to 60,000 cunces of gold per amnum, averaging approximately
49,006 ounces per full production year.

The production estimates for Frasers underground are based on the commencement of trisl mining in Aprit 2007 and
the achievernent of 60% of the full production rate by June 2007, Full production rates are forecast front January 2008,

The schedule depends on achieving “steady state” mining rates within seven months. For 2007, approxmately
206,000 tonnes of development ore s forecast and 234,000 tonnes from stoping. Similarly, provided that the proposed
methods prove successful in the conditions, the 2008 production is scheduled to reach 890,000 tonnes.

The Frasers underground mine is also projected to operate for at least seven years, based on current reserves of 4.3Mi.
Additionsl drilling of the known adjacent mineralization has been undertaken and, if additional reserves are subsequently
defined, the underground mine life may be extended as a consequence.

Frasers underground ore will be crushed and treated through the Macraes processing plant, blended into the plant
feed with open pit ore. Flotation festwork has generally confirmed that the Frasers underground ore ig similar in its
treatment characieristics to the open pit ores. Gold recovery from Frasers underground ore is projected to average
approximately 88% with recovery to flotation concentrate of approximately 92% to 93% and gold recovery in carbon-in-
teach of approximately 95%.

Development and production mining at Frasers underground are to be carried out under contract mining.
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Operating Data

The Macraes Project derives its economic value from the production and sale of gold. The table below sets forth
selected historical operating results and projected operating data for the Macraes Project to 2014

Macraes Project Operasing Data

Actual Projecied
2005 2iHk6 27 g 20069 2014

Macraes Open Pit Mine

Tonnes processed (milltons} .. ... ... o oL 3.6 5.5 5.3 44 4.5 44
Gold produced {thousands of ounces) ... ....... ... ..... 174 182 117 155 183 134
Average gold grade (/1) .. .. ... L 1.27 1.24 0.86 1.28 146 113
Total cash cost (USS/oz)y .. .. ... o 413 404 554 346 226 320

Frasers Underground Mine

Tonnes processed (milltons) ... .o L o o oo e e - 0043 .89 0.88 0.77
Gold produced {thousands of ounces} . ... ... ... .. ... = e 30 60 53 54
Average gold grade (/1) .. .. ... e e 2.54 2.36 2.72 2.49
Total cash cost (USS/oz) .. .. .. .o o e e 483 393 264 265

Total Macraes Project

Tonnes processed (millions} .. ... . ... L oL 5.6 5.5 5.7 53 54 52
Gold produced {thousands of ounces) ... ....... ... ..... 174 182 147 219 236 188
Average gold grade (/1) .. .. ... L 1.27 1.24 0.99 1.46 1.66 133
Total cash cost (USS/ozd .. .. .. . o 413 404 339 359 234 304

The total cash cost per ounce i 2607 is adversely impacted by a higher strip vatio and a lower ore grade during the
milial stages of the final pushback m the Macraes open pit. The ore grade increases in 2008,

Based on current reserves, the Macraes Project is expected to produce a total of 1.3 millioen sunces of gold at an
average cash cost of USE341 per ounce over its remaining mine life.

Economic Analysis

The projeeted net mine cash flows are shown net of operating costs, development eapital, sustaining capizal,
reclamation costs, taxes, royalties, repayment of the external project debt and associated interest costs, but excluding
exploration costs and any allowances for the potential to extend the mine Hfe beyond current reserves.

The table below sets forth the net mine cash flows, based on current reserves, projected to be generated from the
Macraes Project. The projected net mine cash flows assume a gold price of US$626 per ounce in 2067 and US$500 per
ounce n 2008 onward.

Macraes Project Net Mine Cash Flows (US$000}

2907 2008 2009 2010 2011 2612 2013 Total
Macraes Open Pit. . ... ... ... (27,107) (5050% 7,671  (6471) 7367 35914 15358 27,683
Frasers Underground . . ... .. .. ... (5,948) (3,758) 5,271 7379 24676 2,945 5017 12,979
Total Macraes Project . ... ... ... . (33,055) (8,808} 12942 908 5,437 38863 20,375 40,062
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The forecast net mine cash flows from the Macraes Project {including both Macraes open pit and Frasers
underground mine} are estimaied to total approximately UUS$41 million. The foHowing graph indicates the NPV
sensitivity of the Macraes Project to gold prices and discount rates {of 0%, 3% and 6%):

NPV of Macraes Project Net Mine Cash Flows''!
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—&— 00
el 8
= $200 R
g o .
B $150 . s
K100 4
- .
% e
R
$t} T T T T 1
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Gold Price (1USior)
Naote:

{1} Changes to gold price only applied in 2008 onward.

Forevery US$50 per ounce change in the gold price, the NPV of the Macraes Project at a 0% discount rate changes by
approxmtately USS39 million. For every 10% change in the NZ$/US$ exchange rate, the NPV of the Macraes Project ata
6% discount rate changes by approximately USE29 million. At a USS650 per ounce gold price and 0.7 US$/NZD
exchange rate, the NPV of the Macraes Project would be approximately US$91 million.

FPayback

Treating mitial fully-funded capital as sunk costs, based on gold prices of US$620 per ounce in 2607 and USE500 per
ounce in 2008 and onward, and after taking into account the Company’s current gold hedge positions, the payback period
for the Macraes open pit operation is 5.5 years, with the project becoming net cash-flow positive in 2012, The payback
pertod for the Frasers underground operation i 3.5 years with the proiect becoming net cash flow positive in 2010

Exploration Potential

The Company is undertaking an active explotation program at the Macraes Project. Resource potentisl exists down
dip/plunge of known open pits, albeit the tenor of the mineralization is unlikely to increase markedly. The current best
strike extension target is the Coronation deposit which is located approximately 8 kilometres north of the current
mfrastructure. Exploration of the Macraes North area and the Stoneburn area along the strike of the IMSZ is incomplete.

The Reeffon Project

Oceana 1s developing the Globe Progress open pit nvne at the wholly-owned Recflon Proiect on the west coast of
New Zealand’s South [sland. This project comprises four open pits (Globe Progress, General Gordon {which is included
as part of the Globe Progress deposit), Empress and Souvenirt and a 1.0 Mipa crushing, grinding and flotation plant to
create a gold concentrate that is rail shipped back to the Macraes pressure oxidation plant for final processing into gold.
Mining will entail construction of four open pits along a 2 kilometre length of mineralized shear zone. Commissioning of
the crushing, grinding and flotation plant was completed in April 2007, The initial pit being mined is Globe Progress,
which produced its first gold i Mareh 2007, The mine i expected to produce 55,000 to 60,600 ounces of gold in 2007 at a
cash cost of US3406 per cunce. Based on current reserves, the Reefton Project is expected to produce approximately
455,060 ounces of gold over its mine life.
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Property Deseription and Location

The Globe Progress mine is located approximately 7 kilometres southeast of the township of Reefion, within the
West Coast Region of New Zealand’s South [sland. Access to the project is via state highways and local sealed roads, then
by an unsealed sccess road to the site. Within the project area, access 15 restricted to several four-wheel drive tracks. The
land on which the Globe Progress mine is located is administered by the New Zealand Department of Congervation (the
“DeC™y and is mcluded in the Victoria Conservation Park.
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Mineral Permits and Regulatory Matters

The Company’s tenements comprise one prospecting permil, one mining permit and nine exploration permits, as set
forth in the following table.

Area

Tenenien No' Lacation Name Term Expiry Date {Hectares Approx.}
MPA4L 164 . ... .. ... ... Globe Progress 15 vrs March 21, 2010 786
EP40 183 ... .. ... ...... Reefton North Appraisal extension  November 28, 2009 2,254
EP40334 ... ... .. ...... Alexander River 2™ term August 25, 2008 392
EP 40530 .............. Auld Creek 2% term  November 28, 2011 98
EP 405342 ... .. .. ... ... Blackwater P term  November 18, 2007 HAB0
EP406064 . ... ... .. ... Big River I term March 11, 2609 6,700
EP40 765 . ... ... ... .. Kranz Creek I term August 22, 2607 213
EP40R21 ... ........ ... Merrijigs I term  September 13, 20611 199
EP40 848 ... ... .. ...... Snow Creck ¥ term January 22, 2012 1,134
EP40856 ........... ... Auld Creck North 1 term February 6, 2612 114
PP3O3IS. ... .. ... Soldiers Flat 2™ teorm April 20, 2008 42

Total Area . .. . 23,412

Nojer

{1} MP — Mining Permit; PP — Pipeline Pennit, EP - Explomation Permit.

For a discussion of prospecting permits, exploration permits and mining permits issued under the Crown Mineralg
Act, see “Now Zealand - Regulation of Mining in New Zealand - Crown Minerals Act 19917,

The granting of a mineral permit does not confer a right of aceess to land subject to the permit. The permit holder
must arrange land access with the owner and occupier of the Tand that is the subjeet of the permit before beginning any
prospecting, exploration or mining for minerals on or in land (other than in the case of certaln minimurm impact activities).
Access arrangements are binding on successors in title provided they are registered against affected land titles where the
term s longer than six months.

As most of the tenements at the Reefton Projeet are sttuated over land adminisiered by the DoC, the Company has
entered into access arrangements to allow i to prospect, explore and mine. See “New Zealand - Regulation of Mining in
New Zealand - Land Access”.

Royalties to & maximum of 1% ad velorem or 5% of accounting profits, whichever 8 greater, are payable to the
Crown annually. See “New Zesland - Regulation of Mining in New Zealand - Royalties™.

Most of the Reefton Project tenements are also subject to an agreement between Royalco Resources Limited
{“Royaleo™) and a subsidiary of the Company, under which & variable gross royalty is payable to Royaleo. For the Globe
Progress mine, the amount of royalty payable varies from 1,000 to 5,000 ounces of gold per year, according to ihe gold
price at the time the royalty is due. Production from other resources in the Reefton Project attracts an annual royalty of
between 1% and 3% of gold produced according to the gold price at the time the royalty is due. Once an aggregate of
1,060,006 cunces of gold is produced (including from the Globe Progress mine}, the royalty reverts to 1.5% of annual gold
production from all of the Reefion Project tenements.

The Globe Progress mine is fully permitted.

Environmental Matters

Given the high rainfall in the area of the Reefton Project area {approximately 2,340 mm average annual rainfall),
waste rock stack and water management are the critical elements to successful environmental management for the
Reefton Project site.

At times, there have been minor increased sediment loads in the Devils Creek catchment, certain of which have
resulted in the Company paying nominal fines of NZ$750. The Company is taking steps to lessen the likelihood of future
miringements.
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The Company is in the process of implementing a program at the Reefion Project which is similar to the program in
place at the Macrags Project governed by the Negotiated Greenhouse Agreemnent. See “The Macraes Project -
Environmental Matters™.

Aecessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastracture and Physiography

The Reefton Project 15 situated 1n hilly country, i the foothills of the Victoria Range. Topography is locally very
steep and varies i glevation from 240 metres to over 1,000 metres above sea level. The area 1s strongly dissected by creeks
and rivers. The region is primarily covered with regenerating indigenous beech forest. The Globe Progress mine is at
about 550 metres above sea level m an area of highly dissected relief with dense beech forest re-growth.

With a population of approximately 1,000, Reefton i3 the rusal service centre for a number of smaller setilements.
The town has provided a services base for resource development activities for over 100 years. Reefton has a State
Highway and a railway connection south to Greymouth {79 kilometres} and north to Westport (81 kilometres) and is
connected to Christchurch (250 kilometres to the cast) by Highway 7 via the Lewis Pass. A new access road to the site
from State Highway 7 was completed in May 2006, A few side roads from the highways provide vehicle access to various
parts of the goldfield and old mining access roads locally provide four wheel drive access to the major old mines.
Commereial airlines provide regular services from the nemby regional centres of Westport and Hokitika to other main
centres in New Zealand, ineluding Christchurch. Heavy machinery access requires helleopter transport to some tenement
areas. Local firms operate helicopter charter serviees, and fixed wing charter services also are available.

The local chimate is wet and temperate, though moderated to some degree by the sheltering effeet of the Paparos
Range to the west and the Victoria Range to the cast. Annual rainfal ranges from about 1,990 mm at Reefton to 2,340 mm
at the Globe Progress mine site, and to 2,800 nym at the Alexander River prospect in the southeast. Spring tends to be the
wettest season and late summerfearly autuma is typically the driest.

Average monthly mesn temperatures at Reefion range from 5° Celsiug in June/July to 17° Celsius m January/
February. Reeflon averages two days of snowfall per year while 10 to 15 days of snowfall are common at the more
elevated mine site. Frosts can be severe with an average of 68 days of ground frost per year at Reefton and 1135 days at the
ming site.

History

Gold bearing quartz lodes containing high grade mineralization were discovered in the Reefion area in 1870, Further
diseoveries and mine developments over the next decade resulted in Reefton becoming a malor goldfield. Gold production
steadily declined from the 1920s and the last mine closed in 1951, Total recorded production from the Reeflon goldfield
was approximately two million ounces of gold.

The northern portion of the Company’s current Reeflon Project permil area was previously held by Lime and Marble
Limited between 1970 and 1971, and subsequently by CRA Exploration Limited (“CRAE”} between 1981 and 1990,
Ground at Blackwater (the southern part of current permit areat was held by Carpentaria Exploration Company Limited
between 1973 and 1976, and then by Samantha Exploration Limited between 1979 and 1980, CRAE took ownership with
Joint venture partner Golden Shamrock Mines Limited from 1981 to 1994, The permits were acquired by Macraes Mining
Company Limited from CRAE in 1990 and subsequently became part of the Company’s portfolio.

From 1983 to 1990, CRAE was a malor explorer in the Reefton goldfield. CRAE conducted regional-scale stream
sediment and seil geochemical sampling programs, undertook ground geophysics surveys and flew the goldfield with
airborne magneticsradiometrics. CRAE’s work alse included a photo-based inferpretation of ihe Recfton mineralized
corridor.

On a prospect scale, CRAE was responsible for the discovery of a disseminated nineralization halo at the Globe
Progress deposit. CRAE drilled 52 diamond drill holes throughout the goldfield, of which 39 holes (6,716 meires) were
completed at the Globe Progress deposit.

Geological Setting and Mineralization

Regional and Local Geology

The Recflon Project area is hosted by carly Ordovician age Greenland Group metasedimentary rocks, part of the
Buller Terrain. The Reefion Project area occupies an area in the foothills of the Victoria Range and is interpreted to be a
fault-bound block bounded by uplified Karames granitoids to the cast and the down-thrown Grey-Inangahua Depression
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{oraben) to the west. The Greenland Group rocks of the Reefton Project therefore comprise a mid-level terrain between a
Tertiary horst and graben.

Gold mineraslization at the Reefton Project 15 consistent with typical “slate-belt” orogenic-type gold deposits. Most
of the gold-bearing lodes at the Recfion Proiect, including all of the large deposits, are mranged along a linear structural
belt which runs north-south through the Greenland Group seguence.

Deposit Geology

The following is an overview of the geology of the primary deposits, namely the Globe Progress deposit (including
General Gordon), the Empress deposit, the Souvenir deposit and the Supreme deposit.

Globe Progress is the largest sulphide-assoctated deposit currently known in the Reefton Project. The deposit oceurs
within an arcuate shear zone which trends from a porth-south orientation Inte an cast-west strike, discordant to the
regional structural grain. The Globe Progress Shear Zone has a strike length of approximately 1 kilometre and dips steeply
at the surface but shatlows at depth, forming a guarter bow! shape. The deposit has an identifiable alteration halo that
extends more then 260 metres beyond the hmits of economic mineralization.

The Globe Progress Shear changes to & north-south ortentation at its castern extremity and merges into a line of
mineratized structures extending to the south through the General Gordon, Empress and Souvenir deposits. The
relationship of the shears to structures further south at Inkerman and Supreme and to the north at Auld Creek and
Crushington is not well understood.

The Globe Progress Shear is characterised by a 1 metre o 15 metres wide mineralized zone consisting of variable
proportions of cataclasite, quartz vein, crushed/sheared guartz vein and crushed/sheared greywacke. The Oriental Shear to
ihe south is characterised by a T metre to 5 metres wide mineralized rone consisting predominately of cataelasite, with
minor quartz vein, crushed/sheared quartz vein and crushed/sheared greywacke.

The Enypress deposit is located approximately T kifometre south of the Globe Progress open pit. Mmeralization at the
Empress deposit represents the southem continuation of the General Gordon Shear. The mineralization s developed as a
high-grade plunging shoot that has & strike length of approximately 75 metres, and a down dip extent in excess of
154 metres.

The Souvenir deposit 1s located approximately 2.5 kilometres to the south of the Globe Progress open pit. The
Souvenir Shear that hosts mineralization is interpreted as part of a dislocated shear system and therefore probably does not
represent a strike continuation of the General Gordon/Empress Shear. The Souvenir Shear strikes north-northeast and dips
707 east and 15 5 metres to 10 metres thick. The Souvenir shear has an on-surface strike length of 100 metres, with an
average width of approximately 8 metres and & down dip plunge of greater than 200 metres.

At the Supreme deposit, approximately 3 kilometres south of the Globe Progress open pit, drilling has confirmed the
presence of a mineralized structure simifar to the Globe Progress deposit. Mineralization comprises a central core of gold-
bearing guarlz veins, locally containing visible gold, surrounded by a more extensive hale of refractory sulphide-
associated gold mincralization. Three sub-paralle! mineralized structures extend approximately 250 metres along strike
and at least 220 metres down-dip with an average thickness of 12 metres and moderate dip to the south-east. Historical
workings indicate that mineralization extends further down-dip and remaing open at depth.

Mineralization

The Reeflon Project has two dominant styles of gold mineralization. The first style, and historically most important,
is native gold with minor sulphides in guartz veins (quartz lodes), while the second style comprises refractory gold within
sulphides m sheared sediments and clay alteration zones. Where both styles oceur together, guartz shoots exploited by the
early miners occur within a tectonic melange of sulphidic clay, brecciated quartz end tectonised Greenland Group
areywackes.

Sulphide-associated mineralization, such as at Globe Progress, is interpreted fo have formed within longer-lived
shear and cataclagtic zones, which could have acted as effective fluid conduits and mixing zones. These shear zones
appear to have two distinet mineralizing evenis: an early phase of brittle faulting with associaied guartz veining and
deposition of free gold, followed by brecciation and deposition of sulphides and gold during subsequent deformation.

Sulphide mineralization consequently seems to form an anastamosing halo around the remnant quartz shoots, with
typically indistinet and gradational marging with the surrounding host rock. The shear zones are developed at high angles
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to the host reck fold structures, in structural orientations that apparently contributed to polyeyclic mineralization,
alteration and deformation events.

Exploration

Exploration conducted by the Company has included alrborne geophysics, ground geophysical surveys, geochermical
sampling and trenching over prospective parts of the goldficld in order to define targets for drilling. To date, drilling has
primarily been directed at defining the Globe Progress deposit. Recently the explocation program has been extended to the
drilling of the Ortental Shear Zone (General Gordon and Empress) and the down-plunge extensions of other prospects
throughout the project arca.

The Company is compiling and validating a geoscientific database, incorporating historical and current exploration
data.

Drilling

Drilling has been primarily concentrated on defining the Globe Progress resowrce since the acguisition of the
tenements from CRAE in 1990, although more effort is currenily being undertaken on exploration targets. As at
December 31, 2606, a total of 73,642 metres drilling {representing 20,765 metres RC percussion drilling and
52,877 metres of diamond dritling} m 679 holes {276 RC percussion holes and 403 dismond holes} have been completed
on the Reefton Projeet. OFf these holes, a total of 541 holes representing 55,282 metres have been drilled at the Globe
Progress deposit.

As aresult of the steepness and inaccessibility of the terrain, almost all of the drilling operations have been helicopter
supported. As a consequence, diamond drilling forms a relatively large component of the total drilling. Other methods of
drilling, such as RC percussion drilling, have only been used in areas with good access.

Sampling, Analysis and Security of Samples

Diamond drill core is routinely half cut through zones of mineralization using a dismond core saw. Precautions are
taken where the core is clay-rich to prevent excessive loss from the sample. Core samples are immediately colleeted from
the core trays and teansferred fo sequentially numbered sample bags and then transported to an snalytical laboratory by a
commersial courter.

RC percussion drill chip samples are bagged at the deill hole site, using either portable or sig-mounted rifle-splitter
systems. An approximaie 2kg to Skg sub-sample is collected for submission to the assay laboratory. Semples are
mmmediately transported to Reefton and are then shipped to the laboratory by commereial couner.

Based on the deill logs, no matertal drilling, sampling or recovery factors have been identified in the diamond core,
except that poorer recoverles have been noted in the high clay zones.

The accuracy and rehiability of RC percussion samples is lower than for the diamond drilling due to the inherent
characteristics of this drilling technique. Where specific drilling, sampling or recovery factors have resulted m an assay
bias, the bias has been addressed by removing certain drill hole samples from the resources estimates. Local twinning of
RC percussion holes with diamond drilling has shown a generally good correlation with the logged geology and assays
from RC percussion drill holes, although the RC percussion drilling is consistently higher grade.

Definttion of sampling intervals for RC percussion drilling has generally been based on 1 metre intervals over the full
depth of the drill hole. Definition of sampling intervals for diamond drilling 15 based on geological mtervals or 1 metre
mtervals, within and beyond the marging of mineralized zones identified during logging. Grind samples have been taken
from all unmineralized drill core and composited from 1 melre to 5 metre intervals. Due to their lower reliability, where
anomglous mincralization 1s detected in grind samples, the zone 18 resampled at 1 metre intervals. Higher grade intervals
within a lower grade intersection are characterised by more abundant sulphide mineralization and generally can be
detected visually during core logging. The sample quality for diamond drilling s considered to be high where samples are
halved diamond drill core.

Comparisons of the carty Globe Progress/General Gordon RC drilling with diamond drilling twing have ideniified an
apparent bias in favour of the RC percussion drilling. Of particular concern are a series of closely spaced, shallow {less
than 60m} RC percussion drill holes drilled in 1993/1994 along the surface outcrop projection of the Globe Progress
mineralization.
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A review of the relevant drilling program highlighted the following samphing issues {which have been addressed by
removing the affected drill holes from the mineral reserve and resource estimates for the project): (1) the 199371994 RC
percussion holes were drilled using eross-over sub drilling technelogy which is known to be prone to sample recovery and
contamination problems (subsequent drilling programs used face sampling hammer technology which is less prone to
sample recovery issuesy; (1) the drill logs record variable to poor recovery and many instances of the crogs over sub
blocking; {iii} approximately 10% of the 1993/1994 RC percussion samples were sampled from wet dril! bole intervals
{since 1997 the practice of sampling and assaying wet RC percussion drilling for use in resource estimation has been
eliminatedy; and (iv) these holes were sampled by “spearing” the RC chips at three levels in the collection bag rather than
the sample beimg riffle split (subsequent to thig RC percussion drilling program, all RC percussion samples collected by
the Company have been riffle split).

Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves
Mineral Resources

Mineral resource estimates for the Reefton Project as at December 31, 2006 are shown i the following table.

Reefton Project Mineral Resourees as at December 31, 2006

Restiiree Measured Indicated Measored & Indicased Inferred Rescurce
Cat O4f Resource Area it Awgit Mt Au gt Mt Aogh A Moer M Augh  Ae Moz
0.8g/t Globe ngmss“} ..o L8l 2.65 9.54 237 11.35 2.42 (.88 3.95 1.7 (.21
0.8g/t Empress ........ - e 127 167 1.27 1.67 0.7 (14 L6 (0.41
0.8g/t Souvenir . ... ... - e 0.18 104 018 3.04 (0.02 {125 1.5 0.1
Ugg)ft Suprcme ______________ e e e e, 0 84 E 5 {}{}4
No Cut off  Blackwater. ... ... e e — — 048 210 0.34
08¢t Total........... 181 265 1099 230 128 235 097 566 33 061
Nuofe:

{13 Inciudes the General Gordon deposit.

Mineral Reserves

Mineral reserves for the Reefton Projeet as at December 31, 2006, based on a gold price of US$500 per ounce, are
shown in the foellowing table. The mineral reserves are included as part of the mineral resources set forth in the above
table.

Reefton Project Mineral Reserves as at December 31, 2006

Tofal Reserve

Reserve Proven Probzable {Proven & Probable)

Cut OFF Reserve Area Mt An git Mt Au ght Mt Au gt An Moz

0.8g/t Globe Progresst . ... 1.50 2.67 4.48 2.51 5.99 2.55 6.49

(3.8g/t Empress ... ......... e e 0.35 2.03 0.35 2.03 .02

(3.8g/t Souvenir ... ... e e 0.12 379 0.12 379 4.01

(3.8g/t Total. .. ............ 1.50 2.07 4.85 2.51 6.46 2.55 .53
Nose:

{13 Inciudes the General Govdon deposit.

The Reefton Project reserve tonpages and grades ase based on Whittde 4X pit optimizations, using among other
things projected costs, slope angles based on geotechnical studies and plant recoveries.
Mining Operations

The Glebe Progress mining development plan is & conventional open pit operation based on coniract mining. The
strip ratio averages approximately 911 (waste:ore). Waste muaterial will be deposited in nearby valleys, with some material
being used to form retention dams for the storage of tailings. Ore production levels are targeted at approximately 1.0 Mepa
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mitially, increasing to 1.2 Mipa in 2618, with total material movemenits averaging approximately 11 Mipa. The mine
grade is projected to average approximately 2.6 gt Au. The Globe Progress pit will be mined in six cut-back stages, with
further single stage satellite pits planmed for General Gordon, Empress and Souvenir. Plant feed ore is defined as 1.2 g/t Au
or higher, with low-grade matertal 0.8 g/t Auto 1.2 g/t Au stockpiled for treatment at the end of mining operations.

Stripping and mining operations commenced i July 2006, with ore being stockpiled for feed through the 1.0 Mipa
erushing, grinding and floatation plant, construction of which was completed in April 2007, The plant 1s a conventional
Jaw crusher, send autogenous grinding (“SAG”} mill and flotation system and water treatment plant.

The Reefton concentrator is expected to produce between 65,000 and 80,000 tonnes per annum of concentrate. The
concentrate will be loaded mto specially built shipping contamers at the mine site, trucked to Reefton and {oaded onto rail
flat-cars for transport to Palmerston, from where the concentrate will be trucked to the Macraes site for processing.

Based on metallurgical testwork undertaken by the Company, the anticipated recovery from the Globe Progress
sulphide ore is 88%, which data has been used for production planning. The Company has determined that average
floatation performance of the Globe Progress sulphide ore should be considered as 91% recovery as a concentrate with an
average grade of 34 g/t Au and 17% sulphide. Gold recovery is expected to be 97% from Reefton concentrate processed
separately through the Macraes autoclave.

Operating Data
The Reefton Project derives its economic value from the production and sale of gold. The Globe Progress mine
commenced production in 2007, The table below sels forth certain proiccted operating data for the Reeflon Project

to 2010:

Reelton Project Operaiing Data

Actual Projecied
205 206 207 08 09 200
Tonnes processed (milltons) . ... . . oL oL o i e e 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.2
Gold produced {thousands of ounces} . .. .. .. ... ... .. ... - c e - 58 ]2 59 93
Average gold grade (/8). . .. .. L e e e 2.43 2.96 217 2.81
Total cash cost (USS/oz) . ... L. i e e 406 252 420 240

Lower grade stockpiles are being processed at the Reefton Project during 2009 resulting in lower production that
year. The Company is continuing to optimize mine design to achieve a morte consistent output of ore over the life of mine.

Based on current reserves, the Reefion Project s expected to produce a total of approximately 455,000 ounces of
gold at an average cash cost of US$316 per ounce over its mine life.

Economic Analysis

The projeeted net mine cash flows are shown net of operating costs, development eapital, sustaining capital,
reclamation costs, taxes, royalties, repayment of the external project debt and associated interest costs, but excluding
exploration costs and any allowances for the potential to extend the mine Hfe beyond current reserves.

The table below seis forth the net mine cash ffows, based on current reserves, projected to be generated from the
Reefton Project. The projected net mine cash flows assume & gold price of US$620 per ounce in 2007 and USS500 per
ounce n 2008 onward.

Reefton Project Net Mine Cash Flows (US$°000)

2007 2008 2004 2 2081 2§12 213 Total

Reefton Project . ... ... ... . ..., (21,654 11,134 (642} 15323 5,663 13161  (408) 26,577
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The forecast net mine cash flows fron the Reefton Project are estimated to total approximately US327 miflion. The
following graph indicates the NPV sensttivity of the Reefton Project to gold prices and discount rates {of 0%, 3% and 6%):

NPV of Reefton Project Net Mine Cash Flows'"
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S’I{) T T T T 1
5500 5550 SO0 %650 ST00
Golbd Price (LS%/02)
Mate:

{1} Changes to gold price only applied in 2008 onward.

For every US$50 per ounce change in the gold price, the NPV of the Reefton Project at a 0% discount rate changes by
approximately U839 million. For every 10% change in the NZ$/USS exchange rate, the NPV of the Reefton Project at a
% discount rate changes by approximately US$3 million.

FPayback

Based on a total initial fully-funded capital cost of US$41.3 million (which includes US$17.6 million m 2067 for
balance of the capital development expenditure}, the payback period for the project is 5.5 years based on a gold price of
USH6260 per ounce n 2007 and USE306 per ounce in 2008 and onward, and after taking into account the Company’s
eurrent gold hedge positions, being net cash posttive it 2012, Current reserves at Reefton {Globe Progress, General
Gordon, Empress and Souvenir pits) are scheduled to be mined until 2013, The Company anticipates that during this
pertod further reserves will be delineated.

Exploration Potential

The areas along strike fronm the Globe Progress mine are characterised by extensive historical workings and are
considered highly prospective for the discovery of near mine satellite deposits. These arcas are subject to ongoing
exploration by the Company.

The Didipio Gold-Copper Project

The Didipio Gold-Copper Projeet is held under an FTAA granted by the Philippines Government in 1994, The FTAA
grants title, exploration and mining rights with a fixed fiscal regime. The Didipio Gold-Copper Project 1s in the milial
stages of development, with most civil carth works anticipated to be completed in 2007 and infrastructure construction
anticipated for completion in 2008, First production of gold and copper concentrate is targeted for the first half of 2009,
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Property Description and Location

The Didipio Geld-Copper Project is located in the north of Luzon lsland approximately 270 kilometres nosth-
northeast of Manila, it the Philippines. The FTAA covers approximately 215km” Iocated in the Provinces of Nueva
Vircaya and Quirino. The nearest significant town to the Didipto Gold-Copper Project is Cabarroguis located
approxintately 20 kilomelres to the north and connected by paved road to Bayombong to the west. Portions of the
property covered by the original FTAA have been relingquished under the terms of the FTAA, which generally reguires
10% relinguishment per annum until 5,080 ha (or such larger ares as the Government approves) remains. The proposed
mining area comprises approximately 9.75 km® within the property arca covered by the FTAA. A direct impact zone of
approximately 3.25 km® is situated inside the proposed mining ares.

Tl Proguck

Mineral Permits and Regulatory Matters

The FTAA was granted on the June 20, 1994 for a 25 year term and s renewable for a further 25 years. The FTAA
earries 4 nminimum expenditure commitment of US$50 million (which the Company has incurred) and sets forth the fiscal
regime for development of the Didipic Gold-Copper Project.

It August 2004, the Company obtained the Environmental Compliance Certificate (“ECC™) for the project. In March
2085, the Company submitted a Partial Declaration of Mining Feasibility {“PDMF”) for approval by the DENR (as
defined below). In conjunction with the PDME, the Company submitted the Defmitive Feasibility Study (“DFS”) for the
project. In October 2003 the PDMF was approved which provided, in effect, the permit io operate and develop the Didipio
Gold-Copper Project. The permit to operate will be revoked 1f the operations on the project are suspended or stopped fora
pertod of more than two years.

The PDMFEF approval allows for, among other things, open pit and underground workings, a tailings dam and
impoundment, waste rock dumps, a mill plant, an explosives magazine, watersheds along the drainage tuonel alignment, a
site of tunnel portal and a camp and working areas for the tunnelling crew. The DFS specifies the projeet mining methods,
production rate, processing methods and other aspects of the mining operation. The ECC specifies the environmental
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management and protection reguirements, including the submission of annual Envircnmental Program Enhancement
Plans (“EPEP™), as well as social development and community assistance programs.

The Company has met all the primary requirements to be fulfitled under the FTAA for a project with a threughput of
2.0 Mitpa, inclading all environmental approvals {represented by the ECC). However, based on the results of further
optimization studies, the Company intends to increase the throughput of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project to 2.5 Mipa.
While the Environmental Management Bureau (“EMB”) of the Department of Environment and Natural Resources
{“DENR™) could have required an amendment to the environmental approval for the project due to this increase in
throughput and some associated changes in the tailings storage facility, based on discussions held by the Company
between April and June 2007 with the EMB, the EMB has mdicated that an amendment to the ECC is not required.
[nstead, the Company 18 required to submit an Environmental Performance Report and Menagement Plan (“EPRMP™)
covering the project variations. The Company and the EMB will agree on the scope of the EPRMP and the Company will
then prepare and submit the EPRMP for approval. The Company believes that this process will be concluded within two
months, and will not delay the development of the Didipic Gold-Copper Project. See “Risk Factors - The Company may
experience delays to the construction of the Didipio Gold-Copper Projeet”.

Acquisition of the necessary approvals and permits from the relevant government agencies has been a significant
aspect of the development of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. Securing the last permits and approvals required will not
be possible uniil all design details have been finalized, allowing the various construction permits, and subsequent
permits-to-operate, to be granted. The following is a list of the prineipal permits, approvals and agreements which are
required o enable commencement of mining operations at the Didipio Gold-Copper Project:

*  Water Permits:  Applications for outstanding water permits have been submitted and are pending with the
appropriate governmental and regulatory bodies.

*  Ordinary Course Construction Fermits:  The Company is required to obtain certain ordinary course permits for
the construction and operation of certain project mftastructure, including the construction of & tatlings storage
facility, waste treatment facifity, pollution source equipment and pollution control equipment. The Company will
not be able to obtain these permits unti all design details have been finalized.

»  Land Surface Rights Acquisition:  The Compeny has acquired approximately 70% of the necessary land surface
rights for the commencement of operations at the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. The Company {s negotiating to
aequire the remaining surface rights from affected landowners or, where the Company has been unable to reach a
negotiated agreement, the Company has commenced legal proceedings to acquire the relevant surface rights.

The Company has an agreement (known as the “Addendum Agreement”™) with a Philippine claim owner syndicate
{the “syndicate™) which covers that portion of the FTAA previously included i a block of mineral claims held by the
syndicate (the “arca of interest”™), including the PDMF area in its entirety. Under the Addendum Agreement, the syndicate
will be entitled, once certain conditions have been met, to an 8% free carried interest in the eperating vehicle that will be
established o undertake the management, development, mining and processing of ores, and the marketing of products
from, the ares of interest following the satisfaction of certain conditions.

The free carried interest will entitle the syndicate to a proportionste share of any dividends declared from the net
profits of the operating vehicle, but not until all costs of exploration and development have been recovered. The syndicate
i5 also entitled to a 2% net smelter royalty on production from the area of mterest.

A 3.6% pet smelter royelty (which is capped at & total of A$13.5 million) is payable by the Company to the
Malaysian Mining Corporation.

Under the terms of the FTAA, from the start of commercial production (which generally will be the start of mineral
production sulficient to sustain viable cconomic operations) at the Didipic Gold-Copper Projeet, the Company will have a
period of five years during which it can recover its pre-operating expenses and property expenditures from “net revenues”
{as referred to below). H such expenses and expenditures are nol recovered by the end of such tive year period, the
Company can recover the unrecovered portion as a depreciation sllowance deductible from net revenues over the next
three years. Upon the carlier of the Company recovering its pre-operating expenses and property expenditures ot five
years after the start of commercial production, the Company s required to pay the Government of the Republic of the
Philippines 60% of the net revenue eamed from the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. For the purposes of the FTAA, “net
revenue” is generally the gross mining revenue from commercial production from mining operations, less deductions for,
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among other things, expenses relating to mining, processing, marketing and mineral exploration, consulting fees,
depreciation of capital, and certain specified overheads. In addition, al taxes paid to the Government, including excise,
eustomns, sales, corporate taxes {30%9) and value added taxes, as well as the 2% net smelter royally payments and any
distribution made to the holder of the §% free carmed mterest referred to sbove, are also deducted from the 6% of net
revenues that are payable to the Government.

The FTAA requires the Company to divest 60% of Hs {oterest in the project (or such lesser percentage as may be
imposed by law) to Filipino persons by the later of ten years after the recovery of pre-operating expenses and 20 years after
the effective date of the FTAA, in which case the revenue sharing arrangement described above will cease to apply.
However, as an alternative to such divestment, the Company may, at its option, enter into g mineral production sharing
agreement with the Government of the Republic of the Philippines.

Under the FTAA, the Company must commence produetion of a sufficient guantity of minerals to susiain
economically viable operations in accordance with its work plan. Failure to commence commercial production as
outlined in the work plan may constitute a substantial breach of the FTAA potentially resubiing fn #s termination.

The Philippines imposes a 12% Value Added Tax (“VAT™} on the sale of goods and services conducted in the
ordinary course of trade or business and on the importation of goods. The Company has reeeived a tax ruling confirming
itg exemnplion from VAT from the time of approval of the Company’s mining project feasibility study up to the end of the
recovery period as defined in the FTAA. A similar application for the exemption from excise taxes is pending before the
Bureau of Internal Revenue to confirm the Company’s exemption from these taxes.

The Company also i qualified to import capital equipment, spare parts and accessories at zero duty from the date of
i registration unti June 9, 2009. However, under the Philippine Mining Act and its implementing rules and regulations,
customs duties and fees on imported capital eguipment are considered part of the government share which will not be
collected from the Company from the time of approval of the DMF/ECC up to the end of the recovery period as defined in
the FTAA.

An amended Environmental [mpact Statement {“EIS™} was completed on behalf of Chmax in April 2604, which led
to the issuance of the revised ECC on August 8, 2004, The revised ECC sets out the work requirements relating to
environmental management and protection requirements, including the establishment of an environmental trust fund,
environmental risk assessment and a mine decommissioning plan.

Envirenmental Matters

A five year social development and management program (“SDMP™} was approved by DENR on February 8, 2005,
The Company is requived to allocate a minimum of 1% of the direct mining and milling costs annually to a SMDP once the
project 1 operational.

The SDMP is intended to provide a sustained improvement in the living standards of the host and neighbouring
communities by helping them to define, fund and implement development programs before commercial production at the
Didipic Gold-Copper Project begins, during the life of the mine and after mine closure.

Aecessibility, Climate, Loeal Resources, Infrastructure and Physiography

Access to most parts of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project is from the north commeneing at the national highway at
Cordon and continuing along a conerete paved road to Cabarroguis, and thereafter by a gravel all-weather road passing
through a concrete bridge over Debibi River. Nearer to the project area, the road is generally unpaved and diffienlt to use
following normal vainfall periods. Roads m the area are gencrally of logging truck standard and four-wheel drive vehicles
are required to gain aceess. There are no regional, local or all-weather reads conneeting Didipic to the national highway,
although Oceana ntends to build appropriate roads to service the project. Oceana intends o construct & helipad site within
the secured areas at the processing plant.

The Didipio Gold-Copper Project experiences a tropical climate consisting of three main seasons: the south-west
monsoonal season between June and September; the north-west monsgoon season between October and January; and a
transition period between February and May. At the project site, the mean annual rainfall i approximately 2,929 mm. The
mean annual number of rainfall days at the projeet site is 181, The region generally is subject to the effects of two tropical
eyclones a year. The mean annual temperature at the project site is approximately 23° Celsius.
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The Didipio Gold-Copper Project arca is bounded on the east by the Sierra Madre Range, on the west by the Luzon
Central Cordillera range end on the south by the Caraballo mountains. The vegetative cover consists of grassland,
brushland and low-density forest.

History

The Didipio area was st recognized as a gold provinee Lo the 1970s, when aluvisl gold deposits were discovered in
ihe region. There has been no large scale mining at the Didipio Gold-Copper Projeet to date and there are no records of
production by artisan miners.

le May 1975, Victoria Consolidated Resources Corporation and Fil-Am Resources Inc. entered inte an exploration
agreement with a syndicate of elaim owners who had title to an area covering the Didipie valley and undertook exploration
activities, including a stream geochenustry program, between 1973 and 1977, Marcopper Mining Corporation
mvestigated the region in 1984, and Benguet Corporation examined the Didipio area in September 1985, [n April
19835, the property area was explored (which work included geological mapping, panning of stream-bed sediments and
ridge and spur soil sampling) by a consultant geologist engaged by loeal claim owner Jorge Gonzales. Geophilippines inc.
mvestigated the Didipio area in September 1987 and made mining lease applications in November 1987, [n 1989, Cyprus
Philippines Corporation (“Cyprus”) and subsequently Artmeo NL {as Arimeo Mining Corporation in the Philippines)
{“AMC”) entered into an agreement with Geophilippines nc. and the local claim owner, Jorge Gonzales, to explore the
Didipio arca. Between April 1989 and December 1991, an exploration program was carried out that included the drilling
of 16 diamond core holes into the Didipic ridge deposit. Although this work outlined the potential for a significant deposit,
both companies assessed the probability of ebtaining secure title to the area as being low. Subseguently, Climax acquired
control of AMC (now Climax-Arimeo Mining Corporation {“CAMC”}) and the entire Cyprus-Arvimeo NL interest in the
Didipic Gold-Copper Project. In 1996, the FTAA for the Didipic Gold-Copper Projeet was assigned from CAMC o
Australastan Philippines Mining Incorporated (“APMI} (& subsidiary of Climax). By the time of ownership transfer to
APME, CAMC had drilled 94 drill holes for a total of 35,653 melres into the Didipio gold-copper deposit.

Geology and Mineralization
Regional and Local Geology

Regionally, the Didipio Gold-Copper Project geology comprises late Miocene age voleanie, volcaniclastic, infrusive
and sedimentary rocks overlying a basement complex of pre-Tertiary age tonalite and schist.

The {ocal geological setting consists of a north-north-west-trending, steeply (86° to 85°) east-dipping composite
microdiorite mtrusive, in contact with velcaniclastics of the Mamparang Formation. The area is also cross-cut by a north-
north-west-trending  regional magnetic lincament, which is possibly a geophysical expression of major sirike-slip
faulting. Notth to north-west trending sirtke-slip faulis in the Luron Cordillera area have been recogmzed as major
controls on the emplacement and elongation of porphyry deposits and a similar structural control may have been
important in the Didipio area.

Three mator faults are located in the arca. The Tauts Feult s a major grid north-south trending, steeply (80° 16 85°)
east-dipping fault passing through the centre of the deposit, which i regarded as a malor structure controlling
emplacement of the Quan Diorite and Bugoy Breccia, as well as being a possible major conduit for mineralization
and alteration. No movement on this fault has yet been observed and although the fault is regarded as part of a regional
lneament, it 1s not demonstrated to be a major plane of weakness.

The Biak Shear Zone 5 a major north-west-trending, steeply north-easi-dipping fault, against which mineralization
ts displaced at the northern end of the deposit. This fault comprises a 30 metre to 35 metre wide zone of anastomosing
chlortte-haematite shear planes and contains earbonate-sulphide veins, with remobilised gold-copper mineralization. The
shear zone s hosted principally in Dark Diorite, which can be strongly carbonated. High grade mineralization associated
with veining and brecciation appear to ferminate against the Biak Shear, although low grade mineralization has been
intersected in Tunja Diorite further to the north.

The Tudogs Fault is & less clearly defined than the Biak Shear Zone, particularly in shallower parts of the deposil.
This fault is broadly parallel to the Biak Shear, striking north-west and dipping steeply. [n places, it appears to form the
southern limit of the high grade mineralization and is marked by breeciated or heavily fractured host rocks. No direction
of movermnent has been established for this fault.
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Deposit Geology

The primary deposit has been identified as an alkalic gold-copper porphyry system, roughly elliptical in shape at
surface {450 metres long by 150 metres wide} and with a verticsl pipe-like geometry that extends to at {east 800 metres
below the surface. The porphyry-style mineralization is closely agsoeiated with a zone of K-feldspar alteration, the extent
of which s marked by the Didipio ridge, which is approximately 400 metres long, and rising steeply to about 100 metres
above an area of river flats and undulating ground.

Chaleopyrite and gold {clectrum}, along with pyrite and mageetite, are the main metallic minerals in the deposit.
Higher grade gold and copper mineratization is closely assoctated with the Quan Diorite and Bugoy Breceia, both of
which are elongate i plan view along the north-south trending, steeply east-dipping Tatts Fault Zone.

Mineralization

Porphyry style gold-copper mineralization has been recorded over a sirike length of approximately 430 metres, a
width of up to 150 metres and to a vertical depth of greater than 800 metres. The tabular composite intrusive and
associated slteration and mineralization sirike grid north-south and dip steeply (80° to 857} east. Higher grade gold and
copper nineralization is closely associgted with the Quan Dierite and Bugoy Breecig, both of which are elengate i plan
view along the north-south trending, steeply ecast-dipping Tatts Feult Zone. This mineralization is surrounded by
stockwork mineralization that extends as a steeply east-dipping ellipsoidal shaped body, 110 metres to 1440 metres wide,
from the surface to a depth of 300 metres. Below a depth of 500 metres, the mineralization is more tighily constraimed
forming a carapace around the Bufu Syenite, with extensions of higher grade mineralization continuing southwards along
digerete structures. Higher gold-copper grades are also localised within the footwall (west} skarn, which is 5 metres to
153 metres wide, sub-vertical, open at depih and contais veintype mineralization over a sirike lengih of 150 metres.

The deposit is oxidised from the surface to a depth of between 15 metres and 60 melres, averaging 30 metres. The
oxide zone forms a blanket over the top of the deposit. A transition zone, 5 metres to 15 metres thick, is present between
the oxide and sulphide zones over most of the deposit. This zone is imprecisely defined, with sulphides being observed
near surface.

The highest gold and copper grades {up to 38 g/t Au and 3% Cu) occur in the QFC Zone and the Bugoy Breceta, inthe
area immediately surrounding the Lesched Zone; within Skarn mineralization; Mixed Zones; and, less commonly, at
contacts between altered and unaltered rocks. Visible gold is generally not common but has been detected i Himited drill
cole.

Brecciation of the QFC at the top of the Leached Zone {Bugoy Breceia} is characterised by high gold-copper grades.
The gold and copper may well have been remobilized and concentrated within the brecels matrix. Within the QFC Zone,
highest grade mineralization s generally coincident with an overlap of Mixed Zone alteration. Where the Mixed Zone
does not cotneide with the QFC Zone {that is at depth), grades are typically low. The Mixed Zone is also notable in that it
meludes significant disseminated chalcopyrite-bornite-pyrite mineralization, a feature not comnon in other alieration
zones. Very high grade gold-copper mineralization 18 also a festure of the Skarn Zone where 1t oceurs typically as coarse
{2 mm to 4 mm) disseminations of chalcopyrite-bornite-magnetite overprinting the cale-silicate matrix. Ountside the QFC
Zone, chalcopyrite and gold mineralization are generally lower-grade. Minor disseminated chaleopyrite may also osour
with magnetite and chlorite as retrograde alteration of mafic grains. Locally, there 18 strong development of dissemninated
mincralization.

Exploration and Driling

Since the merger with Climax no significant exploration work has been conducted on the property by the Company
and no exploration work is planned for the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. However, an infill drilling program is underway
at the project to improve the definition of the underground resource. Al drilling at the projeet prior to the acquisition of
Climax by Oceana Gold was performed by contractors, while most of the sample preparation was performed by Climax
personnel at Cordon and assaving by Analabs.

All coordinate data since May 1994 have been generated on, or transferred to, a dnill grid prepared by Suclace-Tech
Surveys of Perth, Australia, which has been accepted as the standard for the deposit. The drill hole database for the
Didipic Gold-Copper Proiect comprises 94 holes totalling 35,653 metres, although only 77 diamond core holes totalling
33,229 metres were used for resource estimation. The holes excluded from resource estimation were either percussion
holes drilled for geotechnieal purposes or small diameter core holes with poor sample recovery.
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To the exient possible, all drifl holes have been surveyed down hole, generally at 50 metres to 100 metres intervals,
using an Eastrnan survey camera. Down hole survey readings were examined for anomalous values related to local high
concentrations of magnetite.

After retrieval from @ drifl hole, all drill core is colour photographed in both wet and dry state. Some core,
particularly from carly drill holes, was also re-photographed after sphitting with a dismond saw. Later in the drilling
program a digital camera was used to photograph the core.

On site, core logging and marking 1s carried out in several stages. [nitial geological logging is carried out by the site
geologist using logging sheets and/or notes to construct a brief geological log. Detalled geological logging 1s generally
carried out after the core is split and sampled.

Sampling, Analysis and Sample Security

Drill holes are generally spaced on sections with 25 metres to 50 metres northerly separations and with vertical
separations of 58 metres. This covers an approximate arca of 300 metres along grid cast by 600 metres along grid north.
Down hole sample intervals are generally 2 metres or 3 metres.

From this drilling, 7,703 samples were used for resource estimation. Sample intervals were defined during the initial
togping of core on site. Core was cut in half using a dismond saw either on site or at Climax’s sample preparation facility
at Cordon. Core has typically been sampled in intervals 2 metres or 3 metres under supervision of the site-geologist or
sample preparation manager. Afler sampling, the remaining half core was stored for fusther technical and/or metallurgical
purposes. [n 1992, all drill core on site was moved and stored at CAMC’s faciltties at Cordon.

Core recovery data is available for 67 of the 77 core holes (87%) used for resource estimation. Recovery data is
missing for a certain series of holes (9 holes), and there is meomplete data for a number of holes. Core recoveries werte
generally better than 95%, although in local areas of severe structural deformation recovery was as low as 56%. A review
of core recoveries indicated that there was no strong relationship between core recovery and grade, so there appears to be
no systematic bias in grade due to poor sample recovery. Therefore, sampling is considered representative.

Muost samples {approximately 89%) were prepared by CAMC employees at a sample preparation facility maintained
by CAMC. A large working area wag kept relatively clean and dust free by means of an extraction system. The sample
preparation and core storage areas were under the supervision of experienced local staff. Prepared samples were then
shipped by air to Anzlabs in Perth, Western Australia for assay.

The standard gold assay procedure used by Analabs in Perth involved a 50g sample pulp fired with Hiharge and flux
and the lead-silver button cupelled. This was followed by acid dissolution of the silver-gold prill, and gold content was
measured by atomic absorption spectrometry (“AAS”) to a 0.003ppm Au lower detection linkt. Assay for gold in samples
from certain holes were performed by Analabs in Manila, but this practice was discontinued in November, 1989, The same
procedures were used by the Manila and Perth laboratorics.

The standard procedures used by Analabs, Perth, for copper and silver assays utilized a perchlonic acid digest then
AAS finish to a 4ppm lower detection limit for copper and & Zppm lower detection limit for silver.

Quality contrel and assurance measures employed at Didipio included standards {gold only), sample resplits,
replicate analyses and inter-laboratory check assays. No copper standards or sample blanks were used. A set of gold
standards was prepared from Didipio Gold-Copper Project core samples by Australian Geostandards Proprietary Limited
to best represent the range of expected gold values at the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. Sclected standard samples, of
known gold content, were then submitted on average ¢very 20 samples in series with the normal drill core samples and the
results were checked against the known values. A total of 602 analyses for 52 different standards were available. Details of
the certification of these standards were not examined. Duplicate sample splits were prepared in Cordon, under a separate
sampie number, and despatched to Analabs. This was carried out on average once every 20 samples after hammer milling
to -Imnn A total of 343 duplicate samples were available, although only 186 were loeated for the Didipio Technical
Report. These duplicate samples were sampled for both gold and copper using the same procedures as for the routine
samples. Analabs carried out replicate assays for gold and copper on pulp splits received from CAMC at roughly one in 15
for gold and one in 150 for copper. The total number of replicates available is 849 for gold and 34 for copper. Check assays
were performed by a number of different laboratories or companies for comparison with the original Analebs assays.
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Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves
Mineral Resonrces

The mineral resources for the Didipio Gold-Copper Project as at December 31, 2006 are set forth in the following
table.

Didipio Gold-Copper Project Mineral Resources as at December 31, 2006

Measured Iadicated Measured & Indicated Tferred
Mt A gt Cu% M Aught  Cu% Mt Ao gt Ao Moz Cu's  Co Mt M Angd Ca%

{pert Pttt P 17.1 0.71 .51 6.2 41 40 332 .57 el .46 18 t4.4 L3 L3
Undergmw]d‘g} . 17.6 208 046 F3E .94 40 307 §.38 1.56 044 .14 .7 &7 43
Total. . . .. ... .. 3476 1.46 049 2030 68 40 A4.40 P06 21 .45 .29 2110 4 b3
Nofes:

{1} Above 2,350mR1. at 0.4 24 Au equiv. cut-off grade at a gold price of LISE300/02 and copper price of USS1.901b.
{23 Below 2.350mEL at 1.6 g/ Au equiv. cut-off grade at a gold price of USSS00ax and copper price of LISH1.90/b.
Mineral Reserves

The following table shows the mineral reserves of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project as at December 31, 2006. The
mineral reserves are meluded as part of the mineral resources set forth in the table above.

bidipio Gold-Copper Project Mineral Reserves as at December 31, 2006

Total Reserve

Praven Prabable {Proven & Probable)
Project Mt Ay git Cu" Mt Aw g/t Cu'% Mt Aapg/t Ae Moz Cu®  Co Mg
Open pitt . L. 992 (.88 .66 4.99 .49 .54 1491 0.75 .36 .62 .04
Underground{z] coe 1026 2.18 0.54 7.80 1.95 0.54 1806 2.08 1.21 (.54 0.18
Total ........... 20,18 1.54 060 1279 1.38 0.54 3298 148 1.57 {.58 0.19

Nofes:
{1} The cut-off grade for open pit gold reserves s (L5627t Au equiv. cut-off ar a pold price of USE5Moz and copper price of U851 9041b.
{23 The cut-off grade for open pit copper 1.0z Au equiv. cut-oft at a gold price of US3300z and copper price of USS1.90 b,

Proposed Mining Operations

The Didipio Gold-Copper Praject is expected to support approximately four years of open pit mining (including pre-
production) and nine years of underground mining, followed by two years of stockpile processing. The proposed 2.5 Mipa
processing plant is expected to average approximately 120,000 ounces of gold and 15,600 tonnes of copper concentrate
per annum for the first 10 years of operations. See “The Didipio Gold-Copper Project - Mineral Permits and Regulatory
Maiters” and “Risk Factors — The Company may experience delays to the construction of the Didipie Gold-Copper
Projeet”.

Infrastructure

1 connection with the development of the Didipio Geld-Copper Project, water will be sowrced from drawdown bores
sunk around the perimeter of the open pit. Power will be drawn from a substation on the national power grid. The power
Hoe will be constructed and owned by the Company. A high voltage substation will be constructed onsite with reticulation
to smaller substations at various locations around the site.

Dresel storage tanks are expected to be situated adiacent to the mine equipment workshop. The fuel factlity includes
diesel transfer punyps, truck fuelling systems and bowsers for light vehicle refuelling.

Sewage from the project site will be pumped into holding tanks where it will be bacterially treated. H is anticipated
that scrap metal and other refuse waste will be disposed of either to a local waste disposal facility or other appropriate
tocation on site. Waste oils and lubricants will be recovered and disposed of to a suitable repository, possibly i Manila.
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Port Irene, which is located on Casambalangan Bay at the north castern tip of Luzon Island approximately
326 kilometres away, 1s the preferred location for shipping ore concentrate.

Open pit Mining

Almost 76% of the recoverable metal in the measured and indicated resource is more than 150 metres below the
valley floor. Given the compact, vertical nature of the high grade core, the open pit designs tend towards cone shapes as
depth increases and the incremental waste to ore ratio rises rapidly with depth. This is offsel to some degree by increasing
zold grade with depth bul the rate of increase in total open pit mining cost per metre depth is faster than the total increase
i metal value per metre depth. Apart from the ore almost at surface, the cost of mining the waste and ore by open pit 1s
mole expensive per recoverable equivalent ounce then underground mining of the ore, even including underground
development costs. Accordingly, based on optimization input considerations, the final pit was designed to give 2.5 Mipa
of mill feed until the underground mine starts production.

Groundwater Management

Pesk groundwater inflows to the pit of up to 13 to 15 million {itres per day are expected during the wet season. The
Company plans to keep the pit free of groundwater by installing a system of 10 advance dewatering bores prior to mining
to depress the water table i the pit arca by up to 36 metres below the pit floor. Most of the holes will be drilled to a
186 metre depth to depress the water table below the pit floor over the {ull life of the open pit.

The tunnel to be mined to drain the Biak Shear Zone down to RL2,270 for the underground nine 1s gcheduled to be in
place by the start of third year operations. This should provide nearly total groundwater drainage during mining of the
fowest 75 metres to 1860 metres of the open pit.

The main surface flow aflecting the pit is the Dinauyan River which runs west to cast slong the valley in which the pit
will be mined. The northern crest of the pit will cut across the main watercourse in the second year of open pit operations.
The river has & near permanent flow.

Flow in the Dinauyan River will be dammed during construction when the tailings dam wall and the waste dump
formed eastwards from the downstream face of the tailings dam wall are commenced. This wall 18 600 metres west of the
pit. The Dinauyan Valley west of the dam wall will be filled with tailings over the mine life and the tailings dam wall will
reach a final height of over 60 metres. The tailings emplacement will have certain impacts on mine water management.
The wilings dam wall, which will be buttressed by over 200 metres width of waste dunyp on the downstream side, will
cause water enfering the upper Dinauyan Valley to pond on top of the beached tailings. Over most of the mine life there
will be substantial freeboard (14 metres 1o 20 metres) between the top of wilings and the dam crest so that a very large
volume of water will be held for gradual pumping inte the Surong River. The tailings are not expected to contain
dangerous toxins and are expected to settle readily. Ag the tallings settle they should seal off part of the recharge to the
Biak Shear Zone thus reducing the requirements for groundwater disposal through borehole dewatering and the drainage
tunnel.

It order to limit the reguirement to pumyp supernatant water over the dam wall into the Surong River during the mine
Hfe, a coffer dam and diversion tunnel is planned at the north western comner of the tailings dam basin. This diversion will
gollect rain run off from approximately 60% of the catchment arca above the tailings dam. The 1.1 kilometre tunnel will
discharge into the Sureng River north of the mine arca. Construction of the tunnel i planned for the first year of
operations.

Apart from the Dinsuyan River the other two potential sources of surface mflow to the pit are from the slopes
immediately south of the pit and from the surface slluvial material east of the pit which is vecharged from the Surong
River. Flows off the slopes south of the pit will be collected in cut off drains and directed east to the Surong River. The
Surong River immedistely east of the mine will be diverted fo the eastern side of the valley to make room for the main
stockpile and crusher pad and a larger, lower level low grade stockpile. The river diversion and stockpile bases are
expected to stop almost all water flow through the alluvials back nto the mine area.

For the first six months of mining, the benches will open out to surface and will free drain. After that time most of the
pit area will be below the surrounding ground level so that rain falling onto the pit area will need to pumped out. Once
open pit mining goes below ground level 1t is estimated that a one in a 160 year storm event could deposit 66 to 70 million
Hires of water in the pit in a single day. The mining capital and operating costs allow for this volume in terms of pump and
electric power capacity. Pit operations can stifl be maintained because the stages have approximately 30 metres vertical
tag between them. The water will pool in the middle of the pit in the decper stage. AT mining can be diverted to the upper
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stage cut back while the lower stage is pumped out. The ore grade and low grade stockpiles will hold up to three years
supply during the open pit life so it 5 expected that there will always be a source of ore for the process plant to cover
mterruptions o open pit mining.

Ground Support

Slope stability is & significant issue for the open pit. This is beesuse the Bisk Shear and the broken ground on the
northern walls may be prone to rubble failures and the pit only has one ramp. Various measures are planned to mitigate the
slope stability risk including, among other things, restricting all faces to a maximum height of 15 metres, increasing berm
widths in and north of the Bigk Shear Zone, flattening the face slopes and further widening the berms over the whole pit
area above the base of total oxidation, and advance dewatering to keep the water table below the pit floor thereby reducing
hydrostatic pressure in the walls, Since the pit will only be in operation for four years and it will be mined in two stages,
the interim and final walls are open for shorter periods than the full mine life.

Waste Dumps

Waste rock mined during early stages of construction will be used to form the run of mine {“ROM”) and low grade
stockpile bases and the start of the tailings dam wall. From the start of the first year of open pit operations, part of the wasie
will be used to heighten the tailings dam wall and the remainder will be placed in a dump to be formed off the downstream
{eastern) face of the tailings dam wall between the wall and the pit.

Since the underground mine will extend the mine life beyond the open pit phase, the tailings dam wall will be buill
much higher than required for the open pit ore only. By the end of the third year of operations, the wall will be 28 metres
above the tailings beach level. The waste dump will provide a 250 metre wide buttress for the tallings dam wall.

Ore Stockpiles

During the first four vears of operations, all the mill feed cores from the higher grade ore with lower grade ore stored
on a low grade stockpile formed east of the ROM pad.

The open pit is sized to provide higher grade ore until the underground mine comes tnnto full production in the fourth
year of operaiions. Thereafter, ore from the underground mining operations will provide the full 2.5 Mipa feed.
Underground ore will not be segregated by grade and will be mostly divect dumped to the crusher without passing through
a ROM pad stockpile.

By the ninth year, the underground mine production rates will start to fall as the stope lifts become smaller and the
haul to surface becomes too high to maintain & 2.5 Mipa trucking rvate. The shortfall in mill feed will be made up by a small
amount of remalning medium grade ore and by the Targe tormage of low grade ore. Weathering tests conducted during
20406 indicate that the low grade ore will still be amenable to flotation even after several years on stockpile.

By the end of the twelfth year, most of the feed will be low grade ore until it becomes entirely low grade and the low
grade stockpile is depleted at the end of the fourteenth year of operations.

The open pit has been designed and estimated on the basis of contract mining. The mining fleet is based around two
114} tonne exeavators. Two excavators are used over most of the pit life until the base of the pit cone becomes too narrow
for both machines to work side by side. Only one excavator is used for the Tast three months of the pit life. Mining wilt use
50 tonne haul trucks i either rigid body or articulated configuration. Truek fleet size inereases with depth of the pit but is
expected to vary from eight (four per excavator) to 14 over the pit life. Other mining fleet equipment will be used by the
mining contractor, including mining, support and genersl carthworks ftems, and will vary through the pit life as the pit
depth and waste to ore ratios vary.

Underground Mining

The underground is based around sub-level caving as the production nning method. Extraction levels are postiioned
every 20 metres vertically breaking the extraction resource into a series of 20 metre high lifts. The main decline and other
permanent development openings are located outside a 787 cone of subsidence from all the production levels.

Development headings will be mined using eonventional drifl and blast development equipment and all waste and
ore will be hauled oul of the mine using a fleet of three 20 tonne loaders and up to nine 30 tonne trucks.

Production from the underground mining is scheduled at 2.5 Mipa and first ore production from the underground
mine is scheduled for the latter half of the third year of mining operations.
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The Didipio deposit is iniersected by the Biak Shear Zone over its full height. This shear zone is a major aguifer.
Before underground production can commence it will be necessary to mine a 6.3 kilometre drainage tunnel to drain the
Biak Shear. This will take approximately three and a half years prior to the commencement of construction of the process
plant {ihe Compeany expects to commence construction in the third quarter of 2007}, Another six months is estimated to be
required for the shear to drain before production ore can be drawn from the sub level cave. An open pit mine will generate
cash flow until the underground mine comes into production {ihe development of which will be undertaken concurrenily
with open pit mining).

The underground mine has been designed and estimated on the basis of owner operation. Fleet and manning numbers
take into account operating conditions at other Filipino eaving operations but some greater efficiencies have been applied
to avoid the extremely large numbers of personnel commonly employed m Filipino underground mines.

Metaliurgical Process Plant Design

The planned 2.5 Mtpa process plant for the Didipio Gold-Copper Project 1 a conventional plant for tresting gold-
copper ores. The plant comprises a primary open circult crushing plant. Coarsely crushed material will discharge onto a
coarse ore stockpile from which it will be reclaimed into a seni-avtogenous grinding nill operating in open circuit. The
SAG mill discharge will be pumped fo a hydrocyclone for classification with the fines overflow sent to flotation; the
coarse underflow will retum to a closed civcuit ball mill, with the ball mill discharge similacly pumped to the
hydrocyelones for classification. A portion of the cyclone feed will be diverted to a sizing sereen with all material
tess that 2 mm sent to a Falcon-type gravity concentrator while the coarse material returns to the ball niil. Concentrates
will be treated to ultimately produce gold doré bars and copper concentrates. The tailings from the table and from the
gravity concenirator will be returned to the grinding cireuit.

Mine Closure

Following completion of the open pit mine in the third yeer, access to the pit will be restricted by fencing but the cut-
off drains around the pit will be maintained to minimise surface water flow through the base of the open pit into the
underground cave zone. All underground waste will be dumped back into the pit.

The major mine closure phase will occur at the completion of underground mining. At this time the tailings beach
will have reached full capacity. The pit will become a permanent lake and sediment teap for water flowing over the tailings
dam area. Overflows from the pit will be direeted to the Surong River. The slight beach angle of the tatlings will mean that
the final tailings area will be partly covered by a shallow lake. Since there are no toxic chemicals in the tailings the rest of
the surface area is available for revegetation or cultivation. A channel will be formed to direct the Dinauyan River flow
across tailings to the waste dumnp overflow channel and this water will be available in the long term land use of the tailings
beach surface.

Operating Data

The Didipio Gold-Copper Project will derive its economic value from the preduction and sale of gold and copper
concentrate. The Didipio Gold-Copper Profect s expected o conwmence production in the first half of 2009, The
following table sets forth certain projected operating data regarding for the Didipio Gold-Copper Project through to 20160:

Didipio Gold-Copper Project Operating Data'!?
Acinal Projected
2005 2006 2007 2008 2019 1]
Tonnes processed (milltons}. ... L o o L Lo oL e e e e 2.3 2.3
Gold produced {thousands of ounces}. .. .. ... ... .o 00 e e e e 43 87
Average gold grade (/) ... ... L L L e e e e 6.70 1.1%8
Copper concentrate produced {thousands of tonnes) . ....... - S S S - 16.54 21.64
Average copper grade £%6) .. .. L e S e S e S e 3.80 0.8%8
Total cash cost (USS/Au equiv. Y3 s c e c e c e - 336 263

Total cash cost (USS/oz) after copper eredits™. ... ... .. e e e (126) (171}

Nofes:

{1}  Pre-production ounces in 2008 are nod shown in the table.

{2} Au eguiv. ounces caleulated at US$300/az Ay and U851 .904b Cu.
{3} Copper credits calewlated ar USS1 90 h.
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Based on current reserves, the Didipic Gold-Copper Project is expected to produce a total of 1.5 million cunces of
gold and 181,000 tonnes of copper at an average cash cost of US$250 per Au eguiv. ounce or USS15 per ounce after
copper credits over its mine life.

Economic Analysis

The Didipio Gold-Copper Praject is expected to support approximately four years of open pit mining (including pre-
production) and nine years of underground mining, followed by two years of stockpile processing. The proposed 2.5 Mipa
processing plant is expected to average approximately 120,000 ounces of gold and 15,600 tonnes of copper concentrate
pet annum for the {ivst 14 years of operations. The following economic analysis is based on a 2.5 Mipa processing facility.

Initial Capital Cost Estimate

The initial current capital cost estimate for the development of the Gold-Copper Project totals US$154.4 million and
i surnmarized in the following table:

liem 1856
Mining

-------- OPEn PILTRIIINE . . L. e 219
------- ~underground MININE .. .. 0.6
------ dealnage tummel. L e . 1O
------- Swater mEnagement L ... L 4.6
---------- IndIrect MINING COSE. . .. Lo e 0.8
Process Plant and Infrastructure . .. .. .. ... L L 62.1
[nfrastructure and Services. . .. ... . L 9.1
Accommodation CHMP .. .. .. 53
Tailings Storage Facility ... . . . o 1.3
Subtotal Direct Costs. .. .. ... .. ... .. .. .. 117.7
Owners Costs™ . ... L 8.1
Indirect Costs™ . ... L L 16.8
Contingeney™ . .. . . 11.8
Total Initial Capital™ . . ... . . 154.4

Noses:

{1} The estimates of owner's costs includes estimates of the costs of first fills, spares and nobile equipment. Inditedt costs include the costs of
engineeritg, project managentent, lemporary facilities, and APME management, fand acquisition and administration. The costs are based on
durations in the curvently proposed in the development schedule of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project which, if deiayed, would ikely increase these
COsts.

{2} As detailed process plant enpineering has only just contmenced, the contingeney allowanee is USS1 L8 miftion. This level of contingency should
cover the costs associaied with normal design growth and other unforeseen events, excluding scope changes.

{3y A aliowance of US35.9 million has been made for working capital in the fIvse year of operations in the financial model, which equates 1o
approximately two months of operating costs in a typical year.

The capital cost estimate does not include any allowance for escalation during the construction period, although the
construction period s relatively short.
Deferved Capital and Sustaining Capital

Ongoing deferred and sustaining capital expenditure 18 estimated at US$46.2 million, relating prineipally to ongoing
capital expenditure for the underground mine, water diversion tunnels and the TSF. A further allowance 1s made in the
financial model of U8385.2 million for closure costs. The deferred and sustaining capital cost figure includes:

»  US$23.7 miflion spread over the first three years of operations for underground development;

»  USS$11.4 million over the first three years of operations for the drainage tunnel;, and

»  US$3.7 million in the first year of operations for completion of the diversion tunnel.

No sustaining capital allowanees have been made for replacement of mechanical eguipment, pipe work, electrical

and mstrumentation ftems over the life of the operation.
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Operating Costs

The operaiing cost estimates have been developed based on the increase in the plant capaeity from 2.0 Mipa to
2.5 Mtpa. The unit rates used in the operating cosis are based on current multiple vendor tendered pricing, scheduled rates,
mdustry standard rates and historical Climax ecosts. Where tendered prices were not available, budget vendor pricing was
sought and m seversl instances allowances were made based on other operations, recent studies and experience.

The average open pit operating cost from years one to three is US$4.59 por bem, or US$1.80 per tonne for ore and
waste,

The average operating cost for the sublevel cave operation from years four to thirteen s US$7.85 per tonne of ore
made up of US$2.25 per tonne for ore development and US$5.60 per tonne for ore production and haulage.

Cash costs average US$250/0z over the life of mine before taking into account bi-product eredits. Cash costs after bi-
product credits over the life of mine are $15/0z.

The principal operating cost components are discussed below:

Power - Power will be imported fron the national grid. The unit cost is based on the average gareited price for
Luzron and a line maintenance charge of US$2048,0060 per annum. The estimated unit cost for power in the process plant is
US$2.73/ ore treated.

Reagents - Reagent costs were based on the consumptions as determined from the testwork and prices obtaimed
from quotations, Import duties, VAT brokerage charges and handling charges have not been ineluded.

Labowr - An overall labour schedule has been developed and the individual labour costs have been based on
mformation provided by Philex Minmg. The average manning costs are equivalent to approximately US$1.554 ore
trested. Mining contractor labour has not been included in this category as it hag been included in the mining contract. A
fly-in/fly-out cost of USS1.2 million per year has been allowed to accommodate staff and expatriates who reside in the
camp and who travel to and from thetr homes.

Maintenance Consumables - An allowance of 5% of capital costs has been used fo develop mamtenance cosis,
averaging US$0.60/ treated. Other consumable costs have been estimated with vendor mput and estimated consumptions.
An allowance of US$6.36/4 treated has been added as a form of contingency. Oversll maintenance costs have been
estimated at US$1.364 treated.

Other - A unit cost for the laboratory of US8$6,000/month has been allowed. Mobile equipment maintenance has
been estimated at US$2,000/month. An allowance of US$800,060 per annum has been allowed for insurance costs.

Environmental - Environmental costs have been mcluded within the General and Administration category and
average about US%66,000 per annum.

General and Adminiserarion -~ Fixed costs have been estimated and included within the various cost categories. The
costs for Finance and Administration meclude an allowance for accommodation on site, camp costs, security and a
management fee. An average annual general and admimistrative cost of US33.4 million has been estimated i the PDP
which calenlates to US$1.36/t. No head office charges have been mcluded although there is an allowance for a
management fee which has not been defined.

There are & number of other costs that ave incurred off-site. These inelude doré transport and concentrate handling,
ocean freight and smelter charges. Smelter charges are estimated at US$82/1 and a refining charge of US$0.082/1b of
copper. A copper deduction of 19 Cu is applied with minimum payment of 96.5%. The gold deduction for concentraie 1s
£.95/t Au with no payment for grades less than 1.0g/t. Gold payment 15 on a shiding scale but the expected payment for
Didipic concentrates will be about 97.5% (for concentrate grades greater than 15g/t). Refining costs for gold in
concentrate have been estimated at US$5.00/0z. Silver will be payable at grades greater than 30g/t and payment will be
90% with a stlver refining charge 6f US$0.35/0z. The mode! assumes smelter participation at a copper price of US$0.90/b
copper, with a + 10% price participation if the price is above or below the trigger price. Concentrate freight from site to
the port is esttmated at US$52.86 per wet tonne, including loading and unloading charges with the sea freight transport
costs estimated at USS18/ concentrate with an insurance charge of 0.4% of the Gross Metal Value.

The overall accuracy of mining costs 18 considered £ 13%, although mine plans {and therefore costs) may change.
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Cuashflow Analypsis

The projeeted net mine cash flows are shown net of operating costs, development eapital, sustaining capital,
reclamation costs, taxes, royalties, repayment of the external project debt and associated interest costs, bul excluding
exploration costs and any allowances for the potential to extend the mine Hfe beyond current reserves.

At metal prices of US$500 per ounee of gold and US$1.90 per pound of copper, the Didipio Gold-Copper Project 13
projected to generate net cash flows of approximately US$360 million. The table below sets forth the net mine cash flows,
based on current reserves, projected to be generated from the Didipio Gold-Copper Project:

Didipio Gold-Copper Project Net Mine Cash Flows {(US$°000)

2067 Pl P 1] i 12 M3 24 P 26 W7 Pt 019 il izl plires “Toiat

Ediclipier Grodd-
Copper Projeet . CHILGOGY (318000 B100 45042 TLED2 47665 53407 3711 38315 40430 3607F 43508 42003 20420 13618 68%10 36009

Based on the cashiflows demonstrated above, the payback period for the project would be 4.65 years. As the cashilow
analysis is based on 100% equity financing of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project, it does not have any imputed interest
component.

FProject Summary

The following table provides a summary of the financial analysis for the Didipic Gold-Copper Project caleulated at
metal prices of US3500/0z Au and US$1.90/1b Cu {which were the commodity prices utilised to calculate reserves as at
Deacember 31, 20063,

liem Lini§ Tokzk

After government share (includes fax)

NPVatadiscountrate of 10% . ... . .. . . L. USSm 1047
Internal rate of return .. .. .. . L Y% 268
Payvback period .. ... ... L years 4.65

Sensitivity Analysis

The following graphs indicate the NPV sensitivity of the Didipic Gold-Copper Project to gold prices, copper prices
and discount rates (of 8%, 10% and 12%)

NPV of Didipio Gold-Copper Project Net Mine Cash Flows
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For every US$50 per ounce change in the gold price, the NPV of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project at a 10% discount
rate changes by approximately US526 million.
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NPV of Didipio Gold-Copper Project Net Mine Cash Flows
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For every US50.30/1b change in the copper price, the NPV of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project at a 10% discount rate
changes by approximately US$40 million.

The following graph sets forth the NPV sensttivity of the Didipio Gold-Copper Projeet to varistions in the estimated
capital costs {“Capex”} and operating cosis (“Opex™} over the Hie of mine:

NPV of Didipio Gold-Copper Projeet Net Mine Cash Flows
{10% Discount Rate)
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For every 10% change in life-ofemine capital costs, the NPV of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project at a 10% discount
rate changes by approximately US$10 million. For every 109 change in life-of-mine operaiing costs, the NPV of the
Didipic Gold-Copper Project at a 10% discount rate changes by approximately US335 million.

Exploration Potential

The Didipio Gold-Copper Project area is considerably under-explored and the potential for discovery of additional
gold and/or gold-copper mineralized systems that will contribute to the Didipio gold-copper mining and treatment
operation is considered by the authors of the Didipio Technical Report to be high. Exploration of the FTAA over the last
135 years by Climax has resulted in identification of more than 25 known gold and gold-copper prospects that range from
soil and rock-chip geochemical anomalies to more advanced drill targets.

Other Projects

Except as set out below, ne mineral resources have been defined on any of the following properties.

It New Zealand, Oceana’s main exploration property is Sams Creek, which consists of exploration on a near surface,
mineralized, porphyritic granite dyke i the northwest region of New Zesland’s South 1sland. Although only a smal part
of the dyke has been explored to date with diamond drilling, exploration results have been encouraging, with the resource
remaining open at depth and along sirike. The estimated inferred mineral resource at Sams Creck currently stands at
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13.5 million tonaes at 1.8g/t Au for a total of 0.77 million cunces of gold at a 0.7g/t cut off. The Company 1s considering
strategic alternatives with respect to Sams Creck.

1 addition, Oceana has a portfolio of prospective exploration properties in the Philippines, including interests in two
gold-copper porphyry explotation properties in Northern Luzon, and holds three exploration properties in the Surigao
Peninsula ares of northern Mindanao.

CONVERTIBLE NOTLES

Oceana Gold has outstanding (1} 550 convertible notes issued to Barclays Bank ple {the “Barclays Convertible
Notes™}, {1) 600 convertible notes issued to Ospraie Portfolio Lid. and Ospraie Special Opportunities Master Holdings
Lid. {ihe “Ospraie Convertible Notes™), (#1) 100 convertible notes issued to MLP lovestments (Cayman} Lid. (the
“Millenium Convertible Notes™}, and (iv) 300 convertible notes issued fo an affiliate of Goldman Sachs {Asia) Finance
{the “Goldman Sachs Convertible Notes™ and together with the Barclays Convertible Notes, the Ospraie Convertible
Notes and the Millenium Coenvertible Notes, the “Convertible Notes™).

The Barclays Convertible Notes have a face value of A$100,000, bear interest at 5.75% per annum payable semi-
annually in arrears, are due for redemption at 109% of their principal amount in 2012 unless prior conversion inte QOceana
shares oceurs at the option of noteholder. The Barclays Convertible Notes have a conversion price of A$4.2435 (subject to
adjustment for certain specified events).

The Ospraie Convertible Notes, the Millennium Convertible Notes and the Goldman Sachs Convertible Notes have a
face value of AR160,000 each, bear interest at 7.00% per annum payable semi-annugally in arrears, are convertible into
Oceana shares and are due for redemption in 2013 at a value equal to the sum of their principal amount plus the capitalised
mterest amount, undess prior conversion o ordinary shares at the option of noteholder. These notes have a conversion price
of A$4.0935 or, i the case of the Goldman Sachs Convertible Notes, A$4.30 (in each case subjeet to adjusiment for certain
specified events).

The terms of the Convertible Notes include adiustment provisions relsting to, among other things, the issue of shares
of Oceana from treasury. Generally, there will be an adjustment to the conversion price of the Convertible Notes if shares
are issued at less than 95% of the then current market price. [n addition, in the case ofthe Convertible Notes {other than the
Barclays Convertible Notes), there will be an adjustment to the conversion price if shares are issued at less than 95% of the
then current conversion price, where the shares are issued after June 19, 2007 or more than A$70 million is raised through
the issue of the shares.

I each case of adjustment, if applicable, the current conversion price would be multiplied by the following fraction:

A B
A+C

For the purposes of the above formula, “A” is the number shares on issue immediately preceding the date of
aancuncement of the issue, “B” is the number of shares which the proceeds would purchase at the then current market
price or, in the case of the Ospraie Convertible Notes, Millennium Convertible Notes and Goldman Sachs Convertible
Notes, the current conversion price, and “C” 5 the number of shares actually issued.

The instruments governing the Convertible Notes were amended pursuant to the Reorganization. The amendments to
these instruments provide for the Convertible Notes to be: (1) converted into Common Shares or CDis (rather than Oceana
Gold shares); and (i1} the conversion price to be increased by a factor of 3, to reflect the 5:1 capital consolidation effected
under the Schemes.

HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The following discusses the Company’s hedging activities for its New Zealand projects. At the Didipio Gold-Copper
Project, no gold hedging arrangements have been implemented and the Company has ne current intention of entering into
such arrangements.

As at December 31, 2006, Oceana Gold had forward gold sales contracts over 374,037 ounces between 2007 and
2010 with an average contract price of NZ$773 (approximately US$545) per ounce. This represents approximately 28%
of forecast gold production from all projects between 2007 and 2016,

In 2006, a series of put options were purchased to provide an average floor sale price of NZ$1,000 (approximately
US$705) per ounce for 320,769 ounces to be produced from the Globe Progress project between 2067 and 2010. Fhis was
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financed by the sale of call options which provide a cap of NZ§1,062 (approximately USE749) on the average sale price of
104,024 ounces to be produced from the Globe Progress mine in 20146,

Under Canadian GAAP, changes in the fair value of the hedge book must be brought to account. The fair value of the
hedge book represents the difference between the current market gold price and the present velue of the contract prices.
The significant rise in the market gold price since the hedge contracts were put in place, has resulted in a mark to market
net Hability of approximately US$63.4 million on the forward sales contracts and a mark to market net asset of
approximately 1884.1 millon in relation to the put and call options as at December 31, 2006.

Oceena has no exposure (o “leveraged” hedging instruments or margin call covenants.

The Company has no current inteation of committing additional gold ounces from its New Zealand operations to the
hedge book. These will be reviewed by the Board of Directors of Oceana from time to time as appropriate.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds of the Oflering are expected to be Cdn.$85,052,362.56 after payment of the Underwriters’ fee but
before deducting expenses of the Offering estimated to be Cdn.$3,460,600 and before giving effect to the exercise of the
Over-Allotment Option. The following table provides an estimated breakdown of the proposed application of the net
proceeds of the Offering (8]l figures are approximate}:

Amoung
Use {Cdn.$million)
Development, construction and start-up of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. . . 74.2
General corporate and working capital purposes . ... .. .. ... .. L. 7.4

While the Company intends to use the funds available to it as stated above, there may be circumstances where, for
sound business reasons, a re-allocation of funds may be necessary or advisable.

The Company expects that the net proceeds of the Offering as set forth above, together with cash on hand, will result
in the initial capttal costs of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project being fully-funded.

NEW ZEALAND
Overview

New Zealand is located in the south-western Pacific Ocean and comprises two mam islands and a number of smaller
tshands. The country extends more than 1680 kilometres, New Zeasland has a populstion of about 4.1 million.

New Zealand is a country heavily dependent on trade, particularly m agriculiural products, and a significant portion
of the country’s ouiput is exported. It principal export industries are agriculture, horticulture, fishing and forestry. Hs
magjor export partners are Australia, the United States, Japan, China and the United Kingdom. The currency is the New
Zealand dollar. The Reserve Bank of New Zealand, established in 1933, exercises control over monetary circulation and
eredit, and is empowered o regulate foreign exchange.

Regulation of Mining in New Zealand

The Crown Minerals Act 1991 {“Crown Minerals Act™) governs the prospecting, exploration, and mining of Crown-
owned minerals in New Zealand. 1t came into force on October 1, 1991, and repealed the Mining Act 1971 (“Mining
Act™). However, mining rights that were granted under the Mining Act continue to have effect, subject to eertain
transitional provisions of the Crown Minersls Act. In general, New Zesland mining legislation provides that:

» Al gold, stlver, petrofeumn and uranium in any land within New Zealand and all minerals in any Crown-owned
fand within New Zealand are the property of the Crown. Farther, where land is alienated from the Crown, the
minerals in that fand are reserved to the Crown and remain “Crown-owned minerals”.

»  No Crown-owned ninerals may be extracted from any land within New Zealand without an appropriate licenee/
permit issued by the Minister of Energy (the “Minister”).

»  Any Heence/permit to extract Crown-owned minerals may be granted in respect of specified minerals and a
specified area of land and may be subject to conditions tmposed by the Minister.
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»  Every licence/pernnt holder is the owner of all minersls lawfully obiained in the course of activities authorised by
the licence/permit.

»  Activitles carried out under & licence/permit are subject to compliance with all other applicable statutes (with the
exception that licences granted under the Mining Aet are not subject to eertain aspects of the Resowrce
Management Act 199F ("RMA™).

The Mining Act 1971

The holder of a mining licence granted under the Mintng Act receives exclugive rights to mine the minerals specified
in the licence and to carry oul certain related activities, for a fixed term of up to o maximum of 42 years. Pipeline licences
may also be granied to the holders of mining Heences for purposes directly connecied with mining operations. The
Minister may vary the Heence conditions after consultation with interested partics i relation to licences, although
objections to the variation may be lodged with the Planning Tribunal (now Environment Court). Licence holders are
prohibited from assigning or transferring an interest in that licence without the Minister’s prior written consent.

Royalties pavable to the Crown are speeified in certain licences, and the Minister may review royalties speeified in
any mining licence every five years. The Minister may forfeit a nining privilege if a holder of that privilege contravened
or failed to comply with the conditions of the Mining Aet or the licence.

Under the transitional provisions of the Crown Minerals Act, existing privileges under the Mining Act continue to
have effect afler the commencement of the Crown Minerals Act, subject o, among other things, the following:

»  anay consent required under the environmental legislation existing at the time the licence was granted must now
be obtained under the RMA; and

» any new licence seught by the holder of an existing licence i relation to the same area rust be applied for {and
granted) under the Crown Minerals Act.

Oceena has been granted permits under the Mining Act in respect of the Macraes Project and the Reefton Project.

Crown Minerals Act 1991
The Crown Minerals Act, which repealed the Mining Act, provides for the three following types of mining permits:

Prospecting Pernifs: A prospecting permit remains in foree for a pertod of up to two years and carries a right of
renewal for up to another two years. A prospecting permit may be applied for only if no mineral deposits have been found
on the land subject to the proposed permit during any previous work or prospecting. The activities permitied parsuant to
such a permit are generally very low impact and include geological mapping, hand sampling and aerial surveying.

Exploration Permits:  An exploration permit remains in force for a period of up to five years and carries a right of
renewal for a further five years in relation to up to half of the area subject to the original permit. The activities permitted
pursuant to an exploration permit may include drilling, bulk sampling and mine feasibility studies. Exploration permits
are generally conditional on the permit holder making reasonable efforts to explore the permit area, making reasonable
atternpts to undertake a defined minimun work program and such additional conditions as may be imposed.

Mining Permits: A mining permit is granted to allow extraction of Crown-owned minerals from land. The nature
and oxtent of the mineral deposits in the land must be accurately known prior fo such a permit being granted. A mining
permit may be issued for a maximum period of up to 40 years, depending upon the exient of mineral reserves in the land,
ihe permit holder’s resources and its work programs. The duration of a permit may only be extended if the permit helder
satisfies the Minister that the discovery to which the permil relates cannot be economically depleted before the permil’s
expiration date. The Minister may require the permit holder to submit a work program for approval as a condition of the
permit extension. Any such extension may only be for such period as the Minister considers reasonable to enable the
economic depletion of the discovery. Mining permils are generally conditional on payment of a royalty to the Crown and
on the permit holder making all reasonable efforts to undertake permitted activities pursuant to ity work programs,
undertaking mining and explocation operations in accordance with good exploration or mining practice, paying all
prescribed fees and such additional conditions which may be imposed and which may vary from one permit fo another.

A permit holder of any type may apply at any time to have its permit amended. Permits which are subject to an
application for an extension of duration continue m force until the Minister makes a decision regarding such an
apphication. The Minister may decline an application if the permit holder has, in the Minister’s opinton, not substantially
complied with the conditions of their permil.
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Permit holders are prevented from assigning or transferring an interest 1n a permit without the prior consent of the
Minister.

The Minister may revoke any permit granted under the Crown Minerals Act if the permit holder is contravening or
not making reasonable efforts to comply with the Crown Minerals Act, 115 associated regulations and the conditions of
their permit. In addition, the Minister may require a bond or monetary deposit as sceunity for compliance with the
conditions of the permit.

The existing Minerals Programme, which establishes the criteria to be appliced in respect of the management of any
Crown-owned mineral, 5 reviewed every 10 years. The existing Minerals Programme has been reviewed and a draft
revised minerals programme was 1ssued for comment i late 2005, The revised minerals programme comtained a number
of proposed amendments to the current policy, meluding changes to matters such as the method of the aliocation of
permits. The final form of the revised minersls programme, following mdustey comment, is still to be issued by the
Minister. Accordingly, the effect that the revised programme will have on the Company’s existing permits is uncertain.

Land Access

I the case of Heences granted under the Mining Act over minerals contained in private lacd that has not been
alienated from the Crown, generally written consent from the ewner and occupier was required before a Heence could be
granted. With written consent or the land being declared open for mining, a Heence could be granied, conferring with it the
right to access the land.

Under the Crown Minerals Act, the sitnation changed. A permit does not confer agcess to the land over which the
permit is granted. Instead a permit holder 15 reguired (with the exeeption of activities that are defined to be “minimum
mmpact activities™) to enter into a written access artangement with the owner and occupier of the land before exercising the
rights under the permit. [n some instances, if the owner or occupier of land refuses access, an access arrangement may be
determined by an arbitrator, but only if authorised to do so by Order in Council, the granting of which will be subject to
public mterest considerations.

Access artangements are binding on successors in title provided they are registered against affected land titles, where
the term is longer than six months. Such access arrangements are for specific terms that can be extended by the landowner
on application for a variation of expiry date. The terms and conditions of anaccess arrangement can also be varied with the
permission of the landowner.

Activities carried out below the surface of any land subject to a permit do not require an access arrangement if the
activity will not or 15 not likely to cause any damage to the surface of the land or any Toss or damage to the owner/occupier
of the land, prejudicially effect the use and enjoyment of the land by the owner/occupier, or prejudictally effect any
possible future use of the land surface.

Oceena has entered into access arrangements principally at the Reefton Project.

Rovalties

Royalties are payable to the Crown annually in respect of all metallic, non-metallic, indusirial rocks or building
stones that are taken from the land pursuant to a mining permit issued under the Crown Minerals Act and which are sold,
gifted, used in & produciion process to produce another substance, or extracted but unsold on swrrender, expiry or
revocation of the mining permit.

Royalties are caleulaied based on net sales revenue or accounting profits with specific details as to the basis of
caleulatton. Payment of royalties 15 included as a condition of the permit. Royalties are generally calculated and payable at
the following rates:

» no royalty is payable if net sales revenue from a permit is less than NZ$100,000 for an annual reporting period or

averages less than NZ3& 333 per month if the annusl reporting period for the permt is less than 12 months,
Where the permit is part of a production unit, the thresholds will apply to net sales revenues from all permits in
the production unit;

» g royalty of 1% ad velorem is payable if net sales revenue from a permit s between NZS100,000 and

NZ$1,000,008; or

» aroyalty of either 1% ad valorem or 3% of the accounting profits, whichever is greater, if the net sales revenue

from & permit is more than NZ$1,000,000.
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Regulation of the Environment
Overview

The RMA is the legistation which controls the use and development of New Zealand’s resources from an
environmental perspective. 1t is an “effects based” regime with an emphasis on maneging the environmental effects
of activities on the environment. Generally, the RMA is administered by regional and district {or city) councils, alihough
at g central government level, national environmenial standards and policy statements (for matters of national
significance) can be prepared by the Minister for the Environment.

11 terms of the day to day administration of the RMA, a regional council has jurisdiction over matiers such as the use
and taking of water, discharges to air, land or water, and certain types of land use. A district or city counci has jurisdiction
over matters such as land uses, hazardous wastes, subdivision and historic places.

Regional and district (or city} councils are fo prepare plans {and in the case of regional councils, policy statements)
for those matters within their jurisdiction, including objectives, policies and rules to assist the couneil in carrying out its
functions under the RMA.

Resource Consents

Rules in regional and districr plans may classify activities as permitted, controlled, restricted diseretionary,
discretionary, non-complying or prohibited. No consents can be granted for prohibited activities and consents for
non-complying activities are more difficult to obtain than diseretionary activities. For resiricted diseretionary activities,
the council’s consideration of a resource consent apphcation is limited to those matiers over which it has expressly limited
its discretion. Resource consents must be granted for controlled activities, but permilted activities are allowed without
TESOUTCEe COnSent.

The tern: “resource consent” generally deseribes a number of different kinds of consents or permits including land
use consents, subdivision consents, coastal permits, water permits, and discharge permits.

Resource consent applications are determined under the RMA by the relevant distriet and regional councils, taking
into account environmental effects, the provisions of the relevant planning documents and the purpose and principles of
ihe RMA. Resource consents are usually made subject to a variety of conditions to ensure that the adverse effects of the
activity are avoided, remedied or mitigated.

Resource Consent Application Process

The RMA places a strong emphasis on public participation. Applications for mine development will usually be
publicly notified, although applications for a resource congent for ancillary matters that have minor adverse
environmental effects may be non-notified.

If the application is publicly notified, any persen may make a submission at the hearing of the application regardless
of whether that person {or group) has a divect tnterest in the application (e.g., environmental groups). An application may
also, i specific circumstances, be notified in a limited manner to only thoese persons that the couneil considers potentially
affected.

Whether the application is granted will depend upon consideration of various matters, including the purpose and
principles of the RMA (broadly stated as the sustainable management of natural and physical resources), any actual or
potential effeets on the envirenment, and relevant plans or pelicy statements and the classification of the activity in the
plans.

A counci] may grant an application for resource congent, may decline it or may grant it subject to conditions. There 13
a right of appeasl to the Environment Court from a council’s decision by the applicant for the resource consent or any
submitters to the application.

A council may include a review condition in & resource consent which would allow the consent to be reviewed in
particular eircumstances for specific purposes. Review conditions are commeon in longer term consents. If a resource
congent contains review conditions, counct! has the diseretion to exercise the power to review. A counell will generally not
exercise the power to review uniess there are significant unforesecen enviroamenial effects oceurring.

As certain consents have a lintted duration, a new consent will be reguired to replace the one that has (or is due 10}
expire. There 1 no autematic right of renewal under the RMA. Instead, the consent holder is to ve-apply for the resource
consent before it expires. A consent holder can continue to operate under its original consent while any appesls against its
replacernent consent are determined.

~RA.



A resource consent may also lapse 110 15 not used within 5 years after the date it commenced (unless a different lapse
date 1s spectfied in the consent). Generally a resource consent can be transferred, however the requirements differ
depending on the type of resource consent that is being sought to be transferred. In addition, the RMA provides for a
number of “tools” (ncluding enforcement orders, abatement notices, penaltics, fines and fmprigsonment 1t Sericus cases)
to deal with the enforcement of the duties and restrictions as set out in the RMA. The RMA provides that liability 1s not
Hmited to the party that actually commits the offence, and can extend to the offender, the landowner, land occupier, and
person in the management of a party convicted of an offence, although the RMA provides certain Hmited defences.

Taxation

The taxation rules principally relevant to foreign-owned mineral mining companies operating in New Zealand are as

follows:

*

Income Tax: Companies {ncluding New Zealand subsidiaries of foreign companies) and other business
taxpayers are faxed on thedr net income after aowable deductions for interest, depreciation and other operating
expenses. The current company tax rate is 33%.

Withholding Tax: Dividends, interest and royalties paid by New Zealand resident companies to non-residents
are subject to non-resident withholding tax (“NRWT™). The rate of NRWT 15 30% in respect of dividends {with
certain exceptions) and 15% in respeet of nterest and royalties. NRWT is reduced by application of most of New
Zealand’s double taxation agreements (which include agreements with Australia, Canada and the United States)
generally to 15% in respect of dividends and 10% in respect of interest and royalties (although in the case of the
Canada double taxation agreement the royalty vate 15 15%). In addition, NRWT on dividends and interest can in
certain Himited circumstances be reduced or chminated by the foreign investor tax credit and approved issuer levy
regimes respectively. 1t should be noted that the tern: “dividend” is widely defined for New Zealand tax purposes
and includes, for the proposes of NRW'T, a distribution of capital gain amount of & New Zealand company to a
related, non-resident corporation sharcholder. Various withholdings are reguired from certain other payments.

Goods and Services Tax {“G8T"):  GST 15 a domestic value-added tax. ¥ 15 charged on business transactions
and on imports. The current rate of GST taxation is 12.5% although certain transactions are zero-rated.

While mining companies are taxed in the same way and at the same tax rate as other companies, New Zealand
meome tax law has spectal concessionary provisions relating in particular to deductibility of mineral mining expenditure
and mineral mining loss carey forward. [n particular:

-

The tax rules in Now Zealand allow mining companies to deduct their exploration expenditure and any
expenditure incurred o the development of a mining Heence immediately. Thus, certain capital expenditures
which, it the absence of concessionary treatment, would likely be capitalised and depreciated, may be deducted
mmmediately for income tax purposes, although there exists a limitation for deductions from non-mining income
to the extent that any mining income deducted from the non-mining income should be reduced by one-third.
Additionally, excluded from the deduction rules is expenditure on an office building that is not situate at or
adjacent to the site of the company’s mining operations. Also excluded i expenditure incwrred on a building or
fucility provided for the purpose of deriving income.

Mineral mining companies are alse allowed to deduct in their current year income tax return, current year income
appropriated for application as mining exploration or development expenditure in the following two years. The
appropriate amounts are included as income in the following year, but, the mining company can maintain ils
deferral if it continues to budget for further exploration and development work.

There is a concession for carrying tax losses forward for offset against future mining income which in certain
circumstances overrides the general rule that companies are only permilted to carry forward losses if they
maintain 40% continuity of sharcholding.

Subject to certain linutations, a holding company of a mining company can claim a deduction for principal
written off in respect of loans made to the mining company for funding its exploratory activities, although the
deduction may not exceed the lesser of 30% of the net meome of the holding company for the tax year the
deduciion is claimed or the holding company’s proportionate share if the operating company’s total outgoings on
exploration as reduced by a similar deduction allowed in a previous tax year. A deduction for interest writien off
may also be available.
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lnterest meurred by a New Zealand company (including a mineral mining company) s generally avtomatically
deductible, but under New Zealand’s thin capitalisation regime a foreign-controlled company s denied a deduction for
mterest to the extent that is ratio of debt to assets exceeds 75%, and 110% of the world-wide debt to asset ratio of 1ts
world-wide group.

New Zealand also has a comprehensive transfer pricing regime dealing with cross-border transactions between
associated parties.

PHILIPPINES

Overview

The Philippines is an archipelago consisting of 7,147 islands with a total land area of approximately 300,000 square
kilometres. The islands comprising the Philippine archipelage are grouped into three geographic regions: Luzon in the
north, Visayas in the center and Mindango in the south. The country has a population of approximately 86 million.

The Philippines is a democeratic republic. The current constitution of the Philippines took effect in 1987, The head of
state and chief executive i the President, who is clected by popular vote for a non-renewsble term of six years.

The services sector 1% the country’s most significant sector economically, with manufscturing and agriculture,
forestry and fishing also being significant. The country’s offictal currency is the Philippine peso (“PhP™).

Foreign investments need not be registered with the Bangkoe Sentral ng Pilipinas, the Philippine ceniral monetary
authority, unless the foreign exchange needed to service capital repatristion and dividend or interest remittance will be
purchased from the Philippine banking system. With the approval of the President, the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas has the
power to restrict the avallability of foreign exchange m times of an exchange crisis or national emergency.

The Philippines has numerous deposits of metallic and mineral ores, including gold, copper, silver, chromium, lead
and nickel. In late 2004, the Supreme Court ruled that the provisions of the Philippine Mining Ace 1995 (the “PMA™)
permitting and regulating foreign ownership of companies engaged in large-scale mining activities were constitutional.
This decision facilitated an improved investment elimate for foreign investors in the mining sector.

Regulation of Mining

The Constitution

The constitution of the Philippines {ihe “Constitution™} provides that all lands of the public domain, waters, minerals,
coal, petroleum and other mineral oils, all sources of potential energy, fisheries, forests or timber, wildlife, flora and fauna
and other natural resources are owned by the State. The Constitution gives the State full control and supervigion over the
exploration, development and utilization of natural resources.

o exercising its powers with respect to the development and utilization of natural resources, the State may either
directly undertake them, or enter into production sharing agreements, co-production agreements and joint venture
agreements with Philippines nationals, corporations, or associations at least 60% of whose capital i owned by such
gitizens. The Constitution authorizes the President of the Philippines to enter into agreements with up to 160% foreign-
owned corporations mvolving either technical or financial assistance for large-scale exploration, development and
utiization of mineral resources.

e 1993, to implement the provisions of the Constitution related to mining, the Philippine Congress enacted the PMA
which governs the conduct of mining activities i the Philippines.
Forms of Mining Tenure
Mining Act

The PMA, which currently provides the legal end regulatory framework for mining activity in the Philippines,
mstituted the system of explocation permits, mineral agreements, and financial or technical assistance agreements fknown
as FTAAg) The Mining and Geosciences Bureau {"MGB™), a government bureau under the DENR, administers the
provisions of the PMA.
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Tenure under the PMA

Under the PMA, the Government may grant exploration permits to, or enter info various sgroements with, a
“gualified person”. A “qualified person” is defined as elther {t} a citizen of the Philippies with capacity to contract, or
{i) a corporation, partnership, assoclation or cooperative organized or authorized for the purpose of engaging in mining,
with technical and financial capability to undertake mineral resources development, and duly registered in accordance
with Philippine law, whose capital is at least 60% owned by citizens of the Philippines, provided that a legally organized
forcign-owned corporation (& corporation that has more than 4% foreign ownership), shall be deemed 1o be a qualified
person for purposes of being granted an exploration permit, FTAA or mineral processing permit. A person qualified for
the grant of an exploration permit, FTAA or mineral agreement must have the finencial and technical capability to
undertake the submitted exploration/development/utilization work program under the exploraiion permit, FTAA or
mineral agreement. As a mandatory reguirement in the acceptance of a mining application, the mining apphcant for an
exploration permit, FTAA or mineral agreement shall be required to have a minimum authorized capital stock of
PRhP10 mitlion and a minimum paid-up capital of PhP2.5 million as proof of its financizal capability. FTAA apphcants are
required to have a minimum authorized capital stock of US$4 million or its Philippine Peso eguivalent, after approval of
the FTAA by the President and prior to vegistration of the FTAA.

The PMA provides for the following methods of acquiring exploration and exploitation rights:

{a} Exploration permif (“EP™). An EP granis the permit holder the right to enter, occupy and explore for
minerals in & specified area. An EP is valid for a period of two years, subject to renewal for periods of two
years, but cannot exceed a total of four years for non-metallic mineral exploration and six years for metallic
mineral exploration permit.

{by Mineral agreement. A mineral agreement grants the contractor the exclusive right to conduet mining
operations and to exiract all mineral resources found in the contract area. It has a term not exceeding 25 years
and is renewable for up to another 25 years, subject to certain terms and conditions. There are three types of
mineral agreements:

»  Mineral production sharing agreement {“MPSA™) -~ an agreement pursuant t6 which the Government
grants to the contractor the exclusive right to conduct mining operations within a contract area and shares
in the gross output from the operations. The contractor under an MPSA is required to provide all the
necessary financing, technology, meanagement and persoonel. Upon expiration of the MPSA, the
Government may itself, or through a contractor, operate the mine.

»  Co-production agreement - a co-production sgreement is similar to an MPSA exeept that the
Government nukes an agreed coniribution to the mining operations conducted by the contractor.

»  Joini venture agreement - an agreement where a joint-venture compeny is organized by the Government
and the contractor, with both parties having equity shares, and the joint venture company 1$ granied the
exclusive right to conduet mining operations within a coniract ares. Aside ftom earnings in eguity, the
Government is entitled to a share in the gross oulputs.

{cy FTAA. An FTAA 15 a contract between a qualified person and the Government through the President of the
Republic of Philippines, invelving financial or technical assistance for large-scale exploration, development,
and utilization of mineral resoureces. “Large scale” is defined as a project requiring an tnvestment commitient
of at least US$50,600,060 for infrastructure and development of the profect. The FTAA is valid for a term not
to exceed 25 vears, and is renewable for another term of noe more than 25 years.

An EP or a mineral agreement may be assigned to another gualified person subject to the approval of the Secretary of
DENR upon the recommendation of the Director of MGB. An FTAA may be assigned to another qualified person subject
to the approval of the President of the Philippines upon recommendation of the Secretary of DENR and the Director of
MGB.

The contractor is allowed to convert its current mineral agreement info (a) any other form of mineral agreement, or
{b) an FTAA covering the remaining period of the original agreement subject to the prior approval of the Secretary of
DENR

Under the PMA, a mining permit holder or contractor under an EP, mineral agrecment or FTAA must relinquish area,
on an annual basis, such that, following the exploration stage, unless otherwise approved, the final mining ares is
generally limited to 5,000 heetares for metals and 2,000 hectares for non-metals.
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No mining rights located within ancestral lands of mdigenous cultural communities under a ¢laim of time
immemorial possession may be granted, except with the prior consent of such communities and a certification from
the National Commission on Indigenous Peoples. The holder of the mining rvights must pay & negotiated royalty to the
affected communities of not ess than 1% of the gross revenue from sales of mineral products exiracted from the lands.

The holder of a mineral agreement or FTAA is also required to assist in the development of the local communities
and allot annually a minimum of’ 1% of iis divect milling and mining costs for such purposes. All applcants for EPs,
mineral agreements and FTAAs are reguired to obtain the support of local government councils. Prior approval or
endorsements by any two of the concerned local government couneils are required in support of mining applications
mtended for development andfor utifization purposes. In the case of mining applications intended for exploration, proofof
consultation and a project presentation fo any two of the concerned local government councils are required.

The PMA grants the contractor certain easement rights to enter and occupy {ands ewned, occupied or leased by other
persons for purposes of conducting mining operations or nstalling or building structures required for such operations,
upon payment of just compensation and subject to compliance with certain reguirements under the PMAL

Under the PMA, the Government’s share in an MPSA consists of the excise tax on mineral products. The
Government’s share in co-production and joint venture agreements will be negotiated by the Government and the
contrictor. The Government’s share 1n an FTAA consisis of, among other things, the following: the contractor™s corporate
meome tax; excise tax; special allowance; withholding tax due from the contractor’s foreign stockholders arising from
dividend or interest payments to the said foreign stockholders, in case of a foreign national; and, all such other taxes,
duties and fees as provided for under existing laws. The collection of the Government’s share generally commences after
the contractor has fully recovered its pre-operating expenses, including all exploration and development expenditures.

The contractor must pay the MGB a royalty which shall not be less than 5% of the market value of the gross output of
the minerals/mineral products extracted or produced from the mineral reservations exclusive of all other taxes. A 10%
share of the royalty and 10% of other revenues such as administrative, clearance, exploration and other related fees to be
derived by the Government from the exploration, development and utilization of the mineral resources within the mineral
regervations will acerue to the MGB m trust, to be allotted for special projects and other administrative expenses related to
ihe exploration, development and environmental management of minerals in Government mineral veservations.

I addition, each permit holder and contractor 18 required to pay an annual occupation fee to the local government
where the onshore mining area is located or to MGB for offshore arcas.

A mineral processing permit is required to process minerals, except when an approved work program under an
MPSA already includes such processing. Likewise, an ore transport permil is required to transport mineral products.

Five years before the final decommissioning of & contraet area, the holder of 1 mineral agreement or FTAA must
submit final rehabilitation andfor decommissioning plans, including details of its fineneial requirements up to post-
decommissioning over a H-year period for monitoring purposes.

Environmental Regulation

DENR is the government agency primarily responsible for implementing the environmental policy of the
government.

Environmental fmpact Statement System and Environmental Compliance Certificates

The environmental impact staternent system in force in the Philippines classifies projects and areas on the basis of the
extent to which they are environmentally critical {being those which have high potential for negative impact to the
envirenment}. A person is prohibited from operating any project which is clagsified as environmentatly critical or located
within an environmentally eritical area without first obtaining an environmental compliance certificate from the DENR.
An environmental compliance certificate certifies that, in the DENR’s view, the proposed project will not cause a
significant negative environmental impact and that the applcant has complied with all the requirements of the
environmental impact statement system.

The PMA specifically requires an environmental complisnce certificate to be obtained based on an envirenmental
mmpact assessment and procedure, cxcept during the exploration period. It also requires the submission of an
envirommental work program, environmental protection and enhancement program {including on an annual basis, as
described below).
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Environmental compliance certificates set out requirements o mining activities, including the development of
strategies fo mitigate or rchabilitate environmental impacts, the creation of a social development and management
program, the monttoring and complisnce with afr and water quality standards and noise levels and the establishment of
specific contimgent lisbility and rehabilitation funds. Such funds are deposited in a Government depository bank to be
used for {1) phystcal and social rehabilitation of areas and communities affected by mining activities and for research on
the social, techaical and preventive aspects of rehabilitation; () compensation for any damages caused by mining
operations; and (1ii} the implementation of a projeet’s final mine rehabilitation and decommissioning plan.

Environmental Frograms

As referred to above, the PMA requires the submission of an envirenmental work program and an environmental
protection and echancement program {mcluding on an annual basis).

An environmental work program refers to the comprehensive and strategic environmental management plan to
achieve the environmental management objectives, criteria and commitments including protection and rehabilitation of
the disturbed environment during the exploration period. Applicants for EPs, as well as those for Mineral Agreements and
FTAAs, which will undertake exploration activities, must submit an environmental work program to the MGB for areas
within declared mineral reservations ot to the concerned MGB Regional Office(s) for arcas outside declared mineral
reservations. The environmental work program must describe the expected and considered acceptable tmpacts of the
proposed exploration activities, and providing the corresponding environmental impact control and rehabilitation
activities proposed during the exploration period meluding the costs to enable sufficient financial resources to be
allocated to meet the environmental and rehabilitation commitments.

An environmentsl protection and enhancement program is a comprehensive and strategic environmental
management plan for the life of the mining project which must provide a description of the expected and considered
acceptable impacts and the corresponding environmental protection and enhancernent strategies based on best practices {n
envirenmental management in mining. It covers the environmenial programs necessary for the development and mining
of the deposits in the approved contract area for a period of 25 years. 1o addition, each year an annual an envirenmental
protection and enhancement progran: must be prepared based on the approved an environmental protection and
enhancement program and must be implemented during the year for which it is submitted.

Additional Environmental Legisiation

The Philippines also has a comprehensive set of environmental laws, regulations, decrees and codes of general
application. in the course of its business, Oceana is required o comply with a number of such laws relating to, among
other things: (1} the protection of fresh and marine water and the discharge of waste and other harmful substances therein
from land or water; {11) the safeguarding of domestic and municipal water supplies; (i1} erosion control; (iv) the protection
of forests and regulations regarding tree cutting; (v} the protection of wildlife and restoration of the natural environment
affected by industrial activities; {vi} the prevention of air pollution, including from dust generated by mining activilies;
and {vii} the handling, use, transportation and disposal of toxic substances.

Taxation

Under the Philippine National Internal Revenue Code of 1997 {the “Tax Code™), a corporation organized under
Philippines law, and corporations which are not organized under Philippine laws but are condueting mining operations in
ihe Philippines are subject to:

»  Corporate income tax: regular corporate income tax of 35% of its taxable net ncome (grogs income less
allowable deductions) fron all sources, within and outside the Philippines. This rate 1s to be reduced to 30% by
January 1, 2009, A minimum corporate income tax of 2% of grogs income i¥ imposed if the regular corporate
meome tax is lower than the minimum corporate income tax. Any excess of the minimum corporate income tax
mmposed over the regular corporate income tax that would otherwise have been imposed may be carried forward
and credited agamst regular comorate income tax for three years.

»  Excise tax: a corporation that earries oul nuning activities is reguired to pay an exeise tax of 2% of grogs revenue
from sales of ore from is mines.

»  Value-added tax (“VAT”): a2 12% VAT is imposed on the gross selling price of goods sold domestically,
meluding minerals. No VAT is payable on export sales of minerals and the exporter has the right to apply for a
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eredit or refund of any VAT paid in the course of 1ts business on the importation of goods or the local purchase of
goods or services, including the lease or use of property from & VAT-registered person.

»  Withholding tax: dividend payments to & non-resident foreign corporation not engaged i trade or business in
the Philippines are generally subject to a 35% withholding tax. Effective January 1, 2009, the final withholding
tax rate on dividends paid to non-resident foreign corporations not engaged in trade or business in the Philippines
will be reduced to 30%. Under the Tax Code, the withholding income tax rate on dividends may be reduced to
15% if etther of the following conditions is present: {1) the country in which the non-resident foreign corporation
ts domicifed allows a credit against the tax due from the non-resident foreign corporation’s taxes deemed to have
been paid in the Philippines, equivalent to at least 209%:; or £ii) the couniry in which the non-resident foreign
corporation is domiciled does not impose any income tax on dividends received from the Philippine corporation.
Effective January 1, 2009, the credit against the tax due i (1) above shall be equivalent to 15%, which represents
the difference between the regular income tax of 30% and the fifteen percent 15% tax on dividends. The income
withholding tax rate on dividends may also be reduced under Philippine tax treaties with countries where the
non-resident foreign corporation 15 domiciled.

1 addition, & province or city nuy levy an annual ad valorem tax on real property such as land, building, machinery
and other improvements based on the property’s assessed value. Resl property tax rates vary, depending on the location of
the property. ln provinees, real property tax rates do not exceed 1% of the property’s assessed value. An additional special
education fund levy of 1% of the property’s assessed value is imposed annually.

Operating mining companies are subject to a semi-annual wastes and tailings fees (as deseribed below), As well,
holders of mineral agreements, FTAAs and exploration permits are subject to certain annual occupation fees.

Incentives under the Omaibus Investments Code and the PMA

A company may register with the Board of Investmenis (“BO1™) or with the Philippine Economic Zone Authority
{“PEZA™) and other investment promotion agencies to avail ftself of incentives. The Omnibus Iavestment Code, through
tax exemption and other benefits, encourages mvestments in preferred arcas of economic activity specified m the BOPs
[nvestment Priorities Plan. The 2006 Investment Priorities Plan listed mining activities as mandatory activities.

The incentives under the Omnibus [nvestment Code are generally available only to eitizens of the Philippines or
domestic corporations owned and controlled by Philippine nationals. However, the nationality requirement 1s waived if
the applicant will either export at least 70% of its total production or engage in a pioneer proiect, subject to eertain
conditions that may be imposed by BOL. A pioncer project refers to either the manufacturing of goods that have not been
heretofore produced in the Philippines on a commercial seale, or employs a technology, formula, process or production
scheme that has not been tried in the Philippines. However, when the BOI waives the nationality requirement, the
applicant should atiain the status of a Philippine national (generally a corporation having at least 60% of its voting eapital
stock issued and oulstanding and being owned and held by Philippine citizens} within 30 vears from the date of its
registration or such longer periods as may be determined by BOL. However, a registered enterprise exporting 100% of its
production need not comply with this divesiment requirement.

Qualified registered companies with BOL and PEZA are entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives uader the
Omnibus Invesiment Code. The tax incentives include: (1) an mcome tax holiday of $ix years for pioneer firms, four years
for non-pioneer firms, and three years for expanding firms, from commencement of commerctal operations; (i1} tax credits
for taxes and duties on supplies, raw materials and semi-manutactured products used in the manufacture, processing or
production of its export products, exported divectly or indirectly by the registered company; and (1if} exemption from
wharfage dues and any export tax, duty, impost and fee. Other non-tax mecentives melude an allowance for additional
deduction for lebour expense, stimplification of customs procedure, unrestricted use of consigned equipment, employment
of foreign nationals, and access to bonded manufscturing/training warchouse system.

PAMA Incentives

The PMA provides income tax incentives to persons holding mineral agreemenis or FTAAg, as follows:

»  Carry-forward of logses - A net operating loss without the benefit of accelerated depreciation incurred in any of
the first 10 years of operations may be carried over as a deduction from taxable income for the five years
mmmediately following the year of such loss.

»  Accelerated depreciation - Fixed assets may be depreciated (i) at up fo twice the normal rate of depreciation if
the expected life of the asset is T4 years or less, or (1t} over any period between five years and the expected life of
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the asset if such expected life is more than 10 years, and in each case the depreciation thereon is deductible from
taxable income.

Also, under the PMA, contractors under mineral agreements are given the following fnvestment guarantees:
Repatriation of Investments ~ the right to repatriate the entire proceeds of the liquidstion of the foreign
mvestment i the currency in which the mvestment was originally made and at the exchange rate prevailing at the
time of repatriation;

Remittance of Earnings - the right to remit earnings from the investment in the currency in which the foreign
mvestment was originally made and at the exchange rate prevailing at the tme of remittance;

Foretgn Loans and Contracts - the right to remit at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of remittance such
sums as may be necessary to meet the payments of interest and principal on foreign loans and foreign obligations
arising from FTAAs;

Freedom from Expropriation - the right to be free from expropristion by the government of the property
represented by investments or loans, or of the property of the enterprise except for public use or in the interest of
national welfare or defence and upon payment of just compensation. lo such cases, foreign investors or
enterprises shall have the right to remit sums received as compensation for the expropriated property in the
cwrrency in which the investment was originally made and at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of
remittance; and

Requisition of lovestment - the right to be free from requisition of the property represented by the fnvestment or
of the property of the enterprises exeept in case of war or national emergency and only for the duration thereof.
Just compensation shall be determined and paid either at the time or immediately after cessation of the state of
war or national emergency. Payments received as compensation for the requisitioned property may be remitied in
the currency in which the investments were originally made and at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of
remittance.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary presented below sets out selected consolidated finaneial information of Geeana Gold for the periods,
and as at the dates, mdicaied and is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the historical consolidated
financial statements of Oceana Gold and the notes thereto, “Consolidated Capitalization” and “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included clsewhere in this prospectus. All of the financial
mformation presented below s based on the Oceana Gold financial statements, prepared in accordance with Canadian

Financial Year ended December 31,
206 205 20064
{thousands of US dodiars}

Statement of Earnings/(Lossj

Net earnings/(Joss) . oo (23427 (18,617) 17,883
Balance Sheet

Cashand cash equivalemts. .. .. .. o o 80,023 34,816

Total 88018, L L L 023,729 240,984

Working capital . .. 29,526 21,797

Long term debl. . .. .o 140,652 58.674
Shercholder’s equity .. ... . 289,166 110444
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OFERATIONS

Information i this section 18 derived from the historical financial statements of Oceana Gold and the notes thereto
appearing in this prospectus. Oceana Gold’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian GAADR
Readers are urged to review the historical and pro forma financial statements of Oceana, Ocesna Gold and Climax and the
notes thereto beginning at page F-1. References to years in this section are to financial years not calendar years unless
otherwise stated.

Certain statemnents in the foHowing Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Coendition and Resulls of
Operations ar¢ forward-looking. Readers are cautioned to review the section titled “Ceutionary Statements Regarding
Forward-Looking Information.”

This information is presented as at April 20, 2087, All amounts in this discussion are expressed in LS. dollars, unless
dentified otherwise.

Highlights for the Year

»

»

»

The scquisition of Climax was completed on November 6, 2006.

Ogeana Gold recorded an underlying loss after tax (exeluding unreslized hedge losses) of $1.3 million.
Cash flow from operations increased by $22.1 million fo $16.6 mitlion, representing an increase of 5.6 cents per
weighted average number of Oceana Gold shares outstanding at year end.

Significant diversification of Oceans Gold’s sharcholding was achieved as & result of major shareholder GRD
Limited selling its 56% sharcholding in Oceana Gold.

5111 miflion of committed financing was raised to fund project developmenis in the Philippimes and New
Zealand, comprising $79 million in Convertible Notes anmounced during the year and a $32 million term debt
facility.

Achieved the 2006 gold sales target of 180,000 cunces, an increase of 6% over 2005,

Completed hedge book restructure in May 2006 and delivered a 13% increase on the average gold price recetved.
Achieved a 2% cash cost per ounce improvement to $404 per ounce.

The combination of a higher gold price received and lower cash operating costs delivered a 173% increase in cash
operating margin to $123 per ounce sold.

Started commissioning the process plant at the Globe Progress gold mine at the Reefton Project in
December 2600,
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Selected Financial Information

The table below sots forth selected financial data relating to the Oceana Gold’s years ended December 31, 2006,
Dacember 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 and balance sheet data as at December 31, 2046 and December 31, 2005,

December 3 Becember 31 Decenber 3
2006 208 2604

Period Ended S 008 B0 $* i
Gold sales ... 94,750 77,778 84,745
Cost of sales, excluding deprecigtion and amortization. . .. .. .. (72,684} (70,102) {63 918)
Depreciation and amortization ... ... .. .. .. . L (14,031} (13.471) {11,597
Other expenses. .. .. . it i {6,212} {10,934) (3,657
CHREr ICOME . . . o e e e 2,766 1118 2,805
IHEFESE @XPONSC . . oL i {6,504 (2,976) (3,764)
Profiti{loss) before income tax and unrealized gain/{loss) on

hedges ... {2,003} {18,587) 2414
Profiti{loss) afler income tax and before unrealized gain/{(loss)

00 hedEES . - (1,476} (12,655) 1,945
Release from OC] of deferred unrealized loss on designated

hedges ... 27684y
Gainffloss) on falr value of undesignated hedges . . .. .. .. ... {5,079} (8,809) 23,788
Tax on uarcalized gain(lossy on hedges ... .. . L. 10,812 2,937 (7.850)
Profit/{lossy after mcome tax. ... .. .. . L oL L (23427 (18,617) 17,883
Basic carnings/(loss) per share (cents). .. ... .. oL (577 {5.¥N 511
Diluted eernmgs/(loss per share {cents) .. .. ... ... ... . ... (3.77% {517 5.10
BALANCE SHEET
Total Assets . .. .. e 623,729 240,984
Total Liabilities ... ... .. . .. 334,569 130,546
Shareholders’ equity ... .. .. .. 289,160 110,444

Results of Operations

Sales Revenue
Twelve months ended December 31, 2006 versus tivelve months ended December 31, 2005

»  Cold sales revenue for the 2006 year improved 22% compared to 2005 due to the combination of improved sales
volumes and an inereased gold price recetved. The completion of the hedge book restructure in May 2006 has
enabled Oceana Gold to increase its exposure to the strong gold market.

*  During the 2006 year, 41% of gold sales were made at spot prices, with the balance delivered into forward sales
contracts. This was a higher percentage of spot sales than in 2005 as a result of the hedge book restructure during
the year. This, combined with the higher spot price, resulted in an average gold price of $526 per cunce received
during the year, an increase of 15% on the $458 per ounce achieved in 2005.

» It the 2006 year, a scries of put options were purchased to provide an average floor sale price of NZ2$1,000
{approximately §705) per ounce for 320,769 ounces to be produced from the Globe Progress mine between 2007
and 2010. This was financed by the sale of call options which provided a cap of NZ$1,062 (approximately $749)
on the average sale price of 104,024 ocunces to be produced from the Globe Progress mine in 20146

Twelve months ended December 31, 2085 versus tivelve months ended December 31, 2004

»  Gold sales revenue for ihe 2005 year decreased by 8% compared to 2004 due to the combination of lower
production resulting in lower ounces sold offset by a higher gold price.
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Unrealized hedge losses

Twelve months ended December 31, 2006 versus tvelve months ended December 31, 2005

»

The mmpact of hedge accounting requirements upon reported results is significant and can mask the undertying
operating performance and profitability. In 2006 the unrealized hedge losses recorded in the Statement of
Earmings were $27.7 million.

The unrealized hedge gains or losses required to be brought to account do not represent a realized gain or loss
meurred by Oceana Gold and therefore have no influence upon the cash revenue generated in the period, nor does
the sccounting for unrcatized hedges reflect their real value in terms of locking mn & future price that exceeds the
cost of production, or the value of this approach as & prudent approach to risk management.

Twelve months ended December 31, 2085 versus tivelve months ended December 31, 2004

»

[ 2004, there was a significant gain recognized of $19 million as a result of the cutstanding hedge book being
closed out i September 2604, This gain was fully recogmized in the 2004 year. Removing the impact of this gain,
the losses on undesignated hedges is relatively consistent with 2005 and 2606.

There were no outstanding designated hedges in place at the end of 2004.

Operating costs

Twelve months ended December 31, 2006 versus tivelve months ended December 31, 2005

»

Continued cost management initiatives and processing efliciency improvements delivered reductions of 9% in
cash operating costs per tonne milled and 2% in cash operating costs per gold ounce sold compared to 2005,
The combination of a higher gold price received and lower cash operating costs delivered a 173% increase in cash
operating margin to $123 per ounce sold.

This increase together with higher sales volumes produced an underlying loss after tax (excluding unrealized
hedge losses) of $1.5 million.

Non-cash costs have decrcased by 1% compared to 2003 as a result of higher a higher amortization charge for
2006, which was driven by increased production.

Twelve months ended December 31, 20085 versus tivelve months ended December 31, 2004

»

»

The average unit cash cost of gold sold for 2005 mereased when compared with 2004, This was atteibutable to
lower ounce production from mining low grade mineralized stock-work material during the {irst half of 2005
compounded by higher fuel and power costs. Due to the implementation of eost improvement and efliciency
programs mid year, the average unit operating cost per tomme for the second half of 2605 was marginally better
then for the equivalent period in 2004,

Non-cash costs have increased due to a higher amortization charge in 2005, when compared to 2004,

Becember 31 December 31 December 31
Financial Siasistics 2006 2005 2004
Gold Sales (Ounces) .. .. ... . 180,035 169,681 185,175
Average Price Recetved (USS perounce}. . ... ... ... . ... 526 438 458
Total Cash Operating Cost (USS perounce). .. .. ... ... .. ... 404 413 345
Non-Cash Cost {USS perouncel . . .. ... ... o o i ot 78 79 63
Gross Cash Operating Margin (USS perounce) ... ... ... ... .. .. 123 45 112
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December 31 Beceraber 31 December 31

Operating Siaiistics 2006 2065 2044
Gold Produced {ounces) .. .. .. . . 182,288 170,619 184,541
Gold Soldfounces). . .. .. .. . . L 180,035 169,681 185,175
Ore Mined Grade (gramsfonne) ... .. ... . 1.23 1.29 1.49
Total Ore Mined (tonnes) > 05gf4 {ex-pit) .. ... .......... 5,678,195 4,648,903 4,267,781
Mill Feed (dry milled tonmes} .. ... .. . L L 5,513,634 4,989 306 5,042,969
Mill Feed Grade (gramsftonne) . ... ... ... .. L 1.24 127 1.36
Recovery {%). . .. .. . . R2.5 834 82.9
Discussion of Cash Flows

December 3 Becember 31 Decesber 3

2006 S 2004

Casli Aows from S04 5 {HH) $°0EHE
Operating Activities ... .. .. . o o 16,048 (6,8695) 345,288
Finaneing Activilios . .. .. .o i 74,405 36,783 (11,424)
Investing Activities. ... .. . L (49,526) {16,895) (14,604}

Twelve months ended December 31, 2006 versus tivelve months ended December 31, 2005

Operating Activities

»

Cash mflows from operating activities was higher in 2006 than 2005 as a result of higher receipts from customers
due to a higher number of gold ounces sold and s higher average price received compared to 2005, and a
reduction in cash operating costs.

Financing Activities

*

»

Cash inflows from financing activities gencrated a net inflow of $74.4 million (2005: $36.8 million).
This was principally as & result of the foowing Convertible Noles issuances;

+  On February 14, 2006 Barclay’s exercised its option to purchase an additional AS10 million of Convertible
Motes at a 5.75% coupon rate.

+  On December 22, 2006, a further A%60 million of Convertible Notes were 1ssued to mvestment funds advised
by Ospraie Advisors L.P. and Ospraie Management LLC. In addition, A$T0 million of Convertible Notes
were issued to an affiliate of Millenium Partners L.P. Both sets of notes have a coupon rate of 7%.

A further $10.1 million was sourced from the drawdown of the term debt facility. This NZ345 million facility will
complete the funding requirements of the Frasers underground mine development in New Zealand.

Finance lease facilities were also a source of financing in 2006, providing a net inflow of $6.4 million, primarily
used for the acguigition of mobile mining eguipment.

[ addition, Oceana Gold announced that an agreement had been reached with Goldman Sachs Asia Finance to
subscribe for AS38 million in Convertible Notes, subject to approval by Ocesna Gold’s sharcholders. This was
subsequently obtained at & meeting of shareholders on March 14, 2007,

Investing Aetivities

*

Cash flows used in investing activities are prineipally for the construction and development of the Globe Progress
mine at the Reefton Project and the Frasers underground mine at the Maeraes Project totalling $35.5 million.

Additionally, $13.1 million was spent upgrading and adding to the mining flect at both the Macraes and Globe
Progress mines.

Expenditures were also incurred on the Didipio Gold-Copper Project and on sustaining capital works at the
Macraes Project.
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Twelve months ended December 31, 2085 versus tivelve months ended December 31, 2004

Operating Activities
»  Operating cash flows decreased by 120% in 2005 when compared with 2004, largely due to the recognition of a
$19 million gain on the close cut of the hedge book in 2004, This was & one-off transaction and as such 2005 does
not have an eguivalent cash inflow.
»  Lower revenues aixl higher cash costs in 2005 as discussed earlier also contributed to the reduction in operating
cash flows.
Financing Activities
»  The significant increase in financing cash flows is due to the issue of Convertible Notes in 2005 of $33 million,
however in 2004, there was no issue of a similar financing instrument.
»  [n addition, there was a repayment of outstanding borrowings in 2004 of $24.8 million through the use of excess
cash received through the close out of the hedge book (refer to operating activities above).
»  Further contributing to the cutflow position in 2004, was the repayment of environmental bonds of $15.9 million
in 2004 which was not required in 20605,

»  This was offset by proceeds from the issue of Oceana Gold shares for proceeds of $36.9 million.

Investing Aetivities

»  No significant changes in investing activities occurred between 2005 and 2004,

Discussion of Financial Position and Liguidity

Funding and capital requirements

The Company expects o continue to fund its planned growth and development through & combination of cash flow
from operations {including sales through devivative instruments} and from various financing facilities. The projected net
mine cash flows with respect to the three major projects are as set out under “Mining Projects”. Certain fluctuations need to
be expected with respect to such cash flows, i particular depending upon the influence of the events listed in “Risk Factors”.

The Company’s principal reguirements for cash over the next twelve months will be {for capital expenditures at its
three major projects. Major capital expenditures for the calendar year 2007 are forecast for the Macraes Project (which is
fully-funded) to be approximately US$32 million, for the Reefton Project {which is fully-funded) to be approximately
US3$31 million and for the Didipio Gold-Copper Project fo be approximately US$100 milkion. The Company expeets that
the net proceeds of the Offering, together with cash on hand, will result in the initial capital costs of the Didipio Gold-
Copper Projeet being fully-funded.
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Beceraber 31 December 31

2006 2005
Assets U0 01
Cashand cash egquivalents . .. .. ... . . . 80,025 34,816
Current portion of fulure tax assets . . .. .. .. . L 22,804 6,058
Other current assets (excl. derivatives) ... ... . L L o o 13,494 16,743
Property plant and eguipment . .. ... .. oL L 155632 112,213
MIBING a8S0H8. . L. o 316,338 52,891
Curreni & non-current derivatives . .. .. . . L e 14468 e
OTher BomCUrTeI 885018 . L . . e e e 21.478 18,263
Totalassets . .. ... ... ... . ... L 623,729 249,984
Liabilities
Current & non curtent derivatives . . . .. . L L 73,978 24,999
Other current Habilities {excl. derivatives and long-term debty . .. ... .. .. ... 16,256 15,057
Current & non-current long termdebt . . Lo oL L Lo o 141,609 04,824
Future income tax labilities .. .. ... . 90,763 18,2457
Other non-current Habilities {exel. derivatives). ... ... .. .. ... .. ... .. .. 11,969 7,453
Total liabilities ... .. .. . .. .. e 334,569 130,540
Sharcholders” equity . . ... .. .. .. ... ... 289,160 119,444
Quistanding number of shares. ... ... .. . L L 663,802 360,000

Twelve months as at December 31, 2006 versus twelve months as at December 31, 2005
Cash and Cash equivalents

» Cash and cash eguivalenis inereased as a resull of increased operating cash flows through improved gold sale
revenues and ihe issue of A$80 million in convertible notes.

» Cash was consumed primarily on further construction and development of the Globe Progress and Frasers
underground mines, as well as the continued operation of the Macraes mine.
Current portion of future fax assets
»  Represents deferred tax position associated with the revaluation to fair value of the eurrent portion of open
derivative contracts.
Other Current assets {excluding derivatives)

»  Decrease in other current assets 18 as a result of offset by the timing of payments made by debtors in comparisen
to prior year,

*  Value of inventory on hand is consistent with 2005,

Property Plant and Eguipment

» Inercase as a result of capital expenditure atiributable to the development activities at the Globe Progress open pil
mine and the Frasers underground mine.

»  Additional capital expenditure was also incurred at the Macraes open pit mine on mine sustaining activities, as
well as $13.1 million upgrading of the mining fleet.
Mining assets

» [nercase in mining assets is primarily due to the acquisition of assets related to the Didipio Gold-Copper Project
and other exploration projects as a result of the transaction with Climax on November 6, 2006.

*  Further mine development costs also incurred on the Globe Progress open pit and Frasers underground mines.
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Current and non-current derivative assets

» Relates to the fair value of gold put options entered into during 2006, establishing a floor price on a portion of
forecast gold production between 2007 and 2010.

»  Refer the section titled “Hedging” in the prospectus for further details of derivative assets.

Other non-current assets

»  Relates to an increase m ore inventories held in long-term stockpile.

Current and non-current derivative liabilities

»  Relates to unrealized losses as & result of movements in the fair value of dertvative instruments used to manage
ihe risk of adverse movements in gold prices and foreign exchange rates.

»  Primary instruments are undesignated forward gold sales contracts for over 374,037 ounces (2005: 480,000
sunces) and forward currency contracts.

»  Uold eall options on 104,024 ocunces of forecast 2010 production have been entered to fund the pul options.

A summary of Ocesna Gold’s dertvatives is set out below:

Becember 31 Decemher 31
e 2005
S HM $0iHy
Current Assets
Gold put BpHons .. .. .. 4298 0 o
Non Current Assefs
Gold put options . . .. .. . 10,170 e
Current Liabilities
Gold forward sales contracts. . ... .. . 63,374 14,613
Goldeall options .. .. ... ... 1322 e -
Forward currency COMTacis. .. ... .. it i 282 e
73978 14,613
Non Current Liabilities
Gold forward 5ales COMIMACIS . . . . L . L e e e 10,386

Other current liahilities
»  Balance primarily comprised of trade and other payables, which have increased slightly compared to 2003 due to
timing of payments.
Long term debt

»  The inerease in long term debt is as a result of the Convertible Notes issued during the period. On February 10,
2006 Barclay’s purchased an additionsl A$10 million of Convertible Notes at a 5.75% coupon rate. On
December 22, 2066 a further A$60 million of Convertible Notes were issued to investments funds advised by
Osprale Advisors L.P. and Ospraie Management LLC and A$16 million of Convertible Notes were issued to an
afliliate of Milenium Partners L.P. Both sets of notes have a coupon rate of 7%.

»  See “Discussion of Cash Flows™ above for further discussion on the cash flow impacts of the above movements in
long ternt debt.

» [ addition, finance leases velating to property, plant and equipment have increased to $44.8 million compared to
$35.4 million as at December 31, 2005 and the term debt facility has been drawn to $14.6 million (2005 ml}.

Future income tax liabilities
» [nerease in future income tax liabilitics primarily due to & $65.1 million increase associated with the acguisition

of assets from Climax.

£



Other non-current liabilities {excluding derivatives)

»  [nerease relates fo a long term loan sequired as part of the acquisition of Climax payable when commereial
production of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project commences.

Contractual Obligations

Oceana Gold’s contractual oblgations as at December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Payvrients duae by period as at December 31, 2{H6

LRI $ai0 BiH $roo0 LR
Coniractusl Obigations Total Less than 1 year 1 -4 years 4 - 5 years After § years
Finance leases .. ................ 44,755 957 20,742 18,903 4,153
Longtermdebt. .. .. ............ 96,8%4 e 10,569 e - 80,285
Operating leases .. .............. 3,360 2,921 45 S e
Employee Entitlements . .. ... ... .. 1,631 1,550 T
Capital commitments .. .. .. ...... 30,954 25,287 50667 e e
Derivative liabilities . ..., ... ... .. 73,978 0,436 67542 e e
Total Contractual Obligations. . . . .. 251,538 37.151 145,646 18,903 50,438

Shareholders’ Equity

»  Sharcholders’ equity of Oceana Gold has inereased to $289.2 million as at Decemnber 31, 2006 (December 31,
2003: $110.4 million) arising primarily as a result of 303,221,896 ordinary shares of Oceana Gold with a value of
£168.2 million issued as consideration for the acquisition of Climax.

Acquisition of Climax Mining T.td Assets

On Novemnber 6, 2006 Oceana Gold completed an acquisition of Chimax by way of a scheme of arrangement. Upon
completion of the acquisition Oceana Gold seguired 100% of the voting shares of Climax, a listed public company based
i Australia engaged in minerals exploration, pre-development of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project in the Philippines and
mvestment.

The total cost of the asset acquisttion was $187.1 million and comprised of the ssue of equity mstruments and the
payment of costs directly attributable to the asset scguisition. Oceana Goldissued 363,221,896 ordinary shaves with a fair
value of AS0.72 cents each, based on the quoted price of Oceana Gold on the date of exchange, and issued 151,609,515
options to acquire shares in Oceans Gold, with a fai value of A$0.155 each.

The most significant assets acquired through the merger with Climax are the Didipio Gold-Copper Projeet, located
the Philippines, and a portfolio of prospective exploration targets within the Philippines.

Outlook

See the “Business of the Company” section of the prospectus for details on the ocutlook for Ocesna Gold.

Development work continues on the Frasers underground mine development to increase Macraes Project production to
an average of approximately 200,000 ounces per annum. Three development drives are now in the ore body and imitial stope
mining is progressing. Dry commussioning of the Globe Progress mine at the Reefion Project commenced in December
20606, Mining activity remains on schedule and the first concentrate was shipped during the first quarter of 2007,

Development activities continue at the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. Orders have been placed for tong lead items
related to the project and the contract for Engineering, Procurement and Construction Management (EPCM) services has
been awarded to Ausenco Limited. The EPCM contract includes the following major components:

* The engineering for the 2.5 million tonne per annum gold/copper flotation plant, including associated

mfrastructure, crushing and grinding circuits, site roads, site preparation earthworks and other facilities;

»  Procurement services for major equipment packages and materials required for consiruction; and

»  Construction management of the processing plant and site infrastructure.

The Didipio Gold-Copper Project will process sulphide ore at the project site, producing gold and copper concentrate
for shipment to & smelter for final processing. Production 18 scheduled to commence in the first half of 2009,
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Exploration activities continue within the Macraes and Reefion projects. infill drilling at the Frasers underground
extension has commenced at Macraes where previous drilling has demonstrated significanily higher grade hangingwall
mineralization. At the Reefton Project, an exploration diamond drilling program will continue testing near-mine targets
potentially capable of hosting satellte deposits for the new Globe Progress mine. Ocesna Gold has completed a review of
the Philippines exploration tenements acquired as part of the acquisition of Climax and design of an exploration program
for Philippines tenements for 20067 is currently in progress.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Accounting Policies

The accounting policies that involve significant management judgement and estimates are discussed in this section.
For a complete Hst of the significant accounting policies, reference should be made o note 1 of the 2006 audited
consolidated financial staternents.

Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure is stated at cost and is accumulated in respect of cach identifiable area of
merest.

Such costs are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to be recouped through the successful
development of the area of mterest (or alternatively by its sale), or where activities in the area have not yet reached a stage
which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable resources, and active
work is continuing.

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off to the Statement of Earnings/(Loss) in the period
in which the decision to sbandon the area is made.

A regular review is undertaken of cach area of interest to determine the appropriatencss of continuing to earry
forward costs m relation to that area of interest.

Mining Properties in Production or Under Development

Expenditure relating to muning properties in production (including exploration, evaluation and development
expenditure) are accumulated and brought to account at cost less accurnulated amortization in respoeet of each identifiable
ares of interest. Amortization of capitatized costs, including the estimated future capital costs over the life of the area of
mterest, is provided on the production suiput basis, proportional to the depletion of the mineral resource of each area of
interest expected to be ultimately cconomically recoverable.

A regular review is undertaken of cach area of interest to determine the appropriatencss of continuing to carry
forward costs in relation to that ares of interest. Should the carrying value of expenditure not yet amortised exceed its
egtimated recoverable amount, the excess i written off to the Statement of Earnings.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Oceana Gold recognizes the fair value of & future asset retirement oblgation as a liability in the period m which it
moeurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that results from the acquisition,
construction, development and/or normal use of the assets. Oceana Gold coneurrently recognizes a corresponding
moerease i the carrving amount of the related long-lived asset that is depreciated over the life of the asset. The key
assumptions o which the fair value of the asset retirement obligations are based include the estimated future cash flow,
the timing of those cash flows and the credit-adjusted risk-free rate or cates on which the estimated cash flows have been
discounted. Subseguent to the initial measurement the lisbility is acereted over time through periodic charges o earnings.
The amount of the liability if subjeet to re-measurement at each reporting period if there has been a change to certain of the
key assumptions.

Asset mpairment Evaluations

The carrying values of exploration, evaluation, development costs and plant and equipment are reviewed for
mmpairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying value exceeds the undiscounted future cash flows from these assets, the assets are
wrilten down to fair value.
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Estimates, Risks and Uncertainties

This section should be read with reference with the risk factors disclosed in the prospectus.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial staterments and related notes. Significant
areas where management’s judgement 1s applied include ore reserve and resource determinations, exploration and
evaluation assets, mine development costs, plant and egquipment {ives, contingent liabilities, curtent tax provisions and
future tax balances and asset retirement obligations. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Stock Option Pricing Model

Stock options granted to employees or external parties are recognized at falr value as an expense in equal instalments
over the vesting period and ¢redited to the contributed surplug aceount. The expense is determined using an option pricing
model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution, the non-tradable nature of
the option, the current price and expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free
mterest rate for the term of the option.

Foreign Currency Translation

The conselidated financial statements of Oceana Gold are expressed in United States dollars. The financtal
staternents of Oceang Gold have been translated to USS using the current rate method described below.

The presentation of the balance sheet in US$ has been performed using the exchange rates of USS equaling A$1.3697
and 1.2669 being the closing exchange rates at December 31, 2003 and 2006 respectively. The average exchange rates of
USS equaling A51.3567, 1.3109, 1.3269, were used, where relevant for the translation of profit and loss and cash flow
amounts shown for the periods ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Oceana Gold employs the current rate method of translation for its selfsustaiming operations. Under this method, all
assets and liabilities ave translated at the yvear-end rates and all revenue and expense Hems are transiated at the average
monthly exchange rates for recognition in income. Differences arising from these foreign currency translations are
recorded in shareholders’ equity as & cumulative translation adjustment until they are realized by a reduction in the net
mvestment.

Oceana Gold employs ihe temporal method of translation for s integrated operations. Under this method, monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the year-end rates and all other assets and Habikities are translated at appHeable
historical exchange rates. Revenue and expense items are translated st the rate of exchange in effect at the date the
transactions are recognized in income, with the exception of amortization which is translated at the historical rate for the
associated asset. Realized exchange gaing and losses and currency translation adjustments are included in income.

Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial Adoption

Financial instruments

It April 2003, the Accounting Standards Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA™} issued
three new accounting standards dealing with the recognition, messurement and disclosure of financial instruments,
hedges and comprehensive meome, together with many consequential amendments throughout the CICA Handbook.
These new standards have been applied as of the beginning of the period commencing January 1, 2005, A summary of the
impact has been disclosed below:

()  Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement, Section 3855

This standard preseribes when a financial asset, financial Hability, or non-financial derivative is to be recognized on
the balance sheet and whether fair value or cost-based methods are used to measure the recorded amounts. 1t also speeifies
how fmancial instrument gaing and losses are to be presented.

Oceana Gold’s cash equivalents, femporary investments and investments in marketable securities have been
classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair value on the balance sheet. Changes in the fair value of these
mstruments will be reflected in other comprehensive income and meluded 1n sharcholders’ equity on the balance sheet.
Under Section 38535, all derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Mark-to-market adjustments on these
mstruments are ncluded i net income, unless the instruments are designated as part of'a cash flow hedge relationship. All
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other financial mstruments are recorded at cost or amortized cost, subject to mpairment reviews, Transaction costs
mcurred to acquire financigl instruments are included in the underlying balance.

(i)  Hedges, Section 3865

This standard is applicable when Oceana Gold chooses to designate a hedging relationship for accounting purposes.
[t builds on the existing AcG--13, “Hedging Relationships”, and Section 1650, “Foreign Cuwrrency Translation”, by
specifying how hedge accounting is applied and what disclosures are necessary when i is applied.

Hedge sceounting s applied where the specific criterta under Section 3865 are met. Refer to note 2 for Oceana
Gold’s accounting policy applied effective January 1, 2005 with regard to hedge accounting.

(i}  Comprehensive locome, Section 1534

This standard requires the presentation of a statement of comprehensive mcome and its components. Comprehensive
meome includes both net carnings and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income includes hedging gains
and losses on certain investments, gams and losses on certain derlvative nstruments and foreign currency gains and losses
relating to self-sustaining foreign operations, all of which are not included m the caleulation of net carnings uniil realized.

Variable interest entifies

At the begiming of fiscal year 2005, Oceana Gold adopted prospeciively the new accounting guideline on the
consolidation of variable interest entities (VIES), legal entities that are not controlled by shareholders with voting rights.
The guideline provides guidance for determining when an entity must include the assets, liabilities and results of activities
of such an entity and applies to annual and interim periods beginning on or sfter November 1, 2004, The applcation of this
gutdeline did not have an impact on Oceana Gold’s fimancial statements for the years ended December 31, 2005 or
December 31, 2006,

Transactions with Related Parties

The foHowing table provides the total amount of transactions which have been entered into with related parties for
2006:

Sales to related Purchases from Amsounts owed by Amssunts swed {0

pariies rekated parties relajed parties related parties
Related party $7 06} $ 08 $ ek $ a0
GRD Limited® . .. .............. 50— e
Minproct™ . ... L. L o e e - e
Churchill Capital™ ... .. ... ... - 129 e

Noses:

{i}  GRD Limited was a shareholder and related erity uniil May 18, 2006 when GRED Limited sobd thelr remaining interest in Oceana Gold.
{ii} Minproe, a director-refated eatity, provide enginecring, consulting and construction services to Oceana Gold.

{fify Churchill Capital, a dirvector-related entity performed pold handling services as Oceana’s pold agent.

Sales to and purchases from related parties have been recognized at the exchange amount.

Outstanding balances at vear-end are unsecured and settiement occurs in cash.

Financial instruments and Other Instruments

Financial Risk Management Policies and Objectives

Financial exposures arise in the normal course of Oceana Gold’s business operations, including commodity price
risk, foreign exchange risk and higuidity visk as well as eredit risk assoctated with trade and financial counterparties. The
policy for managing each of these risks is reviewed and agreed by the Oceana Geld board, and zre summarized below.

Oceana Gold has a risk management program fo manage its financial exposures that includes, but is not limited to,
detivative product programs with three banking institutions. The term “derivative” has been adopted to encompass all
financial fnstruments that are not directly traded in the primary physieal market. Oceana Gold does not enter into trade
financial mstruments, including derivative financtal instruments, for trade or speculative purposes.

Oceana Gold faces operational risk associated with the financial transactions conducted but secks to manage this risk
by having established operating policies and procedures. These policies and procedures are set by Oceana Gold’s board.
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Gold Price and Foreign Exchange Risk
International markets determine the price of gold in US dollars on a daily basis.

A portion of metal prices and exchange rates are fixed using forward sale contraets and options. Derivative financial
mstruments are matched with future metal production or revenues denominated i US doHars.

The forward sales program {8 managed in accordance with policies approved by the Oceana Gold board.
Performance under these policies is regularly reported to Oceans Gold’s board.

During the year the gold forward sale contracts were restructured so that 423,000 ounees that were proviously
contracted for sale through 2006 and 2067 at an average price of NZ$710 per ounce were contracted for sale through to
2010 at an average price of NZ$773 per ounce.

OGNZL has a hedging facility for 694,806 ounces at December 31, 2006. The security for this facility consists of?
{1)  share mortgages over Oceana Gold’s interests in OGNZL;
(i) a general security deed creating & securily interest over all the present and future property of OGNZL;

{11y first registered fixed and floating charges over all OGNZL assets and undertakings and registered mortgages
over the relevant nining tenements and material land; and

{iv) interests in forward sales contracts held by Oceana Gold Management Pty Ltd (refer below), supported by a
guarantee by Oceana Gold of the obligations of OGNZL.

The following summarizes the gold forward obligations of Oceans Gold at December 31, 2006

Total
I)ece::iher 3 Mafarity Maturity Maturity Maiarity
2006 2687 24068 2{09 2014
Gold fixed forward sales
Ouaces .. .. ... L 374,037 54,249 3,712 106,236 59,840
Weighted average NZS/oz ... ... .. .. ... FEERE 773.01 773.01 773.01 773.04
Present value NZS/oz. .. ... ... ... . ... 604.04 743.63 680.61 048.61 606.96

The net return if all the bullion forward contracts guaranteed by Oceana Gold were to be delivered as compared to the
market value of these obligations at December 31, 2006 was $63.374 million defieit. None of the forward contracts are
considered to be speeific hedges of the future gold production of Oceana Gold and consequently movemenis in their fair
value or mark to market position since the restructure have been reflected in the statement of carnings/{loss).

During the period a subsidiary of Oceana Gold also entered mto a series of put option contracts to sell 320,769
ounces of gold at a minimum price of NZ3$1,000 per ounce between 2007 and 2010, At the same time a series of call
options were sold whereby Oceana Gold is obliged to sell 104,624 ounces of gold at a maximum price of NZ$1,062 in
2010 1f called upon to do so by the counterparty to the contracts.

The following summarizes the gold option contracts of Oceana Gold at December 31, 2006

Decelnoiiilr M Maturity Maturity Matarity Maiarity
2436 2007 2008 2609 2014

Metal Commitments
Gold Put options
OUNCES . o oo e 328,769 72,231 81,042 83,410 82,084
Weighted average NZS/oz .. .. ... .. .. .. 1,04:0.33 1,060.33  1,000.33 160033 1460633
Present value NZS/oz. . .. ..o o L. 865,92 962.99 894.01 83579 784,13
Gotld Call Options
QUACES . L 104,024 144,024
Weighted average NZ§doz .. ... ... ... 1,062.30 1.062.36
Present value NZS/oz. . .. ..o oo L R32.69 832.69
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The net veturn if all the bulliocn opiion contracts guaranteed by Oceana Gold were to be delivered as compared to the
market value of these obligations at December 31, 2006 was a $4.146 million surplus. The gold put options have been
treated as a specific hedge and conseguently movements m their intrinsic value since meeption have been reflected
directly in eguity. Movements m the time value of the options have been reflected in the statement of earnimgs/(loss).

The gold call options have not been accounted for as a specific hedge and consequently movements m the fair value
or mark o market position since inception have been reflected in the statement of earnings/{loss). Oceana Gold has in
place the following forward currency contracis to protect certain specific payment commitments.

December 31 Welghted average

26 exchange rate
$74080 2iH}6
Currency Commitments
Buy BUS L 2,740 0.6329
Sell BNZ 4,334 0.6329

The above has a maturity date of less than 12 months. The hedge contracts have not been accounted for as a specific
hedge and consequently movements in the fair value or mark to market position since inception have been reflected m the
statement of carnings/(loss). The net surplus value of the hedge contract, compared to the spot prices prevailing at
Dacember 31, 2006, was $0.282 million.

A summary of Oceana Gold’s derivatives 1s set out above,

The net gain recognized in the statement of eamings/{loss) relating to the amount of gaing and losses reclassified to
net income as 4 result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges because it 18 probable that the origingl anticipated
transactions will not oceur by the end of the originally specified time period is $0.9 milion.

The net gaing and fosses recognized in the statement of eamings/(loss) relating to contracts not designated as speeiftc
hedges have been discloged above.
Interest Rate Risk
Objective

Oceana Gold’s approach to managing the risk of adverse changes in interest rates is to manage the identified net
exposure through variable and fixed rate arrangements or financial derivatives.
Policy

Oceana Gold policy 18 to manage interest rate risk in a cost efficient manner having regard to the net interest rate
exposure after offsetting interest bearing financial assets with mterest accruing financtal lisbilities.
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Oceana Gold’s exposure to interest rate risk, and the effective weighted average nterest rate for classes of financial
assets and financial Habilitics, both recognized and unrecognized at the reporting date, 18 set out below:

Weiglited
Average
effective
Less than interest
Year ended 1 year 1-2 years -} vears 34 years 4-5 yeurs 5+ years Fartal tale
hecember 31 2006 S0 S0 S0 S{HH) 000 S0 SH03) k3
Fixed rate
Financial Assets
Short-term Deposits. .. .. ... .. 8595 e 8,505 6.33%
Financial Liabilities
Project Debt facility . ........ = - - 13,569 e e e e 10,569 10.25%
Convertible Notes .. .. .. .. .. e e e 8(}_285 8()‘285 O A8,
8,595 13,569 e 86,285 105 449
Floating rate
Financial Assets
Cash. ... ... .. ... .... TLAI0 e e e e e 71,436 5.55%
Receivables . .. .. .. .. ... .. 2_488 ...................................................... 2‘488
73,918 e 73,918
Financial Liabilities
Trade p&yab{eg _____________ ]4_7[)0 .................................................. 14‘70{}
Fimance Leases .. .. ... .. .. .. 957 6,232 0,888 7.622 18,903 4,153 44,755 9.44%

15,657 6,232 0,888 7.622 18,903 4,153 59,453

Credit Risk

Oceana Gold’s operations and its exposure to commodity and currency forward sales transactions ereate credit risk.

Oceana Gold has in place policies for the management of credit exposures, which include Oceana Gold board
approval of all counterparties. The policies establish limits and methodology for measuring and repotting credit exposures
to commercigl counterparties.

Maximum credit risk of financial assets is the carrying amounts recorded in the balance sheet.

Oceena Gold is not matedially exposed to any individual customer or other third party.

Financigl instruments that potentially subject Oceana Gold to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash
deposits. Oceana Gold places its cash deposits with high credit-guality financial mstitutions and limits the amount of
credit exposure to any one finaneial institution. These cash deposits all mature within twelve months and attract a rate of
mterest at normal short-term money market rates.

Liquidity Risk

Obhjective

Oceana Gold’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure cost effective continuity in funding and trading
Hguidity. Funding liquidity is maintaimed through the use of bank project loans, convertible bonds, finance leases and
operating leases. Trading liquidity is maintained by an effective spread between the counterparties with which Oceana
Gold enters ito derivative instruments.

Folicy

Oceena Gold’s funding Hquidity risk policy is to source debt or equity funding appropriate to the use of funds.
Examples melude equipment leases to finance the mining fleet and the convertible bond issue to finance the development
of new mines. Trading risk policy is to ensure derivative transactions are secured and spread between at least two secured
counterpartics acknowledging both volume and tenure of the derivative to reduce the risk of trading Hquidity arising as a
result of the inability to close down existing dertvative positions, or hedge undertying risks incurred in normal operations.
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Subsequent Events

Om March 14, 20607 Oceana Gold held an Extrsordinary General Meeting of its sharcholders. At this meeting
sharcholders approved the December 2006 issue of $47.36 million {A$60 million} in Convertible Notes to investment
funds advised by Ospraie Advisors L.P. and Ospraie Management LLC and $7.89 million (A$10 million) in Convertible
Notes to an affiliate of Millenium Partners L.P. in addition sharcholders approved the proposed issue of $23.68 million
{AS30 million} in convertible notes to Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance {GSAF) or a nomince of GSAF.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

There are no restrictions n Ocesna’s constating documenis that would restrict or prevent Oceana from paying
dividends. Fowever, it is not conternplated that any dividends will be paid on any shares of Oceana in the immediate
future, as it 15 anticipated that all available funds will be reinvested in Oceana to finance the growth of its business. Any
deciston to pay dividends on Common Shares in the future will be made by the Board on the basis of the earnings,
financial requirements and other conditions existing at such time.

DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Oceana 15 suthorized 1o issue an unlimited number of Common Shares and an unlimited number of preferred shares,
tssuable in series. As of June 25, 2067 there was one Commeon Share issued and outstanding. After giving effect to the
Reorganization and the Offering, as at the closing of the Offering there i expected to be 158,574,849 Common Shares
tssued and ontstanding. All Common Shares are fully patd and have no par value. The Common Shares will be allotted and
regserved for issuance pursuant to resolutions of the Board.

Common Shares

Each Common Share entitles the holder to reeeive notice of any meetings of shareholders of Oceana, fo attend and to
cast one vote per Common Share at all such meetings. Holders of Common Shares do not have cumulative voting rights
with respect to the election of directors and, accordingly, holders of & majority of the Common Shares entitled to vote in
any clection of directors may elect all directors standing for election. Holders of Common Shares are entitled to receive on
a pro-rata basis such dividends, if any, as and when declared by the Board of Directors at its discretion from funds legally
available therefore and, upon the liquidation, disselution or winding up of Oceana, are entitled to receive on a pro-raia
basis the net agsets of the Company after payment of debts and other lisbilities, in each case subjeet to the rights,
privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to any other series or class of shares ranking in priority to, or equally with,
the holders of Common Shares with respect to liguidation, dissolution or winding up. The Common Shares do not carry
any pre-emptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights, nor do they contain aeny sinking or purchase fund
provisions.

Preferred Shares

The preferred shares may, at any time or from time to time, be issued m one or more series. The Board of Directors
shall {ix before issue, the number of, the consideration per share of, the designation of, and the provisions attaching to the
shares of cach series. Except as required by law or as otherwise determined by the Board of Divectors in respect of a series
of shares, the holder of a preferred share shall not be entitled to vote at meetings of sharcholders. The preferred shares of
each series rank on a priority with the preferred shares of every other series and are entitled to preference over the
Common Shares and any other shares ranking subordinate to the preferred shares with respect to priority and payment of
dividends and distribution of assels in the event of liguidation, disselution or winding-up of Oceana.

CHESS AND CDIs IN AUSTRALIA

Following the Reorganization, Oceana will participate m the Clearing House Electronic Subregister Sysiem
{“CHESS™) i Australia.
CHESS

Settlemnent of trading of quoted secugities on the ASX market takes place on CHESS, which is the ASX’s elecironic
transfer and seitlement system. CHESS allows for and requires the settlement of transactions in securities quoted on the
ASX to be effected electronically. No share or security certificates are issued in respect of shareholdings or security
holdings which are guoted on the ASX and settled on CHESS, nor 14 it a reguirement for transfer forms to be executed in
relation to transfers which occur on CHESS,

It is not presently possible for securities issued by Oceana to be settled electronically on CHESS. Accordingly,
Oceana CDis will be created and issued to enable Oceana sharcholders to trade on ASX.

Cbhis

CDls are units of beneficial ownership in securities registered in the nume of CHESS Depositary Nominees Pty Ltd
{“CDN"™), s wholly-owned subsidiary of the ASX. The main difference between holding CDls and commeon shares 1s that
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the holder of CDls has beneficial ownership of the underlying Common Shares instead of legal title. Legal title is held by
CDN. The Common Shares are registered in the name of CDN for the benefit of holders of the Oceana CDls. Holders of
Oceana CDIs will have the same economie benefits of holding the underlying Commeon Shares. In particular, holders of
Oceana CDis will be able to transfer and settle transactions electronically on the ASX.

Holders of Oceana CDIs will be entitled to all dividends, rights and other entttlements as if they were legal owners of
Common Shares and will receive notices of general mectings of Oceana shareholders. As holders of Oceana CDIs are not
ihe legal owners of the underdying Commeon Shares, CDN, which holds legal title to the Common Shares underlying the
Oceana CDIs, is entitled to vote at Oceana sharcholder meetings at the instruction of the holder of the Oceana CDls.
Alternatively, if a holder of an Oceana CDI wishes to attend and vote at sharcholder meetings, they may instruet CDN to
appoint the holder {or a person nominated by the holder} as the holder’s proxy for the purposes of attending and voting at
an Oceana shareholder meeting.

Converting Oceana Common Shares and Oceana CDis

Holders of Commuon Shares will be able to convert those shares mio Oceana CDIs and trade them on the ASX and
holders of Oceana CHs will be able to convert those securities fnto Common Shares and trade them on the TSX by
contacting Oceana’s Australian registrar and transfer agent or its Canadian registrar and transfer agent and requesting
their holding to be transferred to the Australian or Canadian registrar and transfer agent as appropriate.
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CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth the conselidated capitalization of the Company as at June 25, 2007 and as at such date
after giving effect to (1) the Reorganization and (31} the Reorganization and the Offering.

Ax af
A at As at June 25, 20687
date of June 25, 2007 after giving effect fo

incorporation of
March 22, 2007

after giving effect to
the Resrganizadion

ibe Reorganizaiion
and the Offering' ¥

Long-Term Debe™ . . .. . $140,652,060 $140,652,600

Common Shares .. .. ... $0.94 $246,146,000 $322,574,000
{1 Commeon Share} {132,830, 840 Common Shares} {158,574,849 Common Sharesy™

Contributed Surplas®™ .. ... ... .. .. e $18,932,000 $18.932,000

$0.94 $405,736,000 $482,158.000

Total Capitalization. .. ... .. .. .. ..

Noses:

{1} Does not assume any exercise of the Over-Aliotment Option.

{23 This reflects the net proceeds of the Offering afler deducting the Underwriters” Fee of Cdn 54,930,137 30 and the expenses of the Offering
egtinmted 0 be Cdn.$3,460,000.

{33 Assumes the issuance of 32,859,849 Comimen Shares pursuatt to the Reorganization and 25,71 5,000 Conunon Shares purstant to the Offering, but
does not include any Common Shares issuabie pussuant to the exercise of the Listed Options or Options or conversion of the Convertible Notes.

{4} The iong term debt and contributed surplus are as at 31 December 2006,

{5 O March 4, 2007, the Company issued Convertibie Notes to the value of $23.68 miflion. Refer o the subsequent events rode contained under
“Management’s Discussion and Analbysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™

OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES

The Company has granted a number of Options giving helders the right to purchase Cormmon Shares in the future.
The followmg s a summary of Options which have been granted to directors, officers, employees or consultants, which
were outstanding as of June 25, 2067, The Opiions listed below have been granted to the holders as part of the
Reorganization in exchange for Oceana Gold Unlisted Options granted to them prior to the Reorganization. Accordingly,
ihe terms of these Options reflect the terms on which they were initially granted by Oceana Gold (other than the exercise
price and number of Common Shares for which the Options are exereisable, which reflect the one for five capital

consolidation pursuant to the Reorganization).

Class of Optionee
{Number of Opfionees in Class)

Nuinber of Shares
Under Option'"’

Brate of Enifial
Grant'"

Exercise Price'”

Expiry
Braje

Markes Price at
Drate of £irant

{A$) (AS)

Executive officers and past 200,600 January 19, 2007 3.49  January 19, 2012 0715 (3.57’5)(2J
Executive officers as a 200,000 January 19, 2007 3395 January 19, 2012 0713 {3.57 5_)(2"
group {4 persons) 200,060 April 23, 2047 3.825 April 23, 2012 (LROG (4.0()()_)(2]

1,606,000 May 24, 2007 4255 May 24, 2012 0.825% (4.125)

Directors and past directors — — — — —

{who are not also executive
ofticers) as a group {6 persons}

Executive officers and past 4430, 060 January 19, 2007 340 January 19, 2012 0715 {3.5'}’5)(2J
Executive officers of 2050, 06K) April 19, 2067 3765 April 19, 2012 (715 £3.575)
Subsidiaries (who are also not
executive officers of the
Company} as a group {3 persons}

Directors and past directors — — — — —
of subsidiaries (who are not
alse executive officersy ag a
group {6 persons)

Emplovees and past employees 550,000 January 19, 2007 340 January 19, 2012 (0.715 (3.575)
of us and our substdiaries 20,000 January 19, 2007 3435 January 19, 2012 G713 {3.57 5_)(2"
{excluding executive 30,000 Mareh 1, 2007 379 March 1, 2012 (L7260 {_3.6()0)‘2"
ofticers) as a group {24 persons) 30,000 March §2, 2007 3.63 March 12, 2012 £.756 {_3.?5()_}‘3"

30,000 March 19, 2007 3615 March 19, 2012 (715 (3.575)7)
20,000 Aprit 16, 2047 3.745 April 16, 2012 0.765 (3.825)
20,600 Aprit 30, 2067 397 Agpril 360, 2012 (1845 {4.225)

Clonsultants as 4 group — — — — —

Orthers = — — — —

Total — Al Options 2,900,000
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Nofes:

{1} The OGceana Gold Unlisted Options will be exchanged for Options of OQceana, on a one for fIve basis consistent with the capital consolidation
effected by the Reorpanization, with Commeon Shares heing issuable pursuant to such Options following exercise. The exercise price of the
Options of Oeeana that are fssued in exchange for the Oceana Gold Unlisted Options will be five times the exereise price of the Oceana Goid
Unlisted Options, to reflect the five for one capital consolidation. The date of initial grant refers to the date upon which the original Oceana Gold
Unlisted Options were granted.

{23 Market price after giving effect to one for five consolidation pursuant o the Reorganization.

1 addition, an aggregaie of up to 30,321,903 Common Shares are issuable pursuant to the exercise of Listed Options
at an exercise price of A$4.625 and an aggregate of up to 39,615,672 Common Shares are issuable pursuant to the terms of
the Convertible Notes, in each case subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms of the governing mstruments.

PRIOR SALES OF COMMON SHARES
No Common Shares, or securities convertible inte Common Shares (other than upon the exercise of director, oflicer
and employee Options, Listed Options and the Convertible Notes), have been issued by Oceana since incorporation except
as set out in the foHowing table.

Agpregate Number and Price Per
Dase of Issuance or Sale Deseription of Transaction Type of Shares Issued Commion Share
March 22, 2007. .. ... Subscription by Oceana Gold 1 Common Share $1.00
June 26, 26807 .. .. ... To be issued pursuant to the Reorganization 132,859,849 Common Shares -

ln connection with the completion of the Reorganization, the one Common Share held by Oceana Gold will be
repurchased by Oceana and an additional 132,859,849 Cormmon Shares will be issued by Oceana as consideration for the
acquisition by Oceana of all of the outstanding ordinary shares of Oceana Gold pursuant to the Reorgantzation and in
accordance with the terms of the Share Scheme.

TRADING HISTORY OF OCEANA GOLYD

The following table s¢ts forth the high and low sales price and volume of sales of the ordinary shares of Oceana Gold
on the ASX and NZX for the periods indicated {in Australian and New Zealand dollars, respectively) prior to the
gequisition of Oeeana Gold by Oceana, including the exchange of one Common Share for every five ordinary shares of
Oceana Gold. The ordinary shares of Occeana Gold ceased to trade on the ASX and the NZX on June 18, 2007,

Ausiralizn Stock Exchange New Zezband Ssock Exchange
High Low Volunie High Low Volume
2007 {AR) {NZS}
June 1 - June 18, ... o o oo o $0.86 5079 32410538 30959 3088 42,091
May . ..o o $65.89  30.81 42,301,404 3099 650 545,546
Aprib L $6.85 5071 48,042,622 $695 8082 426,035
March ... ..o o $0.76  30.68 29433215 B6.87 8079 409,030
February .. ... .. ... o o $0.81  50.71 31,543,619 8650 8077 256,779
FANUATY . .. Lo $0.76  50.07 32,249721 3086 3077 402,485
2006
Fourth Quarter .. ... ... ... ... ........ $0.77  50.60 119114438 50689 3070 1,136,978
Third Quarter . .. ........................ $0.8%  50.62 99,936,131 $1.11 3075 4,934,303
Second Quartel .. ... ... ..ol $0.98 5065 317357502 $1.25 078 2177407
Firgt Quarter .. .. ... ... ... .. ... $0.00  50.62 73,765,881 30659 $0.72 1,020,641
2005
Fourth Quarter .. ... ... ... .. ... ........ $0.73  s0.61 41147413 3680 8006 693,435
Thivd Quarter . .. ........................ $0.75  30.51 40,681,812 $0.83  B0.56 1,913,337
Second Quarter. . .. ... .. ... L $0.68  50.47 34,940,651 3074 3055 1,133,263
Firgt Quarter .. .. .. ... .. ... . $0.84 5057 55,262,363 $0.95  $0.66 807,353
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PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDER

To the best of the knowledge of the directors and executive officers of the Company, the foowing table sets forth the
sharcholdings of those persons who, immediately after giving effect to the Reorganization and prior to giving effect to the
Offerimg, will be the direct or indirect beneficial owners of, or will exercise control or direction over 1% or more of the
Common Shares:

Percentage of Class
After Giving Effeer
i the
Rearganization and
Prior (o Giving
Effect 10 the
Name of Sharebolder Designation of Class Type of (hwnership Number of Shares Offering

Osprale Management. .. .. .. .. .. .. Common Shares Beneficial 14,029,781 1).6%

T



DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND TECHNICAL OFFICERS

The following table seis forth the name, municipality of residence, position held with Oceana, principal sccupation
and number of Conymon Shares held by each person who will be a director and/or an executive officer of Oceana as at the
closing of the Offering.

Common Sharves

Name and Municipality of Residence Position with Oceana Principal Oceupation of Geeans Held

James E. Askew. oo Lo Director {Chairman} Director {Chairman} 1,038,648
{Denver, USA)

T. Kerry McDonald .. ... .. ... .. ... Director {Vice Chairman}y  Director {Vice Chairmany
{Wellimgton, New Zealand)

J.Denham Shale . ... L Director Lawyoer 2,500
{ Auckland, New Zealand}

Terrence N Fermn . .. .. ... Director Chairman and 1,764,874

{Sydney, Australia) Managing Director of

Petsec Encrgy Lid,

Antenor Silva . ... ... ... .. Director Chief Operating 230,115
{Rio de Janeiro, Brazil) Officer Yamana Geld Inc.
Stephen A Ovr. .. ... oL Chief Executive Chief Exceutive 365,574

Officer of Oceana and

Oceana Gold

Chief Financial Officer o
of Oceana and Oceana

Gold

{Melbourne, Australia) Officer and Direcior

Rogs Glossop. . .. .. ... o 1. Chief Fmancial Officer
{Melbourne, Australia)

General Counsel & e
Company Secretary of
Oceana and Oceana Gold

Jane Nosworthy . .. .. .......... ... General Counsel &
{Melbourne, Australia) Company Sccretary

Darren Klinck . .................. Vice President, Vice President, Corporate &~

Melbourne, Ausiralia

Corporate & Investor
Relations

investor Relations of
Oceana and Oceana Gold

John Kinyon'. ... L. Viee President, New Vice President, New 8,737
{Dunedin, New Zealand) Zealand Operations'! Zealand Operations
Mark Cadwow'™ . . . ... .. Vice President, Vice President, 21,726
{Dunedin, New Zealand) Corporate Technical Corporate Technical

Services'! Services
Patrick Goodfellow™ . ... ... ... ... Philippine Country Philippine Countey
{Manila, Philippines) Managert" Manager
Nose:

{13 Officer of (keeana Gold onfy and not ar officer of Oceana.

Immediately after the closing of the Offering, the directors and executive officers of the Company {excluding
mdividuals who only are directors and executive officers of Oceana Gold), as a group, will beneficially own, directly or
mdirectly, or exereise control or direction over 3,401,211 Common Shares, representing approximately 2.1% of the
Common Shares outstanding before giving effect to any exercise of the Over-Allotment Option.

Board of Directors

The following is biographical information relating to cach of the directors of Oceasna. The directors of the Company
shall be elected and shall retive i rotation, with three directors subject to election at cach annual general meeting of
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sharcholders of the Company held to elect directors. Accordingly, at the first annual general meeting of the sharcholders
of the Company held to clect directors following the closing of the Offering, three directors shall be cleeted to hold office
fora term of two years from the date of their clection or until the second annual general meeting of shareholders following
such date, whichever is carlier. At the second annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held to elect
directors following the closing of the Offering, the other directors not elected at the preceding annual general meeting
shall be elected to hold office for a term of two years from the date of their election or until the second annuel general
meeting of sharcholders following such date, whichever is the earlier.

James E. Askew is the Chairman of the board of directors of Oceana and of Oceana Gold {appointed November
20063, Mr. Askew ix a mining engineer with over 30 years of bread international experience as a Director and/or Chief
Executive Officer for a wide range of Ausiralian and international publicly listed mining, mining finance and other mining
related companies. He holds a Bachelor of Mining Engincering (Honours) and a Master Degree, Engineering Science.
Mr. Askew has served on the board of a number of public companies, currently including Sino Gold Mining Limited,
Ausdrill Limited, Asian Mineral Resources Limtted and Golden Star Resources Lid.

T. Kerry McDonald is the Vice Chairman of the board of directors of Oceana and of Ocesna Gold (appoited
December 2003}, Mr. McDonald has s Masters degree in Economics, 1s an Accredited Fellow of the Institute of Directors
{New Zealand) and was involved in the mining and mineral processing industry for approximately 30 years, in Ausiralia,
New Zealand and a number of other countries, including as a senior exceutive of Comaleo from 1981 to 2003 and as a
Managing Director and member of the Comaleo Executive Committee from 1988 to 2000. He is Chairman of the Bank of
New Zealand and BNZ lovestments Limited and & director of National Australia Bank, Ports of Auckland Limited, Opus
[nternational Consultants Limited and Gough Gough & Hamer Limited. He is 8 member of the National Council of the
[nstitute of Directors (New Zealand) and of the Governing Board of Antarctica New Zealand, Deputy Chairman of the
New Zealand Institute of Economic Research Inc., a Life Member (and past Chairman) of the Australia-New Zealand
Business Couneil.

4. Denham Shale 15 a director of Oceana and of Oceana Gold {appointed February 2004). Mr. Shale is a lawyer in
practice in Aucklend, New Zealand. He was previously Chairman of Kensington Swan, a leading New Zealand law frm,
and has been a director of listed companies for 20 years. Mr. Shale was previously involved with gold mining i Australia
and New Zealand as a Divector of Otter Gold from 1992, ending his invelvement as Chairman when Otter was taken over
by Normandy in 2602, Mr. Shale is currently Chairman of The Farmers Trading Company Limited Group, and a director
of Tumers Auctions Limited, Eastern Hi ¥ Group Limited, Munich Reinsurance Company of Australasia Limited and
several other companies. He has a Bachelor of Laws degree and 1 an Accredited Fellow of the Institute of Birectors in
New Zealand.

Terrence N. Fern is a director of Oceana and of Oceana Gold (appointed November 2006). Mr. Fern has over
25 vears of exiensive international expertence m petroleum and minerals exploration, development and financing. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree from The University of Sydney and has followed careers in both exploration
geophysics and natural resource tnvestment. Mr Fern 15 currenily the Chairman and Managing Director of Petsec Energy
Lid.

Antenor Silva is a director of Oceana and of Oceana Gold (appointed November 2006). Mr. Silva is currently the
Chief Operating Officer of Yamana Gold inc., which is listed on the TSX. Mr. Silva has approximately 40 years of
experience m the mining and chemical industries, and has provided technical consultation and training in development,
construction, start-up, operation, strategic planning and productivity for various mining, hydropower and mdustrial
companies. During thig time, Mr Silva has been instrumental in reseamrching and developing metallurgical and
engineering processes for mill plants in mining projects in Brazil, and implementing metallurgical processes which
contributed to the development of mines in Tunisia, Africa and Togoe, Africa. Mr. Silva has gained significant experience
i senior management at various engineering, mining and chemical companies. Prior to joining Yamana, Mr. Silva aeted
as Chief Operating Officer of Santa Elina Mines Corporation. Mr. Silva has also served as & director on the boeards of
several engineering, mining and alumintum extrusion companies. Mr. Silva holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mining
and Metallurgical Engineering trom the Universidade do Estado de Sio Paule in Sdo Paule, Brazil.

Stephen A. Orr is the Chief Executive Officer and a director of Ogeana and of Oceana Gold {appointed August
20043, Mr. Orr joined Ocesna Gold in August 2004 as its Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Orr has 29 years of experience in
the mining industey including mternational commercial experience at both executive and operational levels in the gold
industry. Prior to joining Ocecans Gold, Mr. Orr was Vice President, North American Operations and then was the
Managing Director — Australia and Africa for Barrick Gold Corporation. He has alsoe previcusly held positions as
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President and Chief Executive Officer for Homestake Canada Inc. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Mining Engincering
and Masters in Business Administration.

Executive Officers

1 addition to Mr. Stephen A. Orr wheo is the Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company and Oceana Gold
{see sbove for the background description of Stephen A. Orr), the following s the background of the other executive
officers of the Company:

Ross Glossop is the Chief Fmancial Officer of the Company and of Oceana Gold (joined Oceana Gold in January
20673, He has 25 years of experience in the resources indusiry, where he has held positions in internal audit, treasury, and
finance with increasing managerial responsibilities. He was most recently Regional CFO for Barrick Gold Corporation’s
Australis/Africs Business Unit between 2081 and 2006, and was previously Exccutive General Mansger of
Administration with Homestake Gold Australia Limited. Mr. Glossop holds & Bachelor of Commerce, Masier of
Business Administration and Master of Accounting degree. He has extensive experience in cotporate governance,
meluding lnternationsl Financial Reporting Standards and Sarbanes Oxley compliance reguirements.

Jane Noswerthy is the General Counsel and Company Secretary of the Company and of Oceana Gold (jomed
Oceansa Gold in January 2067}, Ms. Nosworthy was the Commercial Legal Manager and Assistant Company Secretary to
Leviathan Resources Limited between November 2004 and December 2006. Between July 2004 and November 2004, she
was the Commercial Legsl Manager at MPI Mines Limited. Before joining MPI Mines Limited, Ms. Nosworthy was a
Senior Associate in the Melbourne office of the law firm Allens Arthur Robinson since February 1999, Ms Nosworthy
holds a Bachelor of Arts and a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from the University of Adelaide.

Darren Klinck is the Vice President, Corporate & Investor Relations of the Company and of Oceana Gold {joined
Oceana Gold in April 2007). Mr. Klinck was previously Vice President, Corporate & Investor Relations with the TSX and
American Stock Exchange listed Kimber Resources Ine., a company focused on precious metals exploration and
development in Mexico. His experience also spans the areas of marketing, communications, business development and
project management in both the public and private sectors. Mr. Klinck holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the
Haskayne School of Business at the University of Calgary.

Technical Team

1 adéition to the directors and officers of Oceana referenced sbove, the following individuals will play key technical
roles in the development of Oceana’s projects.

John Kinyen is the Vice President, New Zealand Operations of Ogeana Gold (joined Ogeana Gold in August 2005).
Mr Kinyon has over 29 years experience in the mining industry and joined Oceana Gold from Barrick Gold Corporation,
where he was General Manager, Eskay Creek Mine operation in Northern British Columbia, Canada. Prior to that, he
spent 24 years at Homestake Mining Company, where he held various roles in operations and financial management. Mr
Kinyon s responsible for managing operations. He holds a Bachelor of Science.

Mark Cadzow is the Vice President Corporate Technical Services of Oceana Gold (Joined Oceana Gold in April
1991}, Mr Cadrow 1s a metallurgist with over 29 years experience in mineral processing, precious metals, sulphide
minerals and coal. He spent 8 years with BP Australia in coal and mineral research and development, which resulted ima
number of patented processes for the recovery of gold and other minerals. Mr Cadzow joined Oceana Gold in 1991 and
held the position of Sentor Metallurgist and Processing Manager for 10 years during which time he developed the Macraes
processing plant from a 1.5 Mipa sulphide leach plant into one of Australasia’s most complex gold processing plants
tresting 4.5 Mipe. lo 2002 his appointment o Project Manager, saw him bring on the 0.5 Mtpa oxide plant and acting
Mining Manager during the commissioning of the Owner Mining Fleet, before being appointed as Environmentsl and
Sustainable Manager in 2003, [n October 2005, he was appomted New Zeasland Development Manager. He holds a
Bachelor of Applied Science {Metallurgy).

Patrick Goodfellow is the Philippine Country Manager {joined Ogeana Gold in April 20073 Mr. Goodfellow has
over 27 years experience i the mining industry and joined Oceana Gold from Oxiana Limited, where he was Project
Manager, Primary Gold for the Sepon Gold and Copper Mine. Prior to that, he has been invelved mt Resouree Projects in
Australia, Papua New Guinea, Ghana, Indonesia and the Pacific mainly in gold but also uranium, nickel and phosphate.
Mr. Goodfellow is responsible for managing operations and projects in the Philippines. He holds a certificate in Civil
Engineering and a management diploma in Industrial Engineering.
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Corporate Cease Trade Orders and Bankrupicies

To the Company’s knowledge, other than as set out below, none of the directors or officers of Oceana or a shareholder
holdimg sufficient securities of Oceana who could materially affeet the control of Oceana, 18, or has been within the ten
years before the date of this prospectus, a director or officer of any other company that, while such person was acting in
that capacity, was the subject of a cease trade or similar order, or an order that denied such company access to any statutory
exemptions under Canadian securities legislation, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, or became bankrupt,
made & proposal under any legistation relating to bankrupicy or inselvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings,
arrangements or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, recelver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of
that company.

On June 8, 2001, Allstate Explorations NL (“Alstatc”) was placed in adminssiration under Auvstralian law.
Administration entails the appointment of a third party to manage the affans of a company in finavcial distress in
order to maximize the chances of a satigfactory outcome for creditors. At the time Allsiate was placed m administration,
Mr. Denham Shale was the non-executive chairman of Allstate. He ceased to hold this position on December 31, 2061,
Allstate has since come out of administration and resumed business operations.

Penalties and Sanctions

To the Company’s knowledge, none of the directors or officers of Oceana or a shareholder holding sufficient
securities of Oceans who could materially affect the control of Oceans, has been subject to any penalties or sanctions
mmposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by a Canadian securities vegulatory authority or has
entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian securities regulatory authority or been subject to any other penaliies
or sanctions imposed by a court, or regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a reasonable investor in
making an investment decision.

Fersonal Bankruptcies

To the Company’s knowledge, none of the directors or officers of Oceana or a sharcholder holding sufficient
securities of Oveana to affect materially the control of Oceana, or a personal holding company of any such persons has,
within the ten years before the date of this prospoectus been bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to
bankruptey or inselvency or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or
had a receiver, receiver manager of frustee appointed to hold the assets of the director or officer.

Conflicts of Interest

Oceana’s directors and officers are required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests
of the Company. Subject to any limitations in Oceana’s constating documents, no agreement of transaction would be void
or voidable only beeause it was made between Oceana and one or mote of its directors or by reason that such director was
present at the meeting of directors that approved such agreement or transaction or that the vote or consent of the director is
counted for the approval of such agreement or transaction. Subject to any Hmitations or provisions to the contrary i the
constating documents of Oceana, in order for an agreement or transaction between Ogeana and one or more of its directors
to be valid, the relevant director or directors must disclose in good faith his or thetr fiterests in such agreement or
transaction to the other directors not having a conflict of interest (or a suflficient number of directors 1o earry the resolution
withoul counting the votes of the interested director{s}) and such other directors must vote in favour of the agreement or
transaction. 1f all of the directors have a conflict of interest, the agreement or transaction must be authorized, approved or
ratified by a resolution of sharcholders in order to achicve statutory validity. An agreement or transaction between a
director and Oceana will be valid unless it can be shown that, at the time the agreement or transaction was authorized, it
was unfairdy prefudicial fo one or more sharcholders or the creditors of Oceana. [n appropriate cases, Oceana will establish
a special commitice of independent directors to review a matter in which several directors, or management, may have a
conflict.

To the best of Oceana’s knowledge, there are no known existing potential conflets of interest among Ocenna, its
directors, oflicers or other members of management of Occana as a result of their cutside business interests as at the date
hercof. However, certain of the directors, and officers and other members of management serve as directors, officers, and
members of management of other public resource companies. Accordingly, conflicts of interest may arise which could
mfluence these persons in evaluating possible acquisitions or m generally acting on behalf of Oceana.

The directors and officers of Oceana have been advised of their obligations to act at all times in good faith in the
mterest of Oceana and to disclose any conflicts to Oceana if and when they arise. Persons considering the purchase of
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Common Shares pursuant to the Offering under this prospectus must appreciate that they will be required to rely on the
Judgment and good faith of these persons in reselving any such conflicts of interest that may arise.

Commitfees of the Board of Directors

The Board has established the commiitees set forth below.

Audit and Risk Management Commitiee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has been structured to comply with Canadian Multilateral Instrument
52-110 - Audit Conmmitiees (*“M] 52-1107). The Audit and Risk Management Commitiee 1s comprised of Denham Shale
{Chair), Kerry McBDonald and Terrence Fern. Each member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee is independent
and financially lterate within the meaning of Mi 52-110.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee oversees the accounting and financial reporting praciices and
procedures of Oceans, and the audits of the Company’s financial statements. The principal responsibilities of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee include: (i) overseeing the quality and integrity of the internal controls and accounting
procedures of Oceang, inchuding reviewing the Company’s procedures for internal control with the Company’s auditor
and Chief Financtal Officer; {11) reviewing and assessing the quality and integrity of the Company’s annual and quarterly
financial statements and related management discussion and analysis, as well ag all other material continuous disclosure
documents, such as the Company’s annual mformation form; (iif} monitoring compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements related to financial reporting; {1v) reviewing and approving the engagement of the auditor of the Company
and independent audit fees: {v) reviewing the qualifications, performance and independence of the suditor of the
Company, considering the auditor’s recommendations and managing the relationship with the auditor, including meeting
with the audifor as required in connection with the audit services provided by the Company; {vi) reviewing the Company’s
risk management procedures; {vii} reviewing any significant transactions outside the Company’s ordinary course of
business and any pending Htigation invelving the Company; and (viii} examining mmproprietics or suspected improprietics
with respect to accounting and other matiers that affeet financial reporting.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nominaiion Comnmittee is comprised of Kerry MeDonald (Chair), James Askew and
Terrence Fern, each of whom is independent within the meaning of M1 52-114.

The Rermuneration and Nomination Committee oversees the remuneration, nomination and appointment policies and
practices of the Company. The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee include:
{1} considering the Company’s overall remuneration strategy and, where information is available, verifyving the
appropriateness of existing remuneration levels using external sources for comparison; (it} comparing the nature and
amount of the Company’s directors” and exceuntive officers” compensation to performance against goals set for ihe year
while considering relevant comparative information, independent expert advice and the financial position of the
Company, (i) muking recommendations to the Board in respect of director and executive officer remunceration matters,
with the overall cbjective of ensuring maximum shareholder benefit from the retention of high quality board and
executive teant members; {iv} considering nominees for independent directors of the Company; and (v) planning for the
succession of directors and executive officers of the Company, mcluding appointing, training and monitoring sentor
management to ensure that the Board and management have appropriate skill and experience.

Sustainability Commitiee

The Sustsinability Commiliee is comprised of James Askew (Chair}, Denham Shale and Terrence Fern, each of
whom 18 independent within the meaning of M1 52-114.

The Sustainability Committee assists the Board with its oversight of exploration, development and operating risk,
imcluding issues related to geological, mining, metallurgical, community relationships, health, safety and environmental
matters. The responsibilities of the Sustainability Committee include, among others: (1) reviewing with management the
Company’s goals, policies and programs relative to exploration, development and operational matters; (i) making
enguiries of management concerning the establishment of appropriste policies, systems, standards and procedures for all
technical, development and operating activities, and comphance with applicable laws and standards of comporate conduct;
{Hi) reviewing with management the assessment, reduction and mitigation of technical risk; {iv} reviewing with
management the risk analysis of any proposed new major exploration, development or operating activity; and
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{v) reviewing with management the Company’s record of performance on community velationships, health, safety and
environmental matters, along with any proposed actions based on the record of performance.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The total direet compensation for the Company’s executive officers comprised both a fixed component and an at-risk
component. The at-risk component s composed of short-term and {ong-term ncentives and does not provide for an
executive pension plan. The compensation program aims to ensure total remuneration 1s competitive by market standards
and lnks rewards with the short<term and long-term strategic goals and performance of the Company. The Board
egtablishes the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQO™) on the basis of a recommendation from the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee. The Rermuneraiion znd Nomination Committee, based on the
recommendations of the CEQ, establishes the remuneration of exceuniives reporting to the CEOQ, including their
participation in both short-term and long-term ncentive schemes.

Summary Compensation Table

Oceana was incorporaied on March 22, 2007, It assumed the business of Occana Gold as a result of the Schemes
becoming effective. Accordingly, the table below sets forth all annual end long-term compensation for services rendered
i all capacities to Oceana Gold for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 in respect of the CEQ, the Chief Financial
Officer (the “CFO”} and cach of the other three most highly compensated executive officers, other than the CEOQ and CFO,
who were serving as exceutive officers at the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 and whose total salary and
bonug exceeded $156,000 (the “Named Exceutive Officers™ or “NEQs™. All values are in AS unless otherwise stated.

Annuat Compensation

Restricted
Securities Shares or
Under Restricted
NEO Name and Other Annueal Oystion Share All Other
Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Compensation Cranted Units Conpensaiion
(A%} (A% {AS) (i shares} {A%)
Stephen O
{Chief Executive Officery .. .. ... 2006 046,388 — 149,463 — — —
2005 1,046,004 — 82,473 — — —
2004 351,786 — 50,313 3,000,000 — —
Brian Kinsela
{Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary)'t ... ... 2506 277,206 33,626 46,050 — 24,000 —
2005 268,695 — 16,724 — 24,006 —
2004 48,439 — 1,931 100,000t — —
Albert Brantley n
{Chief Development Off"zcer)tzﬁ ... 2006 411,196 — 9,078 - . — —
2005 331,966 — 19412 100,000t — —
2004 35,477 — — — — —
Mark Cadzow
(Vice President Corporate
Technical Services). ... ... ... 2006 216,396 060,446 21,390 — 17,188 —
2005 210,458 1491 8,404 — 35,098 —
2004 79,533 — 9387 271500050 30,874 —
John Kinyon
{(Vice President
New Zealand Operations) .. ... .. 20306 214,847 55149 50,834 — 21485 —
2005 F71,962 — 2,310 300,0605 — —
2004 — — — — — —

Nofes:
{13 Mo Kinselis resigned as Chief Financial Officer and Company Sceretary on Jantary 19, 2007, Mr. Ross (Glossop was appointed on the same day to
replace Mr. Kinselia as the Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Jane Nosweorthy was appointed as General Counse] and Comparny Secretary on Janiary 8,
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2067 My Glossop and Ms. Nosworthy did not hold positions within the Company during the 2006 financial vear. Thelr remuneration details have
beer included under the heading “Emplovment Agreements™ below.

{2} Wi Brantiey resigned on the fanuary 31, 2006 as Chiel Operating Officer and returned lo the company on August 1, 2006 as Chief Development
Officer. My Brantley subsequently resigned on April 30, 2007

{31 Represents secwrities of Oceana Gold granted prior to the one for five consoldation pursuant the Reorganization.

Employment Agreements

Each of the curcent Named Exccutive Officers has a formal employment agreement with Oceana Gold, the material
terms of which are set forth below.

Stephen Orr: On August 16, 2004, Mr. Stephen Orr was appointed CEO of Ocesna Gold for s three year term. His
annual base salary is A%1,046,000 with up to 50% of base salary in bonus based on achieving annual operation
performance targets. He is also entitled to a motor vehicle allowance of A$30,000 per year and payment of certain
additional agreed expenses, such as medicsl insurance for himself and his family. In the event of his termination, other
than for cause {in which case no severance is payable), he 15 entitled to be given one month’s netice of termination by the
Company and is entitled to recetve six months gross remuneration on such termination. The Company may reguire him to
serve the notice period on an active or passive basis or make payment to him in lieu of all or part of the netice period based
upon his annual total remuneration on termination. Mr. Orr must give one monih’s notice of his resignation to the
Company. if his employment is terminated following a change of control of the Company and he i3 not offered
employment on terms and conditions which are no less favourable than his existing terms and conditions, all options held
by him would vest immediately, an A$4 million payment is payable in lien of salary and bonus, and there would be a tax
gross-up payable for any excise taxes resulting from these payments.

Ross Glossop:  On January 19, 2007, Mr. Ross Glossop was appointed CFO of Oceana Gold for g three yoear term.
His annual base salary is A$270,608 with up to 30% of base salary in bonus based on achieving ammual operation
performance targets. He s entitied to a motor vehicle allowance of A$35,000 per year. He is entitled to be given six weeks
notice of termination. In the event of his termination, other than by reason of redundancy or for cause (in wlhich case no
severance is payable), he is entitled to recetve six months gross fixed annual remuneration on such termination. He may be
required to serve the netice period on an active or passive basis, or payment may be made to him in licu of all or part of the
notice period based upon his annual total remuneration on termination. Mr. Glossop must give six weeks notiee of
resignation.

If his employment 15 terminated by reason of “redundancy”, the Company must pay a severance equal to one year of
gross fixed annual remuneration at the time of termination plus the amount of any bonus payable in respeet of the year in
which the employment is terminated, calculated on a pro rata basis up to the date of termingtion if the Company {acting
reasonably) determines that performance oblectives agreed to that year were going to be achieved. “Redundancy”
mcludes, among other things: {1) a substantial diminution in the duties and responsibilities of the positien or a materal
reduction in the status of the position, whether as a result of an addition to or reduction duties and responsibitities; {ii) a
substantial diminution in the scale of the business to which the duties and responsibilities of the position apply; or (itl) a
material reduction in base salary or bonus opportunity or in the kind or level of the benefits.

Jane Nosworthy:  On January 8, 2007, Ms. Jane Nosworthy was appointed General Counsel and Company
Secretary of Oceana Gold for a three year term. Her annual base salary is A$155,903 with up to 30% of base salary in
bonus based on achieving annual operation performance targets. She is entitled to a motor vehicle allowance of A$35,000
pet year. She is entitled to be given six weeks notice of termination. [n the event of her ternination, other than by reason of
redundancy of for cause {in which case no severance 1s payable), she 18 entitled to receive six months gross fixed annual
rernuneration ot such termination. She may be required to serve the notice period on an active or passive basis, or payment
may be made o her in {icu of all or part of the notice period based upon her annual total rermuneration on termination.
Ms. Nosworthy must give six weeks notice of resignation. Inthe case of s termination by reason of redundancy, provisions
tdentical to those m the employment contract of Mr. Glossop as set out above will apply.

Darren Klinck:  On April 23, 2007 Mr. Darren Klinck was appointed Vice President, Corporate & Investor
Relations of Oceana Gold. His annual base salary 1s A$210,000 with up to 30% of base salary m bonus based on achicving
annual operation performance targets. He is entitled to be given six weeks notice of termination. in the event of his
termination, other than by reason of redundancy or for cause {in which case no severance s payable}, he is entitled to
receive 6 months gross fixed annual remuneration on such termination. He may be required to serve the notice period on
an active or passive basis or payment may be made to himn in lien of all or part of the notice pertod based upon his annual
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totzl remuneration on fermination. Mr. Klinck must give six weeks notice of resignation. In the case of a termination by
reason of redundancy, provisions identical to those in the employment contract of Mr. Glossop as set out above will apply.

John Kinvon: On November 6, 2006, Mr. John Kinyon assumed the role of Vice-President New Zealand
Operations of Oceana Gold. Hig annual base salary is NZ$325,000 with up to 30% of base salary in bonus based on
achieving annual operation performance targets. He is entitled to be given six weeks notice of termination. lo the event of
his termination, other than by reason of redundancy or for cause (in which case no severance 18 payable}, he is entitled to
receive 6 months gross fixed annual remuneration on such termination. He may be required to serve the notice period on
an active or passive basis or payment may be made to him in lien of all or part of the notice pertod based upon his annual
totzl remuneration on termination. My, Kinyon must give six weeks notice of resignation. [n the case of a termination by
reason of redundancy, provisions identical to those in the employment contract of Mr. Glessop as set out above will apply.

Mark Cadzow:  On November 6, 2006, My, Mark Cadzow assumed the role of Vice-President Corporate Technical
Services of Oceang Gold. His annual base salary is NZ3278,741 with up to 30% of base salary in bonus based on
achieving annual operation performance targets. He is entitled to be given six weeks notice of termination. He may be
required to serve the notice period on an active or passive basis, of payment may be made to hint in lieu of all or part of the
notice period based upon his annual total remuneration on termination. Mr. Cadzow must give six weeks notice of
resignation. inthe case of a termination by reason of redundancy, provisions identical to those in the employment coniract
of Mr. Glossop as set out sbove will apply.

Fatrick Goodfellow:  On April 19, 2007 Mr. Patrick Goodfellow was appointed Philippine Couniry Manager of
Oceana Gold. His annual base salary is A$174,250 with up to 30% of base salary m bonus based on achieving annual
operation performance targets. He is entitled to be given six weeks notice of termination. In the event of hig termination,
other than by reason of redundancy or for cause {in which case no severance is payablel, he is entitled to receive 6 months
gross fixed annual remuneration on such termination. Hle may be required to serve the notice period on an active or passive
basis or payment may be made to hiny in lieu of all or part of the aotice period based upon his annual total remuneration on
termination. Mr. Goodfellow must give six weeks notice of resignation. [n the case of a termination by reason of
redundancy, provisions identical to those in the employment contract of Mr. Glossop as set out above will apply.

Stock Option Plan

The Company has established & siock option plan in order to provide incentive compensation to directors, officers,
employees and consultants of Oceana and its subsidiaries as well as to assist Oceana and ity subsidiaries i attracting,
motivating and retaining qualified directors, management personnel and consultants. The puspose of the stock option plan
ts to provide additional mcentive for participants’ efforts to promote the growth and success of the business of the
Company.

The stock option plan is administered by Oceana’s Remuneration and Nomination Commiltee, which will designate,
from time to time, the recipients of grants and the terms and conditions of each grant, in each case in accordance with
applicable securities laws and stock exchange requirements. Stock options granted under the plan are non-fransferable
other than in accordance with the plan, must be exercised no later than 10 years after the date of the grant or such shorter
pertod as determined by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and approved by any applicable regulatory
authority. All opticns will terminate on the earlier of the expiry of their term and the date of termination of an optionee’s
employment, engagement or position, if terminated for cause; otherwise, 90 days following termination.

Unless the Remuneration and Nomination Committee determines otherwise, stock options issued by the Company
are subject to a vesting schedule as follows: 173 upon grant; 1/3 upon the first anniversary of grant; and 173 upon the
second anmiversary of grant. The maximum number of Common Shares to be reserved for issuance to insiders of the
Company upon the exercise of stock options granted under the plan may not exceed 10% of the number of outstanding
Common Shares at any given time. The maximunt number of Common Shares that may be granted to any individual
within a twelve month period cannot exceed 5% of the number of cutstanding Common Shares. The number of Conymen
Shares available for issuance upon the exercise of stock options granted under the plan will be equal to 10% of the number
of issued and outstanding Common Shares at a given time.

Employee Share Acquisition Plan

The Company has an Employee Share Acquisition Plan {the “ESAP”) pursuant fo which employees and directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries may arrange to have payroll deductions (up to & maximum of 10% of gross salary)
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contributed to the ESAP and matched by the Company, for the purpose of having Commeon Shares purchased inthe market
for the benefit of such employees and directors. No Common Shares will be issued from treasury pursuant to the ESAP.

Remuneration of Directors

The Company remuncrates s directors, on an annual basis, as follows: (1) the Chairman of the Board receives a base
fee of A$146,000; (i) the Vice Chairman of the Board receives a base fee of A$85,000; and (11} cach other director
receives a base fee of A$70,600. ln addition, all directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses (including
travel) meurced in connection with the attendance of commitice or directors’ meetings.

Direciors (other than the Chairnwn and the Vice Chairman of the Board) who chair a commitiee are entitled 1o
additional compensation as follows: {1} A$20,008 to chair of the Audit and Risk Management Committee; {i1) A$12,000
to chalr of the Sustainability Commitiee; and (i) A$8,000 to chalr of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

The directors who are also employees of the Company {or any of its subsidiaries) do not receive any compensation
for serving as directors.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

None of the Company’s directors, executive officers or senior officers, nor any associate of such director, executive
officer or senior officer 1s indebted to Oceanna or has been the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, ketter of credit or
similar arrangement. or understanding provided by Oceana or any of its subsidiaries.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, Oceana has agreed to issue and sell and the Underwriters have agreed to
purchase, on the Closing Date, which is expected to be on July 5, 2607 or any other date as may be agreed upon by Oceana
and the Underwriters, but in any event no later than July 12, 2067 subject to the conditions stipulated in the Underwriting
Agreement, 25,715,000 Common Shares at the Offering Price, payable in cash against dehivery of certificates representing
the Common Shares. The Cormmon Shares are being offered to the public in all of the provinces and territories of Canada
pursuant to this prospectus.

The Offering Price was determined based on negotiations with the Underwriters. The Underwriters will receive an
Underwriters” Fee of 5.5% of the aggregate gross cash proceeds received from the sale of the Common Shares. The
Underwriters may form a sub-agency group including other qualified investment dealers and determine the fee payable to
the members of such group, which fee will be paid by the Underwriters.

There 18 currently no market through which the Common Shares may be sold. The TSX has conditionally approved
the listing of the Common Shares offered pursuant to this prospectus. Listing 18 subject to the Company fulfilling all of the
requirements of the TSX on or before September 4, 2047,

The obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement are conditional anéd may be terminated at
their discretion on the basis of their assessment of the state of the finencial markets and may also be terminated upon the
sceurrence of certain stated ovents. The Underwriters are, however, severally obligated to take up and pay for all Common
Sheres they have obligated themselves o purchase if any of the Common Shares are purchased under the Underwriting
Agreement. The Underwriling Agreement also provides that Oceana will indemnify the Underwriters against certain
Habifities and expenses, including Hability under applicable securities legisiation, or contribute to payments the
Underwriters may be required to make in respect thercof.

Subseriptions for Common Shares will be received subject to rejection or alotment in whole or in part and the right is
reserved to close the subscription books at any time without netice.

The Company has granted to the Ynderwriters an Over-Allotment Option, exercisable in whole or in part for a period
of thirty days following the closing of the Offering, to ofler for sale an additional number of Common Shares equal to up to
153% of the aggregate number of Common Shares sold under this Offering, on the same terms and for the same Offering
Price set forth above, in order to cover over-allotments, if any, and for market stabilization purposes. 1f the Over-
Allotment Option i exercised in full, the total “Price to the Public”, “Underwriters” Fee” and “Net Proceeds to the
Company” will be $103,502,875.00, $5,692,658.12 and $97,810,216.88, respectively. This prospectus qualifies the grant
of the Over-Alletment Option and the distribution of any Common Shares issued and sold upon the excreise of the Over-
Alotment Option.

O]



The Cornmon Shares will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or any applicable state securities laws, and
may not be offered or sold within the United States exeept it transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the
U.S. Securities Act. The Underwriting Agreement, however, permits the Underwriters to offer and sell Common Shares to
certain institutional purchasers i the United States in certain transactions that are exempt from registration under the
LS. Securities Act. In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the Offering, an offer or sale of Common Shares
within the United States by a desler {whether or not participating in the Offering) may violate the registration
requirements of the U.S. Securities Act if that offer or sale s made otherwise than in accordance with an appHeable
exemption from registration under the U.S. Securities Act.

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Common Shares may also be offered and sold in other jurisdictions
sutside of Canada and the United States in complance with the apphcable laws of any such jurisdiction in which Conymon
Shares are offered and sold. ln particular, pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, Austock Corporate Finance Limited
has agreed to offer and sell Common Shares only in certain jurisdictions outside of Canada on a private placement basis,
meluding in Australia and Asia.

Pursuant to rules and policy statements of eertain Canadian provineial securities commissions, the Underwriters may
nol, throughout the period of distribution, bid for or purchase Common Shares for their own account or for accounts over
which they exercise conirol or direction. The foregoing restriction 1s subject to excepiions, on the condition that the bid or
purchase 1% not engaged i for the purpose of creating actual or apparent active trading i, or raising the price of, the
Common Shares. These exceptions include bids or purchases permitted under the Universal Market Integrity Rules for
Canadian Marketplaces administered by Market Regulation Services Inc. relating to market stabilization and passive
market making sctivities and a bid or purchase made for and on behalf of a customer where the order was not solicited
during the period of distribution. Subject to the foregoing, the Underwriters may over-allot or effect transactions in
Canada that stabilize or maintain the market price of the Common Shares at levels other than those that might otherwise
prevail on the open market. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

RiISK FACTORS

An investment in the Common Shares 1s speculative and subjeet to risk and uncertainties. The occurrence of any one
or more of these risks or uncertainties could have a material adverse effect on the value of eny investment in the Company
and the business, prospects, financial position, financial condition or operating results of the Company. The risks noted
below do not necessarily comprise all those faced by the Company. A prospective investor should cavefully consider these
risk factors, together with all of the other mformation included in this prospectus, including, without Hmitation, the
historical and pro forma financial statements and accompanying notes included in this prospectus and the information
contained in the section entitled “Cauvtionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Information”, before a deciston to
purchase Common Shares s made. Each risk factor identified below should, unless specifically referring to one or more of
the mineral proiecis of the Company, be considered m the context of each mineral proiect of the Company and the
Company as a whole.

Changes in the market price of gold and copper, which in the past have fluctuated widely, will affect the
profitability of the Company’s operations and its financial condition. The Company’s revenues, profitability and
vigbility depend on the markel price of gold and copper produced from the Company’s mines. The market price of gold
and copper 1s set i the world market and is affected by numerous mdustry factors beyond the Company’s control
including the demand for precious metals and copper, expectations with respect to the rate of inflation, mferest rates,
curtency exchange rates, the demand for jewelery and indusirial products containing metals, gold and copper production
levels, inventories, costs of substitutes, change in global or regional investment or consumption patterns, and sales by
central banks and other holders, speculators and producers of gold or copper and other metals in response to any of the
above factors, and global and regional political and economic factors.

A decline in the market price of gold or copper below the Company s production costs or below the prices used in the
economic analysis contained in this prospectus for any sustained period would have a material adverse impact on the
profit, cash flow and results of operations of the Company’s projects and anticipated future operations. Such a decline also
could have a material adverse impact on the ability of the Company to finance the exploration and development of its
existing and future mineral projects. A decline in the market price of gold or copper, or both, may alsoe reguire the
Company to write-down its mineral reserves which would have a material and adverse affect on the velue of the
Company’s securities. Further, if revenue from gold or copper sales, or both declines, the Company may experience
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Hguidity difficulties. The Company will also have to assess the economic impact of any sustained lower gold or copper
prices on recoverability and, therefore, on cut-off grades and the level of its mineral reserves and resources.

The effects of hedging arrangements to mitigate the impact of gold price volatility are uncertain and may lmit the
price that the Company may realize on gold sales.  While the Company currently mitigates the effeet of gold price
volatility (and may in the future seck to nitigate copper price volatility), in part, through hedging strategies, which may
mclude spot deferred sales and/or forward sales and options, no assurance can be given that the Company will be able fo
enter into hedging transactions or that hedging will be profitable. Certain hedging transactions may eliminate or limil
additional revenues that the Company would otherwise recetve from any future rises in the gold or copper price. In
addition, the Company’s profitability could be adversely affected f it is unable to produce sufficient gold or copper to
cover any forward sales commitments it may have.

Mining sector enterprises face muny operating risks.  In common with other enterprises undertaking business in
ihe mining sector, the Company’s mineral exploration, project development, mining and related activities are subjeet to
conditions beyond Oceana’s control that can reduce, halt or limit production or inerease the costs of production.

The success of the Company’s mining operations 15 dependent on many factors including: the discovery and/or
acquisition of mineral reserves and resources; the suceessful conclusions to feasibility and other mining studies; access to
adequate capital for project development and sustaining capital; design and eonstruction of efficient mining and
processing facilities within capital expenditure budgets; the securing and mainiaining of title to tenements; oblaining
permits, consents and approvals necessary for the conduct of explorstion and mining; complying with the terms and
conditions of all permits, consents and approvals during the course of mining activities; access to competent operational
management and prodent financial administcation, including the availability and celiability of appropriately guakified
employees, contractors and consultants; the ability to procure major equipment items and key consumables in & timely
and cost-effective manner; the ability fo access full power supply; and the ability to access road and port networks for the
shipment of gold and copper concentrate.

lncreases in o prices, and in turn diesel fuel prices, and the cost of equipment would add significantly to operating
costs. These are all beyond the conirol of the Company. The Company has no diesel fuel price protection in place to offyet
future price rises.

An inability to seeure ongomg supply of such goods and services at prices assumed within the short and fong term
mine plans and assumed within feasibility studies could have a material and adverse effect on the results of the Company’s
costs, results of operations and financial condition and could render a previously profitable project unprofitable.

Costs can also be affected by factors such as changes in market conditions, government policies and exchange rates,
all of which are unpredicteble and outside the control of the Company’s. The operations are also exposed to industrial
disruption, which can be beyond the Company’s control.

The Company may not achieve its production estimates. The Company prepares estimates of future gold and
coppet production for Hs existing and future mines. The Company cannot give any assurance that it will achieve its
production estimates. The failure of the Company to achieve its production estimates could have a material and adverse
affeet on any or all of'its future cash flows, profitability, resulls of operations and financial condition. The realization of
production estimates are dependent on, among other things, the accuracy of mineral reserve and resource estimates, the
gecuracy of assumptions regarding ore grades and recovery rates, ground conditions (including hydrology), physical
characteristies of ores, the presence or absence of particular metallurgical characteristics, and the accuraey of estimated
rates and costs of mining, ore haulage and processing.

Actual production may vary from estimates for a variety of reasons, including, the availability of certain types of
ores; actual ore mined varying from estimates of grade or tonnage; dilution and metaHurgical and other characteristics
{whether based on representative samples of ore or not); short-term operating factors such as the need for sequential
development of ore bodies and the processing of new or adjacent ore grades from those planned; mine failures, stope
failures or equipment failures; industrial accidents; natural phenomena such as inclement weather conditions, floods,
droughis, rock slides and earthquakes; encountering unusual or unexpected geelogieal conditions; changes in power costs
and polential power shortages; shortages of prineipal supplies needed for mining operattons, mcluding explosives, fuels,
chemiesl reagents, water, equipment parts and lubricants; plant and equipment failure; the inability to process certain
types of ores; labour shortages or strikes; lack of required labour; civil disobedience and protests; and restrictions or
regulations imposed by government agencies or other changes i the regulatory environment. Such occurrences could also
result in damage to minersl propertics or mines, interruptions in production, injury or death to persons, damage to

03



property of the Company or others, monetary lesses and legal labilities in addition to adversely affecting mineral
production. These factors may cause a mineral deposit that has been mined profitably in the past to become unprofitable
foreing the Company to cease production. Each of these factors also applies to the Company’s nHnes not yet in production
and to operations that are to be expanded. In these cases the Company does not have the benefit of actual expertence in
verifying its estimates and there is a greater likelihood that sctual production results will vary from the estimates.
The figures for the Company’s veserves and resources arve estimates based on interpretation and assumptions and
nay yield less mineral production under actual condifions than is currently estimated.  The mimeral resources and
regerve figures presented herein are made by Company personnel and independent geologisis. These estimates are
mmprecise and depend upon geological interpretation and statistical mferences drawn from drilling and sampling analysis,
which may prove to be unreliable. There can be nto assurance that these estimates will be accurate, or this mineralization
could be mined or processed profitably. i the Company encounters mineralization or formuations different from those
predicted by past drilling, sampling and similar examinations, mineral regerve estimates may have to be adjusted in a way
that might adversely affect the Company’s operations. The mineral reserve estimates of the Company have been
determimed based on assumed gold and copper prices, cut-off grades and costs that may prove to be inaceurate.

An extended period of operational underperformance, including nereased production cosis or reduced recovery
rates, may render minecal reserves containing relatively lower grades of mineralization uneconomic to recover and may
ultimately result in the restatement of mineral reserves and/or mineral resources.

The inclusion of mineral resource estimates should not be regarded as & representation that these amounis can be
economically exploited and no assurances can be given that such resource estimates will be converted into reserves.

Mining operations involve a high degree of risk and numerous inherent hazards.  The Company’s mining
operations are subject to & number of risks and harards, including envirenmental harards; indusirial accidents; labour
disputes; catastrophic accidents; fires; blockades or other acts of social activism; changes it the regulatory environment;
mmpact of non-compliance with laws and regulations; natural phenomoena, such as inclement weather conditions
{mmcluding rainfull), carthquakes, seismicity, natural disasters, open pit and underground floods, pit wall faitures, ground
movements, tailings dam failures and cave-ing; pipeline failures; and encountering unusual or unexpected geological
conditions and technological failure of mining methods. There is no assurance that the foregoing risks and hazards will
not result in damage to, or destruction of, the properties of the Company, personal mnjury or death, environmentsl damage,
delays in or interruption of the development of the projects of the Company, monetary losses and potential legal liability
and adverse governmental action, all of which could have a material and adverse impact on the Company’s cash flows,
garnings, results of operations and financial condition.

Water management and slope instability affect the Didipio Gold-Copper Project.  The Didipio Gold-Copper
Projeet is located in an ares of high rainfall with significant ground water and surface water on or near the project site. The
Company’s development plan for the Didipio Gold-Copper Project includes mitigation measures aimed at groundwater
drainage, tailings dam diversion and pit de-watering measures (see “The Didipio Gold-Copper Project - Proposed
Mining Operations”). Should any of these measures fail to perform, or to perform as planned and expected, it could resull
i excessive water collecting in the open pit andfor underground mining operations. This conld result in: a significant
mterruption in operations and production; damage to equipment and infrastructure; injury or death; or a material increase
i costs and/or capital expenditures while water management remediation measures are undertaken. A flood may also
ereate a loss of reserves if it is necessary fo redesign or dewater a mine. Should any of the foregoing oceur, it could have &
materigl adverse affect on the Company’s results of operations, cash flow and financial condition. Further, water mflows
and floods are generally not insurable.

It addition, the walls of the open pit at the Didipio Gold-Copper Project may be prone to failure. Although the
Company intends to take measures to mitigate the risk of pit wall and slope failure, there can be no assurance that a failure
will not oceur during the Iife of open pit mining operations, the cceurrence of which could result in an interruption or
cessation of production, damage to life or property, environmental damage and legal liability. The occurrence of any such
fuilure could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s cash flows, results or operations and financial condition.

Capital and operating cost estintates may not be accarate.  Capital and operating cost estimates made m respect of
the Company’s mines and development projects may not prove accurate. Capital and operating costs are estimates based
on the interpretation of geological data, feastbility studies, anticipated ¢limatic conditions and other factors. Any of the
following events, among the other events and uncertainties deseribed in this prospectus, could affect the ultimate accuracy
of such estimate: unanticipated changes in grade and tonnage of ore to be mined and processed; incorrect data on which
engineering assumptions are made; delays in construction schedules, unanticipated transportation costs; the accuracy of
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major equipment and construction cost estimates; labour negotiations; changes in government regulation (including
regulations regarding prices, cost of consumables, royalties, dulics, taxes, permitting and resirictions on production
quotas on exportation of minerals) and title claims.

Recent high metal prices have increased the demand for, and cost of, explovation, development and construction
services and equipment.  Recent increases in commodity prices have encouraged increases in exploration, development
and construction activities, which have resulted in increased demand for, and cost of, exploration, development and
congtruction services and equipment (including mining {lect equipment). Increased demand for services and equipment
could cause project costs to increase materially, resulting in delays if services or equipment cannot be obtained i a timely
mammer due to inadeguate availability, and could increase potential scheduling difficulties and costs due to the aced to
coordinate the availability of services or equipment, any of which could materially increase project exploration,
development or construction cosis or result in profect delays or both. Any such matertal increase in costs would
adversely affect the Company’s results of operations and fimancial condition.

There is no assurance that exploration and development activities will be successful. Mineral resource
exploration and the development of mineral projects into mines is a highly speculative business, characterized by a
number of significant risks ineluding, among other things, unprofitable efforts resulting not only from the fallure to
discover mineral deposits but also from finding mineral deposits that, though present, are msufficient in quantity and
quality to return a profit from production.

There is no assurance as to the Company’s ability to sustain or increase its mineral reserves and resources.  To
sustain or increase the current mineral reserves and mineral resources, further reserves and resources must be ideniified.
Any gold and copper exploration program entails risks relating to the location of ore bodies that are economically viable
to mine, the development of appropriate metallurgical processes, the receipt of necessary governmental permiis, licenees
and consents and the construction of mining and processing facihities at any site chosen for mining. No assurance can be
given that any exploration program will result in the discovery of new reserves or resources or the expansion of existing
reserves or resources will be successful.

There is no assurance that the Company will continue to successfully produce gold, or that it will be able to
successfully bring new gold and/or gold-copper ntines into production.  The Company’s ability to sustain or increase
the current level of production is dependent on the development of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project, the Frasers
underground mine and the Globe Progress mine. No assurances can be given that the planned development and expansion
projeets will result in additional reserves, that the planced development timetables will be achieved or that the
development projects will be successful, or that the proposed mines will ever produce.

Increased costs, changes i commodily prices, adverse currency fluctuations, avatlability of construction services
and cquipment, labour shortages or other factors could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condilion, resulis of operations and prospects and could impede current gold production or the Company’s
ability to bring new gold and copper mines into production.

There can be no assurance that the Company wil be able to complete development of their mineral projects, orany of
them at all or on time or to budget due 1o, smong other things, and in addition to those factors described above, changes in
the ceconomics of the mineral projects, the delivery and instatation of plant and eguipment and cost overruns, or that the
curtent personnel, systems, procedures and controls will be adeguate to support the Company’s operations. Should any of
these events oceur, # would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

The Company’s projected growth will impact the Company’s existing resources.  The Company’s objective of
mereasing gold production to 306,000 ounces per annum in 2008, and the transition from one to three mining operations,
represents a significant increase in the scale and complesity of its business. Thig increase in scale and conplesaty 1s likely
to continue to have & marked impact on the Company’s business processes, systems and information technology. Unless
this growth phase is able to be adequately and appropriately resourced, staffed and managed, the Company’s performanee
could be adversely affected.

The Company may experience delaps in the construction of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. Planped
construction of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project may be delayed by a number of factors. Most, if not all, projects of
this kind sufTer delays in start up and commissioning due to late delivery of components, adverse weather or equipment
fuilures or delays in obtaining the required pernts or consents. Factors which may cause delays in the development of the
Didipioc Gold-Copper Project include: {i} delays in obiaining approvals for the increase in the project gize from 2.0 Mpa to

-05.



2.5 Mtpa - while the Company 1s required to submit an EPRMB in respect of the increase of the project size, if any delays
are encountered i the preparation of the EPRMB or in the approval of the EPRMB by the EMB, the timing for the
development of the project could be significantly delayed; delays in procuring new equipment - the lead times for major
equipment nuy have a material affect on the anticipated commencement of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project. Current
market activity within the mining and resources industry world wide has led to significant increases in the lead times for
the procurement of new equipment; delays relating fo the availability of grid power; delays as a result of the Company
being unable to source skilled and professional labour; and delays resulting from moelement weather conditions at the
project site. Issues with the aequisition of right-of-ways can also affeet the timely completion of the transmission line
construction; delays mn the land acquisition process - while a legal right to acquire sll land has been established at the
Didipie Gold-Copper Project, illegal miners ave still resident on the declared mining srea. Delays to the construction of
the Didipio Gold-Copper Project could cause cost overruns.

Currency fluctuations may affect the Company’s costs and margins.  Gold and copper is sold throughout the
world based on U.S. doHars. The Company pays for goods and services in U.S. dollars and other currencies. Adverse
fluctuations in these other currencies relative to the U.S. doHar could materially and adversely affect the Company’s
profitability, results of operation and financial position.

The Company may not be able to raise additional funds. The Company’s continued ability to effectively
mmplemnent its business plan and growth strategy depends in part on its ability to raise additional funds. The Company’s
performance and future project development plans are subject to numerous uncertain future influences and there ean
therefore be noe assurance that any equity or debt funding will be available to the Company. The Company, as a borrower of
money, s potentially exposed to adverse interest rate movements that may increase the financial risk inherent in its
business and could have & material adverse impact on profitability and cash flow. Project financing may expose the
Company lo adverse interest rate movements and also potentially gold and copper price movements {depending on the
type and quantity of commeodity hedging policies entered into as a requirement of the project financing) that may
significantly increase the financial risk inherent in its business and could have a material impact on profitability and eash
flow.

The Company, in the ordinary course of its operations and developments, is required to issue financial assurances,
particularly insurances and bonding/bank guarantee instruments, o sceure statutory and environmertal performance
undertakings and commitments to local communitics. The Company’s ability fo provide such assurances 18 subject to
external financial and credit markets and assessments, and its own financial position.

Regulatory, consenting and permitting risks may delay or adversely affect gold and copper production. The
business of mineral exploration, project development, nining and processing is subject to vartous national and {ocal laws
and plans relating to: permitting and maintenance of title; environmental consents; taxation; employee relations; heritage/
higtoric matters; health and safety; royalties; land acquisitions; and other matiers. There is a risk that the necessary
permits, consents, authorizations and agreements to implement planned exploration, projeet development or mining may
not be cbtained under conditions or within time frames that make such plans economic, that applicable laws, regulations
or the governing authorities will change or that such changes will result in additional material expenditures or time delays.
The permitting and consent progess i the Philippmes requires extensive consultation and enables many interested third
partics to participate in the process. This imposes additional risk that permits and consents may be delayed or rejected.
There 1g a risk that the neeessary permits, consents, authorizations and agreements o implement planned exploration,
project development, or mining may not be cbtained under conditions or within the time frames that make such plans
gconomic, that applicable laws, regulations or the governing authorities will change or that such changes will result in
additional material expenditures or time delays.

Under the provisions of the FTAA relating to the Didipio Gold-Copper Project in the Philippines, the operating entity
has a pertod of five years to recover its pre-operating expenses. Any residual unrecovered balance of pre-operating
expenses 1s recovered by equal amounts over the subsequent three years after the recovery period. The claim for pre-
operating expenditure 18 subject to audit by the relevant government department and there is a risk that some items of
expenditure may not be deemed eligible for cost recovery.

Tenement appiications are uncertain and the Company is subject fo consenting and permitting risk. The
Company has been granted mining tenements and has applications for other mining tenements over particular exploration
properties. There can be no assurance that the Company will be granted all the mining tenements for which it has applied.
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The resource consenting process requires extensive stakcholder consultation, including public notification by the
congenting authorities. This enables all interested third parties to participate in the consenting process. Non-governmental
organizations are active in the Philippmes and are regarded as key stakeholders with whom communication is critieal.

Although the Company has experience with consenting frameworks and maintains a policy of early consultation with
key stakcholders to identify, and where possible address concerns, there 1s the risk of consents being delayed or rejected,
which may adversely impact on the Company’s ability to develop its mines and expand s production.

The Company’s principal exploration and mining activities are situated in only two countries.  The Company
primarily is conducting its exploration, development and mining activities in New Zealand and the Philippines. There isa
sovereign risk of Investing m foreign countries, including the risk that the mining concessions may be susceptible to
revision o cancellation by new laws or changes in direction by the government in question. These are matters over which
the Company has no control. The Company believes that the governments and populations of these countries support the
development of natural resources. There is no assurance that future political and ¢conomic conditions i such countries
will not result in the adoption of different policies or attitudes respecting the development and ownership of mineral
resources. Any such changes in policy or attitudes may result in changes i laws affecting ownership of assets, land tenure
and mineral concessions, taxation, royalties, rates of exchange, environmental protection, labour relations, repatriation of
mcome and return of capital, which may affect both the Company’s ability to undertake exploration and development and
mining activities m respect of current and future propertics.

Foreign investments and operations are sulbject {0 numerous risks associated with operating in foreign
Jurisdictions.  Ocesna conducts mining, development or exploration activities principally in New Zealand and the
Philippines. Oceana’s foreign mining investments are subject to the risks normally associated with the conduct of business
i foreign couniries {deseribed below). The occurrence of one or more events associated with these risks could have a
material and adverse effect on Oceana’s profitability or the viability of its affected foreign operations, which could have a
material and adverse effect on Oceana’s future cash flows, camings, results of operations and financial condition. Risks
may include, among others, labour disputes, invelidation of governmental orders and permits, corruption, uncertain
political and economic eavironments, sovereign visk, war, civil disturbances and terrorist actions, arbitrary changes in
laws or policies of particular countries (including tax laws), the failure of foreign parties to honour contractual relations,
delays in obtaining or the inability to obtain necessary governmental permits, auvthorizations and consents, opposition to
mining from environmental or other not-governmental organtzations, limitations on foreign ownership, limitations on the
repatriation of esrnings, limitations on gold exports, mstability due to economic under-development, inadequate
mfrastructure and inereased financing costs. In addition, the enforcement by the Company of 1ts legal rights to exploit
s properties may not be recognized by any foreign government or by the court system of a foreign country. These risks
may limit or disrupt Oceana’s operations, resirict the movement of funds or result in the deprivation of mining-related
rights or the faking of property by nationalization or expropristion without fair compensation.

Under the FTAA, the Company may have to divest up to 60% of its interest the Didipio Gold-Copper Prolect o
Filippine nationals by the later of 14 years afier the recovery of pre-operating expenses and 20 years after the effective
daie of the FTAA. Should this occur, the Company’s indirect ownership of the rights to exploit the Didipio Geld-Copper
Project may be adversely affected.

The Company’s insurance coverage does nof cover all of its potential losses, liabilities, and damages related to its
business and certain risks ave uninsured or uninsurable.  While the Company may obtain insurance against certain
risks, the nature of these risks 15 such that Hability could exeeed policy Hmits or could be excluded from coverage. There
are also risks against which the Company cannot insure or against which it may elect not to insure. The potential costs
which could be assoctated with any Habilities not covered by insurance, or in excess of insurance coverage, or complianee
with applicable laws and regulations may cause substantial delays and require significant capital outlays, adversely
affecting the future earnings and vesults of operations of the Company and its financial condition.

Increased competition could adversely affect the Company’s ability to acquire suitable producing properties oy
prospects for mineral explovation in the future. There is a limited supply of mining rights and desirable mining
prospects available m the areas where the Company’s current projects are situated. Many companies are engaged in the
mining and mine development business, including large, established mining companies with substantial financial
regources, operational capabilities and long earnings records. The Company may be at a competitive disadvaniage in
acquiring mining, explorations and development rights as many of its competitors have greater financial resources and
larger technical staffs. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to compete successfully
againgt other companies m acquiring new prospecting, development or mining rights.
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The Company may not be profitable.  Oceuana Gold has a history of intermittent operaiing losses and there can be
no assurance that the Company will be profitable. The Company expects to continue to sustain eperating losses in the near
future until it¢ new mining projects are commissioned. There is no guarantee that inereased production will reverse the
operating losses or that the Company will ever be consistently profitable.

The Company’s properties are subject to emvironmental risks. Mining operations have inherent risks and
Habilities associated with the pollution of the environment and the disposal of waste produced as a result of mineral
exploration and production. Open pit and underground mining and processing copper and gold ores are subject 1o risks
and hazards, including environmental hazards, industrial accidents, and discharge of toxie chemicals, breach of tailings,
dams, fire, flooding, rock falls and subsidence. The occurrence of any of these harards can delay production, increase
production costs or result in liability to the Company. Such incidents may also resuli in a breach of the conditions of a
mining Icase or other consent or permit or relevant regulatory regime, with consequent exposure to enforcement
procedures, mcluding possible revocation of lease, consent or permit. The Company cannot give any assurance that it will
have or be able o obtain all necessary environmental approvals, licenses, permits or consents or be n complianee
therewith or that notwithstanding its precautions, breaches of environmental laws {whether inadvertent or not) or
environmental polation will not materially and adversely affect Hs financial condition and its vesults from operations. The
tack of or inability to obtain any such approvals, licences, permits or consents, or any breaches of environmental Taws,
may result in penaliles including fines or other sanctions.

There is no assurance that future changes in eavironmental regulation will not adversely affect the Company’s
operations. Envirommental hazards may exist on the properties on which the Company holds interests which are unknown
to the Company at present and which have been caused by previous or existing owners or operators of the properties. The
Company may incur unanticipated costs associated with the reclamation or restoration of mining properties. In addition,
the Company may incur costs from reclamation activities in countries where the Company has mining and exploration
operations in exeess of any bonds or other financial assurances which the Company may be required to give, which costs
may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s profitability, results of operation and financial condition.

Oceana Gold does not currently insure against any other environmenial Habilities. The Company may become
subject to Hability for poHultion or other hazards against which it has not insured or cannot insure, including those in
respect of past mining activities. The Company is also exposed to the potential liability of the costs of meeting
rehabilitation obligations on the cessation of mining operations.

The Company is subject to litigation risks. Al industries, ineluding the mining industry, are subject to legal
claims, with and without merit. Defence and setilement costs of legal claims can be substantial, even with respect to
¢laims that have ne merit. The Company is currently subject to the procecdings deseribed under “Legal Proceedings”.
Due to the inherent uncertainty of the litigation process, the resolution of any partienlar legal proceeding to which the
Company 1s or may become subjeet could have a matertal effect on its financial position, results of operations or the
Company’s mining and project development operations. See “Legal Proceedings” for a discussion of legal proceedings to
which the Company currenily is subject.

Shareholders’ interests may be diluted in the fitnre. The Company may require additional funding for
exploration and development programs and potential acquisitions. 1f it raises additional funding by issuing additional
equily securities, such finaneing may substantially difute the interest of existing shareholders. Sales of substantial
amounts of Common Shares, or the availability of Common Shares for sale, could adversely affect the prevailing market
prices for Common Shares. A decline in the market prices of Common Shares could impair the Company’s ability to raise
additional capital through the sale of securities should it desire to do so.

The market price for Common Shares cannot be assured.  Securities markets have experienced a high level or
price and volume volatility, and the market prices of securities of many companies have experienced wide fluctuations
which have not necessarily been related to the operating performance, underlying asset values or prospects of such
companies. There can be no assurance that such fluctuation will not affect the price of the Company’s securities after the
Offering, and the market price of the Common Shares may decline below the Offering price. As a result of this volatility,
mvestors may not be able to sell their Common Shares at or above the Offering Price. In the past, following periods of
volatility in the market price of a company’s securitics, sharcholders have often instituted class action securities lttigation
against those companies. Such litigation, if instituted, could result in substantial cost and diversion of management
attention and resources, which could significantly harm our profitability and reputation.

The Company may not pay dividends in the future. The Company conducts its major operations through
subsidiaries. The Company’s ability to obtain dividends or other digtributions from subsidisries may be subiect to
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restrictions on dividends or repatriation of earnings under applicable local law, monetary transfer restrictions and credit
facilities. There can be no assurance that there will be no future restrictions on repatriation, the payment of dividends or
other distributions from subsidiaries which are necessary to enable the Company to pay dividends in the future.

The Common Shares have no trading history in Canada.  The Common Shares have no history of trading,
although Oceana Gold has traded on the ASX and the NZX since March 2004, There can be no assurance that an active
and liguid trading market will develop for the Cormmon Shares on any securities exchange upon which the Common
Shares may be listed, the failure of which may have s material and adverse impact on the value of the Common Shares, and
the ability of a purchaser to dispose of the Common Shares in a timely manner or at all

The Company is dependent on key personnel, including employees, contractors and consultants, who have heen
emploped in the development and operation of mining assets owned by the Company,  While the Company has either,
where possible, contracts for services for a term of years or, in the case of any employee, employment agreements with
ithese parties, it cannot ultimately prevent any of these parties from terminating their respective contracts as per the
relevant agreed conditions. Loss of key personnel or the tnability to recruit and retain high calibre staff to manage future
operations and exploration and development activities, and could materially impact on the profit and cash flow of the
Company.

Conflicts of interest may arise between divectors and officers of the Company.  Certain directors and officers of
the Company are directors, officers or shareholders of other natural resource companies and to the extent that such other
companics may participate in ventures with the Company, the directors and officers may have a confliet of interest in
negotiating and concluding terms respecting the extent of such participation.

LEGAL PROCELEDINGS

Front time to time the Company is a party to varicus Htigation matters incidental to the conduct of its business. Two
claims have been initisted challenging certain water rights applications for the Didipic Gold-Copper Project. The
Company is also subject to a court claim seeking an injunction against each of the Company and the DENR to restrain the
mmplementation of the FTAA. While the outcomes of the proeeedings are subject to uncertainties and the Company cannot
assure you that any outcome will be favourable to the Company, based on the Company’s preliminary evaluation of the
tssues and the advice of counsel, 1t 15 anticipated that the matters will be resolved without a material adverse effect on the
ability to proceed with the development of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project.

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Oiher than the inierests of certain directors, officers and shareholders of Oceana as described elsewhere m this
prospectus {see note 27 to the sudited annual finencial staternents of Oceana Gold commencing at page F-5}, none of the
directors or officers of Oceana, nor any associate or affiliate thereof, has had a direct or indirect material interest in any
transaction within the three years prior to the date hercof or proposed transaction which has materially affected or will
materially affect Ocesna.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed in this prospectus and the financial statements which form a part of this prospectus (sec
nolte 27 to the audited annual financial statements of Oceansg Gold commencing at page F-53, the Company has not entered
into any material transactions with any related party.

OTHER MATERIAL FACTS

The Company was granted relief from the requirement to meclude in this prospectus unsudited interim financial
statemnents of Oceana Gold for the guarter ended March 31, 2607, as Oceana Gold does not prepare such quarterly
financial statements under International Financial Reporting Standards. Subseqguent to the closing of the Offering and
while the Company i a reporting issuer, the Company will provide such financial reporting, meluding audited annual
financial statements and unaudited interim financial staternents, as are required by applicable Canadian securities laws.

AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The auditors of Oceana are Ernst & Young, located at 8 Exhibition Street, Melbourne, Victoria, Australia.
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Oceena has retained Computershare Investor Services Inc. as its Transfer Agent and Registrar. Common shares will
be issued in registered form.

MATERIAL CONTFRACTS

The followmg are the material contracts of Oceana, other than contracts entered into in the ordinary cowse of
business that were entered into within the two vears before the date of this prospectus or will be entered into at or prior to
ihe closing of the Offering:

{a} the fmplementation agreement dated March 303, 2007 between Oceana Gold and Oceans regarding the

implementation of the Reorganization; and

{by the Underwriting Agreement.

The material contracts deseribed above and once entered into, together with the Technical Reports, and any other
documents regarding Oceana referred (o in this prospectus, may be inspected at the offices of the Company’s Canadien
counsel, Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP, Suite 4200, 66 Wellington Street West, Toronto, Ountario, MSK ING during
normal business hours during the period of the distribution of the securities hereunder, or they may be viewed on the
[nternet at www.sedar.com.

EXPERTS

Certain information in this progpectus of an economie, scientific or technicsl nature in respect of the mining projects
of the Company are based upon ihe Technical Reports. Each of the authors of the Technical Reports s a “qualified person”
for purposes of NI 43-101. Each of Behre Dolbear Australia Pry Lid., Hellman and Schofield Pty Lid., RSG Global
Consulting Pey Limited, GHD Limited and Australian Mine Design and Development Proprietary Limtted 15 independent
of the Company, as are each of the authors of the Technical Reports within the meaning of NI 43-101.

The authors of the Technical Reports have reviewed the information in the prospectus which relates to information
contained in the Techmeal Reports and has confirmed to the Company that the information presented 13 an accurate,
balanced and complete extract of information covered in the Technical Reports.

LEGAL MATTERS

I connection with this Offering, certain legal matters relating to the issue and sele of the Common Shares will be
passed upon by Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP on behalf of Oceana and Stikeman Elliott LLP on behalf of the
Underwriters. The partners and associates of each firm are expected to own less than one percent of the Cormon Shares
upon the closing of the Offering.

PURCHASERS’ STATUTORY RIGHTS

Securities Iegislation in certain of the provinces and territories of Canada provides purchasers with the right to
withdraw from an agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after receipt, or
deemed reeeipt, of a prospectus and any amendment thereto. In several of the provinces and territories, the seourities
legislation further provides a purchaser with remedies for rescission of, in some provinces and territorics, damages if the
prospectus and any amendment containg a misrepresentation or 15 not delivered to the purchaser, provided that the
remedies for reseission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time Hmit preseribed by the securities
legislation of the purchaser’s province or ferritory. The purchaser should refor to any applicable provisions of the
securities legislation of the purchaser’s provinee or territory for the particulars of these rights or consull with a legal
adviser.

-100-



GLOSSARY
For an explanation of certain technical terms used in this prospectus, please see “Technical Glossary™.

“ad valorem” in relation to a royalty payable under the Mining Act or the Crown Minerals Aet, means a royalty caleulated
as a percentage of the net sales revenue earned on the relevant minerals.

“Amdel” means Amdel Linted.

“Anzlabs™ means Analabs Proprictary Limited.

“ASX™ means Australisn Stock Exchange Limited.

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the board of directors of Oceana.
“BOI1” means Board of Investments.

“CDI” or “CDs” means CHESS Depositary Interests and refers to a unit of beneficial ownership in Common Shares,
registered in the name of CDN.

“CDN” means CHESS Depositary Nominees Pty Lid.

“CHESS” stands for Clearing House Electronic Subregister System.

“Closing Date” means the date of the closing of the Offering.

“Common Shares” means common shares in the capital of Oceana.

“Crown™ means the reigning monarch of New Zealand or the government acting on behalf of that monarch.
“Crown Minerals” means the Crown Minerals division of the Ministry of Economie Development of New Zealand.

“Crown Minerals Act” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “New Zealand - Regulation of Mining in New
Zealand™,

“FTAA” means a Financial or Technical Assistance Agreement, which 18 a type of mining title granted under the
Phiippines” mining legislation.

“GAAP” means Capadian generally accepted accounting principles.
“GHD” means GHD Limited.

“JORC Code” means the Australasian Code for the Reporting of Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves of December
2004.

“Listed Option” means an option to purchase Common Shares of Oceana which i listed on the ASX and guoted on
NZSX.

“Mining Aect™ has the meaning asceribed thereto under “New Zealand - Regulation of Mining in New Zealand”.
“Minister” has the meening ascribed therete under “New Zealand - Regulation of Mining in New Zealand”.
“MP” means & mining permit granted uader the Crown Minerals Act.

“MPSA” means minersl production sharing agreement granted under Philippines law.

“NPV” means nel present value.

“N1 43-181” means National lnstrument 43-101 of the Canadian Securities Adminisirators.

“NRWT” means non-resident withholding tax.

“NZX* means the main board equity security market operated by the New Zealand Exchange Limited.
“PEZA” means the Philippine Economic Zone Authority.

“Oceana Gold Listed Option” means an option to purchase ordinary shares of Oceana Gold which is listed on the ASX
and quoted on the NZX.

“Qceeana Gold Unlisted Option” means an option to purchase ordinary shares of Oceana Gold, but does not include
Oceana Gold Listed Options.

“Offering” means the offering of Common Shares of Oceana pursusnt to this prospectus.
“Offering Price” means Cdn$3.50 per Common Share.

“Option” means an option to purchase Common Shares, but does not include Listed Options.
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“Option Seheme” means the scheme of arrangement between Oceana Gold and the holders of Oceana Gold Listed
Options.

“Over-Allotment Option™ means the option granted by Oceana to the Underwriters to purchase additional Common
Sheres equal to up to 15% of the Common Shares purchased at the closing of the Offering.

“PMA” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Philippines - Overview”.
“PDP” means Project Development Plan.
“PCE™ means Pollution Control Eguipment.

“Record Date” means the record date for determining holders of ordinary shares of Oceana Gold entitied to participate in
the Share Scheme.

“Reorganization” means the reorganization of Oceans Gold resulting in Oceana Gold becoming a wholy-owned
substdiary of Oceana, including the Share Scheme, the Option Scheme, the exchange of Oceana Gold Unlisted Options
for Options, the amendment to the terms of the Convertible Notes of Oceana Gold, and the lsting of the Common Shares
on the TSX and quotation on the NZX, and the listing of CDls on the ASX.

“RMA” has the meaning sscribed thereto under “Mining Projects - The Macraes Proiect - Environmental Matters”.
“Schemes” means, collectively, the Share Scheme and Option Scheme.

“Share Scheme” means the scheme of arrengement between Oceans Gold and the Oceana Gold holders of ordinary
shares.

“Tax Act” means the Mncome Tax Aet (Canada).

“TEX” means the Toronto Stock Exchange.

“Underwriters” means BMO Nesbitt Bums [ne., Haywood Securities [ne., Westwind Partners Inc. and Austock
Comorate Fimance Limited, collectively.

“Underwriting Agreement” means the underwriting agreement to be dated June 26, 2007 among Oceana and the
Underwriters.

“WTT” means Waste Treatment Facility.
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TECHNICAL GLOSSARY

“As” moans Arsenic.
“Au” means gold.
“bem™ means bank cubic metres.
“CIM™ means the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum.
“C1M Standards™ means the Mineral Resources and Reserves Definttions and Guidelines adopied by the CIM Coungil
on August 20, 2000, as those definitions may be amended from time to time by the CIM.
“em” means centimetre.
“Cu” means coppet.
“EP” means an exploration permit granted under the Crown Minerals Act.
“Au equiv.” means gold equivalent.
“o” means orams.
“oft” means grams per metric tonne.
“ha™ means hectares.
“indicated mineral resource™ means that part of a mineral resource for which guantity, grade or quality, densities, shape,
and physical characteristics, can be estimated with a level of confidence sufficient to allow the appropriate application of
technical and economic parameters to support mine planning and evaluation of the economic viability of the deposit. The
estimate 1$ based on detalled and reliable exploration and testing information gathered through sppropriate techniques
from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and driltholes that are spaced closely enough for geologic or
grade continuity to be reasonably assumed.
“inferred mineral resource”™ means that part of a mineral resource for which guantity and grade or guality can be
estimated on the basis of geological evidence and limited sampling and reasonably assumed, but not verified, geological
and grade continuity. The estimate is based on Hmited information and sampling gathered through appropriate techniques
from locations such ag outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and drillholes.
“kg” means kilogram.
“km™ means kilometre.
“km®” means square kilometres.
“tb” means one pound and is equal to 454 g
“m” means metre,

3 :
“m™ means cubic metres.
“m*/h” means cubic metres per hour.
“measured mineral resouree™ means that part of a mineral resource for which quantity, grade or quality, densities,
shape, physical characteristics are so well established that they can be estimated with confidence sufficient to allow the
appropriate application of technical and economic parameters, to support production planning and evaluation of the
economic viability of the deposit. The estimate is based on detailed and reliable exploration, sampling and testing
mformation gathered through appropuiate techniques from locations such as outerops, trenches, pits, workings and
driliholes that are spaced closely enough to confirm both geological and grade continuity.
“mineral resource™ means a concentration or oceurrence of natural, solid, inorganic or fossilized organic material in or
on the Earth’s crust in such form and quantity and of such a grade or quality that it has reasoneble prospects for economic
extraction. The location, guantity, grade, geological characteristics and continuity of a mineral resource are known,
estimated or interpreted from specific geological evidence and knowledge.
“mineral reserve” means the economically mineable part of & measured or indicated mineral resource demonstrated by
at least a preliminary feasibility study. This study must include adeguate information on mining, processing,
metallurgical, economic and other relevant factors that demonsteate, at the time of reporting, that economic extraction
can be justified. Mineral reserve includes diluting materials and allowances for losses which may occur when the material
ts mined.
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“mineralization™ means the concentration of minerals in a body of rock.
“ML” means Mining License.

“mm” means millimetre.

“Moz” means million cunces.

“Mt” means million tonnes.

“¥tpa” means million tonnes per annum.

“multiple indieator kriging” is a grade estimation technigue.

“NMV™ means Net Metal Value.

“ordinary kriging” s a grade estimation technique.

“oz” means ounce.

“PLE” means Pipeline License.

“polygonal methed” is a grade estimation technique.

“PP” means prospecting permit granted under the Crown Minerals Act.
“ppm” means pacts per million.

“prebable mineral reserve™ means the economically minesble part of an indicated, and in some circumstances a
measured mineral resource demonstrated by at least a preliminary feasibility study. This study must include adequate
mformation on mining, processing, metallurgical, economie and other relevant factors that demonstrate, at the time of
reporting, that cconomic extraction can be justified.

“proven mineral reserve™ means the economically mineable part of a measured mineral resowrce demonstrated by at
teast a preliminary feasibility study. The study mugt include adequate mformation on mining, processing, metallurgical,
economic and other relevant factors that demonstrate, at the time of reporting, that economic extraction is justified.

“QAQC” means quality assurance / quality control.

“RC” means reverse circulation.

“RL” means relative level.

“scheelite™ s a caleium tungstate mineral.

“SPMP” means social development and management program.

“t* or “tonne™ is a measure of weight equal to 1,000 kg or 2,204 lbhs.
“tpa™ means fonnes per annuim.

“tpd” means tonnes per day.

“tpm™ means tonnes per month.

“TSE” means tatling storage facility.

“TSP” means the Total Suspended Particulate.
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OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION

AUDITORS’ REFORT

To the Directors of
OeEANAGOLD CORPORATION

We have audited the balance sheet of GeeanaGold Comporation as at 22 March 2007, The balance sheet is the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility i to express an opinton on the balance shect based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in sccordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perforn: an sudit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An sudit also meludes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall finaneial statement presentation.

In our opinion, the balance sheet presents fairly, m all material regpeets, the financial posttion of OceanaGold
Corporation as at 22 March 2007 in aceordance with Canadian generally accepted sccounting prineiples.

{Signed) "Ernst & Young”
Chartered Accountants
Melbourne, Australia

May 15, 2007 except as to Note 2,
which 1% as of June 25, 2007
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OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEET
As at March 22, 2007

March 22,
2087
US4
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents . ... L

Tatal current assets

Tatal assets

Equity
Shareholder’s equity

Total equity

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

(Signed) James E. Asxpw {Signed) J. DENHAM SHALE
Director Director

The avcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at March 22, 2007

Formation of the Comgany

Oceanaliold Corporation (the “Corporation”} was incorporated undes the Business Corporations Act (British Columnbia} on March 22, 2007 for the
purpose of acquiring ali of the issued and outstanding shares and other securities of Geeana Gold Limited ("Oceana Gold™), an Australian company
listed on the Austraiian Stock Exchange (“ASX™} and New Fealand Stock Exchange ("NZSX™), pursuant to schemes of arrangements under
Austratian law {the “Reorganization™).

The Reorganization is {0 be approved by the supervising cowt and by the holders of ordinary shares of Oceana Gold and by holders of the Hsted
options of Oceana Gold at the meetings keld for the purposes of approving the Schemes. The Reorganization becarne effective on June 18, 2007,

Pursiant to the Reorganization, holders of ordinary shares of Oceana Gold wili exchange their shares for either comimon shares of the Corporation
(“Common Shares™ or CHESS Depositary Tnterests {“CDIs™), on the basis of one common share or one CD1 for every five ordinary shares of
Oceana {1old held on the record date. Similarly, holders of listed options of Oceana Gold will exchange their options for listed options of the
Corparation, on the basis of one listed oplion of the Corporation for every five Hsted options of Oceana Gold held on the record date. In addition, all
owtstanding unlisted options of Oceana Gold foptions keld by management pursuant to the Oceana Gold empioyee option plat} will be cancelled
and exchanged for uniisted options issued by the Corporation, also on 4 one Tor five bagis. The terms of the convertible notes of Oceana Gold were
amended to provide that the Corporation witl issue common shares to holders of such convertible notes upon thelr conversion (in liew of Oceana
Giobd issuing ordinary shares).

Agwell, in conneetion with the Reorpanization: (i) Oceans Gobd will become a whoily-owned subsidiary of the Corporation; {ii) the ordinary shares
and Oceana Cold listed options will be delisted from the ASX and cease o be quoted on the NZSX; (i) the Comimon Shares issued pursuant to the
Schemes will be Hsted on the TSX and quoted on NZSX and the CDs wili be Hsted on the ASX; and {iv) the listed options of the Corporation issued
pursuant fo the Reorganization will be listed on the ASX and quoted on NZSX.

Sebsequent Events
{2} Or June 26, 2007 the Corporation wiil issue 132,839,849 commen shares pursuant to the Reorganization.

(b} The Corporation has filed a prospectus in each of the provinces amd ferritories of Canada on June 26, 2007, This prospectus qualifies the
distribution of 25715000 common shares of the Corporation at a price of Cdn 83,50 per Common Share. The Common Shares are being
offered pursuant to an underwriting agreement among the Corporation and BMO Nesbite Burns fnc., Haywood Securities Ine., Westwind
Partreers Ine. and Auwstock Corporate Finance Limited.
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OCEANA GOLD LIMITED

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The sccompanying consolidated financial statements of Oceana Gold Limited were prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Management acknowledges responsibility for the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements, including responsibility for significant sccounting
Judgments and estimates and the choice of sccounting principles and methods that are appropriate to Ocesna Gold
Limited and the entities it controls (“the Group’s”) cireumstances. The significant accounting policies of the Group are
surmmarized 1 note 2 to the consolidated financial statemnents.

Management has ostablished systemns of internal control over the financial reporting process, which are designed to
provide reasonable assurance that relevant and relisble fmancial information is produced.

Ernst and Young, the Group's independent auditors, conduct an audit of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Australian generally accepted anditing standards. Their andit includes an examination, on a test basis, of
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. As well, they make an assessment of the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and they evaluate the overall financial
staternent presentation.

The Board of Direetors is responsible for reviewing and approving the consolidated financial statements and for
ensuring that mavagement fulfils #ts financial reporting responsibilitics. An Audit Committee assists the Board of
Directors m fulfilling this responsibility. The members of the Audit Committee are not officers of the Group. The Audit
Committee meets with management as well as with the independent auditors to review the internal controls over the
financial reporting process, the consolidated financial statements and the auditors” report. The Audit Committee reports
its findings to the Board of Directors for its consideration m approving the consolidated financial statements for issuance
to the shareholders.

Management recognizes s responsibility for conducting the Group’s aflairs in complance with established
financial standards, end applicable laws and regulations, and for maintaining proper standards of conduct for its activities.

{Signed) SrepHEN A. Ori {Signed) Ross Grossor
Chief Executive Officer Chief Fimancial Officer
Melbourne, Australia Melbourne, Australia
May 15, 2007 May 15, 2007
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OCEANA GOLD LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO DIRECTORS OF OCEANA GOLD LIMITED

We have audiied the consolidated balance sheets of Oceana Gold Linvted and its controlled entities {the “Company™}
as at December 31, 2006, and 2005 and the consolidated statements of carnings/{loss}, retained earnings, comprehensive
incomo/(loss) and cash flows (the “Financial Staternents™) for the three years ended Decomber 31, 20606,

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Finaneial Statements in
gccordance with Canadian  generally accepted accounting principles. This responsibility meludes designing,
mmplementing and mainiaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial
Statements that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable n the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our regponsibility is to express an opinion on the Finaneial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our avdit in
gecordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial report is free from material misstaternent.

An gudit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial
Statements. The procedures sclected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstaternent of the Flnancial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. [n making those risk assessments, we consider
mternal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements i order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for our audil
opinion.
Independence

In conducting our sudit we have met the independence requirements of the Australian professional sccounting
bodies.
Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, these consolidated Financial Statements, present fairly in all material respects:

{ay the financial performance of the Company for the three years ended December 31, 2006; and

{by the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2006, and 2005,

i accordance with Canadian generally accepied sccounting principles.

{Signed) "Ernst & Young”
Chartered Accountants
Melbourne, Ausiralia

May 15, 2607
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AUDITOR’S REPORT IN RESPECT OF COMPATIBILITY WITH CANADIAN GAAS

To the Directors of
Oceana GOLD LiMITED

We conducted our audit for the years ended 31 December 2006, 31 December 20065 and 31 December 2004 in
accordance with Australian Auditing Stendards and Evost & Young™s proprietary audit methodelogy, which we believe to
be substantally equivalent to Canadian Generally Accepted Aunditing Standards (“Canadian GAAS™).

There ave no material differences in the form or conient of our report as compared to an auditor’s report prepared m
accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and if this report was prepared in accordance with
Canadian GAAS it would not contain a reservation.

{Signed) "Ernst & Young”
Chartered Accountants
Melbourne, Australia

May 15, 2607
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OCEANA GOLD LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Ag at December 31

2{H}6

2415

Notes
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents ... L 5
Accounts receivable and other receivables ... L oL L o 10
[VenIOTION. « oL L 12
Prepaymenis . ... ...
Current portion of future tax assets. .. .. ... ... L 6
DerivalIves . .. .o 22
Total current 885CI8 . L. L L e
Nen-current assets
Accounts receivable and other receivables .. ... L Lo L o 10
[VEnIOTION. L oL o e 12
Property, plant and equipment . ... .. . L 13
MIBIIG BS8CT8 . . o o e 14
Demvalives . ..o 22
Total non-current asSeis .. ... ..
TOTAL ASSETFS . . e
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Habilities
Accounts payable and scerued Habilities. .. ... o o o oL L
Derivatives o .. o 22
Current portion of employee benefits . .. ..o o o L 21
interest-bearing loans and bormowings. .. ... ... L L 16
Current income axes payablo. ... . L e
Total current liabilitles. .. . o L e
Nen-current liabilities
Other long term obHEAGONS .. ... L.
Employee benefils . . .. ..o 21
Derivatives . .. .. 22
interest-bearing loans and borrowings. .. .. ... L L 16
Future income tax fabilitles . ... . .. o o 6
Asset retirement obligation. . ... .. L 15
Total non-current liabilities . ... ...
TOTAL LIABELITEES .. .. .
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Capital S10CK . .. L 17
Retained IBINES . .. ... . 17
Equity portion of convertible debt . .. ... L Lo 17
Contributed surplis . .. o 19
Accumnulated other comprehensive income ... ... L L o 18
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY . ... .. ... .. ... . ..
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY ... ... ... ... .. ..

Contingencies (note 26)
Commitments (note 25}
Subsequent evenis (note 28}

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

{Signedy Janes E. Askaw

Director Director

{in thousands of United
States dollars)

80,025 34,816
2488 6,721
10,498 9.459
508 563
22,894 6,058
4298 .
120711 57.617
T —
21452 18,263
155,032 112,213
316,338 52,891
][)] I —
503,018 183367
623720 240,984
14,700 13,421
73,9078 14,613
1,550 1,380
957 6,150
........... 256
91,185 35,820
3,466 749
3 I — .
.......... 10,386
140,652 58,674
90,763 18,207
8422 6,704
243384 94,720
334,560 130,540
246,146 77442
11,768 35,195
9,239 2,534
18,032 750
3075 (5477)
289,160 110444
623,720 240,984

(Signed) §. Dentast SnaLe

The accompanying Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements are an infegral part of these financial statements.
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OCEANA GOLD LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS/{LOSS)
For the years ended December 31

Nates 26i6

2005

2068k

{in thousands of United States doltars
except per share amounts)

Revenue
Gold sales .. ... 94,730 77,778 84,745
Release from other comprehensive income of deferred unrealised loss on
designated hedges . .. oL L L L {27684y o e
67,066 71,778 84,745
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation and amortisation. . .. .. .. ... ... ... {72,684y (70,102) {63,91%)
Depreciation and amortisation. . ... .. ... L L o e {14,031y  (13471) {11,597}
Other expenses
Ierest eXPense . . .. ... (6,594  {2,976) (3.764)
Write off of deferred exploration expenditure .. .. .. ... L L L. e - 3192y o
Other . o (6,212y (7,742 (3,037
{12,806y (13,910)  (8,821)
Gain/(loss) on fair value of undesignated hedges .. .. .. .. ... .. .. L. (5,079 (8899) 23788
OLher INCOTNE . . . . .. o i e e e e 5 2,766 1,118 2,005
Earnings/(loss) before income faxes . .. .. ... ... ... .. ... {34,768y (27486) 26,202
[ncome taxes {expensey beneflt . . ... Lo 6 11,341 8,869 (8,31
Netearnings/floss) . .. ... ... .. . . e {23427y (18,617) 17883
Net earnings/{loss) per share: . ... .. .......... .. ... .. ... . L 7
------- ~hasic (cents per Share) . ... .. .. e e {(3.77) {5.17) 5.1
----------- diluted (cents per shared. .. ... L L {(5.77) {5.17) 5.10

The accompanying Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements are an infegral part of these financial statements.
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OCEANA GOLD LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
For the years ended December 31
Notes 2606 2005 2004

{in thousands of
Lintted States doilars)

Retained earnings/(loss) at beginning of year ... .. .. ... .. ... .. .. .. 35,195 50,436 38,553
Net earningsfIos8) . .. oo {23427y (18,617) 17883
Dividends declared. .. .. ... . e e {2,628)
T . . e e 4 e

Retained earnings/{loss} atend of year . .. .. ... .. ... ... . L. 11,768 35,185 56,436

The accompanying Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements are an infegral part of these financial statements.
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OCEANA GOLD LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/{LOSS)

For the years ended December 31

Net meomedIos8) . .. e e
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax:
Cash flow hedge gain/floss . .. ... ... L L o
Currency translation differences .. ... ..o o o oo o

Comprehensive income/flossy. .. .. ... .o L

Nates 20606 25 254
{in thousands of
United States doilars)

23,427y (18,617) 17,883

iR 1,383 (10,358) o
iR 7,169 {7,035) 16,119
8,552 (17,388 16,119

(14,875} (36,005) 28,002

The accompanying Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements are an infegral part of these financial statements.
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OCEANA GOLD LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For years ended December 31
Notes 2086

2005

2068k

{in {housands of

United States dolars)

Operating activifies

Net eamings/(Joss} . . .o L {23427y (I18,617) 17.883
Charges/{eredits) not affecting cash
Depreciation and amortiSation expense ... ... .. i o 14,031 13471 11,597
Net (gain)/loss on dispossl of property, plant and equipment .. .. ... ... (35) (7) 41
Accorued ITeresl . . .. L e e 1,002 43 e
Share based paymems. . ... ... 300 336 405
Non-cash derivalive exXpenses . .. .. ot o i 33,622 14,094 (3,062)
Future tax expensefbenelit) . ... ... . o o {11,341} {8.869) 8319
Changes in non-cash working capital
Acerned inferest receivable ... oL oL L L L (228 {124}
{lncrease) m accounts receivable and other receivables. . .. .. ... .. .. .. (1,881y  {1,052) {739y
{lncrease)/decrease I MVENTOLY . .. ... oo i 4,933 {3377y (3567
{Decrease)inerease infaxes pavable ... o L Lo oo oL {264} 20060
{Decrease)inerease in accounts payable . ... .. Lo o L L (1,940 (G43) 529
{Deercase)/ineroase in ofher Provisions .. ... ... .. o il 1,286 204 1,006
Net cash provided by opetating activities .. ... ... ... . oL 16,048 {6,095) 30,288
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . .. .. .. .. .. L. 596 697 232
Payments for property, plant and equipment ... .. .. L L Lo {48,842} (10,295) (4,273
Payments for mining assets: exploration and evaluation. .. .. ... ... ... (3,313} {1,B98) (2,368
Payments for mining assets: development .. ... ... L o oL (2,677 {2,78R) (2,965
Payments for mining assets: mproduction. . ... ... ... . oL (2,841)  (1,803)  (5.230)
Net cash flow on sCquusition. ... .. .. .o o 7561 e e
Net cash used for investing activities. . .. .. ... .. ... o (49,5261  (16,095)  (14.604)
Financing activities
Proceeds fromissuc of shares .. . .. . 320 36,857
Payment of share (ssues costs ... ... o L L e e e (1,935
Payment of finance lease Habilities . .. ... .. .. o o L (6,706  {5,727)  (3.677)
Proceeds from finance 1ease .« .o . i e e 3 1 ) N ——
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes . .. ... ... L L 57870 33144
Proceeds from/(repayment of ) other borrowings .. .. ... . L L 9,820 - {24,775}
Release of envirormendal bonds . .. .. .. .. .. .. . . e 12,112 £15,894)
Dividends paid. .. .. . e e {2,746)
Net cash provided byfused i} financing activities .. .. .. .......... ... 74,405 36,783 {11,424
Effect of exchange rates changesoncash .. ... ... .. ... .. ... .. ... 4,282 (1,719) 2,205
Net merease in cash and cash eguivalents .. ... .. .o o L L 45,209 12,874 6,465
Cuash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .. ... .. ... . L. 34816 21,942 15,477
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year. .. .. ... ... ... . ... .. 9 80,023 34816 21,942
Cashtaxespald . ... . o 204y e e -
Cashinterest paid. . ... o (5592 (2,334) (4114
Proceeds from close out of hedge contracts . .. ... .o o o oo e e 15,068

The accompanying Notes 1o Consolidared Financial Striements are an integral part of these financial stafements.
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OCEANA GOLD LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2000, 2085 and 2004

Nature of operations

Oceana Gold Limited (“Oceana Gold™} is engaged in exploration and the development and operation of gold and other mineral mining activities.
Oceana Gold is New Zealand's fargest gold producer and is nearing the completion of the development of the (lobe Progress open cut ntine and has
caommeneed development of the new Frasers underground mine. Since the November 6, 2006 acguisition of Climax Mining Ltd (Climax™} the
group has added the Didipio Gold-Copper Prolect in the Philippines {o s development porifolio.

Semmary of stgnificant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements of Oceana Gold and its subsidiaries {“the Group™, also referred o as “we”, “us” and “ow™} are prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally aceepted accounting prineiples {(“GAAP™).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated firancial statements include the financial statements of the parent entity, and its controfled entities, referred o collectively
throughout these financial statements as the “consolidated entity™

Financial statements of Toreign controbled entites presented in accordanee with overseas accounting principles ave, for consolidation purposes,
adjusted where necessary (o comply with Group policy. Adjustments are also made o bring into line any dissimifar aceounting policies that may
exist,

All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from bntra-group transactions, have been climinated in full.
Linreaiised iosses are eliminated unless cosis cannot be recovered.

Controfled entities are consolidated from the date on which control is transterred {0 the consolidared entity and cease o be consolidated from the
date on which control {s transterred oud of the consolidated entiy.

Foreign carrency transfotion

These consolidated financial statements are cxpressed in United States dollars (CUSS™). The functional currency of Qeeana Gold i3 Australian
dolars (“AS™). The financial statements of the (roup have been fransiated to USS using the cusrent rate method described below.

The presentation of the balance sheet in US% has been performed using the exchange rates of U881 equals AS1.3697 and AS1 2669 which were the
clositg exchange rates at December 31, 2005 and 2006 respectively. The average exchange rates of USS1 equals ASEIS6T, ASI3 0D, ASE3269,
were tsed, where relevant for the translation of profit and loss and cash flow amounts shown for the periods ended Becember 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006 respectively.

The Group empioys the current rate method of franslation for #s sehlsustaining operations. Under this method, all assets and labilities are
transtated at the year-end rates and afl revenue and expense items are fransiated at the average monthiy exchange rates for recognition i ncome.
Differences arising from these foretgn currency transtations are recorded in shareholders™ equity as a cumudative transiation adiusiment untif they
are realized by a reduction in the net investment,

The Group employs the termporal method of franslation for its Integrated operations. Under this method, monetary assets and Habilities are
transhated at the vear-end rates and all other assets and Habilities are translated at appiicable historical exchange rates. Revenue and expense Hems
are translated at the rate of exchange in effect at the date the transactions are fecogaized In income, with the exception of depreciation and
amortisation which is translated ar the historical rate for the associated asser. Realized exchange pains and losses and cusrency transtation
adjustments are included in income.

Estimutes

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to make estimnates and assumptions that aflect
the amounts reported in the consolidated finarcial statements and related notes. Significant arcas where management’s judgement is applied
include ore reserve and resowrce deferminations, exploration and evaluation assets, mine development costs, plant and eguipment Hves, contingent
lighilities, current tax provisions and fulure fax balances and assef retirement obligations. Actual resuits may differ from those estimates.
Cash and cash egquivalenis

Cash and cash eguivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with a remaining maturity of three months
or fess af dhe date of purchase.

Inventories

Bullion and ore

Inventories are valued at the Jower of weighted average cost and nef realisable value. Costs include fixed direet costs, variable divect costs and an
appropriate portion of fixed overhead costs.
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Credd i circnit

Ciobd in circuit is valued af the fower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, The average cash cost of production for the month is used
atd aliocated to gold that is in the circuit at pertod end. These costs include mining and production costs as well as commercial, envirommental,
health and safery expenses, and stock movements.

Stores

nventories of consumable supplies and spare parts are valued af the Jower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned on & weighted average
basis.

Property, plant amd eguipment

Property, piand and equipment are stated at cost less provision for depreciation and any impairment in value. Afl sueh assets, except frechold land,
are depreciated over lheir estimated useful lives on a straight line, reducing balance or production cuipud basis, as considered appropriate,
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.

Drepreciation rates used:

Bulldings . ... .. .. L L. 94 per annum straight line
Minitg assels . ... L. unit of production based on economically recoverable resources
Ohber plant and equipment .. ... ... 9% - 33%% per annum straight jine

24 - 30% per anpre reducing balance

Imprairment

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impainment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may
net be recoverable. H any such indication exists and whese the carrying value exceeds the undiscounted future cash flows from these assets, the
assets are writter down to fair value.

Explovation, Evalnation, Development and Restoraiion Costs
Exploration and Evaliation Expenditure
Exploration and evaluation expenditure is stated at cost and is accumulated in respect of each idemifiable arca of interest.

Such costs are ondy carried forward to the extent that they are espected to be recouped thioush the successtud development of the area of interest {or
abernatively by its sale), or where activities in the area have not vel reached 2 stage which permits 2 reasonable assessment of the existence or
otherwise of cconomically recoverable resources, and active work is continuing.

Accumulated costs in refation fo an abandoned ares are written off to the statement of earningsloss) in the period in which the decision to abandon
the area is made.

Acregular review is undertaken of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing fo carry Torward costs in refation to that area
of interest.

Mining Properties in Production or Under Bevelopment

Minitg propesties in production (including exploration, evaluation and development expenditure) are accumulated and brought to account a cost
less aceamubated amortisation in respect of each idemifiable area of interest. Amostisation of capitalised costs, including the estimated future
capital costs over the {ife of the area of interesy, is provided on the production outpid basis, proportional o the depletion of the mineral resource of
each arca of interest expected to be wltimately cconomically recoverable.

Aregular review is undertaken of each area of nterest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to catry Torward costs i rebition to that area
of interest. Should the carrving value of expenditire not yet amortised exceed its estimated recoverable amount, the excess is writien off to the
statement of carnings/{ioss).

Imprairment

The carrying values of exploration, evaluation and development costs are reviewed for impalrent when events or changes In cireumstances
indicate the earvying value may not be recoverable, [f any such indieation exists and where the carrying value exceeds the undiseounted furtire cash
fows from these assels, e assets are written down o fair value.

Asset Reftrement Obligations

The {roup recogrises the fair valie of a fuktwre assed retirement obligation as a Hability in the period in whick & inewrs a lepal obligation a
with the retirement of tangible long-tived assets that results from the aequisition, construetion, development and/or normal use of the assets
Ciroup concurrently recognises a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset that is depreciated over the fife of the
asset. They key assumgptions on whick the falr value of the asset retirement obligations are based inelude the estimated fitore cash Hlow, the Hming
ofthose cash flows and the credit-adjusted risk-free rate or rates on which the estimated cash flows have been discounted. Subsequent o the nitial
messurement the fability is acereted over time through periodic charpes 10 carnings. The amount of the lability is subject fo re-theasurement af
each reporting period if there has been & change o cerfain of the key assumptions.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as ircurved with the exception of borrowing costs directly assoctated with the constraction, purchase or aoquisition of
a qualiiying asset, which are capitalised as part of the cost of the asser.

Trade and ather receivables

Trade receivables are initially recorded at the amount of contracted sales proceeds, amd then subsequently carried at cost less impairment.
Receivables from related entities are initially recognized at the exchange amount and then subsequently carried at cost less impatrment. Where
these receivables are inferest bearing, inferest is faken up as income on an aceruals basis.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at cost and represent Habilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the
finaneial vear that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments i respect of the purchase of these goods and
services.

Interest-Dearing loans and bortowings

All loans and borrowings ave initiafly recognized af the falr vakue of the consideration received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing,.

Adter iniial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured af cost using the effective interest method by taking into
decount any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.

Ciaing and los
PEOCESS,

o5 are recoghtized i the statement of earnings/(foss) when the liabilities are derecognized and as well as through the amontisation

Convertible nofes

For convertible rotes, the conponent of the converibie note that exhibits characteristies of a liability is recognized as a liability in the balance
sheet, net of ransaction cosis.

O issuanee of the convertible note, the fair value of the labiiity component is determined using a market vate for an eguivalent non-convertibie
bonrd and this amount is carvied as a jong-term iability on the amortised cost basis anti] extinguished on conversion. The increase in the Hability due
to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The remaitder of the proceeds is allocated o the conversion option {hat is recognized and ineiuded in shareholders™ equity, el of transaction costs.
The carsving amount of the conversion oprion is pod remeasured in subsequent vears.

fnterest on the Hability component of the convertible nole is recogrized as an expense in profi or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the Habiliy amd equity commponents of the convertible note based on the allocation of proceeds o the
Lability and equity components when the instrument is fiyst recognized.

Employee benefits

A liabiifty is recognized for employee benefits acewrnubated as a result of emplovee services up to the reporting date. These emplovee benefits
include wages and safaries, annual feave, and fong service leave, and include related costs such as payrol] tax and workers compensation insurance.

A Hability {s recopnized for annual leave and the current portion of Tong service feave together with the associated employnent costs are measured
atl their nominal amottms based on remuneration rates expected (0 be pald when the Hability is settbed. The non-current portions of long service
leave and {ts associated employment on-costs are measured at the present value of estimated fulure cagh flows. A Hability is recognized for
accumulating non-vesting sick leave based on anticipated future payments (o the extent that an obligation exists.

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed as incusred.

Shave-Dused puyment ransactions

The consolidated entity provides benefits to employees (Including directors) in the forme of share-hased payment transactions, whereby employees
render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares Mequity-settied transactions™).

There are curvently two plans in place {o provide these benefits:

{i}y  The Executive Share Oplions Plan

OF7), which provides berefits to the managing director and senior executives, and

{ii} The Employee Share Acquisifion Plan ("ESAPT, which provides benefits to all employees, excluding dircetors.

The eost of these eguity -settied transactions with employees 1s measured by reference o the fair value o the date at which they are pranted. The fair
vakue of oplions issued is determined by an exiernal valuer using & binomial model, combined with Monte Carlo sinwation for those options where
there is & market performance hurdie.

fn valuing equity-settfed iransactions, no aceount s taken of any performance conditions, oiher than conditions linked to the price of the shares of
Creeans (rold Cmarket conditions™).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recogrized, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
conditions are fuififled, ending o the date on which the relevant employvees become fully entitied to the award (“vesting dare™).
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The cumulative expense recognized for eguity-settied transactions at each reporting date untit vesting date reflects:
{i}  the extent to whick the vesting period has expired, and
{ii}  the number of awards that, in the opinion of the directors of the consolidated entily, will ultimately vest,

This opitdon is formed based o the best available information at balance date. Mo adjustment is made for the {ikelihood of market performance
conditions being met as the effect of these conditions is included in the determnination of fair value at grant date.

No expense is recognized For awards that do not uitimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a markel condition.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or containg a fease is based ot the substanee of the arrangement and requires an assessment of
whether the fuififment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of & specific asset or assers and the arvangement conveys a right 1o use the asset,

Finance feases, which transfer {o the consolidated entity substantiaily all ihe risks and benefits incidental to ownesship of the leased item, are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, al the present value of the minimum fease paynents.

fease paymenis are appottioned between the finance charges and reduetion of the Jease Hability so as to achieve a constant rate of inerest on the
remuaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income.

Capitalised {eased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful Hie of the assed or the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantiafly all the risks and benetits of ownersitip of the asset are classitied as operating eases. Inftial direct costs
incurred in nepotisting an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis
as the lease iscome.

Operating lease pavments are recogitized as an expense in the statement of earningsiloss) on a straight-Hoe basis over the lease term.
Reveune

Revente s recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economie beneflis will flow to the consolidated entity and revenue can be reliably
measured. The foliowing specific recognition criteria must also be med before revenue {8 recognized:

Bullion safes

Revente from sales of gobd and silver is recognized when there has been a passing of the significant ricks and rewards of ownership, which means
the following:

+ Fhe product is in a form suitable for delivery and no further processing is required by, or on behalf of the corsolidated entity;
+ Fhe quantity and guality {grade} of the product can be delermined with reasonable accuracy,

+  The product has been despatched to the customer and i3 no jonger under the physical conirol of the consolidated entity {or title of the
product has earlier passed to the customer);

+  Fhe seliing price is determinable;
+ It is probable that the ceonomic benefits associated with the transaction will flow lo the consolidated entity; and

+ Fhe costs incurred or (o be inewryed in respect of the tramsaction are delerminable.

Interest

Revente is recoghized as the inferest accrues using the effective interest method. This is the rale that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rentol Income

Revente from rental income is recognized on & straight-line basis over the lease term.

Muandgement fee income

Managentent fee income Is recognized as the refevant sevrvices are performed.

Income tax

The {iroup follows the fiability method of income tax allocation. Under this method, fulure ax assets and jiabilities are determnined based on
ditferences bebween the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured usitg the substantiafly enacted tax rates and faws
that will be in effect wher the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is provided to the extent that i# s more likely that not these
fuflre income tax assets wiit ot be realised.

Derivative financial instraments and hedge accounting
The consolidated entity benefits from the use of derivative financial instruments to manage commodity price and foreign curreney exposures.
Prerivative financial instruments are initially recognized in the balance sheet at fair value and are subsequently re-measured af their fair values.

The fair value of forward gobd instruments is cafeulated by discounting the future value of the forward contract at the appropriste prevailing quoled
market rates at reporting date. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is caloiated by reference to current forward exchange contracts with
similar maturity profifes.
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Prior to January 1, 20045, the Group was required to apply the guidance in Accounting Guideline 13 “Hedging Relationships™ ("AcG-137). The
CGiroup did ot designate any derivative financial instraments as hedges under Ac(G-13 and as such, alf derfvative financial instruments bave been
recoghized at falr value through carnings prior {o January 1, 2005,

Effective January 1, 2005, the Group adopted Section 3853 “Financial Instrurnents — Recogrition and Measurement”, Section 3865 “Hedges™ and
Section 530 “Comprehensive Income™ {see note 33, and certain derivative financial instruments have been designated as hedges under the
requirernents of Section 3865, For the purposes of hedpe accounting, hedpes are classified ag efther fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure
{o changes {n the fair value of a recopnized asset or lability or cash flow hedges where they hedge exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
atiributable to a particular risk associated with & recognized asset or Hability or a forecasied transaction.

The method of recognising the resulting gain or toss is depenrdent on the aature of the ftems being hedged.

Ad the incepton of the transaction, the consolidated entity documents the rejationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undestaking various hedge transactions. This process includes lrking all derivatives designated as
hedges to specific forecast gold sales.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are desighated against future produetion, qualify as cash flow hedges and if deemed highly effective, the
gain or loss on the effective portion is recognized in accumudated other comprehensive income. The ineftective portion is recognized in the
statentent of earningsfloss). Amounts deferred in acewnuiated other compreiensive income are iransferred to the statement of carnings/(toss) and
classified as revenue in the same periods during which the hedged gold sales affect the statement of carnings/{oss}.

Certain derivative instruments do not gualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the faiy value of any derivative instruments that do nod qualify for
hedge accounting are recognized immediately in the statentent of carnings/ioss).

When a hedging instrument expives or is sold, or when 2 hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in accumulated other comprehensive incore at that time remains i other comprelensive neorne and is recognized when the conmitied or
forecasted production is ultimately recoguized in the statement of earnings{loss). However, i the committed or forecasted production is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or [oss reporied in other comprehensive eome is nmediately transferred to the statement of carnings/
finsg).

When the hedged firm commitment resuits in the recognition of an asset or a Habiliry, the associated gaing or losses, proviously recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive eome are included in the initial measurement of the acquisition cost or ofther carrying amount of the asset or
Lability.

Issued Capital

fssued and paid up capital is recognirzed at the fair value of the consideration received by {he Group. Any transaction costs arising on the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized directly in equity 2% a reduction of the proceeds received.

Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share is caloubated as net profit attributabe to members of the parent divided by the weiglted average number of ordinary shares.

PYiiuted earntngs per share is caleubated as ned profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted for the after tax offeet of dividends and inferest
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognized as expenses, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares and dilitive potential ordinary shares.

Adoeption of New Accounting Seandards
Fingncial instraments

fr Apeil 2005, the Accounting Standards Board of the Canadian Ingtitule of Chartered Accountants issued three new accounting standards dealing
with the recognition, measwrement and disclosure of financial instruments, hedges and comprehensive income, togelber with many conseguential
amendments throughout the CHOA Handbook. These new standards have been applied as of the beginning of the petiod commeneing January 1,
2005, A summary of the impact kas been disclosed below:

{i}  Financial bastraments - Recoganition and Measurement, Section 3435
This standard preseribes when a financial asset, financial Hability, or non-financial derivative is to be recognized on the balance sheet and whether
fair value or cost-based methods are used 10 measure the recorded amounts. 18 also specities how financial nstrument pains and losses are to be
presented.

The Group's cash equivalents, temporary investments and investments in marketable securitios have been classified as available-for-sale and are

recorded at fair value on the balance sheel. Changes in the fair value of these instruments witl be reflected in olker comprehensive income and

included in sharcholders” equity on the balance sheet,

Uinder Section 3855, ali derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet at fair vaiue. Mark-to-market adjustments on these instruments sre included in

net income, uniess the mstraments are desighated as part of a cash fow hedge refationship. Ail other financial instruments are recorded al cost or

amottized cost, subject o impabrment reviews. Transaction costs incwred to acquire fimancial instruments are ineluded in the underlying balance.
{ii}  Hedges, Section 3863

s

This stardard is applicable when the {roup chooses 1o designate a hedging relationship for accounting purposes. it builds on the existing AcCG—13,
“Hedging Relationships™, and Section 1630, “Foreign Currency Transiation™, by speeifyving how hedge accounting is applied and what disclosures
are necessary when i is applied.
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Hedge accounting is applied where the specific eriterta under Section 3865 are met. Refer to note 2 for the Group's accounting policy apphed
effective January 1, 2005 with regard 0 hedge accounting.

{fiiy Comprehensive fncome, Section 1330
This standard requires the presentation of & statement of comprehensive income and its components. Comprehensive ineome includes both net
earnings and other comprehensive income. Other comprefiensive income neludes holding gains and josses on certain investiments, gains and Josses
on certaitt derivative instruments and foreign currency gains and fosses relating {o seif-sustaining foreign operations, all of which are not included
in the caleutation of ned earnings until realised.

Variable interest enfities

Ad the beginning of fiscal year 2005, the Group adopied prospectively the new accounting guideline on the consolidation of variable inferest entities
{VIEs), legal entities thal are not controlied by sharchoiders with volting rights. The guideline provides guidarce for determining when an entity
must inelude the assets, fabilities and results of activities of such an entity and applies to anpual and interiin periods beginning on or after
Noventber 1, 2004, The application of this guideline did not have an impact o the Group's financial statenents for the yvears ended December 31,
2005 o December 31, 2008,

Segment Luformation

The Group's operations are managed on a regional basis. The fwo reportable segments are Now Fealand and the Philippines.

New Zezland  Philipgi Tokzk
S1006 S0 ST

Year Eanded December 31, 2006
Revenue
Sales to external COSIOMIEDS . . . L L e . G473 e 94,750
Redeage from other comprehensive income of deferred unrealised losses on designated

BEARES © . e e e 276845 e (27,684)
Total Segment Revente . . .. ... Lo L [ — 67,066
Resule
Segment result excluding unsealised hedge fosses © . Lo L Lo {1,894 {463} {2,35T)
Release from other comprehensive inconte of deferred unrealised losses on designated

BEARES ..o e 276845 e (27,684)
Total Segment resilt. . .. L L L {29 578} {463} 3045
Uinalfocated expenses . .. . L L 1LEAT
Boterest expense . . ... L L {6,5394)
Loss before BIK . o L e (34,7683
Focome tax benettt © o . 15,341
Net foss for the vear . . . L L L (23,427
Assets
SeRMERT B85E18 . L L L. L L L e e 4K 4K2 258,643 a07,125
Limaltoeated assels . . . L L L . b, 60
Totab assels . . . L L . 623,724
Capital 888618 . . . . . oL 214,119 255,251 474,370
Other sepment information
Capital expenditilte . . Lo e 5823% 0 38.23%
Prepreciation and amomtisation. . ... .. L L L L 14,614 i7 14,031

fn 2004 and 2005 the consolidated entity operated in one reporting segment, being resourees and in one geographical segment being New Zealand.

fncome derived in the New Fealand segment is from the sale of gold. There are no infer-segntent transactions.

(Hber locome

206 25 2iHK4
SO S00n $000

Oiber incomef{expense)

FRECTEST HIOOME © . L L L L e e e e e 26018 1078 24033
Chain/dioss} on disposal of property, plant and eguiprent ..o L L EN 7 {413
CHBer i il3 33 13
Total Ry BICOME . . . . . 2766 111K 2063




Income Tax
Major components of income fax expense/benefit:

2006 2005 20604
ST 060 $000 $7060

Statement of carnings/{loss)
Fufure income tax

Future income tax beneflt relating to tax losses carried forward. . ... oL .. oL oL L Lol L 7,597y (13,544 {5,688
Adpustments in regpeet of future inconte tax of provious years .. ... L. L Lo {2223 {58) {423
Relating o orfgination and reversal of temporary differences . .. 0oL L o0 Lo oL oL {3,522} 4,733 14,047
fncome tax {benefitiexpense reported in statement of carnings/(foss) . .. .. ... L. oL {15348y {HR6Y9 8319

Numerical reconciliation between aggregate tax expense/benefit recopnized in the income 13x
sfafement and the fax expense/benefif calenlaied per the staiufory income tax rate

A reconciliztion of income tax expense applicable to accounting profl before income tax at the statuwlory
income tax rate to income tax expense at the Consolidated enfity’s effective income tax rate for the
vears ended December 31 is as follows:

Accounting profitflioss) before tax from conlinuing operations .. ... .. .. ... Ll L. {34, 768)  (27.4R6) 26,202
At the statutory income tax rate of 30% Q2003 0%, . .0 L L {1043 (82481 7,861
Adjustments in respect of current income fax of previous Years . .. .. Lo L L. {2223 {58) £42)
Expenditure not allowable for meome fax purposes . . ... Lo L oL Lo oo 294 {8 144

Eifect of differing tax rates bebween Australia and New Zealand .. .. .o L o o o0 oL {988)Y (K24} 186

Forelgn exchange [oss on foan .. .. oL L L e o {418)

T 42 R — 159 (N

fncome tax {benefitiexpense reported in the statement of camingsAlossy .. .. ... . .. L. {15,345y {HR6Y9} 8319
2006 2005

S F000
Future income tax
Future income tax at December 31 relates 1o the following:
Fufure income tax fabiliiies

MiBiRZ 888818 . L L L e {86,407y (17.604)
Property, plant amd eQUEPIENT . . L. .. L L L e {41,307y (25474)
FRVEIHOIY . . L L e e {868} {295
bnterest Recelvable. | o 0L 0 o {258} (R
Accoried REVENE | © . e e {F,143) {8323
Revaluations of hedge contracts to fair vale . . Lo 000 0 Lo {4776y
Gross fidwre income tax TabiHues . . L L e {134,759y (44,294
Seb-olf fliire 183 88018 . L. L L e e 43 0 26,087
Net future tas Habilities . e {90,763y (18,20T)
Lesstourrent POTTRIL . . L L L Lo

(B0,763)  (1R,207)

Future facome tax assels

Losses available for offser against future taxable income . ... Lo Lo L L 40,033 2 HI4
Revaluations of hedge contracts to fair vale . L L o000 L0 L L 24,413 8,250
PROVISIONS . . o L e e F040 “72
Acorbed SEPERECS . . L L L e e b, 134 2,063
BOMOIRE COBIE © L L L e e ; ]
BRare BSSUE COSTE . . . . L e e e e e 249 345
Ciross fldure Moome 5 855018 . . . L . L L e e 66,844} 32145
Set-oft fdwre tax labilitdes © o L . {43,906 (26,08T)
22,804 G058
Lesss curtent POITEOI « . Lo L L L e el {22 8943 [EREEEY
Net fltilre B 888818, . L e e

The consolidated entity has a benefit arising on recognized 1ax losses arising in New Zealand of $39.213m (2005: $20.8m, 2004: $18.28m) that are
avaifable indefinitely for offser against future taxable profits of the companies in which the [osses arose.

The recovery of carried forward tax losses is considered more lkely than not of recovery based on foreeast future faxable profits.

Ad Drecember 31, 2006, there is no recognized or unrecognized Tuture income tax Hability {2005 $nil, 2004 $nil} for taxes that would be payvable on
the unremitted carnings of certain of the Group’s controlled entities as the consolidated entity has no lability for additional taxation should such
amounts be remitted.
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fe the consolidsted entity there are furdre tax liabilitles at year end of $63.144m arising from the acquisition of assets as part of the Climax
transaction during 2006,

Tix consolidation

The parent entity and its 100% owned Auséralian resident subsidiaries have formed a tax consolidated group with effect from May 2006, Oceans
Ciobd s the head entity of the tax consolidated group. Members of the group will enter info 2 tax sharing srrangement in order to ajtocate the income
tax Habilities hetween the entities should the head entity defauit on its tax payment oblipations. No amounts kave been recognized in the financial
statements in respect of any agreement as the agreement has nod yet been entered into and possibility of default is remode.

The head entity and the controlled entities in the consolidated group continue to aceount for thelr own current and fudure tax amounts. The Group
has appiied the group aliocation approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and future taxes 1o aflocate to members of the tax
consolidated group.

tn addition to its own current and fture tax amounts the head entity also recognises carrent tax Habilitics or assers and the future tax assets arising
fromt unused fax fosses and anused tax credits assumed from controfled entities in the consolidated group. The group™s accounting policy is to
recoghise consequential pavments w/from the head entity via an infer-entity receivabledpayable)

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share amounts are cafenlated by dividing net profit/Cioss) for the vear attributable to ordinary eguity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear.

Prluted earnings por share amounts are calenlated by dividing the net profit atributable to ordinary shareholders {after adding back interest on the
convertible notes) by the weighled average number of ardinary shares outstarding during the vear {adjusted for the offects of dijutive options and
dilutive convertible notes where the conversion of potential ordinary shares would decrease earnings per share or increase foss per share).

The following reflects the income and share data used in the toml operations basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

20416 IS 4
Fou0 $7006 00
MNumesator:
Net profit/(ioss) attributable 0 equity holders from continuing operations {used in caleuiation
of basic and dilued earmings per share .. .. oL oL {23427} {18,817y F7. 883
Thousands  Thousands  Thousands
Brepominator:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (used in calcuiation of basic carnings per share}. . 403,037 360,000 330,274
Eifect of dilation:
Share OpLIOIS . e - 72

" M
Convertible BOKES . . L e

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares (used in calewlation of diluted earnings
Per SHAYE} L e 403,957 360,000 3305346

Note:

* o In 2005 and 2006 conversion of share options and convertibie notes would decrease the foss per share and henee are non-dilutive.

Dividends Paid and Propuosed

2046 2HES 2004
SO0 RRLH S0
Declared and paid during the vear:
Prividends on ondirary shares: ... L. L - 2624 o
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2046 205 2004
SO0 R S0
Reconciliajion of cash
For the puposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
foilowing & Becember 31:
Cash per the Balance Sheet fcomprising cash on hand, ar bank and on deposity. . .. ... .. .. BE025 14,814 21,542

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The carrving amount of cash and cash cquivaients represents fair
vakie.

Showt-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending or the knmediate cash requirements of the
Ciroup, and carn interest av the respective shori-term deposit rates.
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16.

1L

12.

Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables

) 24H15

SO00 FT00n

Current
Frade receivaldes . L L L e 1. 98K 1,317
Enber reeelvaBEeg . L L e e e 262 5,38
Raterest vecebvabdes . L L i 238 44
Refated party rocelvablos . _ 0 . L L L il e 4%
2A8% 8,721
Non-Current
BT . 286 e
T E—.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are due upon confirmation of gold assay. Other receivables refate to restrieted cash on interest
bearing deposits at bank, in support of environmental bonds and deposits set oud for rental of properties. For teros and conditions of related party
receivables, refer o node 25,

Bisclosure of Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

The acquisition of CHmax was a non-cash investing activity as consideration was in the form of an issue of secwrities. Please refer to note 21 for
further detail.

In December 2006 Oceana Gold New Zealand 14d refinanced its finance lease facility over the mining flect atilised af the Macraes mine. The new
factlity, provided by the ANZ bank has a facility limit of NZ$43.5 million.

I 2005 Mining equipment of $13.1 milifon was acquired by the Group umder & finanee lease.

Invenfories
26é6 2065
5000 S0
Current
Gobd I clrotil, a8 Cost ™ L e 584 K2R
e, at cost 1718 2,208
BUores, T COSE. L L L ERL 426
FER49R .459
Non-Current
Ore, at net realisable wvalue™ L 21,452 18,263
Total inventories at lower of cost and net sealisable value . .o . . . o L. 31,956 27,722
fap Gold in Chrenit, OUNCES. © o L e 5,563 1506
by Ore stockpile, dontes COO0Y — CUFYENT . _ L0 L L. L o G 1,022
e} Ore stockpile, tonnes COHE — MOR-CURTENT © Lo H.E73 8,346
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13, Property, Plant and Equipmens

2006 25
$T ) S0

Freehodd land, at cost

Cost at Decentbir 31 . e e e e e 4,501
Acewnudated depreciation af Becember 3F .o oL oL L L.
A1 31 Brecertber net of accumulated depreciation . . .. oL Lo 4,501

Buildings, at cost

Cost at Decanther 31 L . L e e e e e 4,605 4,281
Acceumudated depreciation al Becember 3E . 0oL oL L L {1 ROy {5,322y
At Pecernber 31 net of accumulated depreciation . .. oL Lo 2,80 2,759
Plant and equipment, ai cost

Costb at Decentbier 31 e e e e e §349,601 95,362
Aveumubated depreciation al December 3F . o oL oL L L 34708y (25,502
Al Pecember 31 net of accumulated depreciation . . .. oL Lo §04, 893 TiLO%0
Leased Assels

Cosboat Decenther 30 L L L #5541 244078
Aceurnubated deprecistion al Becember 3E _ oL oL Lo {27,124y (19,03h
Al Pecember 31 net of accumulated depreciation . . .. oL 47 837 35,046
Net book value of properdy, plant and equipment af December 31 000 0oL L Lo L. 135,632 112,213

Leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease Habilities.

Borrowing costs

There are no borrowing costs capitalised into the cost of any assels beld on the balance sheet al December 31, 2006 (2005 nil, 2004: nil).
14, Mining Assets

2{H}6 20685
$TO00 $ 00

Mining Assets: Exploraéion and evaluation phase, 8¢ cost

Costb at Decemtbier 3 L 263,148 4,757
Mining Assets: Development phase, at cost

Cost at Deenmtbiey 3. e e e e e e 25493 FOL006
Accumudated amortisation on development phase af Becember 31 . 0L L oo o oo o L L Lo L (2,977 {2,371
Ar Drecember 31 net of acewmuladed amortisation . .. .. L L L L. 22,516 Fh,423

Mining Assets: Lo prodaction, at cost

Cost at Decenmtbir 3 . e e e e e 45,743 43,019
Accumudated amortisation on in production assets at 31 December . ... o0 L L L Lo {15,072 (10,208
Ar December 31 net of acewnuladed amortisation . .. .. L L L L . INET3 31.TH

Net book value of mining assets al December 31 ... L L L 316,338 52,89

The costs deferved in respect of exploration and evaluation expenditure are dependent upon successtil development and commercial exploitation of
the respective area of inferest.

15, Asset Retirement Obligatien

2006 b L1
FRCLH S0
Non-Creerent
Rebabiltation . . . . . L . #4232 6,704
Movement:
ALJanuary 1oL 6,764 0,898
Arising duritg the YOar . L L 1,491 §12
Acguired through acguisiiion . . L. L L e iBE -
HSEE L L e {338} {339
Exchange adjustinent © _ . oo 377 {367
At December 3E L #4232 6,704




16,

Rehabilitation

A provision for rehabilitation is recorded in relation to the pold mining operations for the rehabilitation of the disturbed minitg ares to a state
acceptable to various regulatory anthorities. While rehabilitation is ongoing, final rehabiiitation of the disturbed mining area is not expected unti
the cessation of nHning, cutrently estimated (o be beyond 201,

Rebabilitation provisions are estimated bagsed o survey data, external contracted rates and the timing of the current mining scheduie. Provisions are
discounted using a liability specific rate and are externaily reviewed and approved by council nontinated consultants.

Rehabilitation provisions are subject to an inkerent smount of uncertainty i botl tinving and amount and as a result are cominuousiy moniored and
revised.

Agset retirement obligations are inftially recorded as a liability at fair value, assuming & credit adjusted risk free discount rate of 6.5%. The Hability
for retirement and remediation on an undiscounted basis is estimated 1o be approximately $14.084 million.

Interesi-Bearing Loans and Borrowings

Effective
interest
rafe % Maturity 2006 2605
S0 S0
Current
Frnanee beases {uote 24 0 00 L L e 9.44% 31260102 957 5,963
Insurance Premium Loan (NZIDD. _ .00 0oL 4 62% 033120060 e 74
ACC Premium Loan (INFE¥. _ 00 00 o0 o 4.19% 033526060 113
957 3,156
Non-carrent
Finance keases {note 245 0 00 0 oL oL 9.44%; 131260102 43,798 29432
5.75% Cosnvertible Notes EASSImI} © L. L L L L e 9.16% 12/22/2612 30303 29,242
700 Convertible notes {ASTOmMY . .0 oo L i0.13% 124222613 46,892
Project debt factlily (NADY L 0 00 oL i0.25% 1243572010 FRLAGD

140,652 384674

5.75% Convertible Notes (Unsectired)

The Notes bear inferest at 5.75% per annwm payable semi-atnualiy in arrears. The Notes are due for redemption al 109% of their principal amount
it 204 2 unbess prior conversion {o orditary shares af the option of the noteholder. The nwmber of shares to be defivered upor conversion shall be
determined by dividing the prineipal amount of the note by the converstor price of AS0R487 (subject to adjusiment for ceriain specified events).

F00%E Convertible Notes (Secured)

The Notes bear irterest at 7.00% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears. Interest acerned in respect of the notes for the first fwo years is nod
payable but is instead capitalised into the redemption value of the notes. The Notes are due for redemption in 2013 o a value equal {o the sum of
thetr prircipal amount plus the capitalised interest amourd, unless prior conversion to ordinary shares af the option of the noteholder. The number of
shares to be defivered upon conversion shall be determined by dividing the principal amount of the note by the conversion price of AR0.819 {Subject
to adjustment for cerlain specified events).

Finance Ledases

The Group has two finance lease faciiities in place, being a facilily with ANZ Barking Group Ltd (ANZ Factlity™), and a Master Lease Facility
with Caterpillar Finance {“CAT Master Lease™).

ANZ CAT Master
Original drawdown dafe © ... oL e Decentber 28, 2006 October 5, 2006
Term o L ol S years T years
Avreoant dravwen down
SNES COmpOReIt © .. .. L 43 846 [, 586
fntorest rates
SNES COmPOReI . .. .. L 9 36% 9.62%

Financing fuciities available

Al 31 December 2006 the consolidated entity has issued $86.3m (2008: 29 2m) of convertible notes and has available finance lease facilities of
NZEEIS miftion of which NZS63 3m (2005 NZE51 9m) have been drawn.

A consortium of banks provides a 694,806 {2005 700,000} ounce hedging facility to Gceeana Gold New Zealand Lid (OGNZL) (refer to note 22).
OUNZL's assets are pledged as security.

Additionaily, the consolidated entity hag available a project debd facility of up 1o NZ345 million provided by a consortitim of banks of whick
NZEES pullion {2005 Nil} has been drawn at December 31, 2006,
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17. Sharcholders’ Eqgaity

206 2S5 2014
S0 $004 $000
Ordinary shares
fssued and Tully paid .o oo Lo oL 244,146 TTA442 77,442
Thousamds 7000 Thousands  $7000 Thousands®  $7000
Movement in ordinary shares on issue
Addanuary 1o Lo o o 360,000 77,442 Jelonn 77,442 298500 27,362
Conversion of secured [oas to equity . .. .. ... L. e e e e 18,508 13,961
Shares fssued . oL oL L 20 - LG 37,408
Share BSSHE COME . . e e e e {1,969
Tax effect of share fsspe costs .. ... .. L oo Lo e : e e e 3498
Exercise of options .. .. ... .o oo Lo L R 4488 e
tssued through acquisition of entity . . .. o0 .o oL L 33,222 §eR1TZ e e e e
AtBecember 3E L L oLl 663,802 246,146 Jelonn 77,442 IsNa00 77,442
Other equity securities
Viiue of conversion rights — convertible notes . ... L 9,239 2,334 e
9,239 2534 e
The amount shown for olher equity securities is the vakue of the conversion rights relating to the 3.75% and 7% convertible notes, details of which

are shown i bote e,

* I respect of the aequisition of OceanaCiold New Zealand Limited ({GNZL) by OceanaCiold Limited (O4L), the financial statenments kave been
prepared using the continuity-of-interests method of accounting as there was no substantive change i ke ownership interest of OUGNZL.
Accordingly, the assets and labifities assumed by OGL were measured at QCGNZLs historical carrying amount. As g result the number of shares
diselosed is that of the legal parent entity OGL, whereas the value of the share capital at fapuary 1, 2004 is that of OGNZL.

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of the winding up of Oceana Gold, to participate in the proceeds
from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held.

Ordinary shases entitle their hoider {o one vole, either In person or by proxy, at & meeting of (Oceana Gold.

Oceana Gold has a share option scheme under which options to subscribe for Oceana Gold's shares have been granted o executives. Details of
options on issue are provided in Node 9. Shareholders have approved the issue of up o 10,000,000 share options under the scheme.

Creeana {1old also has ar enyployee share purehase plan whereby empioyees are able fo direct up ko 10% of their gross salary o acquire shares, with
Oceana {fold matching the employee contribudion on a doHar for dollar basis. Plan shares are acquired on the Australian Stock Exchange at market
price and held in trust. While the Trustee holds the shares, the emplovees are entitted to Tull dividend and voting righis on the shares beneficially
held on their behalll {Refer note 19).

As pard of the share seheme for the Climax transaction there are also 131,609,315 listed options.

These options entitie the holder to subscribe for one Oceana Gold share &l an exercise price of A$8.925. The options can only be exercised during
the period from January b, 2008 (o January 1, 2009 {or carlier in the event of & successtul dakeover bid for Oceana Gold). The options lapse on
Jantary 1, 2009 if nod exercised betore that date.
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18. Accurnudated €3ther Comgprehensive Income (“(3C17)

1%,

20,

AL January |

Cash flow hedge pains (OSSR . . L. L L
Currency transladion adjustmwents . ..o .. oL L

OCE for the vear:

Effective portion of change in faly value of gold pud options .. .. oo 0 o oo oL
Effective portion of change in fair value of gold forward contracts™ ... 0o L.
Transters of cash flow hedge losses to carnings on recording hedged Hems i carnings .. ... .. ..

Currency transladion differences .. .. L oL L

CHUE Betore Ja% . . L o e e

Inconne tax recoveryf{expense} on effective portion of change i fair vaiue of gold hedges . .. .. ..

pense} on mark to markel movement on gold forward contracts . ... .. ..

Incoime tax recoveryfexpense} on transfers of cash flow hedge tosses to earnings on recording
hedged Bems B Qarnbngs o oo .. L L

Ineome s recove:

OCEnet OF 185 L L

Acewnulated OC1 ar Docember 31

Cash flow hedge pains (OSSR . . L. L L
Currency translation adjustments . .. .o L

20606 2005 2084
ST 060 $000 $7060
{10,338)
4,581 Fiwil §,792
3477y F19E) §,792

2487 - .
{28007y {15,730y e
ITERE e ;
7,160 {7050 HLLEY
9,233 227680y L1119
(82;) ....... S
9,276 5372 e
01367 e e
8532 {17388y 1,119

(B.973y (10,358
12,650 4,881 15,911
3,075 {5477y 1191

Portion of hedge gain@loss} expected o affect 2007 carnings based on the faly value of hedge contracts at December 31, 2006 $2.542 miilion.

Note:

()

(i May 16, 2006, the Group restruciured its gold bedge contracts. The fair valie of the gobd hedge contracts at May 16, 2006 is recognized in
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income and will unwind o earnings in the period to June 2007 {refer to note 22}

Contribuated Surplus

Maovement in contributed sarplus

Avdanuary 1 oL L e
Stock-based compensation eXpeRSC. . . ... L e e
Basie oF OPHIONS L L L L e
Exercise of OPFIOIS . . L L Ll

Stock-Based Compensaiion

(8) Executive share opiions plan

2006 2005

S060 FT000
736 405

293 345
[E TR 1S —
(212

15,932 756

Pirectors, executives and certain mermbers of staft of the consolidated entity hold options over the ordinary shares of the Corporation, Oceana Gold
Limited. Fach option entitles {be holder to one ordinary share upon exercise. The options were issued for nif consideration. Vesting of the options is
currently subject to jovakty and, penerally, performance requiremsents. The options cannod be transferred without the Corporation’s prior approval
and the Corporation does nof intend o Hst the options. No options provide dividend or voting rights 1o the holders.

The vested options are only exercisable if the refevant vesting conditions are met and the relevant employee or executive is employved by or on
behalf of the consolidated entity, or its associades, st the time the options are exercised ar if the options are exercised within 30 days of the refevant
employee or executive ceasing such employment.

The folowing share options were on {ssue it the period:

Vesting Exercise  Fair valee at
date not price Grang date
Opiton Series Number  Grant dase befsre Expiry daic A% A%
] S—E-‘cb-{}:'v‘:é" _________________________ 300,600 F8-Feb-05 01-kan-08 31-Bec-09 $1.23 .17
H 8—Fcb-{}5‘_ . 312507 18-Feb05 {7-Feb-Of {{7-Feh-11 $1.00 .10
WR-Feb-08F L 31,2307 ER-Febh05 {7-Feh-07 {7-Feb-12 $1.25 $0.11
I8-Feh-08F L 62,500"  18-Feb-03 {7-Feb-08 {+7-Feb-13 $1.50 013
18-Feh-08110 0L 250,600 F8-Feb-05 29-Nowv-05 28-Nowv-1) $1.00 .07
SR-Feb-08FL L L 250,600 I8-Feh-05 29-Nov-0b 28-Nowv-1i $1.25 010
H 8—5'?f3b-{}5‘_3" _________________________ 560,600 [8-Feb-05 29-Nowv-07 29-Now-12 $1.50 $0.12
Bl-Sep-08% 360,600 {H-Sep-03 31-Aug-08 I-Aup-t 0,17
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Vesting Exercise  Fair value at

date not price Grang date

Opston Series Npmber  Gramt daie before Expiry daie A% A%

S I HEITHEY 22-hun-06 (H-hun-07 (H-hun-12 $1.00 $0.33
2 JundEH L HEITHEY 22-hun-06 (H-hun-08 (-hun-13 $1.00 $0.36
22-3 un—(}é‘_ . FOLG00 22-hun-06 {H-Jun-09 {H-hun-14 $1.00 $0.39
22-3 un—(}é‘_ D JE250 22-hun-6 22-May-07 22-May-12 $1.00 33
221 un—(}é‘_g} _________________________ JE2M 22-hun-06 22-May-08 22-May-13 $1.25 $0.31
206 62,500 22-hun-06 22-May-09 22-May-14 $1.30 $0.31

Notes:

£E) Oplion holder must be employved by the Corporation or its subsidiary at the vesting date. Shate price must be ASLOU or greater to vest,
{2} Oplion holder must be emploved by the Corporation or its subsidiary at the vesting date. Share price must be A$1.25 or greater to vest,
{3} Option holder must be employed by the Corporation or its subsidiary at the vesting date. Share price must be A$ 130 or greater to vest.
{4} Oplion holder must be empioyed by the Corporation or its subsidiary at the vesting date. Gold production from the New Zealand based gold
assets of the Corporation must it aggregate exceed 3300000z for the vear ending December 31, 2007,

Some or afl of the option balance was forfeited during the financial vear as employment performance conditions were not met or employees
resigned in ihe year

iy Options gramted durving the financial year

The weighted average fair value of the share options pranted during the financial year is AS0.35 (2005 ASG.E3). Options were priced using a
binomial option pricing model. Where options had a performance hurdle & Monte-Carlo simuiation was used to value the performance hurdie.
Where options do rod have a performance hurdle they were valued as Bermudan siyle options using the Cox Rubenstein Binomial moded.
The expected e used in the model has been based on the assumption that employees remain with the Corporation for the duration of the exercise
period and exercise the options when financially optimal This is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occwr.

Pre to the fack of exchange traded data for option prices of Oceana Gold and many other companies, historical volatifity has been used for the
purposes of the valustion. Expected volatiiity is based on the historical share price volatility over the past year as Oceana Gold only has 12 months
of traded share price data available. As a resalt it reflects the assumption thay the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
net necessarily be the outcome.

Prividend vield is assumed to be nil on the basis that no dividends Bave been declared for the 2006 financial vear due to the targe ongoing capital
comnttment,

The following table gives the assumptions made in determining the fair value of options granted in the financial vear:

Risk-free Option
Bividend  Expected interest Expected Jife  Exercise Share Price
Grant Bate vield volatilisy rate of opiion Price ai Grang Bate
Whme 2006 ... oL 0% 43 4% 5.82% 6.0 vears AR100 ARGTT
Whme 2006 . ..o 0% 43 4% 5.82% T4} years ASL40 ARGTT
Whme 2006 . .. Lo L 0% 43 4% 5.82% B0 vears ARG ARGTT
Whme 2006 . ... Lo 0% 43 4% 5.82% 6.0 vears ARG ARGTT
Whme 2006 . ..o oL 0% 43 4% 5.82% T4} years A%1.25 ASGTT
2hme 2006 ... L Lo 0% 3.4% 5829, B4} vears ASL50 ASOTT

The fliowing table reconciles the outstanding share options granted under the executive share option scheme at the beginning and the end of the
Financial year

WAEP = weighfed average exercise price

pAUHT 2005 2iHH

N WAEP No. WAEDP No. WALP

Oustanding at start of vear. .0 ... oo L oL Lo TITEHO0 ASLOR 7,5350.000 A%l :
Granted fnyear .. ... . L 425600 AL 1,725,000 A%1.33 SO50.060  ASLH
Forfeited during the vear . .. .0 . ..o o oo L (12000000 A%130 {1,500000) A%1.26  {1,53000060F AS1.25
Exercised durbng the year. .. .. ... .. L L. (OGO AR e e e e
Expired doving the year .. ... ... e e
Balance at the end of the vear . . .. .. ... 6500000 ARLDT TI73.000 A% D8 T550.000  ASIOR
Exercisable af the end of the year . .. .. .0 .. SO0 ARDTS SE0.000 AR TS e e

iy Balance af end of the financial year

The share options at the end of the Hnancial vear had an excrcise price of between ASLO0 and ASE.50 and 2 weighted average remaining
contractual life of 6.8 years.
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{by Emplovee sharve scguisition plan

Lnder the Oceana Gold Limited Employee Share Acquisition Plan {the “Plan”}, the Corporation offers all employees of the consolidated entity
{other than directors of the Corporation) the opportuaity k& purehase shares in Oceana Gobd. Eligible employees are able to divect up to 10% of their
pross satary to acquire shares, with the Corporation matching the employee contribudion on & dollar for dobar basis.

Plan shares are acquired at market price and beld in trust for the participating employees by a dedicated corporate frustee. While the Trustee bolds
{he shares, the employees ate entitled fo {uli dividend and voting rigits on the shares beneficially hebd on their behalf, A comprehensive Plan
Constitution and Trust Deed set out the basis of operation of the Plan, pursuant to relevant Corporations Aot and taxation legistation requirements.
The transter or sale of Plan shares bs restricted for 2 maximum of 3 years. On each anniversary of an employee's commencement with the Plag, one
thivd of Plar shares acquired in the prior 3-vear period are vested to the employee.

Pretails of the employee share plan for the consolidated entity are as follows:

Shares Transferred from

Opening Shares Held  Shares Acquired by the 1le Trostee Forfeited Shares Closiizgy Shares
by Trustee Trusiee During the Year {huring the Year sold by Frostee Held by 1ke Trosies
Numt Number'  Fair Yaloe™  Number'™  Fair Value®™ Number®™ Number  Fair Value'™
Wed L - e e e .
005 00 L. o 406,067 A$253,501 8,300 AS4.650 - 307767 AS276,448
2006 ... 397767 330410 A$256.430 124,632 ASGTRRE e 612543 AS430.408
Notes:

{F)  The Trostee acquires shares regularty throughout the vear, following receipt of contributions from employees and the consolidated entity.

{2} The fair value of shares acquired by the Trustee is equal to the market price paid by the Trustee for acquisitions of Oceana Gold Limied
shates on the ASX throughout the year. The fair value comprises 50% contribution from employees and 3% contribution from the
Corporation.

{3} Members of the Plan are entitied to hold their vested shares in the Trustee Tor up to F yvears following vesting. The Trustee distributes vested
shares o members following receipt of a request to do so, and accordingly these transfers can take place throughout the yesr on 4 regular
basis, Additionadly, members who cease empioyvment with the consolidated entity are entitbed 10 receive their employvee funded Plan shares
withoud having to wait for the vesting period. In the event of & member ceasing employment the Corporation funded Plan shaves that have not
reached vesting stage are forfeiled to the Trust.

{4}y Fhe fair value of the shares transferred out by the Trustee during the vear is represented by the market value of the Oceana Gold Limbed
shares a1 the time of transter.

{3} The fair value of the shares held by the Trustee af reporting date has been determined by reference to ke fast sale price of Oceana Gold
Lintited shares on the ASX at reporting date.

Emplovee Future Benefis
(&) Employee benefit lability

2k 2005

SO00 FT00n

Aporepate employee benefit lability is comprised of:

Averwed wages, salaries and ON-COSIS . . L L L L L 205 P12
PrOvESIONS CHITERL _ L L . . e e e e 1,550 1,380
PROVESIONS BOI-CUTECIT . . . L L L -

1836 1,492

(by Defined Contribation Plans

The Group has defined contribution pension plans for certain groups of emmplovees. The Group's share of contributions to these plans is expensed in
the year it is cartted by the employee.

The defined contribution plan expense was $46,000 (2003 $6,000, 2004 $5,0005

Financial Instrimenss

{8} Financial Risk Management Policies and Objectives

Financial exposures arise in the normal course of the consolidated entity s business operations, including comnodity price risk, forcign exchange
risk and Hguidity risk as well as credit risk associsted with {rade and financial counterpartics. The policy for managing cach of these risks is
reviewed and agreed by the board, and are summarised below.

The consolidated entity has a risk management programme {0 manage Hs financial exposures that includes, but is not limited to, the use of
derivative products within three banking institutions. The term “derivative™ has been adopted 10 encompass all financial instruments that are not
directly traded in the primary physical market. The (roup does not enter into frade financial instruments, including derdvative financial instruments
tor frade or specitlative purposes.
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The consolidated entity faces operational risk associated with the financial transactions conducted but seeks fo manage this visk by having
established operating policies and procedures. These policies and procedures are set by the Board.

{by Gold Price and Foreign Exchange Risk

International markets defermine the price of gold in US dollars or a daily basis.

Metal prices and exchange rates are fixed using forward sake comracts and options. Derivative financial instruments are matched with future metal
production or revenues denominated in U8 dollars.

The forward sales programme is managed in accordance with policies approved by the Board. Performance under these policies is regulary
reported 1o the Board.

During the vear the pold forward sale contracts were restractured so that 423,006 ounces that were previousty contracted for sale through 2006 and
2007 o an average price of NZSTIE per ounces were contracted for sale through to 2010 at an average price of NZST73 per ounce.

OUNTL has a hedging Tacifity for 604,806 (20050 TO0,000, 2004: 400,000) ounces at December 31, 2006, The security for this faciiity consists of:
(i} share mortgages over Oceana Gold’s interests in OGNZL;
{ii} & general security deed creating a security interest over all the present and future property of OUNZL;

{i{iy  first registered fived and floating charges over all OGNZL assets and undertakings and registered mortgages over the relevant mining
terements and material fand: and

{iv} inferests in forward sales contracts heid by Oceana Gold Management Pry Lid {refer below), sapported by a puaraniee by Oceana Gold
of the obligations of OGNZL.

The folowing summarises the gold forward obligations at December 31, 2006, 2003 and 2004

Togal Fartad Total
Dec 38 Maturity Matoeity  Matarity  Matority  Dec 31 Matarity  Materity  Dee 31 Maturity
11} 2047 st} 0% 0 s 6 20857 H4 paills]
Gold fixed forward sales
Guees .. ..o L0000 374037 54249 11372 06236 U940 480,000 330,000 130000 130,008 150,000
Weiglted average

N Eoa e 77301 7750 77344 77361 T30 H97.86 69757 69843 64408 64408
Present valoe NZ&/o: H6did 74363 [RLREH 64861 60696 67652 68310 631246 64134 64134

The net return it aif the bullion forward eontracts guararteed by the consolidated entity were to be delivered as compared 1o the market value of
these obligations af December 31, 2006 was $63.374m deficit (20051 $24.990m deficit, 2004: $3.4m net surplus). None of the forward contracks are
considered to be speeitic hedges of the future gold production of the (hroup and consequently movements in their fair value or mark o market
position since the restructure have been reflected in the statement of earnings®loss).

Pruring the period Oceana Gold Management Pty Ltd also entered into a series of put option contracts (o sell 320,769 ounces of gold at 2 ninimum
price of NZSLOMD per ounce between 2007 and 2000, At the same time a series of call options were sold whereby the Group is obliged 1o sefl

The following summarises the gold option contracts at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Total Total Tosal
{reg 31 Maturity Maturity Maturify Maturity Ire¢ 31 e 31
i3 2005Y 2068 piiilhy 20 A |
Metal Commitrments
Gold Puf options
CHIBCES . . .. o e e 320,769 72,231 RE,042 85,416 R2080 e e
Weighted average e e e e e 100033 100033 b33 100133 LOGR33 e e
Present valge NEZSfoz o0 o L. RH3.02 362.90 #9401 RIATY 22 I
Gold Call Opéions
CHIBCES . L L. e e e o e e 104,024 P24 e e
Weighted average NZ%foz ... . oL oL 1,042 36 L2300 e e
Present value N2 B32 .49 83269 e e

The net retarn i all the bublion option contracts guaranteed by the consolidated entity were to be detivered as compared 1o the market value of these
obligations at December 31, 2006 was $4.146m swrpius (2005 Nil, 2004: Nii). The goid put options have been trested as 8 spectfic hedpe and
consequently movements in their intrinsic value since inception have been reflected direetly in equity. Movements in the thine value of the options
have heen reflected in the statement of carningsiloss).

The gobd call options have not been accounted for as a specific hedge and consequently movements in the Talr value or mark to market position since
inception have been reflected in the statement of earningsfloss).

The consolidated entity has in place the following forward currency comracts to protect certain specific payvment commitments.
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Weighted average

Pec 31 Dec31  Dec 31 exchange cate
20046 2005 24 2086 208 2004
RE] M DG
Curreney Comnitments
Bauy SUS 2746 OGO 06329 0.7134
Selb SNZ L 4338 1,121 6329 0.7134

The above has & maturity date of jess than 12 months. The hedpe contracts have not been accounted for as a specific hedge and conseguently
muovernends in the fair valie or mark o market position since inception have been reflected in the statement of earningsi{loss ). The net surplus value
of the hedge contract, conmpared 1o the spot prices prevaiiing at December 31, 2006, was $0.282m (2005 nil, 2004: $6.004m).
A summary of the Group's derivatives is sef out below:
2006 2605
$000 ST 060

Current Assets

Gobd put oplions . . .. ... . 4208 e
Nog Cureent Assets

Gobd put oplions . . .. ... . HLITG e
Current Liabilities

Ciobd forward sales CORIFACTS . L . L . L L L e e e e 63374 14613
Gobd call eptions. . .. .. 1,322 e
Forward currency COMIMROIS . L. L L WY e

73,978 14,613

Non Current Liabilities
Giobd forward sales CORIFRCTS . . . L L L L e s e 13388

The ned gain recognized in the statement of earnirgs®loss) relating to the amount of gaing and losses reciassified to net income as a result of the
diseontinuance of cash flow hedges beeause it is probable that the original antieipated transactions will not oceur by the end of the originally
specified tiine period i3 0.9 million {2005 and 2004: nif).

Tlie net gains and losses recognized in the statement of carnings/{Tossy relating to contracts not designated as specific bedges have been disclosed in
note 5.

{e) Enterest Rafe Risk

Obfective

The comsolidated entity’s approach to managing the risk of adverse changes in interest rates is to manage the identified net exposure through
variable and fixed rate arrangements or financial derivatives.

Fodicy

The consolidated entity policy is to manage interest rate risk in a cost efficient nanner having repard to the net interest rate exposure afier offsetting
interest bearing financial assets with interest acoering financial labilities.
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The consolidated entity’s exposiire to interest rate visk, and the effective weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial
Labilities, both recognized and unrecognized al the reporting date, s set oud below:

Year saded

December 3, Less than Weighted sverage
2006 1 year 1-2 years  2-3 years  3-d4 years 4.5 years 5§+ years Tatal effective inleresi rate
$ 00 51060 §HIG0 0 §H00 000 $ 00 Y

Fixed rate
Financial Asvets

Short-teem Deposits ... ... . 301 S ¥,505% 6377
Financial Fiabilities
Project Debt facility ... .. ... ... F), 569 L5609 HEAET
Convertible Nokes, .o Lo L L e e e e 6,285 4,285 & ARG
®.593 FLSES e e e RO2ES 105 449
Floating rate
Fiaancial Assefs
Cash . . L 704300 e e e e e 71,430 5 &R0
Recepvabdes . . . . D 2,488
TAGIE e e e e e 73,018
Financial Liohilities
Trade p&"ab]cg ________________ j4.7a0 B — ] 4.'}’{){}
Finance Leases . .. ... .. ... ... 957 4,232 48R 7,622 PR,903 4,133 44755 94494

i3,6587 5,232 6,458 7,622 FR,903 4,133 59,485

Year saded

Decermber 31, Less tha Weighted sverage

2005 I year 1-2 vears  2-3 vears 34 vears 4-5 vears S+ wvears  Total  effective inleresi rate
H0EG §H00 F0E $E $ 006 FHG0 SO0 Y

Fixed rate

Finance Leases . ... .. .. ... 5963 8,331 8,772 a.133 2,712 7482 33395 F.3408%

fnsurance Prenvium Loan. .. .. ... T4 e e e e T4 4.62%

ACC Premiam Loaw. .. ..o ... 113 113 4. 19%

Convertible Nots . . . e e 29242 29,242 3 THY,

6,134 6,331 6,772 6,133 2,712 36,724 84824

Floating rate
Fiaancial Asseis

(_:_‘ash _______________________ '-“458 [ 6 ........................................ 14.8 1 6 604{:{“

Receivables e 6721 e
41,537 e e e e 41537 e

Financial Fiabilities

Teade pavables . ... ... 13421 e e e e 13421 e

facome tax pavable . . ... ... .. AFE e e e e L -
13,877 e e e e 13,677

{d) Credit Risk
The consolidated entity’s operations and is aceess to commudity and currency forward sales transactions create credit risk.

The consolidated entity hag in place policies for the management of credit exposures, which inciude Board approwval of 20l counterparties. The
poiicies establish Hmits and methodology For neasuring and reporting credi exposures to firaneial counterparties.

Maximuem credit risk of finarcial assets is the carrying amounts recorded in the balance sheet.

The consolidated entity is nol materialiy exposed to any individual customer or ofher third party.

Financial instrurnents that potentially subject the consolidated entity {0 concentrations of credil rvisk consist principally of cash deposits. The
consolidated entity places ifs cash deposits with high credit-quality financial institutions and Hmils the amount of credil exposure to any one
finaneial instirution. These cash deposits all mature within twelve months and aftract a rate of inferest af normal short-ferm money market rates.
(e} Liguoidiey Risk

Obfective

The consolidated entity’s approach o managing liquidity risk is to ensure cost effective continuity in funding and trading Hauidity, Funding
liquidity is maimained through the use of bank project joans, convertible bords, finance leases and operating leases. Trading lquidity is maintained
by an effective spread between the counterparties with which the consolidated enfity enters into derivative instruments.
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Fodicy

The consolidated entity’s funding fiquidity risk poliey 18 10 source debt or equity funding approprigte 1o the use of funds, Examples include
equipment feases to firance the minitg fleet and the convertibe bonrd issue to firance the development of new mines. Trading risk policy is to
ensure derfvative transactions ate spread between at least two seeured counterparties acknowledging both volume and tenure of the derivative to
reduee the risk of trading Hguidity arising as & resudl of the Inabiiiry to cloge down existing derivative positions, or hedge underlying risks incured
in normal operations.

Acguisition of Assets

On November 6, 2006 Oceana (old completed an acquisition of Climax Mining Lid. by way of' a scheme of arrangement. Upon compietion of the
acquisition Oceana Golbd acquired 100% of the voting shaves of CHmax Mining Lid, & Hsted public compary based in Australia engaged in mincrals
exploration, pre-deveiopment of the DNdipio Gold-Copper Project and investinent,

The total cost of the asset acquisition was $EST.098,167 and comprised of the issue of equity instruments and the payment of costs directly
atiributable to the asset acguisition. The (roup issued 303,221 896 ordinary shares with a fair value of AS0.72 cents each, based on the guoted price
of Gcesna Gold on the date of exchange, and issued 131,609 315 options to acquive shares in Oceans Gold, with a fair value of A%0.135 ecach,
determined by use of a Binomial option valuation methodology.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and Habilities of Climax Mining 16d. as at the dare of acquisition were:

Recognized
on gtgaisition
$0060

Plant and eQUEBIICRE . . . L L L L L e e e 384
MRS 885018 L L L L L L 248,723
Cash and cash eguivalefids © . .. L L #3468
Trade receivales 1%2
PrEpavIitenis © . .. L. L e e 92
Oiher receivables | o 137

257,906
Trade pavablos. oo L e 878
Odher pavables. . . L 1,304
Provision for Emplovee entilements © . . L L 532
Provision for rehabilitation .. . o L 193
Future tax abiHy L 65,144
Eiker mown current HabiliIes o . L L L L 2,757
Fair vahile of identiflable el 888018 . L L. L L L . PRT.0098
Cost of combination:
Shares fssted, at fair valile . . L L L e, i68,172
Options {ssted, at fair valle ©_ L L L e e e 18,141
Prect costs relating to the sequisition . .. . L L L 825
Total cost of the comtbination . . . . . L L PRT.0098
The cash inflow on zegaisition a5 follows:
Net cash acquived with the subsidiary . . . oL L e §,368
Cashopatd . oL {807
Met comsolidated cash B ow L L L . 7561
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24, Fair value Of Finaneizl Instruments
(8) Recogrized Financizl Insiruments
The carrving amounts and net fair values of financial assets and Habilities as av the reporting date are as follows:
Carrying
anoung Net Fair valoe
2k 2005 2006 2605
000 5000 $000 $7060

Financial assers

0 25 34 816 ROO25 34,816
Avcounts recelvable and other recedvablos . .0 oL L L L. 248K 6,721 2488 721
PUt OpHOoRS . . . 14488 e F4.468
Ciber TIHAncIal As8018 | L s e e e

Financial Hahifiiies

Trade pavables . .. L 18,167 §4 ET0 FR1H7 14,176
Finance BRases . . . . L L e e 44755 353%% 44755 355395
Forward gold contracts . . ... .. .. L 63,374 24999 63374 24,999
Convertible NOBES . oL L 86285 29242 R5.49T7 30,406
Call Options and FX CONACTS .. .. Lo L o 10322 e P32 e
Project debt faCHIY © . L . oL L TS FREGS e
Fosurance Premibirn LOSn _ oL L e i T4
ACT Premivm LOB . . .. e B3 e 113

Crher than cash amd forward pold contracts, none of the otker financial assels and liabilities are readily fraded on organised markets in a
standardised form.

The fair value of forward gold instraments has been caleulated by discounting the fiture value of the forward contract at the appropriate prevaiiing
guoded markel rates f reporting date.

The fair value of finance ieases is the present value of the minimum fease pavments determined using an approprizée marked discount rate.

(by Unrecognized Financial Instrements

There are 1o unfecognized financial nstruments held by the Group 2 December 31, 2006 (2005 and 2004: nil}

25, Commitments
(2) Lease commifmenss ander non-cancellable operating leases:

2006 2005 i1
PO 0D $0d0

SO FO00 £000

Withitt 1 ¥ear . o L o e e 202} 2,264 24676
Withitt 1 80 2 ¥ears © L. 443 1.5%3 2,275
Withitt 2 (0 3 VEAIS L L L e 1,527
Withitt 3 80 4 YEAIS L L e e e e
WIRIR 4 B0 S WOAMS . . . L e e
More than fIve Years _ .. . ol e e e

3366 L7970 6478

Operating leases are entered info as a nweans of funding the acquisition of minor items of plant and equipment. No {eases have escalation clauses
other than in the event of payvment defaul. No lease arrangements create restrictions on other financing transactions.
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26.

{by Lease commitmenss ender Anance leases:

26 2085 2064

SO00 51000 S0
Withitt 1 Year. .. L oL 4750 0 6 5,424
Withitt 1 80 2 Years .« . L L e in211 8,204 5,493
Withitt 2 80 3 VRIS . L L L L §0.233 8,571 5,950
Withitt 3 80 4 YEAIS . L L L L e §0.253 7465 f1,60H
WItRin 4 B0 5 YEAIS . . L L e 211045 1318 5,743
More than flve Years . . . Lo 4,421 T.ESH 3,666

913 H5iF 0 35T
Future finance charges:
WHBIE 1 YOI Lo e e e (3,792 (30467 {2,564
Withitt 1 80 2 ears. . . . L {3,978y {1,735} {377y
WItRIR 2 B0 3 WEAIS. . . L o {3,345} {1,793} {40
Wthitt 3 80 4 Years. © . L L {2,633 {1.,362) {434)
WIthitt 4 (0 3 WEAIS . L L. L L e {2,142} {654) {394
More than fIve Years . .. L L e {268) {290y {1,225
Total Fulure Finance charges . ... e ESHY {9,120 {5427)
Present value of mindmtn fease pavilesis o oo oL 44,755 35395 3,434
Reconcifed to:
Current ngerest bearing Hability fnote 163 . .. 0 L L e 957 5,963 5,459
Non-Current interest bearing fability {note 163, . ... .. . L A3 TR 29432 24,595
Ol L L 44758 35305 G454

Finance leases are entered into as 8 means of funding the acquisition of plant and equipment, primarity mobile mining equipment. Rental payoents
are penerally fixed, subject to quanterly interest rale adjustnents.

() Geld Production

The consolidated enfity has certain obligations o deliver future gold production info builion forward sales comracts. Reter to note 22(b).

{4y Capital commitmenss

At December 31, 2006, the consolidated entity has commitments of §30.95m, principally relating to the conmletion of operating factlities.

The commitments confracted For al reporting date, but net provided for:

20046
000
Withitt one yeat:
-------- development of rew mining facHities . .. o il 25287
After one year but nol more than five years:
-------- development of rew mining facHities . .. L. 5667
Longer than fBe WeArS . . . L L L L
3,954

(e

The consolidated entity is committed to anntal expendifure of approximately $3536,338 (NZS300.000) (2005 $340,914 or NZSS00,000)
to comply with regulatory conditions attached 1o its New Zealand prospecting licences and prospecting, exploration and mining
permits

Contingencies

a.

=]

The eonsolidated entity has {ssued bonds in favour of various New Zealand awhorities (Ministry of Eeonomic Development — Crown
Minerals, Otago Regional Council, Waitaki District Council, West Coast Regional Council, Builer Distriet Council, Timberiands West Coast
Limied and Department of Conservation} as a condition for the grant of mining and exploration privileges, water rights and/or resource
consents, and Hphts of access for the Maeraes Gold Mire and the Globe Progress mine at the Reeflon Gold Project which amourt te
approximately $13.86 miflion (NZ821.3 milHon).

Environmental fability itsurance with a coverage limit of $3.95 million {AS5.0 million} and expiring o Fune 36, 2000, has been placed in
refation o the Recfton CGold Project as a condiion of the operating permits pranted by the Department of Conservation.

The comsolidated entity has provided 2 cash operating bond {0 the New Zealand Depariment of Conservation of $0.32 miilion
{NZSE.] million) which is refundable at the end of the Globe Progress mine. This ameunt is included in the total referred to in (a8} above.
In the course of normal operations the consolidated entity may receive from thine {o time claims and suils for damages including workers
compensation chbms, motor vehicle accidents or other ftems of similar nature. The consoiidated entiey maintaing specific insurance policies
to transter the risk of such claims. No provision is included in the accounts unless the Drectors beiteve that a labiiity has been erystaliised. In

F-35



those cireumstances where such elaims are of material effect, have merit and are ot covered by insurance, their financial effect is provided
for within the financial statements.

The Group has provided a guarantee itt respect of & finance lease agreement for certain mobike mining equipment emered into by a controfled
entity. At December 31, 2006 the oustanding rental obligations under the finance fease are approximately NZS62.1 million (2003
NZE48.5 miliion). Refer to note 24 (b Associated with this guarantee are cerlain financial compliance underiakings by the Group,
including gearing covenants.

A third party has a confractual right to an 8% free carvied nterest in the operating vehicke that will be formed to underiake the management,
development, mining and processing of ore, and marketing of products as par of the Didipio Gold-Copper project. This free carvled interest
is a rpht to 8% of the ordinary share capital of the operating vehicie. At December 31, 2006 no such eguity kas been issued to the third party
a5 the conditions precedent (o such an issue bave not yet been satisfied. No provision has been included in the accounts as no Hability has been
crystailized and the fair value of the contingent liability is unable to be measured reliably as there is inherent uncertainty about the operating
vehicles” falure dividend distribution policy afler development expenditure has been recovered.

The Didipio Gold-Copper Project is held under a Financial of Technieal Assisfance Agreernent (("FTAAT™) pranted by the Philippines
carlier of Creeana {oid recovering its pre-operating experses atd property expenditures or five years after the start of conmereial production al
the Project, the Corporation is required 1o pay the Govermnment of the Repubiic of the Philippines 6084 of the “ned revenue™ carned ftom the
Didipio Gold-Copper Project. For the purposes of the FTAA, “net revenue™ is generally the net revenues derfved from mining operations, fess
deduetions for, among other things, expenses relating to mining, processing, marketing, deprectation and certain specified overhead. 1n addition,
ali tnes paid to the Government including excise, customs, sales, corporate and value added taxes, as well as the 2% net smelter rovalty
payments and any disteibution made to the holder of the 8% free carvied inderest are also deducted from the 60% of et revenues that are payable
to the Government. The FYAA also contains a provision requiring the Corporation to divest 60% of its interest in the project (or such lesser
pereentage as may be imposed by law) to Filipiao persons by the later of ten vears after the recovery of pre-operating expenses or 20 years after
the FTAA, in which case the revenue sharing arrangement deseribed above will cease to apply. However, as an allernative to such divestment,
{leeana (old may, at its oplion, enter info a mineral production sharing agreement with the Government of the Repubdic of the Philippines.

From time to time Oceana Gold is & party to various iitigation matters incidental to the conduet of s business. Two claims have been
instituted challenging certain water rights applications for the Didipio (old-Copper Project. The Company is also subject to a court claim
secking an injurction against each of the Company and the Depariment of Environmend and Natural Resources to restrain the
agsurance that any outeome will be favourable fo the Compary, based on the Company's preliminary evaluation of the issues and the advice
of counsel, it is anticipated that the matters will be resolved without a material adverse effect on the ability to proceed with the development
of the Didipio Gold-Copper Project.

27. Related Party Disclosure

The following table provides the fotal amount of {ransactions whick have been entered into with related parties for the relevant firancial year:

Sales to related  Purchases from  Amounsis owed by Amounts owed to

Related party parties rebated parties retated parties retated parties
GO0 §7000 S700 bACEY
........ GRE Limied™ 2086 543
2 e #9 49 22
2ikp 43 9
........ I&’iinpn‘}c““, -/ 7 1,021
Engincering consulting services &
COMSIICTION . . ... ... 2 e ez e t42
L7117 S— [ 1 - — 5
-------- Gilobal Renewables Investments L% 2006
23S 3t 3
17—
-------- Chuschill Capizal®™
Cobd Bandling fees .. . oL L 2066 e 3 e e
Consilting services .. ... ... Lo L. MK e e e e
Ciobd handling fees .. ... .o oL 245 T e e
Consilting services .. .. ... ..o L. 285 e 44 e e
Ciobd kandling fees .. .. ... L Lo 24 47 e e
Consuiting services .. .. ... .. oL 24 L
........ Cem}iaph”"’ -/ 1/
2{s 31
2ikpd 512 e e
fiy  GRD Limited was a sharcholder and related entity until May 18, 2006 when GRD sold their remaining share in Oceana Goid.
fiy  Minproc, a director-related entify, provide engineering, consulting and construction services to the consolidated entity.
(i) Gobal Renewables fnvestments Lid, & commuonky controfled entity widil May 18 2006, provided consulting services o the consolidated

entity.
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fiv)  Churchifl Capital, a disector-refated entity performed gold handlng serviees as the consolidated entify’s gold agent.
fvp  Cenotaph, a director-refated entity, provided consulting services to the consolidated enmtity.
Sades to and purchases from refated parties have been recognized ad the exchange amount.

Ouistanding balances at yvear-end are unsecured and settiement oceurs in cash.

28. Evenis After the Balance Sheet Date

On March 14, 2007 Oceana Gold heid an Exiraordinary General Meeting of sharcholders. At this meeting shareholders approved the December
2000 issue of $47.36 million (AS6D milion} in convertible notes 1o investment funds advised by Ospraie Advisors L.P and Ospraie
Management LLC and $7.89 million {AS10 millon) in convertible notes to an affiliate of Millenium Partners 1P In addition shareholders
approved the proposed issue of $23.68 milHon {A$30 milifon} in convertible rote to Goldman Sachs (Asia} Finance {(GS8AF} or a nominee of GSAF.

All resolutions at the meeling were passed by a large majority of shareholders.

Oeeana Gold LimBed has announced its intention to complete a restructiring fransaction and a Hstig on the Toronto Stock Exchange. The
restricturing would involve Schemes of Arrangement through which sharebolders and optiosholders of Oceana Gold Limited exchange their
ordinary shares and options in Oceana (old Limited, For common shares and options in Oceanaliold Comoration, 2 company incorporated in
Canada.
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.
Unaudited Interim Financial Statements
Three Months Ended September 30, 2006 and 2005
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
For the three months ended 30 September 2006

Explocation expenditure written off. . .. .. ... . o o
Administeation coSUS. . .. .. . . L
Employee Benefils ... .. ..o L
Termination payments ... ... . .
[ncentive stock options expensed .. ... L L L

Operating (loss) before net financing income . .. ... ... ... ... ... ...

Financial Meome . ... .. e e
FImance Cosl. « . . o e

Net finaneing income / {expense} ... ... .. ... . ... ... L.
[ncome taX eXPENSe . . ... ...

Loss for the year attributable to members of the parententity . . .. .. ...

Basic loss per share (Coms). .. .. oo
Diluted loss per share (cents) . .. .. o

Nuodes

Three Months ended
3 September

2iHk6

2GS

{in thousamds of
Austrabian doHars)

(47}
(830)
(263)
{342}

(21}

(1,503)

151

(68)

The income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY

For the three months ended 30 September 2006

Equity

Essieed Retained comgensation

Capifal CRIMngs FEeSErYE Tatal
Three months ended 34 September 2005 {in thousands of Austraitan dollarsy
Total equity at beginning of period .. ... ... .. L oL 52,379 {22.780) 3 29,900
Shares issued ... .. . L e e e e e
Netloss forthe period. .. .. . . e 15507 B— {592}
Equity settled share based payments . .. .. ... . .. .. . o 00 e e _20 20
Total equity atendofpertod . .. ... .. L 52,379 {23.372) 321 29328
Three monshs ended 34 Septeraber 2006
Total equity at beginning of period .. ... ... .. L L L 70,673 {25,639) 382 45,416
Shares 1ssucd . . ... 4,675 e e 4,675
Netloss fortheperiod. .. ..o o o e e (14200 (1,420}
Eguity settled share based payments ... .. .. . . o 0L e e 21 21
Total equity atendof pertod .. ... .. ... oL L L 75,348 {27,050 403 48,692

The statements of changes In equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As at 30 Septermnber 2006 and 30 June 2606

Sepsember M June 38

Notes 2006 20606
(in thousands of Austraiian
doilars)
ASSETS

Current assets
Cashand cash equivalents . . . oL o 3 13,372 13,317
Receivables L. 219 126
OET . e 145 169
Total current 885008 .« . . oL e e 13,736 13,606
Neon-current assets
Recetvables . . ] 11
[nvestments. . . . 5 4
Plantand equipmient . . .. .. ... L 4 309 317
[ntangible — exploration and evaluation ... ... L. L o L 3 35,981 36,205
Total non-current a88e18. . . . . L 40,306 36,537
TOTAL ASSE TS . . . 54,642 50,143

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Habilities

Pavables . o 2,680 2.115
Employee benefits . ... ... 46 52
PrOVESIONS . © . L L e 56 50
Total current Babilities . . .. . 2,779 2.217
Neon-current liabilities

Payables . . 24106 1,979
Employee benefis ... ... 334 310
PrOVISIONS . . o e 221 221
Total non-current Habilitles . . . . L 2,571 2.510
TOTAL LEABHLITEES . .. . . . 5,350 4,727
NET ASSE TS . 48,602 45410
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

fssued capital . L. 6 75.348 70,673
Accurnulated 168808 . . . . ... L L e G {27.059) {25,639}
Reserves . . e e G 403 382
FOTAL BOQUITY . . . 48,602 45410

The balunce sheely should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes.
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the three months ended 30 September 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash payments in the course of operations . .. .. ... .. ... .
[nterest received
[nterest paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities . .. .. . . .

Cash flows trom investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment .. .. ... L i
Payments for exploration and evaluation expenditure
Payment for investments

Net cash used for investing activilies . .. .. .. .

Cash flows trom financing aetivities
Net proceeds from issue of shares. . .. .. ..

Net cash inflow from financing activilies .. .. .. . i

Net inerease/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ... .. . o o o ol
Cuash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Three Months
ended
September 34,

Notes 2¢H6 2005
{in thousands of
Australian dollars)
925y (727)
151 59
9 (774)  {(668)
@2y -
(3.823) (411
1y
(3.846) (411
4,675 e
4,675
55 (1,079
13,317 4,594
3 13,372 3,515

The statement of cask flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanving notes.
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the three months ended 30 September 2006

Basis of preparation of quarterty report

This general purpose financial report for the interim three month reporting period ended 30 September 2006 has been prepared in accordance with
Avcounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations Act 2001

This interim financial report does not include all the notes of the type normaily included in an annual financial report. Accordingly, this report is 1o
be read in conjunction will the annual report for the vear ended 30 June 2006 and any public annoutcements made by Climax Mining Limied
during the interim reporting period in accordance with the continuous discloswre requirements of the Corparations Act 2001,

The accounting policies adopled are consistent with those of the previous financial year and corresponding nterim reporting period.

Sepment information

Segment results, assels and liabilities include ftems directly attributable to 2 segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Uinaliocated fiems mainky comprise interest, gain or joss on foreign exchange, corporate assets and expenses.

Sepment capital expenditure s the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets thal are expected 1o be used for more than one
period.
Frimary reporting format — Geographical segments

I presenting information on the basis of peographical segments, segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets. The
consolidated entity’s peographical segments are as follows:

+ Australia Minerals exploration.

+  Philippines Minerals explovation.

+ Other Minerals exploration in other regions.
Secondary reporting format — Business segments
The consolidated entity’s business segments are minerals exploration and corporate administration.
The total segment result by geographical area s as follows:

30 September 30 September

2o 2005
bRUEY FRCLH
Toszl segment resnle
AsErabla o Lo {1,297} {562y
P IS, L e {§23} {62}
Pnallocated © . e {24}
Consolidated . . . . .. . {1,420} {34923

Supplementary cash flow infarmation

30 September 30 September

26 25
S0 SO0

Reconciliajion of cash

Far the purposes of the Cask Flow Siatement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following af

34} September:

Cashoad bank and n band .. L L L 1,988 797

Short term deposits and commereial bills . ... L oL P3R4 2.71%
13,372 3,515

Cash at bank earns inferest ar Homting rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The careying amounts of cash and cash equivalents represents fair
vale.

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Giroup, and earn interest at the respective shori-lerm deposit rates.
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6.

Plant and equigment

36 September M June

2436 2006
$7 000 500
Plant and equipment
s AL L e 1,226 §.204
Less Aceumulbated depreciafion: . .. . L L L L {917} (KET)
L AT
Net book value of propenty, plant and equipment at period end .. _ 0 oL Lo L 309 37

Entangible — exploraiion and evaluation

30 September 3 June

2006 2006

$7 000 $ 00
Beferred Exploration and evaluafion costs
Balance at beginning of the period o L. oL Lo KB RO0 80620
Expenditure inewrred during the period . .. Lo 3,823 R,427
Expenditure written off dwring the period . .0 0oL oL {47} {E48)
Balance at the end of the pertod . . L L L L L L 92,675 BH, 0D
Empairmsent Losses
Balance at beginning of the period . . L. L L 32,694 52,554
Amount impaired during the period. .. oL L e 460
Balance at the end of the pertod (&Y. . . . L L L L 52,694 52,604
Carrying amourt at beginning of the perlod © . 0oL Lo L 36,205 28066
Carrying amowst at the end of the perlod (b L 000 0 L L 39,941 36,204

(28) Recoverability of exploration and evaluation expenditure

The ultimate recoverability of the capitalised expiomtion and evalbuation expenditure is dependent upon either, the suceessiiy] development and
production of economicaliy recoverable reserves from or sale of the various areas of nferest. Development and production may reguire additional
capital expenditutre that exceeds the consolidated entity’s current available resources. Additional funding may be obtainable from various
alernative sourees of finarce currently being considered.

{by  Dinkidi Gobd/Copper Project

b September 3 June

20066 2006
$7000 $ 00
Capitalised Project Expenditure
Total Spent on EMekidi Project at beginning of period . ... oL . oL L L K870 80,149
Expenditure inewrred during the period . .. Lo 3,27 R.610
Expenditure written off during the period .. 00 oL 0L e
Total Spent at the end of the period. .. L o0 Ll 92,030 BH, 759
Empairment
Balance at beginning of the period . © L. L L L 32,534 52,554
Amounts bnpaired doaring the perfod © . . L L L e e
Balance at the end of the pevtod . L L oL L 82,584 £2,554
Carrying amowrt of capilalised Dinkidi Project expenditare © . 0000 oL 39,476 36,204

Shareholders’ equity

{2) Components of sharebolders’ equity

b September  MF June

2006 26086

PR 000

Bssued Capital (DY o . . L 73,348 TETI
Reserves (0000 L L o 443 382
Acewmubated 105808 © . . {27 0549} {25,630
48 692 45418
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{by  Movemeny in ordinary share capital:

3 Septermber 38 June 30 September 3 June
2k 20066 2436 2006
Number Number S F000
Ovdingry shares
fssted and Tully paid . o .o 468,845,608 453,687,668 75,348 52,379

Movement in ovdinary shaves on issue

lssue Price

Date No. of Shares A3 A6
Balance ai 30 Juoe 2005 . . L ITES21.733 22379
Shares fsswed. . . FAT20058 FLOCHD G603 {304 i)

3171272005

Exercise of OPHOMS . . . . L. .. Lo 21412420058 £, D) 06 A}
Share placement. © ... oL L e 1 570022000 29,295,004 23 6,738
Share bssue Ccosts . . L L e 214122006 {325}
Share issue Costs .. Lo 2R/02/2008 {2y
Bhare BSUe COSIE . . . .. . e 10372006 8331
Share placement. .. ... L EHIERA AR .23 FLEAD
Share placement. .. ... L L 354032006 217,506 032 7
Share Bssue Costs .. L Lo 1A 2006 {6y
Share placement. .. ... oL L FRARL 2 25,008 0608 (123 4,838
Share placement. .. ... oL L 242G FLETS .32 3
Share BSsUe COSIE .. . . L. L e e §A0A720006 4y
Share BsUe COSIE .. L. L e 20320800 {3y
Share placement. .. .. oL A2 21,750 .32 7
Share placemettt. - . .. oL e AR P HTS .32 3
Share placement. .. .. oL SANRS20NK HOHLOH00 .23 184
Share placement. .. .. L. L SR 333,008 012 A}
Share placenmient. © ... oL e BARSI2086 FOLETS .32 3
Share placement. .. .. oL FIA0R200 2500006 .23 4,834
Share Bssue Costs ... L SIS {23
Shate BBsUe COSIE _ . e 270620808 {3y
Balapee at 38 Jane 2006 . . ERER T YR TETI
Exercise of oplions. .. ... .. . L GAYT2H6 () .23 184
Exercise of options . .. . .. oL L L E§ AT A0 () 023 {2
Exercise of oplions. .. ... . . TS 333 HK 012 B
Exercise of oplions . .. . L oL oL e ARG 1125 () .32 360
Exerclse of oplions. ... .. .. L 28972006 F2, 500,000 £.32 400K}
Balance at 34 Sepfember 2006 . .. Lo oL 468,845,608 75,348

{e)  Executive share option plan

Executive directors and senior executives may receive options issued under the Emplovee Share Option Plan CESOP'}, made in aceordance
with the rules of the ESOP approved by shareiioiders at the 1994 AGM as subsequently amended. The ESOP provides for the Remuneration
Committee to deterniine the aggregate number of options over ordinary shares to be granted to executives for no consideration. The ability to
exercise the options is conditional on the consolidated entity achieving performance hurdles related o either the development of #s major
project or mavket price of the Company’s shares. The ESOP does not provide the Board with any diseretion to after the terms and conditions
of the ESOP. Non-excewtive directors do net receive any performarce related compensation.

Outstanding (ptions

Convertible nto fully paid ordinary shares

Exercise price Ogptions
Expiry Date {censs) Duistanding
13 April 2007 e 7.5 6,000,000
13 April 2007 L e 32 26,750,626
30 July 2008 i2 2,334,000

There were §3.958,000 options exercised during the gquarter {refer {o table below).
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Optians exereised duving curvent pervind

Exercise

Opiions Exercised Price A% Expiry date
D s Y L i $0.32 ES Apeilt 2007
A i 5012 30 July 2008
{d) Reserves

Contributed Surpius balance represents the value of options granted to directors and officers for no consideration as part of remuneration. The

ability to exercise the options is conditionad on the consolidated entity achieving performance hurdies relating to the development of its major

project or market price of the Company shares.

The Comparty recorded stock-based compensation expense of $2 1,000 to 30 September 2006 (30 Seprember 2005: $20,000) in respect of all

oustanding options.

The fair value of the options is caleulmted af the date of the grant using the Black-Seholes model and aitoeated 10 cach reporting period evenly

over the period from grant date o vesting date. The value disclosed is the portion of the fair value of the options expensed in ihis reporting

period. The following factors and assumptions were used in dedermining the fair value of options on grant date:

Fair Price of Risk free
value per  Exercise  shares on Expecied inferest Bividend

Grant Bate Expiry Baje aption price grant date  volatilisy rate vield
Shee 2003 0oL o Lo oL 13 April 2607 $0.05 SO0 $6.07 i74.80% 4.583%
Mhene 2003, 0. .o oL 0oLl 13 April 2607 $0.09 SO0 PR i74.80% 4.583% 0 e
1T hee 20604 00 0L o000 oLl 36 July 2008 $0.04 $0.12 $.07 §29.20% sy e

Contingens Habilities and guaranices

(8} Guarantees
i The Company has guaranteed the fubfilment by controfled entities of commitments to provide funds for expenditure in respect of
exploration and evaluation expenditure and fease commitments as and when they faif due.
it The consolidated entity as part of its minerals explosation and corporate activities has entered itto performatce guarantees to the value
of $221.600 {June 2006 $221.060.
(by LHigation
The consolidated entity is a party from {lime to time o fegal proceedings. Where appropriate the consolidated entity fakes legal adviee.
Ajb current procecdings are considered proceedings in the ordinary course of the business of an exploration and mining company in the
Philippires. Whilst the outcome of afl proceedings cantud be predicied with certainty, the Compary does nof expect these matiers 10 have a
maderial adverse effect on the consolidated entity.
Commitments
(z) Capital and Exgloraiion 2nd evaluation expenditure comsitisents
At balance date 1he cotsoiidated entity had entered into contractual arrangenents o expend amounts in exploration areas and bad commitied
to procure jong lead plant ems. During the quarter, the Company kad committed 1o purchasing the grinding mitls for the Dinkidi Project
from Outokurnpo Technology Py Ltd for a total amount of ASE3 million.
30 September M June
2436 2006
$O00 $ 000
WILHINL O VORI . . o 13,128 4,028
After one vear bl not more then twe Years .. oo L L Lo BE i3
13,216 4,116
The above amounts include payments, which, whilst contracted, are contingent upon the comptletion of undertakings by third parties. Whilst
sonle {tems are contracted for payment within 12 months, the actual obligation may not crystallise during that period.
(by Lease commitmenis

30 September M June

2436 2006

$7000 $ 004
WL O YORE . . o L e e 63
After one vear b not more than twe Years . .. .. oL o o
........ 3
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.

11.

{perating leases are enfered into as & nreans of funding the acquisition of minor items of plant and equipment. No leases have escalation
clauses other than in the event of paviment defauit. No fease arrangements create restrictions on olher financing fransactions.

{¢)  Superannuzticn commitments

Contributions ate made by the consolidated entity to individual superannuation plans of cach employee, and are charged as expenses when
incurred. The consolidated entity is under no lepal obligation to fund any defici.

Reconciliaiion of cash Aows from operating acévities

Three Months
ended
3 Sepsember

26 205

S0 SO0
{in thousands of
Australian doHars)

Loss for the period affer Meome X .. L L o L L {1,424 {34923
Adjust for non-cash items
Depreciation and amoriisation eXpense. . . .. L L L e 30 8
Write off of exploration expenditure . .. . L L L 47T e
Unrealised foreign exchange Foss{Raind . . .. oL L L D
Nogcash IRERest. . o o e iz i7
Incentive stoek opdion expense . . .. L L L L o 21 26
Nef cash used in operating activities before changes in asseds and Tabilifes . .. 0000 00 0 L o o L. {1,254} (347)
{Increasedidecrease in aceounts receivable. _ . oL L L .. {73} 56
{Becreaselinerease i accounts pavable . L oL L L L 543 {2313
{Becreasedinerease in emplovee futare beneflts . 0 . o L. 12 _54
Net cash used in operating actiVviIeS . . . L L L L L {774} (668)

Evenss subseguent 10 reporting date
(8) Transaction with Oceana €old Limited

As reported inthe 36 June 2000 fnancial statements, on 11 Jaly 2006 Climax Mining and Oceana Gold Limited announced their intention to merge
by scheme of arrangenment. The Chmax Divectors unanimousiy supported the merger.

Linder the terms of the Share Scheme, Climax shareholders received 62 Oceana shares and 31 Oceana options for every HH Climax shares they
held. Under the terms of the Listed Option Scheme, Climax option holders received 2941 Oceana shares and 4.7 Oceana options for every 160
Climax options they heid. Oceana options to be issued as & resull of the merger are a new class of Oceana security, Each Oceana option entities the
hoider {0 subseribe for ore Oceana share 4t a price of 92.5¢. The Oceana options can be exercised during the period from | January 2008 to
i Fanuary 2009,

The Board of Clmax unanimousiy supported the proposed merger between Oceans and Climay and recommended that Climax sharcholders and
option holders voted in favour of the transaction at & meeting that ook place on 24 Gotober 2006, At the CHmax Mining Share and Option Scheme
Meetings held on 3 October 2006, the proposed merger was approved by a majority of sharcholders and option holders.

O 6 November 2006 the merger of Climax Mining with Oceana Gold Ltd by way of'a seheme of arrangement was completed. Upon complation of
the merger Qeeana Gobd Lid acquired 100% of the voting shares of Climax Mining.

Creber than as stated elsewhere in this report, there has nod arisen in the interval bebween the end of the financial year and the date of this report any
item, tratsaction, or event of & material and unusual nature Hkely, in the opinion of the direciors of the Company, to aftect significantly the
operations of the consolidared entity, the results of those operations, or the state of the aftairs of the consolidated entity, in subsequent financial
years.

Fipact of applying canadian gencrally accepted accownting principles {(“CGAAPY)

There is no impact on the repotted net loss, balarce sheet or cash Tlow statement for the periods ended 36 September 2006 and 36 September 2003
tor the purposes of applying CGAAP.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In the opinion of the directors of Climax Mining Lid {“the Company™):
{a} the financial statermnents and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
{i)  givingatrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company and consolidated entity as at 30 June
2006 and of their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows, for
the year ended on that date; and
(1) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements; and
{by there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable.
There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the coniroled entities identified in Note 26 will be
able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of Cross
Guarantee between the Company and those controlled entities pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418.
The directors have been given the declarations requived by Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from the chief
executive officer and chief financial officer for the financial year ended 30 lune 2006,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

{Signed) Jamis E. Askew
Direcior

Melbourne, Ausiralia
May 15, 20067
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF CLIMAX MINING LTD.
Scope
The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the income statements, statements of changes in equity, balance sheets, statements of
cash flows and accompanying notes to the financial statermnents notes 1 to 27, for Climax Mining Ltd. and #s controlled
entities (the ‘consolidated entity”), for the financial years ended 36 June 2006, 2003 and 20604, The consolidated entity
comprises both the Compeny and the entities it controlied during the three financial years.

The directors of the Conpany are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial report
i accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate sccounting
records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and
gccounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an mdependent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the Company. Ouwr sudit was
conducted in accordance with loternational Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial report is free of matertal misstatement.

The nature of an sudit is influenced by tactors such as the use of professionsl judgement, selective testing, the
inherent Hmitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an
audit cannot guarantee that all materigl misstatemenis have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financtal report presents fanly, in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory financial reporting requirements
in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the consolidated entity’s financial position, of their
performance as represenied by the results of their operations and cash flows.

We formed our sudit opinion on the basis of these proeedures, which included:

»  examining, on a test basis, imformation to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures i the

financial report, and

»  assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of

significant accouniing estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of managerent’s internal controls over financial reporting when determining
the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal controls.

Audit opinion
1. In our opinion, the financial report of Climex Mining Lid. is in accordance with:

{a} the Corporations Act 20601, meluding:

{1)  giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial posttion as at 30 June 2006, 2005 and
2004 and of their performance for each of the years in the threc-year period ended 30 June 2606; and
{i)  complying with Australtan Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and

{by other mandatory financial reporting reguirements in Austraha.

Emphasis of matter — inherent uncertainty surrounding the recoverability of exploration and evaluation
expenditure

Without qualification to the opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the following matter. As indicated in
Note 12 under the heading “Recoverability of exploration and evaluation expenditure”, the ultimate recoverability of the
capitalised cxploration and evaluation expenditure is dependent upon additional financing to fund development
expendiiures, which currently exceeds the conselidated entity’s carrent available resources. Additional funding may
be achieved through various alternatives, including eguity raising.

KPMG

(Signed) "KPMG”

{Signedy “Nicola Davis”

FPartner

Sydney, Australia

September 1, 2006 except for Note 27 as to which the date is May 15, 2007
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AUDITOR’S REPORT IN RESPECT OF COMPATIBILITY WITH CANADIAN GAAS

To the Board of Directors of
Criviax Mmang Lo, (e “CoMpany™).

1 aecordance with the requirement contained i National Instrument 52-107 we report below on the compatibility of
Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (“Canadian GAAS™) and International Standards on Auditing.

This report is made solely to the Company’s direciors, as a body, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company’s directors those matters we are required to state to them in the auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent pernsited by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company’s directors as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opmions we have formed.

We conducted our sudit for the year ended 30 June 2006, 30 June 2065 and 38 June 2004 in accordance with
[nternational Standards on Auditing. There ave ne material differences in the form or content of our report (except as noted
below} as compared to an auditor’s report prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAS and if this report was prepared in
accordance with Canadian GAAS it would not contain a reservation.

le Canada, reporting standards for auditors require that an auditor’s opinion state that the consohidated financial
staternents of the company present fairly, in all matertal respects, the financtal position of the company and its results of
operations and cash flows. In Australia, reporting standards for suditors require that an auditor’s opinion state that the
consolidated financial statements of & company give a true and fair view of the state of the consolidated entity’s affairs and
of its profit for the year. In all other respects, there are no material differences in the form and content of the above noted
auditor’s report.

KEMCG

(Signed) “KPMG”

{Signedy “"Nicola Davis”
Parmer

Sydney, Auvstralia

May 13, 2607
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

INCOME STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated
Notes 2086 2005 2084
£600 1080 £600
Explocation expenditure written off. .. ... ... L L o o {28%) (9) {9713
Decrease/(increase) in provision for rehabilitation ... .. .. .. ... ... ... 33 239
Admmistration costS. .. . .. . e 2 (2,227 {2434) (1,095
Emploves benefits .. .. . . L 3 {641} (538) {385}
Operating loss before net financing income .. .. .. ... .. .. L. (3,103y  {3,232) (2,455}
Financial income .. ... .. . 314 345 451
Financial expense. . ... .. (70 (178) (63)
Net financing ineome . .. ... .. ... L L L 244 167 388
Loss beforeincome tax .. .. ... ... ... .. ... o L. (2,859)  (3,0605) (2,067)
[ncome tax @XPEMSe . .. L. L. L 5 e e
Loss for the year atfributable to members of the parent entity . .. .. ... (2,859 {3,065) (2,067}
Basiclosspershare . ... . . 6 $(H.007y  $(0.008)  $(0.006)
Diluted loss per hare. . .. .. o 6 $(6.007)y  $0.008)  $(8.006}

The income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated
Equity
compensation
{ssued capital Retzined earnings reserve Tatal
§1006 $000 §1000 §1006
2006
Total eguity at the beginning of the year. .. .. .. .. ... .. 52,379 {22,780) ol 29,900
Sharesassued. . . ... ... L 18,294 e 18,294
Netloss fortheperiod . ... ... o o oo ol e (2859 (2,859
Eguity seitled share based payment trensactions . . ...... o e 81 81
Total equity at the end of the vear. . .. .. ... ... .. ... 745,673 {23,639 382 45,416
2005
Total eguity at the beginning of the year. .. .. .. .. ... .. 52.379 £19,715) 144 32,808
Shares issued. .. ... oL L e e e e
Netloss fortheperiod . ... ... o o oo ol e 110 T — (3,065
Eguity seitled share based payment trensactions . ... ... o e 157 157
Total equity at the end of the yvear. . ... ... .. ... .. 52,379 {22,780) 01 26,900
2004
Total eguity at the beginning of the year. .. .. .. .. ... .. 42,127 {17.648) e 24,479
Shavesassued. .. ... .. 14,252 e e 143,252
Netloss fortheperiod . ... ... o o oo ol e A1 5 T — (2,067
Equity settled share based payment transactions . ....... = e 144 144
Total equity at the end of the vear. . .. .. ... ... .. ... 52,379 {19,715) 144 32,808

The statements of changes In equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

BALANCYE SHEETS
Ag at 30 June 2006

Consolidated
Notes 266 2005 2684
51000 $70600 51000
Current assets
Cashand cash equivalemts .. ... . o 7 13,317 4,504 8,775
Receivablos .. . 8 120 44 56
OUNET . . . 9 169 131 130
Tatal current assefs .. .. .. ... . e 13,606 4,769 8,961
Non-curreni assets
Recetvablos © .. 8 11 14 50
Ivestmems © .. . e Hi| 4 1 i
Plant and equipment. . ... ... . . L L 11 317 256 209
[ntangible - exploration and evaluation . .. ... ... . .. L oL 12 36,205 28,066 26,371
Tatal nop-current assets . .. ... .. . . . L e 36,537 28.327 26,031
Total assets . .. .. .. ... 50,143 33,006 35,592
Current Habilities
Pavables .. ... i3 2,115 G446 761
Emplovee benefits .. .. .. .o 14 52 19 6
PrOVISIONS . o .t ottt et e e e e e e e e 15 50 11—
Tatal current liabilities . . .. ... .. ... .. .. .. . . ... 2,217 709 767
Naon-currend Habilities
Pavables .. ... i3 1.97% 1,913 1,775
Emplovee benefits .. .. .. .o 14 30 306 177
PrOVISIONS . . o ottt e e e e i5 221 274 63
Tatal nop-current Habilities . .. .. .. .. ... ... ... ... .. .. .. .. ... ... 2,510 2A87 2,017
Total Habilities . . .. .. ... .. ... ... .. 4,727 3,196 2,784
Net assetS . .. .. .. . 45,416 28 600 32,808
Equity
[ssued capital .. ... .. L e 16 70,673 52,379 52,379
RgeIVes . . e 17 382 kil 144
Accumulaied Jo8808 . L. . L {25,639y (22,78%y {19715}
Total equity. . .. .. .. . 45,416 28 600 32,808

The balance sheets should be rewd in conjunction with the qccompanying notes.
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2606

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash payments in the course of operations . .. .. .. ... ... ... .. ..
[mterestreceived . .. .. L.
Net cash outflow trom eperafing aetivides .. .. ... ... . ... ... ...

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of investrents. .. .. ... ... o Lo L
Payments for plant end equipment. .. .. ... . L
Payments for exploration and permit expenditure. .. .. ... .. L oL
Advances to controlled entities . ... ... .. L L

Net cash outflow trom investing activities. .. .. ... .. ................

Cash flows trom financing aetivities
Net proceeds flom fssue of shares . .. .. oL L L L o

Net eash inflow from financing activities . .. .. .. .. ... ... ... ... ...

Net {decrease)fincrease incash held . . ... .. .. ... .. ... ... .. ... L.
Cuash at the beginning of the fnanctal year ... .. ... . . oo L

Cash at the end of the financial year . .. ... .. .. ... ... ... ... ... ...

Consotidated
Nodes 2606 205 24064
$r000 S0 £1000
(2.918) (2.7%6) (1,628)
314 356 330
25 (2,604)  (2.436)  (1,298%)
3 e 145
T (128) (83) (103}
(6,836) (1,662) (1,644)
(6,967 (1,745) (1,602
18294 146,252
182904 14,252
8,723 (4,181 7.352
4,594 8,775 1,423
7 13,317 4,594 R,775

The statements of cask flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanving notes.
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CLIMAX MINING LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Significant accounting policies

Climax Mining Lid {the “Company™y is a compary domiciled in Australiz. The consolidated financial report of the Company comprises the
Company and ity subsidiaries {together referved 1o as the “consolidated entity™) and the consolidated entity interest in associates and jointy
controlled entities.

()

(b

]

Seatemsent of compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Siandards
{AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting $Standards Board {AASB) and the Corporations Act 2000 . [nternational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) form the basis of Australian Accounting Standards (AASHs) adopted by the AASE, and for the purpose of this report are
catled Austraiian equivalents o IFRSs (AIFRS) to distinguish from previous Australian GAAP

This is the consolidated emity’™s first financial report prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Stardards, being AIFRS and AASE
b Firsi-Time Adoption of Austradian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has been applied.

Basis of preparation
The financial report is presented in Australian doliars. The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis.

The Compary is of a kind refereed to in ASIC Class Order 987100 dated FO July 1998 {updated by €0 05/64] effective 28 July 2008 and
O 06751 effective 31 January 2006} and in accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the financial report have been rounded off to the
peares! thousand doifars, uniess otherwise stated.

The preparation of a financial report In conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management to make judgemenis,
estimates and assumgtions that atfect the application of policies and reported amounts of assels and labilities, income and expenses. The
egtimates and associated assumnptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
ciresmstances, the resubis of which form the basis of making the judpements about carrving values of assets and {tabilities that ave ol readily
apparent fromt other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These accounting policies have been consistently applied by
caeh entity in the consolidated entity.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions (0 accounting estimates are recognized in the pertod
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods i the revision atfects
both current and future periods.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial report.

‘The divectors believe the financial statements of Climax Mining Led and s controlled entities (“the {roup™} are prepared as 2 going concern.
The foreeast cash flows indicate thar as the main asset of the Company, the Dinkidi project in the Philippines proceeds to development
additiona firancing will be required. At the date of this report the directors are considering the various options for financing the project and
are confident the funding needs of the group will be met.

Basts of consclidaiion

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controiled by the Company. Controd exists when the Company has the power, direcily or indivectly, to povern the
fipancial and operating policies of an entiy o as to obtain berefits from Hs activities. In assessing control, potential voling rights that
presently are exercisabMe or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
fipancial statements from the dare thar contrel commences until the date that control ceases.

Associcies

Asgocixies are those entiies in which the consolidated entity has significant influence, but ol control, over the financial and operating
policies. The consolidated financial statements includes the consolidated entity's share of the total recognized gains and losses of associates
ot an equily accounted basis, from the dae that significant influence comnences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the
consolidated entity’s share of losses exceeds its Interest o an associate, the consolidated entity’s carrying amount is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the exdent that the consolidated entity has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made pavments on bebalf of an associate.

Joint venture

Jobnt ventures are those entities over whose activities the consolidated enfity has joint control, established by contractual apreement.

Joinily confrolled operasions ard assers

The interest of the Company and of the consolidated entity in unincorporated joint ventures and jointly controlled assets are brought to
account by recognising in its financial staternents the assets it controls, the labitities that it incurs, the expenses It ineurs and its share of
income that it earns from the sale of goods or services by fhe joint venture.
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Fransaciions efimingied on consolidation

Intragroup batances and any unrealised gaing and losses or income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Unrealised gains resulting from trasactions with associates and joint ventures operations including those relaring to contribudions of non-
monetary asgets on estabiishment, are eliminated {o the extent of the consolidated entity's interest. Unrealised gains relating to associsies are
climinated against the carryving amoust of the investment. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they
evidence recoverabie amount impairment.

Foreign carrency
Forefun curreacy (ransactions

Trapsactions in foreipn currereles are franslated o the foreign exchange rate ruling at the dale of the transaction. Monetary assets and
{tabilities denominated in foreign cureencies at the balance sheet date are translated to Australian doliars at the foreign exchange rate rubing o
that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on franskation are recognized in the income statement. Non-monctary assets and Habilities
that are meastred in terms of historical cost in a foreign carrency are {ransiated using the exchange rate at the date of the fransaction. Non-
monetary asseds and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies thatl are stated al fair value are translaied 1o Australian dotlars at foreign
exchange rates mtling at the dates the falr value was determined.

Financial statements of foreign operations

The monetary assels and labilities of foreign operations are transiated 1o Australian doilars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Non-mounetary assels and Labifities are franslated at the historical translation rate. The revendes amd expenses of foreign
operations are translaied to Australian dollars ad rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange differences arising on retransiation are brought to aceount in the come statenent.

Functional currency

The functional custency of the foreign subsidiaries is Australian doliars. The foreign currency translation differences are recognized in the
income statement.

Revenue recognition

Tnterest revene

Interest reverue is recoprized as B accraes, faking into account the offective vield on the financial asget.

Cash

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash includes deposits held o call with financial irstitutions, other short-term, high liquid
investiments with original maturities of three months or less thal are readily convertible to cash on hand and are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, nel of oudstanding bank overdrafts.

Receivables

Trade and other receivables are staled at their amortised cost less impaitment [osses (refer accounting policy {13}

Exploraiion and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation costs, ineluding the costs of acquirityg licenees, are capitalised as explovation and evaluation assets on an area of
interest basis. These costs are capiialised as intangible deferred costs where exploration rights have been obtained and are not subject 1o
arportisation. Costs incurred before the consolidated entity has obtained the jepal rights to explore an area are recognized in the income
staterent.
Exploration and evaluation assets are only recognized if the rights of the area of interest are current and cither:
(i} the expenditures are expected o be recouped through successful development and exploitation of the area of interest; or
{iiy  activities in the area of interest have nod at the reporting date, reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the
existence or other wise of economically recoverable reserves and active and stpnificart operations in, or in relation ko, the area of
interest are continuing.
Expioration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment if () sutficient data exists to determine technical feasibiiity and commercial
viability, and (i) facts and circumstances suggest the carrying amoun! exceeds the recoverable amount (refer impairment accounting policy
{1y, Forpurposes of impaivment testing, exploration and evaluation assets are allocated to cash-generating units to which exploration activity
refates. The cash penerating-unit shall not be larger than ihe arca of interest.

{lnce technical feasibiiity and commercial viability of the extraction of miseral resourees in an area of interest are demonstrable, exploration
and evaiuation assets attributable to that area of inferest are first tested for impairment and then re-classified from intangible assets o mining
property and development assels within property, plant and equipment.

A regular review s undertaken of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to carry forward costs in relation to that
area of interest. When an ares of inferest is abandoned or the directors deeide that it is not commercial, any accumuiated costs together with
any amounts already provided for in respect of that area are written oft in the financial period in which the decision is made.
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Imgaivment

The carrving amounts of the consolidated entity™s assets other than expioration and evaluation expendifure carvied forward {refer Note 1(h)),
are reviewed al each halance sheet date to determine whether there bas been any indication of impairment. An impairment foss is recognized
for the amount by whick the asset’s carrving amouni exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and Bs value i uge,

I assessing value in use of ron-current assets, the estimated fudure cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects curvent market assessments of te true value of money and the risks speeitic to the asset.

The recoverable amount of the consolidated entity s receivables carried at amortised cost 1s calculated as the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted. Impairment of receivables is not
recogrized wntil objective evidence is available that 2 foss event has occurred.

Property, plant gnd equipmens

i Chwned assers

Hems of property, platt and equipment are stated at cost or deemed al cost less accumutiated depreciation and impairment foses {refer

accounting poliey (i)

(i) Depreciation and amoriisation

Al assels have limited usefid] lives and are deprecisted using the straight ine method over their estimated usefid lives, taking into aceount
estimated residual values, with the exception of carried forward exploration and evaluation expenditire.

Dependent on the usefud life of cach class of asset that comprises plant and equipment the range of depreciation rates used are as follows:
Plant and equipment 5 to 40%

Assels are deprecisted from the dade of acquisition. Amortisation is not charged on costs carried forward in respect of area of interest in the
development phase uptif commercial production commences.

The residual value, usefid] 1ife and depreciation method applied to an asset are reassessed at least annuaiby.

Invesimenss and trading securities

Accounting policy — fingncial year ended 30 June 2006

Financial instruments heid for irading are classitied as current assels and are stated at fdr value, with any resubiant gain or foss recognized in
the income statement.

Comparative period poficy — financial yvear ended 3 Rune 2004 and 30 June 2005

Investments in Heted entifies are carrfed ar the lower of cost and recoverable amount.

Payzbles

Trade and other payables are stated al their amortised cost. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 36-day terms.

Provistons

A provision is recoguized when there is a lepal, equitable or constructive obligation as 4 result of a past event and it is probable that an owflow
of economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected futue cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the notes specific to the Hability.

Rehabilieation

Provisions are made for the estimated cost of rehabiiitation refating to areas disturbed during the mine’s operation wp 1o reporting date but rod
vet rehabilitated. Provision has been made in fudf for all disturbed arcas at the repoting date based on current estimates of costs (o rehabilitate
such areas, discounted to their present value based on expected futare cash flows. The estimated cost of rehabilitation ineludes the current
cost of recontouring, topsoiling and revegetation employing legislative requirements. Changes i estimates are deall with on a prospective
basis as they arise. At balance date the liabilities with regard to restoration and rehabilitation, including reclamation, waste site closures and
nonitoring are reviewed and the estimated expense provided for. The assessment is based on undiscounted estimates of future cosls under
current begal requirements amd teehnology.

Significany unceriainty exisls as o the amount of rehabilitation obligations which will be incurred due to the Impact of clianges in
environmental legislation. The amount of the provision relating lo rehabilitation of mine infrastructure and dismantbing obligations is
recogrized at the commencement of the mining project and/or constiuction of the assets where a legal or constiuctive obiigation exists at that
time. The provision s recognized as a non-current Hability with a corresponding asset included in mining property and development assels.

At each reporting date the rehabiifiation Hability is re-measured in Hee with changes in discourt rades, and timing or amount of the costs 1o be
incurred. Changes in the labiiity relating to rehabilitation of mine infrastructure and dismantling obligations are added to or dedueted from
the refated asset, ofher thar the unwinding of the diseount which is recognized as a finance cost in the ncome statement as i occurs.

If'the ehange in the labiiiey resuits In o deerease in the Hability that exceeds the carrving amount of the assel, the asset is written-down 1o nil
and the excess is recognized immediately in the income statement. Hthe change in the lability results in an addition 1o the cost of the asset,
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the secoverability of the new careying amount is considered. Where there is an indication that the new carrying amount is not {ully
recoverable, an inpairment test is performed with the write-down recognized in the ncome statement in the period in whick it oceurs.

{.eases

Leases in which a significant portion of the visks and beneflts of ownership are retained by the lessor are ciassified ag operating teases.
Payments made under operating feases are charged to the income staternent o a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Taxation

Ineome t2x on the prodit or joss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Ircome tax is recognized in the income statement excepd to
the extent that it relates (o Bemns recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recogrized in equity.

Current fax is the expeeted lax pavable on the taxable income for the vear, using lax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date, and any adjusintent to fax payvable in respecd of previous years.

Dieferved tax is provided using the balance sheet Hability method, providing for temporary differences bebween the carrying amounts ol assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following femporary differences are nod
provided for initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accownting, nor taxable profit, and
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the exient that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of
deferred tax provided is based o the expected manner of realisation or setflement of the carrving amount of assets and Habilities, using lax
rates enacled or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deterred tax asset s recognized only to the extent that it is probable that fudure taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utitised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent thad it is no longer probable that the refated tax benetit will be realised.

Addilional inrcome tases that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the Hability to pay the related
dividend.
Tix consoftdaiton

The Company is the bead entity in the tax consolidated group comprising all the Australian wholly owned subsidiaries set out in Note 20, The
head entity recognises afl of the current and deferred tax assels and Habilities in the consolidated group.

The tax consolidated group has entered info s fax funding agreement that requives Australian wholly-owned subsidiaries to make
contributions 1o the head entity for current fax assets and Habilities and movements in defeered fax balances arising from external
transactions during the year.

Coody and service fax

Revenues, cxpenses and assels are recognized net of the amount of value added taxes, including Goods and Services Tax (GET") except
where the amount of the value added tax incurred 5 nod recoverable from the taxation authority. I these cireumstances the value added tax s
recogrized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an Hem of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of value added tax included.

‘The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of recelvables or payables in the
siatement of financial position.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the consolidated entity ihat is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segient) or in providing products or services within a particular cconomic environment {geographical segrment) which is subject to risks and
rewards thar are different from those of other segments.

Employee benefits

Witges, salaries and anmial leave

Liagbilities for employee beneflts for wages, salaries and annoal leave represent present obligations resuiting from employees’ services
provided to reporting date, caleulated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and salary rates that that the consolidated entity
expects (o pay as at reporting date including related on-costs.

Lowy service leave

The provision for employee beneflts {o fong service leave represents the present value of the estimated fiture cash outflows 1o be made
resufiing from employees’ services provided to reporting date.

Superannuation finds

Contributions are made by the consolidated entity to individual superannuation plans of cach employee, and are charged as expenses when
incurred.

Share hased payment fransaciions

The share option programme allows consolidated entity employees to acquire shares of the Company. The fair value of options granted is
recogrized as an employee expettse with & corresponding ncrease in equity. The falr value {s measured at grant date and spread over the
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period during which the employees hecome unconditionally entitled to the options. The fair value of the options granted is measured using a
binomial option-pricing model, taking into sceount the terms and conditions upon which the options were granied. The amount recognized as
an expense s adjusted 10 reflect the actual number of share options that vest except where forfeiture is only due to share prices not achieving
the threshold for vesting.
Use and revision of accounting estimnates
The preparation of the financial report requires the making of estimations and assumptions that atfect the recognired amounts of assets,
ltabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabifities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other fhctors that are believed (o be reasonable under the circumsiances, the resuits of which form the basis
of making judgments about carrying vakues of asgets and labitities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual resuits may ditfer
from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to sceounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affeets only that period or in the period of the revision and Riture periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
Earnings per share
Basie carnings por share (“EPS™Y is caleulated by dividing the net profit attributable {0 members of the parent entity for the reporting period,
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company, adjusted for any bonus issue.
Dituted EPS is caleufated by dividing the basic EPS earnings, adjusted by the after tax effect of financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares and the effect on revenues and expenses of conversion to ordinary shares associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shases, by the weighied average number of ordinary shares and dilutive porential ordinary shares adjusted for any bonus issue.
Net financing coses
Net finaneing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings cabendated using the effective interest method, interest receivable on funds
invested, exchange paing and fosses. Borrowing cosis are expensed as incurred and included in net financing costs.
Interest income 18 recogtized in the income statement as it acerues, using the effective bnterest method.

2iH}6 2iH5 2014

006 $006 $000

Adminisiration costs

Drepreciation of plant and equipmient . .. L L L 6 42 4
Corporate advisory and business development © oL L L L L e 15t 1,677 192
COpOrate eXPeRSeS . . .. L. L L L e 1,302 893 B99
CHBEE COSIS _ .. L i 713 424 {

2,227 2,434 1,093

Safartes and WAZES L L L L L L L e 467 e 210
Orther associated persorne] SXPENSES. . .. L L L L e 48 64 i3
Superannuation contribUlIOns . .. _ 0L 43 it 22
Equitv-settled transactions . .. .o oL #i 157 t44

64l 530 4%

Anditors’ remaneration
Andif services:
Auditors of the Company

KFPAMG Austrafia
audit and review of financial reports © . .. R0,2600  a00060 44300
ner-audit services—accounting advisory serviees. . .. Lo 4373y e e
anditors
auwdit and review of financial reports © o Ll 47,461 21746 24,5900

P71 471 81746 69,400
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Taxaticn

(&) Incoroe éax henefit
2k 2005 24

§7 06 $roi0 bRULY

Loss for the Year .. L {2,859y (3063 {2.087)
Prima facie income tax benelit calewiated al 30040 (2005 30%,

200 30U on BB JOBE . L L L e i it 926 H29
Decrease it inconwe tax benetit due to non-deductibe items:

Current period fosses of foreign subsidiaries not recognized . L Lo L L L L {E21} {112} {5}
Legal and advisory fees . oo L L {4%} {326} {37}
Inconme tax benefi o the loss before individually significant income tax fems . ..o .. oo 0L H88 482 574
Individuaily significant income 1ax items:

Tax losses not brought 0 8CCOUIMT . . . . L L L L L e e {612} {418} (6073
Temporary differences not brought to aceount © . .. Lo Lo L {76} {64} 29
Income tax expensedbenefity attributable o [OSS .. Lo oL L L e e

(by  Unrecognized deferred tax asses
The potential tax effected at 30% (20051 30%, 2004: 3004} net deferred wax assetls benefit artsing from tax losses and temporary differences
has not been recognized as an asset beeause i is rod probable that Tuture mxable protit will be available against which the consolidated entity
can wtilise the benetiis from:
Deductible temporary diffevences . .o L L 4,865 4,753 {80}
Fas JOSBE8 . 8,327 7,591 TART
13,192 12,344 7447

Earnings per share
The Company has only one type of seeurity, being ordinary shares. These shares have been inciuded in the basic earnings per share cajculation.

26 2005 204

Basic earnings per shabl . .. o L L e SO007) HOO00EY  HO006)
Priluted earnings per sBAG . .. oL L QEOGTY  HOOORY  HO006)

The folowing reflects the income and share dala used in the caleulations of basic and diluted carnings per share:

27000 $7 0 $30)

Earnings reconciliation

NELIOSS - o o e (,859% 63,0650 (206T)
Earnings used in cajculating basic and dilnled earnings perslhare . .00 oL oL ool {2,859 3,065y (2087
Number Nunmiher Nimher

Weighted average number of ordinary shares issued used as the derominator in caleulating
basie and dilutive camings per share: ... oL L L L 301 89S 00 ATEIZLTAY O 355,226.052

There is no impact on the dilutive earrings per share for 48,442,625 (2005: 3,545 812, 2004: 4,034,969} share options available as the consolidated
entify is 16 a loss.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cashad bank and I band . .o oL L0 Lo
Short term deposits and commereial bills. © 0 oo

Receivables
Current

Oher debbors . . o L

Total current receivables . © __ L L .

Non-careent
Loans 10 associated entities Tor explotslion . . .. L L e
Empairment fosses on joans o associated entitles . .. .. o0 L L L

xher debbors . . L L

Total mon-current recedvables. © o . L .

ther assets

Propa¥imenks . .o Lo L

Envestments

Non-carrent investinents
Fevestinents i controfled entifies. . 0 . oL
Fvestroent it other entities

Plant and equipment

Cuisse

Balance at beginning of the year
Additions during the year . . o L L e

DHSPOSAlS L

Balance at end of the year

Bepreciztion and impairment

Balance at beginning of the vear
Prepreciation charge for the wear o Lo 0 L
Prepreciation written back on disposals . . . . . oo L L.

Balance at end of the year

Carrying amott at beginning of year

Carrying amount at end of year
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2006 2005 P
SO SO0 $000
11673 3,200 #13
644 1385 7860
13,317 4394 K775
120 a4 56
120 a4 56
........ 8,321 %322
........ (83213 (8322}
11 11 50
11 11 50
006 2005 2004
So0n SOU S0
L6 131 136
006 2005 2004
SN0 SOU0 $000
=2 i -
= i _t
006 2005 2004
SO00 SOU0 $000
LS LIB6  L178
128 83 158
(331 e (142
1264 LI09  L1%6
859 977 1068
61 42 4
(331 (6 (553
8§87 §59 977
250 209 Y
317 250 209
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14.

Intangible-Exgloraiton and evaluation

2006 25 26084

pRHEY $000 $000
Capitalised cosss
Balance at beginning of the Year . . .. oL L ROB2 BO206 87069
Expenditure duriig YEar . o L e e ¥,427 1,794 1,497
Expenditure written off during vear . oL oo L. {148} {7380 {2460
Balance at end of the vear . . . . L L. HEB0L BOE20 RBe20
Impairment losses
Balance at beginning of the wear . . . . oL L L 52,554 59833 61871
Amount writien back duriieg year .o L {7281} {2036}
Amount impaired dUFing Year . .. oL L e i4 e e
Balance at end of the vear . .. . . L 2694 52554 59.R3S8
Carrying amotnt at beginning of year. _ . ..o L L 28,066 26371 25298
Carrying amownt at end of ¥ear. . . Lo oL 16208 JEOAG 28,371

Recoverability of exploration and evaluation expendifure

The wkltimate recoverability of the capitalised explotion and evaluation expenditure is dependent upon either, the suceessial development and

production of economicaliy recoverable reserves from or sale of the various areas of interest. Development and production may reguive additional

capital expenditure that exceeds the consolidated entity’s current available resources. Additional funding may be obtainable from various

alernative sources of finance currently being considered.

. Pavables

26 2085 2084
S0 S0 OO0
Current
Teade credOrS . L e 337 47T 3E2
Oiker creditors and aceruals L L L . 1,778 176 3T
2,115 a4f) 761
Non-carrent
Ober creditors™ | L 1,979 £,913 §,775
1,979 913 i.775
Note:

* (ther creditors represent future payments due to a third party contingent upon the Dinkidi project in the Philippines achieving commercial

production.

Emplovee benefits

Current

ANRUAE LOAVE . _ L L e e e e ¥

Long seevice Feavie .. oL L i 14

52

Non-carrent

Long service FeaVE L L L e

Termination beneflt™ o L e G4

Pivectors” retivement beneff . . 0L L . 2146
310

Note:

190
94
196

360

* Nonm-current termination benefit relates to a benefit payvable to emplovees in the Philippines on termisation andfor resignation from the

Cronmprany.
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18.

Provisions

Provision for rehabilitation

Current

Bafance at the beginning of the year © ... oL L L L e s - - 34
Provisions madefreversed) during (e wear .. .. .o o 50 {39}
Balance at the end of the vear _ .. o0 L 50 S
Non-careent

Balance at the beginning of fhe vear - . .. L oL L 274 65 70
Provisions made durlng the year. . oL L L L e 6% e
Provisions {reversedy during the Year . . .. .. oL Ll 153} — 3
Balance at the end of the vear _ .. o0 L 21 274 63

Issped cagifal

In thotisands of shares

Balance at beginning OF ¥ear . o .o oL L e ITIAZY 3TIR2Z ZETLEM
Shares issued for cash pursuant to a placement . ... .. Lo L L L £{,.095 83060
Shares issued from the exercise of Options .. .. ... L L L L 2,274 334
Balance at end of year — fully paid . ..o 453,688 371322 371322

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time {o time and are entitied to one vote per share at sharcholders’
meetings. In the ovent of winding up of the Company ordinary sharcholders rank after credifors and are fully entitled to any proceeds of liguidation.

Reserves

Equity compensation reserve

The equity compensation reserve represents the vaiue of options granted o directors and officers for no consideration as part of remuneration. The
abifity {0 exercise the options is conditional on the consolidated entity achieving performanee hurdles relating o the development of its major
project or market price of the Company’s shares

Financing areangements and financial instruments disclosures

()

(b

]

(d)

5]

Financing Arrangemesnss

The consolidated entity had no debd funding or overdraft facilities at 30 June 2006 (2005 Nil, 20604 Nii).

Interest raie risk exposure

At hatance date the weighted average interest rate for cash assets was:

« Cash at bank 3.4% per annuwm fHoating (2008: 4.9% per annum, 2004: 3.1% per annum}.

+ Short term deposits and commuercial bills 4.8% per annum Hloating {20050 3.4% per annum, 2004: 3.4% per anntum}.

The other financial assets and liabitities detaited in the financial sistements (receivables, pavables and investments) are ail non-interest
brearing.

Foreign exchange exposires

The consolidated entity has exploration activities overseas and in Australia. While most funds have been beld in Avstralian dollars, some
deposits are held in foreign currency for working capital purposes. There were no forward exchange contracts outstanding at year end
{2005: Nil, 2064 Nil.

Fair valaes of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables are estimaled to approximate fair value hecause of thelr shord
maiurity.

The fair values of non-eureent mvestments ave set owd in Note 1 The et fhir value of investoents in undisted shares in other corporations is
determined by reference to the underlving net assets of the respective corporations.

Credit risk

At the halance sheet date there were po signitican! concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by ke

carrying amount of cach financial asset in the balance sheet.
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19, Commitments and contingent liabilities

()

(b

]

(4

5]

n

Exploraiion expenditere commitments

At balanee date the consolidated entity had enfered into contractual arrangements to expend amounts in oxploration areas. Contracted
exploration commitments, including reguiremnents of mines departments, for production and evaluation and exploration properties to be
incurred were!

o6 2605 206{K

m S0 m}
WILHEIL O YOAF . . o e e 4,028 252 343
(e yvear or [ater but not fater than flve vears . . ... Lo oL __ 88 5 _4

4,116 3t 347

The above amounts include payments, which, whilst confracted, are contingent upon the completion of undertakings by third parties. Whilst
some ffems are contracted For payment within 12 months, the actual obligation may not crystaflise during that period.
Lease commitments

The Company leases property cxpiting in one yvear. Lease payments comprise a base amount plus an incremental contingent rentai.
Comtingent rentals are based on the market price.

Future lease commitments not provided for in the financial statements and pavable are:

2006 20605 204
STO60 $060 $000

Due mot fater than O0e Year ... .. e e 63 #4 44
Due fater than one year bud not later Chalt fvg YORES . . _ L L. Ll L L e &3 70
Due fater than fwo vears but nol later than three years. . . .. ... ... L L L e e 6

o3 i47 LD
Guaraatees

{iy  The Company has pusranieed the fubfiliment by controiled entities of commitmenis o provide funds for expenditure in respect of
exploration and evaluation expenditure and lease commitments as and when they faif due.

{ii)  Theconsolidated emtity as part of ity minerals explosation and corporate activities has entered into performance guarantees o the value
of $22 1,600 {2005: $241,0060, 2004 $241,000).

Supersanustion commitments

Contributions are made by the consolidated entity to individual superannuation plans of caeh employvee, and are charped as expenses when

incurred. The consolidated entity is under no lepal obligation to fund any deficit.

Litigation

The consolidated entity is a party from time to time to legal proceedings. Where appropriate the consolidated entity takes legal advice.

These proceedings are considered proceedings in the ordinary cousse of the business of an exploration and mining company in the
Philippires. Whilst the outcome of all proceedings cantud be predicied with certainty, the Compary does not expect these matiers 10 have a
material adverse effect on the consolidated entity.

Deed of cross guarantee

Parsuant to ASHY Class Ovder 981418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998, rebief was granted 10 the wheily owned subsidiaries listed below
from the Corporations Act requirements for preparation, audil, and lodgement of financial reports and directors report.

I is a condition of the Class Order that the Company and each of #s subsidiaries enter into & Deed of Cross Guarantee. The effect of the deed
is that the Company puarantees to cach creditor payment in full of any debt in the event of winding up of any of'the subsidinries under certain
provisions of the Corporations Act 2081 I 2 winding up oceurs urder ather provisions of the Corporations Act 2001, the Company will only
b ftable in the event that after six months any creditor has not been paid in fdl. The subsidiaries have also given similar guarantees in the
event that the Company is wourd up.

The subsidiaries subject to the deed are Climax Auvstralia Ply Limited, Climax Maragement Pty Limied, Climax Mining Share Plan Pry
Limited and Trimdean Pry Limited.

A consolidated statement of income and retained fosses and consolidated balance sheet, comprising the Company and subsidiaries that are a
parey to the Deed, after eliminating 2l {ransactions between parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, as at 30 June, are sed out as follows:
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Consolidated

Sumrmarised income statemens and aceunlated losses 26 285 26084
a6 SO0 £ 004

Loss Defore pelated income tax expense ... ... L L e 2438 2619 750
TCCHE 8% Bn1e Il . L L e e e e
Loss after refated income (2 expense . . .. ... L 2453 2619 750
Accumulated fosses ab beginning of vear _ . .. Lo L. 19,933 17311 234858
Accimmalbated losses g€ end of year . . . .. L. L 22,385 190933 24233
Consolidated
Balance Shees 206 2005 24064

S0 000 SO0

Cureent assets

s A58015. L L L L e e 11,166 4,047 H.3HD
Receivablos o o e e 3t 26} 42
CHBET L 37 T 37
Tatal cupvent assed8 _ . . L 11,234 4,137 504
Non-girrent assets

Receivables o . e 316,595 27420 26,043
Oither Snancial 885075 . . . L L L L e e, 4,184 4,184 4 184
Plant and equipment. o o .. oL L 84 95 92
Intangible-exploration and evaludtion . ... .. L L L e 141 F46
Tatal pon-cierand assets . . . . L 44,8349 FEE4D 30425
Total 880I8 © . . . L L 52,083 33,977 38,934
Current lizbilities

Pavables . .. TH} 24 H29
Employee bereflts © o o L oL e 52 e
Prowvishqs © . o . L L 5} i 5
Total ewevent labidies . . . . . _ . . o L 832 593 6235

Non-cerrent liabiliies

Borrowings from related entiies .. ... o L 2,259 2,25% 2924

Employee berefits . o oL o e 214 2
Prowvishals . . L L 22t 74 242

Tatal men-coerens babilities . . 0 . L oL . 2694 2,739 Itas

Total Babilities . . . . . . 3528 3,332 3741

Mef assels _ . . 48,563 32,645 35,143

Equiey

Comributed equity - . L L e TH,673 52379 523749

LT 1 T 277 196 & 0040

Acewmulated SSes © L L {22385 (1993 (24,235
Total equedy . . . . i 48,563 32,645 35,143
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2L

Controtled entities
Parvticalars in relaiion to controled entities

All entities carey on business it the country where they wore incorporated.

Place of
Nanme Note  Incorporation
Parent enfify — Climax Mining L4d
Comtrolled entities
Climax Australis Pry Bimited . .. .. L Lo 3] Australia
Climax Managemen! Pry Eimited .. ... oo L L {iy Australia
Teimdean Poy Limired . © L0000 (ty Australia
Climax Mining Share Plan Pry Lhmited ... ..o Lo o L {iy Australia
Prolink Pry Limited .. ..o Austratia
SEA Meldings Bimited © . ..o L Australia
Truehall Limbed .. .0 0L Australia
Climax Mining (Fijiy Piy Limited .. L0000 Fiji
Climax-Avrimeo Mining Corporation. . ... ..o Lo oL Philippines
Austrafian Nethesbands favestments BV 000000000 0oL oo oo Lo oL Netheriands
Climax of Australa (Philippinesy bne. oL .. oo oL oL Philippines
Australasian Philippines Holdings Ine. oo .. o000 oL o Phifippines
Austratasian Philippines Mining Inc. © .. .. oo L L o Philippines
Red Earth Resource Corporation . . . ... o .. L e Phifippines
Red Farth Mining Comporalion . ... ... . L o o Phifippines
Copper Flelds Resource Comoratlon . .. .. ... ... .. e Phitippines
Copper Fields Mining Corporation. . ... .. ... .. L Philippines
Connanght Resource Corporation . . ... .. ... L . L Philippines
Connanght Mining Corporation. . .. ... .. ... L Philippines
Swrigao Gold Resowrce Corporation . ... .. ... L. . L Phifippines
Swrigao Gold Mining Corporation . . ... .. Lo L L Philippines
Lasseler Resowree Comporation .. . 000 L Lo oL Phitippines
Lasseler Mining Corporalion ... ... L Philippines
Royal Northern Resowrce Corporation .. .. ... L. L o Phifippines
Royal Northern Mining Comporadion. . ..o .. L o L Philippines
Oceidental Resource Corporation . . ... ..o .. L o Phifippines
OCeeidental Mining Comporation . . .. ... .. Lo L Philippines
Coolabab Resource Corporation . .. ... oL oL L oL L e Philippines
Coolabah Mining Corporatidin. .. .. ... .. L L Philippines
Junetion Reef Resource Comporation ... .. oo L Lo o Phifippines
Junetion Reet Mining Corporalion . . ... .. ... L L Phitippines

Note:

Consolidated
Entity Interest
206 2005 2HM
HEN 106 1436
HEN 106 1436
HEN 106 1436
HEN 106 1436
HEN 106 1436
HEN 106 1436
F00 106 1436
HEN 106 FE)
e 106 4]
e 106 FE)
e 106 4]
e 106 FE)
e 106 4]
e 106 FE)
e 106 4]
e 104 114
e 106 4]
e 106 FE)
e 106 4]
e 106 FE)
e 106 4]
FO0 108 114
e 106 114
e 106 1436
e 106 1436
e 106 1436
e 106 1436
§00 108 1436
e 106 1436
e 106 1436
g 108 1433

iy  Entities which have entered into approved deeds of indemnizy for the cross guarantee of Habilities with Climax Miniag L4d in regpect of relief
pranted from specified accounting and financial reporting requirements in aceordance with a Class Ovder issued by the Australian Securities

and Hvestments Conumission.

Related pariies

Nom-execafive directors
Mr T E Askew (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to 25 August 2005)
Mr P W Clarke
Mr T N Fern
Mr T V Willsteed
Mr (3. Fulcher {Alternate direetor for Mr P W Clarke fo 27 February 2004

Executives
Mr B P Thomson {Chief Operating Officer amd Chiet Executive Offtcer from 26 August 2605)
Mr B E Wells {Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary}
Mr T Stevart (Exploration Manager — Asia}
MrJ P Leviste (Chairman APMI and CAMO)
Mr M.S. Mazey {Legal counsel fo 30 June 2004}
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The following were key maragement personnel of the consoldated entity at any time during the reporting period and unless otherwise indicated:



Key mznagement personnel compensasion

The key management personne] compensation included in “Personned expenses” and capialised *

ploration and evaluation expenditures™ are as

foliows:
Consolidated
2006 2005 24
§ § $

Short term employment benefis . .. L oL e LO34,560 869,743 HR2T71G
Post employment benefits . L. L R 200,00} 20,000
Equity compensation benefls . .. .. L #1483 §47, 281 PR A6
oAl o F 136,052 1037624 HAE T

Apart from the details disciosed in this node, no director has enfered into a material contract with the Company or the consolidated enfity since the
end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts fnvolving divectors’ inferests existing at year-end.

L.

L1

L2

L3

Principles of compensaiion

Key management personnel have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controtling the activities of the Company and the
consolidated entity, inchuding directors of the Company and other executives. Key management personne] includes the four most highiy
remunerated divectors and executives for the Company and the consolidated entity.

The Remutteration Comnittee is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation policies and packages applicable to the Board
members amd senior executives of the Company. The Board compensation policy is o ensure compensation packages properly sefleet
cimployees” duties and responsibilities, and that compensation is competitive in attracting, retaining, and molivating people of the highest
guality. The compensation packages of Board members and senior executives, with the exception of equity based compensation, are nol
linked fo Company performance.

Compensation packages include a mix of fixed and equity-based compensation, desizned wo retain suitably gualitied executives and to affect
the broader outcome of improving the asset value of the consolidated entity. The compensation strciures fake into account the:

+ overall level of compensation for each divector and executive;

+  ability of the executive to control performance; and

+  the incentives component of each executive’s compensation.

Fixed compensation

Fixed compensation consisis of base compensation (which is caleulated on a {ofal cost basis and includes any FBT charges related to
ermployee benefits including molor velicles), as weil as emplover contribuitions to superanauation funds. Compensation jevels are reviewed
annuably by the Remuneration Comunitiee to ensure base pay is set to reflect the market for a comparable role, and to consider individual
performance against goals set ad the starl of the vear.

Egufty-based compensation

Executive dircetors and senior executives may receive options issued under the Employee Share Option Plan (“ESOP™), made s accordance
with the rules of the ESOP approved by shareholders at the 1994 AGM as subsequently amended. The ESOP provides for the Remuneration
Commirtee to determine the aggregate munber of options over ordisary shares to be granted to executives for po consideration. The ability to
exercise the options is conditional on the consolidated entity achieving performance hurdies related to either the development of Hs major
project or market price of the Company's shares. The ESOP does nol provide the Board with any discretion {o alter the terms and condilions
o the issue of oplions under the ESOP. Non-executive directors do not receive any performance related compensation.

Dietails of performance hurdles:
{a)  Inrespect of the 1666000 options pranted on 28 March 2003, all options are now exercisable.

{by I respectof the 2,000,000 options granted on 5 Jane 20073 and 4. 000,000 granted on 27 June 2003, 25%, may be exercised on the
financing of the Dinkidi project, a further 25% may be exercised on the commencement of construction and the final tranche of
50% may be exercised on completion of construetion.

{3t respect of the 2,000,000 options granted on 17 June 2004 ope-third of the options became exercisable on 30 July 2004,
one-third became exercisable on 30 July 2005 and the final third became exercisable on 30 July 2066,

{dy  In respect of the LOOO0G0 options gramed on §7 June 2004, all options are now exercisable.

Service agreements
{a)  The consotidated entity has entered into 2 service contract with My J Askew, Chairman/Chief Executive Otfftcer dated 1 January
2004 for a period of twenty-four months from | lanuary 2004, to provide consultancy services as may be required from time to
time by ke Company. The service contract continued from 1 January 2006 on the same terms and conditions. The contraet
specifies the duties and obligations to be fuitiiled by the Chief Exccutive Officer. The remuncration level is set ar $72,000 per
antum for director fees as Chairman of the Company and consubtaney fees are sel at & maximun amount of $1 36,000 per anndm
{gross of tax, buf exclusive of GST), or as varied by the Board from fime to Bme. Mr Askew’s director fees as Chairman of the
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Company and advisory Tees for additional consulting services are paid to Intersational Miting & Finance Corp. The service
contract can be {erminated either by the group or Mr J Askew providing two months notice i writing.

{by  Mr Robert Thomson, Chief Executive Officer, has a contract of employment commencing 16 Aprit 2003 with the consolidated
entity. The contract speeifies the duties and obligations to be fulfilled by the CEQ. The compensation fevel is set at 220,000 per
annum. The service contract can be terminated either by the group or Mr R Thomson providing thiee months nolice in writing.
Mr R Thonson's service fees are paid 1o Monterey Consolidated Services Pty Lid. Mr Thomson is a divector and shareholder of
Monterey Consolidared Services Pey Lid.

Non-executive divectors

Total compensation for all non-executive directors, last voted upon by sharefiolders af the 22 Ocetober 2003 AGM, is nd to exceed $256,000
per annun, Directors” base fees are presently up g0 $36,000 per annum and the chaimperson may receive up to $72,000. Divectors’ fees cover
all muain board activities and membership of commitiees and o incentive arrangements are in place.

Upon retirement directors may receive & payment of a Tump sum or pension up to the payiment imit permissible under the Corporations Act
withou! requiring member approval.
Loans and other fransacfions with directors and executives

There were no joans, other ransactions or material confracts with divectors and executives during the reporting period.

Desails of remunerstion

Details of the natire and amount of cach major element of remuneration for each director of the Company, each of the two named Company
executives, and relevant group executives who receive the highest remuneration are detailed below. The consolidated entity only has four
executives who fuifit the definition of key management personnel.
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Prisgary Post-employsent Equity

Bireetors’ Fees Retirement Value of
& Executives Lesef aptions Oiher
Salaries Superagsation {Note 5) (Note 8) COMmPones Tostal
3 % $ $ ) $

Direcfors
JE Askew 2006 TR0 e e 53,972 FOOLBS() 223,822
Chairmarn 2064 TRLO08 0 e e 560,972 70,493 F03 465
{Nole |} 20604 72,000 91,684 F16.230 279914
P W Clarke 2006 36,000 1,240 000t e e 443240
Independent Non-executive 2065 ELREH 1,240 Whear e e 44,240
Divector 20604 36,000 1,240 e e ERRR 52,355
T N Fern UM 3(),(}00 ................................ 365{}(}0
Naop-eseculive 2064 0080 e e e 36,000
Divector 20604 36,000 e e F76,019 212,019
T WV Willsteed 2006 36,000 1,240 000t e e 443240
Independent Non-executive 2065 ELREH 1,240 heos 0 e 449240
Divector 2004 36,000 1,240 e e 3118 52,358
Esecutives
R P Thomson 2006 e e e 22,581 220,060 242,961
Chief Executive 2008 0 e e e 42,703 260,060 242,765
Ofticer {Note 23 2004 e e e 31,220 FR2.336 213,556
B E Wells 2006 200,908 ey e K L 241,681
Chief Financial Offtcer/Company 2005 136,368 363 e 2742 e F77.412
Secretary 20004 §14,247 099 e 4,454 1,363 131,020
T Siewart L - P43 129 148, 1249
{consoiidated only) 2005 N [ EEEEN 145 460
Exploration Manager 2004 TREGOG e e e e PRG00
-------- Asia (Node 3}
] P Leviste 2{]{}(} ........................ [45,(}3{} 14_‘;,{}‘3{}
feonsoiidated onby) 2008 e e e 26,194 Fi3,372 133,564
Chairman, APME and 2004 9517 e e Fi,351 53317 131,385
CAMC {Note 43
M § Mazey WG e e F—
Eegal counsel 2005 e —

2004 52,130 4345 e e 9 57,584
Total corspensation: 20046 380,508 38,643 20,060 81,483 614018 1,136,052
key managerent 2005 316,368 26,012 20,0060 147,281 533,263 037,026
personnel 2004 397,294 22,021 20,000 138,669 570,464 i, 148,388

No proportion of the remuneration noted in the above table is performance related.

k.

LA

M F Askew, Chairman, is 2 dircctor of Infernational Mining & Finance Corp (M) which provided international management and
financial advisory services to the consolidated entity during the reporting period. During the reporting period, My Askew’s direetor fees as
Chairman of the Company tofaliing $72,000 and advisory fees amounting to $100.830 2005 $70,493, 2004: $116,230) were paid to IME.
This arrangement is based or nommal commercial terms and conditions.

. Mr R Thomson, Chief Exceutive Officer, is a director and shareholder of Monterey Consolidated Services Pty Lid who provided

management services 1o the consolidated entity amounting 1o $220,0080 (2005 $200,000, 2004: $182,3363. This arrangement is based on
novmal commercial terms and conditions. Mr Thomson was appointed Chief Executive Officer on 26 August 2003, Mr Thomson holds a
Bachelor of Engineering (Mining), MBA, is a fellow of the Australian Instifute of Mining and Metalurgy, and has extensive experience in
exploration, development, and mining operations.

. M F Stewart, Exploration Manager Asia, provided consulting services to the consolidated entity amounting to $148,12902605: $149.4040,

2064: Nity. This arrangement is based on normal commercial ferms and conditions.

. MrJ Leviste, Chairman of Aostralasian Phifippines Mining Ine and Climax-Arimeo Mining Corporation, is associated with Pacific Rim

Innovation and Management Exponents Inc., which provided manapement and advisory services to the consolidated entity in the
Philippines amounting to $143,039 (2005 $113,372, 2004: 869,317y This arrangement is based on normal commercial terms and
conditions.

. Inaccordanee with the constiution of the Company, afier a director retives or ceases to hold office, the directors may pay an amount tok

exceeding the amount permitted by the Corporations Law and the ASX Listing Rules.
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6. The fair value of the options is caiculated at the date of the grant using the Black-Seholes model and aflocated to each reporting period
eveniy over the period from prant date to vesting date. The value disclosed is the portion of the faie value of the options expensed in this
reporting pertod. The following factors and assumptions were used in determining the fair value of options on grant date:

Fair value Exercise Price of shares  Expecied Risk free Dividend
Lipant Bate Expiry Date per option price o1y graat date vodatility inferest rate vield
05 Jure 2003 © ... . oL 13 Aprii 2007 $6.052 S6.075 SO063 F74.8% 4.53% e
2T Rhne 20063 ... oo L L 13 Aprii 2007 L0087 $6.075 SO.HO3 F74.8% 4.53% e
F7 hure 2004 0 000 Lo 3k Juby 2068 S60.040 $6.120 SO.O70 F29.2% S0 e

7. Directors” and officers” remuneration excludes an nsurance premium of 38000 paid by the parent entity in respect of directors” and
offtcer’s lability insurance coniracts as the contracts do not specify premiums paid in respect of individual directors and officers.
Options 2ud rights over equity instrooents
Al options refer (o options over ordinary shares of Climax Mining Ltd, which are exercisable or a one-for-one basis under the ESOP plan.
kY Exercise of opions granted as compensation
During the reporéing period, the following shares were issued on the exercise of options previously granted as compensation:

Amoient paid
Execufive Number of shares ®share

BEWells .. oo .. 0 0 L. 333,060 $6.82

There are Bo amounts unpald on the shares {ssued as a result of the exercise of the options.

by The moventent during the reporting period in the munber of options over ordinary shares in Climax Mining L.td heid, dirccthy,
indirectty or benefleially, by cach key management person, including their refated parties, is as follows:

Vested Vested and
Held at Held st during the  exerciszble at
F July 2005  Exercised  3{ June 20806 vear 3 June 206
Directors
FE Askew .o 4000000 e 4000000 e e
Execufives
RPThOmSom .. oL 000000 e 3000000 333,000 66, M}
BEWells. . ... .. 106K, 060 333,000 667,000 335,000 333,000
FPLeviste . .. .. ... 1LO000060 0 e Losa0os e 100,000
Vested Vested and
Held at Held st during the  exerciszble ai
b July 2434 Exercised 38 June 2005 year 3 June 205
Directors
FE Askew .o 4000000 4000000 e e
Execufives
RPThomsom ... oL 000000 0 e 3.000,0600 333,000 333,000
BEWells. . .. .. .. . LOG0000 e 1,030, 000 333,000 333,000
FPLeviste . .. .. L. LOG0O60 e 1 L3, 000 1,500,608 1,030, B0
Vested Vested and
Held at Held st during the  exercisable af
b July 2003 Exercised 34 June 204 year 3 June 2004
Directors
FE Askew ... L 4000000 e 400,000 e e
Execufives
RPThOmSon . ... 20000060 0 e 060000 0 e e
B E V\"‘@!I‘; ______________________________________________ ]1{}{}0’(}{}{} ................
j }') }..-@ViSTC _____________________________________________ ]1{}{}{)1(}{}{} ................

No options heid by key management personnel are vesied but not exercisabie.
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4. Movemenss in Sharves

The movement durtng the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares in Climax Mining Lid heid, directly, indirectly or beneficially, by
caeh key marapement persor, including their refated parties, is as follows:

Held ag Received on Held at
i July 2005 Purchases  exercise of opticns Sales 360 June 26

Directors

FE Askew . ..o 4,608,006 Roooe e e 4,860 000
T™NFers. ..o L 2657208 e e 2117 26,360,848
TV Willsteed _ .00 Lo o elRO0G e e 606,060
Execuiives

REPThomson. ... ... .. ... ... ... ...... 5,730,000 soooe e e 6,550 (600
FPRewisle ... ... ... ... ... 3,675,006 400008 e 3475064
BEWels ..o o L e e 333006 93,000 238,060

No shares were granfed to key manapement personnel during the reportitg period as compensation.

Held ai Received an Held at
¥ July 2004 Porchases  exercise of options  Sales 30 June 25
Directors
FEAskew. ... L 4000000 e e e 4 (30,0040
TMNFers ... Lo 26572088 e e e 26,572 018
TV Willsteed _ .0 L0 L L LEUARUEY
Execuiives
RPHhomson - ... Lo 5,730,006 R 5,750,064
FPLeviste .. ... ..o L. 2,375,006 s0ne e e 1073060
Held ai Received on Held at
i Juby 2003 Porchases  exercise of opticns  Sales 30 June 2HM
Directors
FEAskew. (.00 L Lo 4000000 e e e 4 (30,000
TMNFern ... 26572018 e e e 26,572,018
TV Willsteed _ 0oL L 00— e e LEUARUEY
Executives
RPHhomson - ... L L 2,000,006 rsenon e e 8,750,000
FPLeviste _ ..o 2375006 e e e 2,573,000}

22, laterests in joing venfares

tnctuded i the assets of the Company and the consolidated entity are the following irems which represent the Company and the consolidated
enfity's interest in the assets and Habilities in joint ventures:

Consalicdated
2084 2085 2004
OO0 000 S0

Mon-currest asseks

Exploration expendilare. . © L L L L e — 268 273
NEFASSEES . L . L Ll — 268 273

The principal activity of all the joint venture operations is minerals exploration. Listed below is the name of cach joint venture operation and the
percentage interest bebd i the joint vemure by the consolidated entity:

linferest held

Joint venture Noke 20i6 S 20804
STy L L e i} e 3% T00%
Junetion ReefS. o o i} 2092% 42.7%  42.77%
Notes

i Fiji
Millennium Mining Pry Lt (Fijiy (“"Milletniam™) has advised that i has spent on exploration an amouttt it excess of Its requirement o earn a
%% interest; Climax has elected not to fund s pro-rata share of fikure costs and opted to participate by way of a net smeber rovaity of 2.1%.
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iy Australia
Junction Reefs. NSW
Climax interesz 20092%
Oprerator: Cadia Holdings Pry Ltd (" Newerest ) has earned 51% and controfiing interest

Newerest pave notice thal of 30 Seplember 2005 1t bad incurred expenditure of $14 million in accordance with the second Joint Venture

Agpreement and carned a 51% participating inferest. CHeax's inferest was correspondingly reduced 10 20.92%.

Clinax has given notice to the Operator that it will net be contributing further in respect of its participating interest. As 2 consequence of this
election, Climax’s participating interest wiil be furiher diluted as a direct propottion, o the expenditure it would be obliged to fund, as a
participant to {he ol joint veniure expenditure, taking past expenditures info account.

23, Segment reporting

Segment results, assels and labilities include ftems directly attributable to 2 segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Uinaliocated fiems mainky comprise interest, gain or joss on foreign exchange, corporate assets and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acguire segment assets thad are expected 1 be used for more than one
period.
Geographical segmenis

In presenting information on the basis of peographical segments, segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets. The
consolidated entity’s geographical segments are as follows:

Australia . .. oL e Minerals exploration.
Philippines ... . .. oL Minerals exploration.
Other . oLl Minerals exploration in other regions.

Creoraphic segments

The consolidated entity’s business segments are minerals exploration and comporaie administration.

(8) Primary report — peographical sepments

Austratia  Philipgines  Other  Unallocated  Consolidated
2086 7000 STEH 1000 5600 £1006
Segmient result . oo {28023 {323 { TR 644 {2,859}
Ineome dax benelit . o0 o0 o L L oL e I
Net profitfC0ss) o .. oo (2,802 {180 646 {2,859
Depreciation and amortisation of segment assefs .. ... ... .. 28 e 4l
Sepmient 888018, . . L. L. L L e ﬁ M _E 13,317 50,143
Segmeny Habilities ... .. Lo o w 3,455 _’s -------- 4727
Acquisition of non-current assels . .. .. oLl __ 15 8,540 o #5538

Austrzlia  Philippines  Other  Enalloczted  Consolidated
2685 51000 STEH TG00 5600 S1006
Segmient result . oo £3,008h (305 e 444 {3,063}
Ineome tax benedt © . o . L L e I
Net profitfC0ss) o ..o (3.000) _(305) e 440 {3.063)
Deprecistion and amortisation of segment assets .. ... .. .. . 25 7 e e 42
Sepmient 888018, . . L. L L L 126 M 155 4,504 33,086
Segmeny Habilities ... ..o L o ﬂ ﬂ _"5 -------- 3194
Acquisition of non- ewrrent assets . .. L. L. Lo L. 33 R ES — 1.877
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Anstrgtia  Philippines  Other  Unalloezted  Consolidated
2004 51000 STEH TG00 5600 £1006
Segmient result . oo (1,423 {1,068y e 421 {2067}
Ineome tax benellt © . o . L L e T
Netprofitffloss) . ... ..o L L (14233 11065 — 421 {2067}
Deprecistion and amortisation of segment assets .. ... ... .. 3 i e 4
Sepmient A8Sel8. . L L. L. 374 26,300 146 8,775 35,592
Segmeny Habilities .. .. ... L L Lo L ﬁ w e 3ied
Acquisition of non- current assets . ... ... L. ﬁ ﬂ e 1647
{by Secondary report — business segments
2086 Exploration  Corporate  Unallocated  Consolidated
bRUCY S1006 5600 S1006
Fobal TOVERKE . L L L e e e
Segment assels by focatfon of assets . .. ..o o L o Lo L. M ﬁ HERER D 50,143
Acqusition of non-current assets . .. .. Lo L Lo L. m j -------- #5538
2005 Explorasion  Corporate  Enallocazted  Consolidated
bRUCY S1006 5600 £10068
Fobal TOVERKE . L L L e e o 444 A4}
Segment assels by focatfon of assets . .. ..o o L o Lo L. 28324 ﬁ 4,504 13,000
Acquisition of non-current assets © .. oo L L ﬂ 2% e 1.877
2004 Explorasion  Corporate  Enallocazted  Consolidated
bRUCY £006 5600 S1006
Fobal TOVERKE . L L L e e 144 421 565
Segment assels by focatfon of assets . .. ..o o L o Lo L. w ﬁ 8,775 33292
Acqusition of non-current assets . .. .. Lo L Lo L. ﬁ @ -------- 1,647

Envestimients in associaées

The consolidated carrying value of investiments In associates is nil, as shown below {2003 Nif, 2004 Nif).

The consoldated entity hasa 50.97% (2005: 50.97%, 2004: 50979} interest, which under the terms of a shareholder agreement does not represent

a controliing interest, in the issued capital of Argentina Mineral Development S.AL ncorporated in Argenting and a 47.5% (2005 47.5%,

2004: 47 5%y inferest in Minera Climax e Ecuador 8 AL incorporated in Eeuador. These companies ave in the process of deregistration with the

regpective statulory authovities.

. Reconciliaiion of cash Hows from operating activities

2k 20065 palltE]

FRYH $T006 bR
Losg afer iBCOME TAX . L . L . L {2,859 (3063 {2087)
Adpust for items classitied as investingfdinancing activities:
Profit (loss} from sale of investment and shares held forteading . . L. Lo o L oL o e e {363
Finance charges on {ong term 0810 . . . L oL L 3
Adpust for ron-cash ftems:
Provisions for
-------- emplovee enditlemMenis . L L L L 43 36 ¥
-------- rellabiiRAEIOR | L {53} 259
-------- write down exploration expendiliFe . . . .. L L L L 146 9 971
-------- unrealised foreign exehange RN . .. L L L L 3323 {95} {257}
- digeottted interest on Romp terimn BORN _ L oL L L e 66 178
Share based payment eXpeNse . L L L e 81 157 44
Plepreciation of plant and equipiiient . . ..o oL L 1 42 4
Net cash used in operating activities before changes in assets and Habilities . . .. oL 0oL 0 o L. {2,853y (2,379} {1,154}
Increaseddecrease) in trade, other debtors atd prepayments . . ... ... L L {38} 34 fE12Y
{Inereaseddecrease in trade credilors and aceruals 0L L L L . 287 {96} {32}
Net cash used in operating activilies . . . L L L {2,604y {2,436} {1.29%)
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26.

7.

Evenss subseguent 10 reporting date

Subsequent to ke balance sheet date, on 11 July 2006, Climax Mining and Oceana Gold Limited announced their intemtion to merge by schenme of
arrangemnent. The Climax Diveciors unanimously suppotted the merger.

Linder the ferms of the Share Scheine, Clmax shareholders received 62 Oceans shares and 31 Oceana options for every HH) CHmax shares they
held. Under the terms of the Listed Option Schente, Climax option holders received 29.41 Oceana shares and 147 Oceana options for every
100 Cilinax options they held. Ocearta options to be issued as a result of the merger are 4 new class of Oceana secwrity. Bach Oceana option entitles
the hoider to subseribe for one Oveana share at a price of 92.5c. The Oceana options can be exercised during the period from | lanary 2608 to
i January 2609,

The Board of Clmax unanimously supported the proposed merger between Oceana and Climay and recommended that Climax sharcholders and
option holders voted in favour of the transaction at a meeting that ook place on 24 October 2006, At the CHmax Mining Share and Option Scheme
Meetings held on 38 October 2006, the proposed merger was approved by a majority of sharcholders and option holders.

O 6 Novernber 2006 the merger of Climax Mining with Oceana Gobd Ltd by way of a scheme of arvangement was completed. Upon completion of
the merger Oceana Gold Lid acquired 100% of the voting shares of Climax Mining.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 28 September 2066 Sercor Limited gave rotice to exercise 12.53 million options. These options had an
exereise price of 32 cents. This contributed $4 miliion of additional capital.

Crther than as stated elsewhere in this report, there has nod arisen in the interval bebween the end of the financial year and the date of this report any
item, transaction, or event of & material and unusual nature Hkely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to affect significantly the
operations of the consolidared entity, the results of those operations, or the state of the aftairs of the consolidated entity, in subsequent financial
years.

Ipact of apgplyving Canadian Generally Accepted Accouniing Principles (“CUGAAP™)

There is 1o bmpact on the reported ted loss, balanee sheed or cash flow statement for the vears ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006 for the purposes
of applying CGAAPR.

For the vear ended 36 June 2004 the audited financial staterments were prepared under Australian Generally Accepted Accoursting Principles
(“AGAAPTY. Adjustiments bave been made Lo the reported AGAAP results and balances for the year ended 360 June 2004, and the opening balance
sheet ag al 1 July 2003, to bring these aceounts rio comphance with AIFRS. There is no impact on this reported net Joss, balance sheet or cash flow
statement for the vear ended 30 Tune 2004 for the purposes of applving CGAAPR
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In the opinion of the directors of Climax Mining Lid {“the Company™):
{a} the financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2601, including:
{) giving a tree and fair view of the financial position of the Company and consolidated entity as at
30 September 2006 and of their performance, as represented by the resulis of their operations and their
cash flows, for the period ended on that date; and
(1) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements; and
{by there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

{Signed) James E. Askew
Direcior

Melbourne, Ausiralia
May 15, 20067
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OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION
Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006
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OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION

COMPILATION REPORT ON PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Directors of
OcEANAGOLD CORPORATION

We have read the accompanying unsudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet of OceanaGold Corporation (the
“Company’™) as at December 31, 2006 and unsudited pro forma consolidated statement of loss for the year then ended, and
have performed the following procedures.

1.

2.

6.

Compared the figures in the columns captioned “OceanaGold Corporation” to the sudited opening balance

sheet of OceanaGold Corporation as at March 22, 2007 and found them to be in agreement.

Compared the figures in the columns captioned “Oceana Gold Limited” to the audited consolidated financial

statements of Oceana Gold Limited as at December 31, 2006 and for the year then ended, and found them to be

in agrecment.

Compared the figures in the column “CHmax Mining Limited” to the reconciliation of Climax results for the

period January 1, 2006 to November 6, 2086 as shown m Note 6 to the pro forma financial statements, and

found them to be n agreement.

Reealeulated the figures in the column “Climax results for the 6 months ended June 2006” based on a schedule

prepared by management fo caleulate the USD equivalent for the 6 months then ended using the audited

financial statements for the period July 1, 2003 to Junc 34, 2006 and the unaudited financial statements for the

period July 1, 2085 to December 31, 2003, each of which have been presented m Australian dollars, and found

them fo be in agreement.

Recaleutated the figures in the colurnn “Climax results for the 3 months ended September 30, 2006 based ona

schedule prepared by management to caleulate the USD equivalent for the 3 months then ended using the

unaudited financial statements for the period from July 1, 2006 1o September 30, 2000, which have been

presented in Australian doHars, and found them to be m agreement.

Compared the figures in the column “Climax resuits for the period October 1, 2006 to November 6, 20067 to a

schedule prepaced by management to calenlate the USD equivalent for the period then ended using the

accounting records of Climax comprising the unaudited results for the period from October 1, 2006 1o

November 6, 2006, which have been presented in Australian dollars, and found them to be in agreement.

Reealeulated the figures in column “Climax Mining Limited January 1, 2006 to November 6, 2006” as the sum

total of those figures in columns “Climax results for the 6 months ended June 20067, “Climax results for the

3 months ended September 30, 2006™ and “Climax results for the period October 1, 2606 to November 6,

2006”7, and found them to be in agreement.

Made enquiries of certain officials of the company who have responsibility for financial and sccounting

matters about:

{a}  the basis for determination of the pro forma adjusiments; and

{by  whether the pro forma consolidated financial statements comply as to form in all material respects with
Canadian securities requirements.

The officials:

9.

10.

{a)}  described to us the basis for determination of the pro forma adjustments, and

(b)Y stated that the pro forma consolidated financial statements comply as to form m all material respects
with Canadian securities requirements.

Read the notes to the pro forma consolidated financial statements, and found them to be consistent with the

basis deseribed to us for determination of the pro forma adjustments.

Recaleutated the application of the pre forma adjustments to the aggregate of the amounis in the columns

captioned “Oceana Gold Limited”, “OceanaGold Corporation” and “Climax Mining Limited” as at

December 31, 2006, and for the yvear then ended, and found the amounts in the column captioned “Pro

forma OceanaGold Corporation” to be artthmeticslly correct.

A pro forma financial statement is based on management assumpiions and adjustments which are inherently
subjeetive. The foregoing procedures are subsiantially less than either an audit or a review, the objective of which is the
expression of assurance with respect to management’s assumptions, the pro forma adjustments, and the application of the
adjustments to the historical financial information. Accordingly, we express no such assurance. The foregoing procedures
would not necessarily reveal maiters of significance to the pro forma financial statements, and we therefore make no
representation about the sufficiency of the procedures for the purposes of a reader of such statements.

{Signed) “Ernst & Young”
Chartered Accountants
Melbourne, Ausiralia

June 23, 2607
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OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at December 31, 20006
(Unavdited - see compilation report)

Oceana Pee forma
OceanaGokd Gold OceanaGold
Corporation Eimited Pro forra Corporaiion
Hisiorjcal Historical adfustinents m (Conscliddased)
{in thousands of Puited States doliars}
ARSETS
Current assels
Cashand casheguivalents . . oo o o o o i — 3,025 76,428 3{c) 156,453
Accounts receivable and other recelvables . ... ... . L. — 2488 — 2,488
Iovertories. o L e — 131,498 — {1,498
Prepayments . ... ... e — I8 — 508
Current portion of fulure X 888CI8 . .. L. Lo — 22,894 — 22,8494
PerivaliVes . L. e — 4,298 — 4,294
Total clrrent as8ei8 . L. L L L e — 26,71 76,428 97,136
Nen-current assets
Accounts recetvable and other receivables . .. .. ..o 00 L — 26 — 26
Ioventories. o Lo — 21,452 — 21,452
Property, plant and equipment . . ... oL L o L — 155,632 — 155,032
Mining 888818, . L. L L. L — 316,338 — 316,338
PerivaliVes . L. e — L1770 — {176
Total nON-CUrrent S88CT8. . . . . . L i e — 503,018 — 03,018
TOTAL ASSEYS. . ... ... . — 623,729 76,428 TO60,157

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current lishifities

Accounts payable and accrued habibities .. ..o oo — F4,700 — 14,706
PIervaliVes L e — T3.978 — 73,978
Current portion of employee benefits .. ... ... ... o — 1,550 — 1,350
lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings . ... ..o o L — 057 — 957
Current tncome taxes payable ... o oL L o L o o — — — —
Total current liabilites . .. .. . 0 L L L oL — 91,185 — 91,185
Non-current liabilities
Other long ferm obligations . . ... o oL L o — 3,466 — 3,466
Employee benefits . ... . o oo i — 81 — 81
BIerivallves . . ..o e — — — —
Interest-bearing foans and borrowings . . .. ... ... L — 146,652 — F4{,652
Future meome tax Habilittes, . 0000 0 oo 0 0 0. — 943,763 — 943,763
Asset retirement obligation ... ... L L L oo L — %422 — R,422
Total non-current habilities .. .. ... . ... ... o L. — 243,384 — 243,384
FOTAL LIABILITIES ... ... . ... ... ... .. ... ... — 334,569 — 334,569
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital sfock . o L — 246,146 {246,146y 3, 3a) —
246,146 3, May 246,146
76,428 3e) 76,428
Ratained eariings . . ... .. ... . L — 1,768 — {1,768
Equity portion of convertible debt .. ... oo o o oL — 9,239 — 9,234
Contributed surplus. . .. ... o o — P8932 — {8,932
Accurndated other comprehensive tncome ... ... o L — 3075 — 3,075
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY .. ... ... ... .... — 280,160 76,428 363,588
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY .. ... .. ... ... ...... — 623,729 76,428 TOLE57

On behalf of the Board of Directors:
{Signed} Janes E. Askrw (Signed) §. Dentast SnaLe
Director Director

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these finencial siatemenis
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OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF LOSS
For the year ended December 31, 2006
{Unaudited

Revenue
Goldsales. . ................. ...
Release from other comprehensive
income of deferred unrealised logg
on designated hedges .. ... ... ...

Cost of sales, excluding depreciation and
amottization . ... ............. ...
Depreciation and amortization .. .. .. ...
Other expenses
Interest expense. .. ... ... ... ...
Other. .. ..o o o o

Loss on fair value of undesignated
hedges. . ... . o
Other income . ....................

ELass before income taxes. . ... .. .. ...
[ncome tax benefit ... ... ... ... ...

Netloss .. ... ... ... ... ..........

Net loss per share:
------- - basic (cents per share} .. ....... ...
----------- diluted (cents per share) . ... .. .. ...

Oreeanafzold
Corporation
Histerical

see compilation report)

Oceana Gold

Limited
Iistorieal Climax Mining
Year ended Limited
December 31, Janoary 1, 206 fo
20i November 6, 2006 Note

{inn thousands of United States doilars)

94750 e

(27.684)
67.066 e

(72.684) .
(14031

(6,594) (99 5(b)
(6,212) (3,628} 5(b)
{12,806) (3,727

S
2,766 304 5(b)

{34,708) {3,423}
11,341 e

(23.427) (3,423 E(bj}

4

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial statements
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Pra forma
Qeeanalold
Corporation

(Consolidated)

94,750

(27.684)
67,066

(72,684)
(14,031)

(6,693)
(9,840)
(16,533)

(5.079)
3,070

(38,101)
11,341

(26,850)

(20.23)
(20.23)



OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION

NOTES TO PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2006
(Unavdited -~ see compilation report)

Basis of preparztion

OceanaCiold Corpoation {“OceanaCiold” or the “Corporation™) was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act {British Columbia) on
March 22, 2607, OceanaCobd was established for the pumpose of becoming the Canadian holding comparty of Oceana Gold Limited (“Oceana™), a
company incorporated under the Australian Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), pursuant 10 cowrt-approved schemes of arangement under Australian
[aw and an nplementation agreement dated March 36, 2007 between OceanaGold and Ocears. Oceanaliold intends to list on the Toromo Stock
Exchange subject to the above mentioned schemes of arrangenent

The accompanying unandited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and unaudited pro forma consoldated statement of foss of the Corporation have
been prepared by the management of OGceana on behaif of the Corporation in accordance with Canadian generally accepied accounting principles,
using the signiftcant accounting policies disclosed in the avdited consolidated financial taiements of Oceana. They have been prepared as part of a
progpectas filed in cach of the provinces and territories of Canada by OceanaGold to effect an initial public offering of 25,715,008 conimon shares
of OQeeanaGold net of equity ssuance costs including underwiiting fees.

Oceana is an international mining and explovation commpany that has been an active explorer since listing on the Australian Stock Exchange during
2004, Pursuant to the court-approved schemes of arrangement, holders of ordinary shares of Oceana will exciange their shaves for either
OceanaCiold comnton shares or OveanaGold CHESS Depositary Interests {CDIs™), on the basis of vne {1) common share or one CEM for every
five {3} ordinary shares of Oceana held.

On November &, 2006, Oceana acquired alt of the outstanding shares of Climax Mining Lid {“Climax™), a Hsted public company based in Australia
engaged in minerais exploration, pre-development of the Didipio (Gold-Copper Project in the Philippines and investment.

The unasudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet gives effeet to the proposed scquisition of Oceana by Oceanafiold as well as the equity
issuance described above, as if they had oceurred on Pecember 31, 2006, |t has been prepared using ihe audited consolidated financial statements of
Oceana as at December 31, 2006 and the audited balance sheet of OceanaGold as at Mareh 22, 2007, The unaudited pro forma consolidated
statement of loss gives effeet to the proposed acquisition of Oceana by OcearaCiold as it had occurred on fanuary 1, 2006, as well asthe historical
acquisition of Climnax by Oceana as it had occurred on January 1, 2006. 1€ has been preparved using the audited consolidated financial statements of
Oceana for the year ended December 31, 2006, the audited consolidated financial statements of Climax for the year ended June 30, 2006 and the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of Climax for the six months ended December 31, 2003 and the three months ended September 36,
2006, and a schedule prepared by management of Ceeana from the accounting records of Clmax comprising the unaudited results for the pertod
from Oetober 1, 2006 to Novembaer 6, 2006,

This unsudiled pro forma consolidated balance sheet and unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of logs of OceanaCiold should be read in
conjunction with the audited balance sheet of OceanaCold as at March 22, 2007, the audited consolidated financial statements of Oceana for the
year ended December 31, 2006, the audited consolidated financial statements of Climax for the vear ended June 30, 2006 and the unaudited
consolidated financial statements of Climax for the three months ended September 30, 2006, all inctuded elsewhere in this prospectus.

Accounting treatmient for acquisition

The uraudited pro forma consolidated financial statements reflect the acquisition of Oceana using the continuity-of-inferests method of accounting
as there has been no substantive change in the ultimete ownership bterests in Oceans. Accordingly, the assets acguired and Habilities assumed by
OceanaCiold wiil be measured al Oceana’s historical carrying amounts.

Sharcholders of Oceana will receive | common share or OB of OceanaGold for every 5 ordinary shares held in Oceana.

These pro torma adjustments are {entative and are based or available flnancial information and certain estimates amd assumptions. The actual
adjustments 1o the consolidated finaneia! statements of OceanaGold will depend on a number of factors including, bul not iimited to, changes in et
carrying amounis, and operating results of Geeana between December 31, 2006 and the date of the acquisition. Theretore, the actual adjustments
will differ from the pro forma adjustments. Management believes that the assumptions provide a reasonable basis #or presenting ail of the
stgnificart effects of the transactions contenyated and that the pro forma adjusiments give appropriate effeet to those assumptions and are properly
applied in {he unaudited pro forma consolidated Financial statemenis.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are not intended to reflect the results of operations which would have actually resuited
had the acguisition of OceanaGold and other pro forma transactions and adjustimenis been effected on the dates indicated befow. Furker, the
wrtrudited pro forma consolidated statement of Toss 18 rod necessarily indicative of the results of operations that may be obained by the Corporation
in the fudure.
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Share capital

Share capial as af Pecemnber 31, 2006 in the pro forma consolidated balance sheet is comprised of the following:

Number of Amount
common shares 57004
OceanaGold
Bafance as af December 31 2006, prior to proposed share exchange - ... .. oo o o o oo Lo e e
Oeeana
Balance as at December 31 2008, prior to proposed share exchange .. .. ... L Lo L 663,82 246,146
663,802 246,146
Shares issued by OceanaGold to effect 1:5 share exchange in relation to the acquisition . .. .. ... ... 132766 -
Adpustment on acquisition . .. Ll (663,802y 0 e
Balance as af December 31 2008 . L L 132,766 246 146
Earnings per share
The folowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:
000
Numerator:
Net loss {used in caleuiation of basic and diluked cavnings per shave) .. .. o . L {26,853
Thuusands
Denominator:
Weighted average number of commaon shares {used in caloidation of basic carnings pershare) .. .. ... .. ... L. 132,760
Effect of dilution:
Share OpTIONS® L L L L e e
Convertible BORS™ L L e
Adjusted weighted average number of common shares (used in caleiation of diluted carnings per share) .. .. ... .. ... 132,760

* Fhe conversion of share options and convertible notes would decrease the [oss per share and hence are non-dijutive.

Pro forma adjustrnents
The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements have been prosented assuming that the following trarsactions bad been completed and
adjustments had been effected as of January |, 2006 for the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of income and as of December 3§, 2006 for
the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet:
) An adjusttient has been recorded to reflect the exchange of all outstanding ordinary shares of Oceana for common shares in
CeeanaCiold.
by Anadiustment bas been recorded to reflect the consolidation of'the resulls of Climax forthe period from fanuary |, 2006 to November 6,
2006, the date of acquisition by Oceana. Refer to note 6 whick reconeiies the Climax resubts for the period January §, 2006 1o
November 6, 2006 to reported injerim period financial resulls for the Corporation.
¢y Anadjustment of $76,427,547 has been recorded to reflect public offering proceeds, net of underwriting costs of 34,636,794 and other
extimated ssuance costs of $3,24 1,000
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6.

Reconciliation of Climax resulis for period January 1, 2006 te November 6, 2006

Revenae
Goldsales. . ..o L e
Release front other comprehensive income of deferred unrealised
foss on designated hedges . .. L oL oL oL Lo oL

Cost of sales, excluding depreciation and amertisation

Depreciation and amortisation

D1ber expenses
[nterest expense
{ther

Chainfioss} on fair value of undesignated hedges
Crher lncome

Earnings/{loss) before income taxes . . .. .. ... L.
fncome taxes fexpenselbenetit

Net earnings/{loss)
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Climax
resulés for
6 menihs

ended

June Mk,

2606

Climax
Climax results for
resulis for the Period
3 months Oetober 1,
ended 2006 to
Sepsemsber 30, November 6,
2086 26

Climax Mining
Limited

Januaey 1, 2006

ts November 6,
236 ger
Statement of
Lsss

{in thousands of United States doliarsy

(683 (31)
(1,503 (548
(1,571 (579

154 1
(14200 (75}
(14200 @'}

(G
(3,628




AUDITORS* CONSENT

We have read the prospectus of OceanaGold Corporation {the “Company”) dated June 25, 2607 relating to the
offering and issuance of 25,715,000 common shares of the Company. We have complied with Canadian generaily
accepted standards for an auditor’s involvement with offering documents,

We consent to the use in the above named prospectus of our report dated June 25, 2007 to the Board of Directors of
the Company on the following financial staterent of the Company:

»  Balance shoeet as at March 22, 2807,

We also consent to the use in the above named prospectus of our report dated May 13, 2067 to the Board of Directors
of the Oceana Gold Limited on the tollowing consolidated financial statements of Oceana Gold Limited:
»  Consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 20060 and 2605,
»  Consolidated statements of earnings/(loss}, retaimed earnings, comprehengive income/(loss) and cash flows for
gach of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006,

{Signedy "Ernst & Young”
Chartered Accountants
Melbourne, Australia

June 23, 2007
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CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY

Dated: June 25, 2007

The foregeing constitutes full, true and plam disclosure of all material facts relating fo the securities offered by this
prospectus as required by Part 9 of the Securifies Act (British Columbia), by Part 9 of the Securities Aot {Alberta), by
Part Xi of The Securities Act, 1988 (Saskatchewan), by Part V11 of The Securities Act (Manitoba}, by Part XV of the
Securities Act (Ontario}, by Part 6 of the Securities Act (New Brunswick), by Section 63 of ihe Securities Act (Nova
Scotia), by Part H of the Securities def (Prince Edward 1sland), by Part X1V of the Securities Act, 1990 (Newfoundland and
Labrador), by the Securities Act (Yukon}, by the Securities Act (Northwest Terrtories) and by the Securities Act
{Nunavut) and the respective regulations thercunder. This prospectus does not contain any misrepresentation likely to
affect the value or market price of the securities to be distributed within the meaning of the Securities Act {Québec) and the
regulations thereunder.

OCEANAGOLD CORPORATION

By: (Signed) Stepuen A, Orx By: (Signed) Ross Grossop
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

On behalf of the Board of Directors of OceanaGold Corporation

By: {Signed} James E. Askpw By: (Signed} J. DEntam SHALE
Director Dizector
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CERTIFICATE OF THE UNDERWRITERS

Dated: June 25, 2007

To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, the foregoing constitutes tull, true and plain disclosure of all
materigl facts relating to the securities offered by this prospectus as reguired by Part 9 of the Securities Aot (British
Columbia), by Part 9 of the Securities Act (Alberta), by Part X1 of The Securities Act, 1988 (Saskatchewan), by Part V11 of
The Securities Act (Manitoba), by Part XV of the Securities Act (Ontario), by Part 6 of the Securities Ace (New
Brunswick), by Section 84 of the Securities Act (Nova Scotia}, by Part H of the Securities Ace (Prince Edward island), by
Part X1V of the Securities Act, 1990 {Newfoundland and Labrador), by the Securities Act (Yukon}, by the Securities Act
{Northwest Territories) and by the Securities Aef (Nunavut) and the respective regulations thereunder. To our knowledge,
this prospectus does not contaln any misrepresentation likely to affect the value or market price of the securities to be
digtributed within the meaning of the Securities Act {Québect and the repulations thereunder.

BMO NESBITT BURNS INC.

By: {Signed)y  Egizio Bianchini

HAYWOOD SECURITIES INC. WESTWIND PARTNERS INC.

By: (Signed)  John Willett By: (Signedy  Nick Pocrnic
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